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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Tour of BC permit office
Date: Friday, July 10, 2015 10:27:00 AM

I will give her a call

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, July 10,2015 10:24 AM
To: Cathy Ball

Cc: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Tour of BC permit office

Sure, I will ask Matt Stone to give you a call.
Sent from my iPhone

> On Jul 10, 2015, at 10:22 AM, Cathy Ball <cball@ashevillenc.gov> wrote:

>

> Jon,

>

> We would love to have some folks come over and tour the county's permit intake process. Can you help me work
that out?

>

> Cathy

>

> Sent from my iPhone
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Two abandoned and blighted houses in Fairview Forest
Date: Tuesday, January 19, 2016 8:48:00 AM

I'll send Gary out today

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2016 8:25 AM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: Two abandoned and blighted houses in Fairview Forest

You want to take a look?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Michael Sartisky <ssartiskyhome@gmail.com>

Date: January 18, 2016 at 9:50:47 AM EST

To: <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Two abandoned and blighted houses in Fairview Forest

Jon

We have two houses in our community that have been abandoned for about five
years and are now blighted. One is owned I believe by Longview Inc and is at the
very end of Apple Forest Road, I believe the number is something like 40. It
previously was owned by Grant Goodge.

The other is owned by Adam Honig at the upper end of Fairview Forest Drive, I
believe the number is 690 or 700. It also has an abandoned commercial trailer in
front of it, also for about five years.

Can you advise me as to the proper person or department to address to have these
two situations addressed. Does the county have a mechanism to compel the
owners to remedy these situations?

Thank you for your assistance.
Michael Sartisky, PhD

Please ignore the baffling spelling of this iPad.
Sent from my iPad
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Voice Mail (1 minute and 5 seconds)
Date: Friday, June 9, 2017 12:22:52 PM

Sorry if | missed you, got tied up on a job

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, June 09, 2017 10:17 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Voice Mail (1 minute and 5 seconds)

I'm in a meeting up the street. Will call you when I get out at noon.

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 9, 2017, at 10:03 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:
Hi call me back at minimum.

Unsafe howling minimum tiles and -- drag Ins and wanna get together Monday or Tuesday
I know you know I have not talked about it I don't know what your take on it he is are a
few minutes you have a concern with it or not -- I know we've trying to get these push
something before robin with his legal -- pushes in another minute housing I wasn't an
image for the if that's actually happening anyway -- if you want me to call something out
with you when you want to discuss it occurred realty and I'm just moving forward with it I
think I'm probably not some concerns I've got some testing concerns of how we may be
able to handle it on our end but that's probably want a bigger one 2nd week coordinates
with him.

But I just told for us well reach out to you and then get back with him and try to set some
up from under to do so he can get on the same about the gonna do that so anyway just let
me know what you think he is and if you're out a town I'm just catch up with you first of
next week bye.

Preview provided by Microsoft Speech Technology. Learn More...

You received a voice message from Matt Stone at 5364.

Caller-Id: 5364

Job Title: Engineering Inspections Coord
Company: Buncombe County

Work: 828-250-5364

Mobile: 828-776-1102

Email: Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

<5364 (1 minute and 5 seconds) Voice Mail.mp3>
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Voice Mail (1 minute and 5 seconds)
Date: Friday, June 9, 2017 12:23:00 PM

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
Subject: RE: Voice Mail (27 seconds)
Date: Friday, June 23, 2017 11:11:05 AM

Debbie called him.

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2017 10:29 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>; Debbie Truempy
<Debbie. Truempy@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: FW: Voice Mail (27 seconds)

Do you all want to respond to this one? There is not much | can give him on my end.

From: Microsoft Outlook On Behalf Of 8282325847
Sent: Friday, June 23, 2017 10:15 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Voice Mail (27 seconds)

Hey Matt this is John Boyle with Asheville citizen times but 10:15 on Friday I am trying to get a little
update you on the overlook apartments situation I know that I think the developers put that on hold and
we just trying to catch up if you could give me a call back I'd really appreciate it I'm at 232-5847 again
it's John Boyle 232747 thanks bye.

Preview provided by Microsoft Speech Technology. Learn More...
You received a voice message from 8282325847

Caller-Id: 8282325847



mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=813740331FB045AA81CCD6759EE7CA8A-JON CREIGHT

mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

tel:2325847

http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=150048

tel:8282325847

tel:8282325847




From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Voice Mail (27 seconds)

Date: Friday, June 23, 2017 11:11:00 AM
Thanks

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, June 23,2017 11:11 AM

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
<Debbie.Truempy@buncombecounty.org>

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

Caller-1d: 8282325847
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

Date: Friday, June 23, 2017 11:11:52 AM
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
Subject: RE: Voice Mail from 9195766731 (49 seconds)
Date: Wednesday, December 3, 2014 1:48:00 PM

I'LL GIVE HIM A CALL

From: Jon Creighton
Sent: Wednesday, December 03, 2014 1:13 PM

To: Matt Stone
Subject: FW: Voice Mail from 9195766731 (49 seconds)

Can you help?

From: Microsoft Outlook On Behalf Of 9195766731
Sent: Wednesday, December 03, 2014 12:37 PM
To: Jon Creighton

Subject: Voice Mail from 9195766731 (49 seconds)

You received a voice mail from 9195766731

Caller-Id: 9195766731
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Voice Mail from METROPOLITAN SE (1 minute and 4 seconds)
Date: Friday, November 14, 2014 7:49:00 AM

The more | thought about it last night | agree, 2-3 days a week provides no consistency.
Thanks for the help.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Thursday, November 13, 2014 7:03 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Voice Mail from METROPOLITAN SE (1 minute and 4 seconds)

Jerry is going to work on it for us.
Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 13, 2014, at 5:33 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

You have any input before | call him back? | think part time is better than nothing, |
won’t do a computer kiosk because will spend our time telling people how to use it.

From: Microsoft Outlook On Behalf Of METROPOLITAN SE (No email address available)
Sent: Thursday, November 13, 2014 5:18 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Voice Mail from METROPOLITAN SE (1 minute and 4 seconds)

You received a voice mail from METROPOLITAN SE at 8282258289

Caller-Id: 8282258289

<8282258289 (1 minute and 4 seconds) Voice Mail.mp3>
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton; Jeff Goss

Subject: RE: Zoning question

Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 12:50:00 PM
Jeff,

The state retention schedule for permitting records is six years after the Certificate of Occupancy or
expiration of a permit so our records will be limited. If you want to give me a call we can discuss in
more detail to see what we can provide.

Matt Stone

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2017 11:44 AM

To: Jeff Goss <jegoss@thegossagency.com>

Cc: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: Zoning question

I think that it would be impossible to acquire that information since we didn’t have computers in the
80’s. I'm copying Matt Stone who is the building and permits director on this email and asking him
to respond to you about how much data he can give you.

From: Jeff Goss [mailto:jegoss@thegossagency.com]
Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2017 11:35 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>; Karen Goss
<karen@thegossagency.com>

Subject: Re: Zoning question

From the 80s zoning by Limestone to today

From: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 at 11:32 AM

To: jeff goss <jegoss@thegossagency.com>
Subject: RE: Zoning question

Over what time period are you talking about?

From: Jeff Goss [mailto:jegoss@thegossagency.com]

Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2017 11:13 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>; Karen Goss
<karen@thegossagency.com>

Subject: Re: Zoning question
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Excellent, thank you, Karen can you insert this into the letter in the areas noted, also Jon is it possible to get
a list of properties developed from Blue Ridge Parkway bridge to Fletcher, Sweeten Creek, Mills Gap, Long
Shoals, Overlook (residents single family-multi unit, businesses, schools, other)?

From: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 at 11:05 AM

To: Joe Belcher <Joe.Belcher@buncombecounty.org>, jeff goss <jegoss@thegossagency.com>
Subject: RE: Zoning question

This parcel was originally zoned under the Limestone Community Council back in the early 80’s.

From: Joe Belcher

Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2017 9:28 AM

To: Jeff Goss <jegoss@thegossagency.com>; Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Zoning question

Jon,
Please advise
Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 3, 2017, at 10:03 AM, Jeff Goss <jegoss@thegossagency.com> wrote:
Joe, where can I find the date the zoning was created affecting overlook property?
Sent from my Verizon LG Smartphone

------ Original message------
From: Jeff Goss

Date: Mon, Oct 2, 2017 8:35 PM
To: Joe Belcher;

Cc: Karen Goss;
Subject:Zoning

Hello Joe, Do you know when the zoning was established regulating the use of the property on
Overlook with the proposed development?

Sent from my Verizon LG Smartphone
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton; Jeff Goss

Subject: RE: Zoning question

Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 12:50:22 PM
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



mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Joe.Belcher@buncombecounty.org

mailto:jegoss@thegossagency.com

mailto:jegoss@thegossagency.com

mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

mailto:jegoss@thegossagency.com




From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: complaint
Date: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 11:32:00 AM

| don’t see where we’ve been out there but let me check with Gary when he gets back from an
inspection.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 11:28 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: complaint

Do you know anything about this?

From: Kathy Hughes

Sent: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 10:44 AM

To: Joe Belcher <Joe.Belcher@buncombecounty.org>; Robert Pressley
<Robert.Pressley@buncombecounty.org>; Roger Presley (Environmental Control)
<Roger.Presley@buncombecounty.org>; Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>;
Debbie Truempy <Debbie.Truempy@buncombecounty.org>; Van Duncan

<Jack.Duncan@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: complaint

Hey! I've copied several of you on this email with a complaint we received from Ken Mashburn at
279-5859 or 670-5354. He said that there is trash all over the bank near Ken’s Utility and Storage on
19/23 in Candler between the churches. He thinks someone is living in one of the storage units; they
aren’t fenced or secure and they are throwing trash down the bank. He said that they play loud
music at all hours and he had reported this but the deputies can’t do anything about that (he also
thought there was some drug dealing going on...but had no proof).

Kathy Hughes, NCMCC

Clerk to the Board

Public Relations Director
Buncombe County Government
200 College Street

Asheville, NC 28801
828-250-4105

Fax — 828-6076

“Be kinder than necessary because everyone you meet is fighting some kind of battle.”
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Michael C. Frue; Matt Stone
Subject: RE: draft minimum housing ordinance
Date: Thursday, August 3, 2017 3:11:33 PM
| have not.

From: Michael C. Frue

Sent: Thursday, August 03, 2017 3:09 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: FW: draft minimum housing ordinance

Hey - did you talk to Robin about this ?

From: Robin Merrell [mailto:Robin@pisgahlegal.org]
Sent: Thursday, August 03, 2017 2:44 PM
To: Michael C. Frue <Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org>

Cc: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>; Wanda Greene

<Wanda.Greene@buncombecounty.org>; Mandy Stone <Mandy.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Jon

Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: draft minimum housing ordinance

Can I get an update, please?

Thanks,
Robin

Get Outlook for i0OS

From: Michael C. Frue <Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org>

Sent: Tuesday, June 13, 2017 3:40:39 PM

To: Robin Merrell

Cc: Brownie W. Newman; Wanda Greene; Mandy Stone; Jon Creighton
Subject: draft minimum housing ordinance

Hi Robin -

I have been reviewing the draft ordinance and working with Planning and Permitting

regarding some of the issues presented. At this point, we are all slammed with the budget
process, so we will not be able to have the matter before the Commissioners on June 20th,
Also, we have caught wind of proposed legislation that may impact existing ordinances as

well as this draft.

We will try and bring this on for consideration in August. In the meantime, if you have any
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questions or concerns please feel free to contact me.

Thank you.

Michael C. Frue

Buncombe County

Senior Staff Attorney

200 College Street, Ste 300
Asheville, NC 28801

p. 828-250-4121

c. 828-231-1572

**Email Confidentiality Notice**

This electronic transmission is private and confidential, and intended only for the use of the addressees and individual or
entity named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination or distribution
of this message, or any attachments, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please contact
the sender by reply e-mail immediately and destroy all copies of the original message. Thank you.






From: Jon Creighton

To: Michael C. Frue; Matt Stone
Subject: RE: draft minimum housing ordinance
Date: Thursday, August 3, 2017 3:12:00 PM
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
Subject: Re:
Date: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:15:27 PM

Did you get a call from anyone?

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the Verizon Wireless 4G LTE network.

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:07 PM
To: Jon Creighton

Subject:

FYl — no word yet this week from architect.
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: Re:
Date: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:14:41 PM

On submitting GE drawings to DOI?

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
Date: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:20:34 PM

| am on the call with the crowd at this moment. | will bring it up.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the Verizon Wireless 4G LTE network.

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:19 PM
To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE:

No and bob sent out his review comment to a Roger Morse earlier this week.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:15 PM
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

FYl —no word yet this week from architect.



mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CREIGHJ

mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org




From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE Aviation
Date: Tuesday, December 9, 2014 8:11:58 AM

Great news!

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 9, 2014, at 7:59 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

We will get final C/O issued

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, December 08, 2014 8:57 PM

To: Matt Stone

Cc: Bob Haynes

Subject: Fwd: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE Aviation

FYI
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Shannon Tuch <stuch@ashevillenc.gov>

Date: December 8, 2014 at 4:12:38 PM EST

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE Aviation

FYI.
Shannon
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Christopher Collins <CCollins@ashevillenc.gov>
Date: December 8, 2014 at 4:10:26 PM EST

To: Shannon Tuch <stuch@ashevillenc.gov>

Subject: FW: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE
Aviation

GE site has been finaled.

-Chris Collins, AICP
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From: Marcus Barksdale

Sent: Monday, December 08, 2014 3:34 PM

To: Danny Gibson

Cc: Toby Shelton; Christopher Collins

Subject: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE Aviation

Danny,

FYl, today | resulted the GR Final inspection as approved for
the subject project. | included the following comments:

“Buncombe County is the permit holder for GE Aviation.
Therefore, in accordance with City of Asheville Ordinances
subsection 7-12-2 (a) (7) a 4, State of North Carolina has
exclusive regulatory jurisdiction over erosion and sediment
control for this project as set forth in NCGS 113A-56(a) and
the project is exempt from the provisions of the erosion
prevention and sediment control regulations of the City of
Asheville Ordinances subsection 7-12-2(e).”

Basically, this project is exempt from the City’s grading and
erosion control rules because of the way the permit
application was structured with the County as the official
applicant.

Marcus

R. Marcus Barksdale, PE, CFM
Stormwater Services Supervisor
Development Services Department
City of Asheville

Telephone: 828-259-5456

Email: rbarksdale@ashevillenc.gov
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: 5844 Buncombe Co range - door frames
Date: Tuesday, April 5, 2016 4:22:17 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Okay thanks.

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 5, 2016, at 4:05 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

I think it would be more of an aesthetics concern than anything else because | think we
will end up with a saw cut where then new concrete joint would be.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Tuesday, April 05, 2016 2:48 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: FW: 5844 Buncombe Co range - door frames

What do you think?

From: John C. Shields [mailto:jshields@ClarkNexsen.com]
Sent: Tuesday, April 05, 2016 2:46 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Cc: David Lancor <DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com>; Patrick Ward

<pward@ClarkNexsen.com>

Subject: 5844 Buncombe Co range - door frames

Jon:

Hickory would like permission to leave existing concrete at the overhead doors in place,
so as not to have to demolish door frames already installed. See attached pictures. I'll
call you about this shortly.

Thanks,

John Shields Ala, ccs

Senior Architect | Associate

CLARKNE XS E N<image001.png>

213 South Jefferson Suite 1011
Roanoke, VA 24011
540.613.6692 Direct
540.982.0800 Office

jshields@clarknexsen.com
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#CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: This e-mail and any files transmitted with it contain privileged and confidential information and are
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to which they are addressed. If you are not the intended recipient or the
person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of
this e-mail or any of its attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the
sending individual or entity by e-mail and permanently delete the original e-mail and attachments from your computer system.#
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: Re: 5844 Buncombe Co. Range
Date: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 12:03:22 PM

Yes, as required by Chapter 17 of state building code. Outside of some acknowledgement
forms we have them complete there are no additional requirements at the county level.

Sent from my iPad

On Mar 24, 2015, at 11:59 AM, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

I will do it anyway but aren't required end to have them?
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Greg Isreal (Paul G.)" <Greg.Isreal(@buncombecounty.org>
Date: March 24, 2015 at 10:24:34 AM EDT

To: Barry Burdick <BBurdick@ClarkNexsen.com>

Cec: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton(@buncombecounty.org>, "John C.
Shields" <jshields@ClarkNexsen.com>, "Marcus B. Whitaker"

<mwhitaker@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Re: 5844 Buncombe Co. Range

I will let Jon make that call but we typically do use a 3rd party
inspector on concrete and steel. I encourage the use of special
inspections.

On Mar 24, 2015, at 10:14 AM, Barry Burdick
<BBurdick@ClarkNexsen.com> wrote:

Jon or Greg:

Given the size, height and Occupancy of the new Firing
Range, we are not required by NC Building Code to have
special inspections during construction. Usually this impacts
excavation and structural components of the building, and in
our case could add up to amounts between $20-30,000.

Are there any County-mandated requirements for Special
Inspections?
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Barry Burdick Aia, PMP, LEED AP BD+C

Project Manager

CLARK NEXSEN

213 South Jefferson Suite 1011
Roanoke, VA 24011
540.982.0800 Office
540.982.1183 Fax
bburdick@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: 5844 Buncombe County - topping slab
Date: Thursday, March 10, 2016 11:11:01 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Just go ahead and talk to Shield's.

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 10, 2016, at 9:03 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Bob and | went by the range this morning and have some additional questions related
to altering rated doors as well as the effect on ADA in the building that raising the slab
will have. Do you want to discuss them with you or just contact John Shields with
them?

From: John C. Shields [mailto:jshields@ClarkNexsen.com]
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 8:19 PM

To: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes
Cc: Jon Creighton; David Lancor; Patrick Ward; Matt S. Hickey; Marcus B. Whitaker
Subject: 5844 Buncombe County - topping slab

Mr. Stone and Mr. Haynes:

This is an draft outline of what Clark Nexsen would recommend for a topping slab over
the existing firing range floor slab, to correct the deficient slab thickness problem.

Option — Striate slab, add bonding agent and an additional 2” minimum of concrete
topping

- Procedure:

e The existing concrete slab would be mechanically striated to create a
rough surface for improved bonding of the topping. Welded wire fabric
would be installed over the existing slab, and a bonding agent would be
applied to the existing slab. Then, a topping concrete mix would be applied
and finished. Topping concrete mixes typically have a lower water-cement
ratio than normal concrete, to reduce shrinkage in the topping. Control
joints would be cut in the topping near the location of the control joints in
the existing slab.

- Pros:

e There should be no damage to the methane barrier as work in place
remains in place

e End product is thicker than specified.

e  Construction schedule impact will be less than with total slab replacement.

- Cons:

e C(lient loses vertical clearance in the Range if baffle heights cannot be
raised to compensate.

o Height of existing door openings will be reduced by two inches. Note: This
includes reducing vehicle access clearance through doors 100E and 100C by
two inches.

o Personnel doors, if already furnished, will need to be replaced with
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new doors and frames.
o If coiling overhead doors cannot be adjusted to compensate for
reduced opening height, new doors will be required.

e  Contractor will have to adjust design to accommodate new finished floor

elevation. This will require, at a minimum:

Door adjustment/replacement as described above.

Provide a floor height transition at doors 100E and 100F.

Including topping slab in Storage 101 to match range floor height.

Adjust exterior grade elevations at range exterior doors.

A transition at door 100A will be required. The transition method
will require discussion, as elevation change may affect adjacent
toilets and plumbing rough-ins.

o Coordination with bullet trap-related wall penetrations.

O

O O O O

Please call or email if you have any questions.

John Shields aia, ccs

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

Subject: Re: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd
Date: Saturday, November 1, 2014 7:59:00 AM

Yes

Sent from my iPad

On Oct 31, 2014, at 9:48 PM, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Can you look at this one? Josh will look about the wall but can you ask the septic
guys look also?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Ellen M. Frost" <Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org>
Date: October 31, 2014 at 9:16:22 PM GMT-3

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>, Joshua

OConner <Joshua.OConner@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to
294 Martin Branch Rd

Sent from my iPad
Ellen Frost
Buncombe County Commission

ellen.frost@buncombecounty.org

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Law, Christina L" <christina.law(@ncagr.gov>
Date: October 31, 2014 at 4:23:14 PM EDT

To: "ellen.frost@buncombecounty.org"
<ellen.frost@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Building/permit concerns for property
adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd

Mrs. Frost,

Per our conversation this afternoon, | am sending this email
to you to express concerns regarding new construction for a
double wide trailer being installed on a lot adjacent to my
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property. My property address is 294 Martin Branch Rd,
Leicester, NC 28748. | am not sure what the issued address
for the adjacent property will be, but it is directly in front of
my property on Martin Branch Rd. The building permit
number for the new dwelling is 2014-02038.

One concern is that they have possibly encroached onto my
property during the site excavating process, and | have a
surveyor coming out to officially determine whether my
property has been damaged at the first of next week. There
has been a nearly vertical bank cut at the property line in
guestion, which to my understanding in Buncombe County,
requires either a 2:1 slope or an engineered retaining wall
installed to prevent erosion issues. At best, this bankisa 1:1
slope, but more likely 0.5:1 slope. The double wide trailer
has been installed with only 9 feet from the back door of the
new dwelling to the top of the bank, so it is not likely feasible
for them to be able to install the retaining wall or to come
back in and repair the slope (where they are planning to
install an 8'x15’ deck as well). There is no ditch at this time
to divert water runoff from the hill and bank, nor the
dwelling itself. There is a huge concern for erosion as there
is a large sloping hill down to where the bank has been cut,
and no question that there will be erosion issues that will
ultimately undermine my property (which is a livestock
pasture containing horses), due to the way the bank has
been cut. There has been no silt fence or any other
apparent attempts to prevent erosion during this process as
well.

Another concern is that the property in question has been
previously been turned down on inspection for well and
septic, though somehow it has passed inspection now. As |
understand in Buncombe County, a septic system cannot be
installed on greater than a 2-4% slope, which would only
leave the driveway area for installation on the steep
property, which | also understand to be against code. The
septic has not been installed as of yet. They had initially
installed a well that was at least 10’ from my property line,
but then unbeknownst to me, had to move the well and now
itis at best 2’-3’ from my line. There is no question that they
did cut into my property line where they had cut out for the
well as the surveyor mark is there in the corner, and they cut
the dirt away 10-12” onto my property (though as best as |
can tell, the well appears to be on their property).





I will also try to get some pictures to send you, but | wanted
to at least get this email to you to begin the process of
investigation.

Thank you so very much for your assistance in this matter!
Sincerely,

Christina Law, DVM
NCDAG&CS, Veterinary Division
(919)218-2529






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd
Date: Monday, November 3, 2014 8:57:57 AM

Ok thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 3, 2014, at 8:55 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Hey,

Environmental Health says septic & well are okay and they could find no history of the
property being turned down previously. | also spoke with the neighbor on Friday and
tried to convey to him that there is not a building code violation with the grading, at
that time he wanted to speak to Erosion Control so he may have spoken with Doug. On
our end there is not a setback requirement on the mobile home but if the home has a
deck that is more than 36 sq ft it will have to be at least five feet off the property. Let
me know if you want me to do anything else on my end.

Matt

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Saturday, November 01, 2014 8:02 AM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd

Thanks
Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 1, 2014, at 8:58 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Yes
Sent from my iPad

On Oct 31, 2014, at 9:48 PM, Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Can you look at this one? Josh will look about the wall but
can you ask the septic guys look also?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:
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From: "Ellen M. Frost"
<Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org>

Date: October 31, 2014 at 9:16:22 PM GMT-3
To: Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>,

Joshua OConner
<Joshua.OConner@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Building/permit concerns for
property adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd

Sent from my iPad

Ellen Frost

Buncombe County Commission
ellen.frost@buncombecounty.org

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Law, Christina L"
<christina.law@ncagr.gov>

Date: October 31, 2014 at 4:23:14
PM EDT

To:
"ellen.frost@buncombecounty.org"
<ellen.frost@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Building/permit

concerns for property adjacent

to 294 Martin Branch Rd

Mrs. Frost,

Per our conversation this
afternoon, | am sending this email
to you to express concerns
regarding new construction for a
double wide trailer being installed
on a lot adjacent to my property.
My property address is 294
Martin Branch Rd, Leicester, NC
28748. | am not sure what the
issued address for the adjacent
property will be, but it is directly
in front of my property on Martin
Branch Rd. The building permit
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number for the new dwelling is
2014-02038.

One concern is that they have
possibly encroached onto my
property during the site
excavating process, and | have a
surveyor coming out to officially
determine whether my property
has been damaged at the first of
next week. There has been a
nearly vertical bank cut at the
property line in question, which to
my understanding in Buncombe
County, requires either a 2:1 slope
or an engineered retaining wall
installed to prevent erosion
issues. At best, this bankisa 1:1
slope, but more likely 0.5:1 slope.
The double wide trailer has been
installed with only 9 feet from the
back door of the new dwelling to
the top of the bank, so it is not
likely feasible for them to be able
to install the retaining wall or to
come back in and repair the slope
(where they are planning to install
an 8x15’ deck as well). Thereis
no ditch at this time to divert
water runoff from the hill and
bank, nor the dwelling itself.
There is a huge concern for
erosion as there is a large sloping
hill down to where the bank has
been cut, and no question that
there will be erosion issues that
will ultimately undermine my
property (which is a livestock
pasture containing horses), due to
the way the bank has been cut.
There has been no silt fence or
any other apparent attempts to
prevent erosion during this
process as well.





Another concern is that the
property in question has been
previously been turned down on
inspection for well and septic,
though somehow it has passed
inspection now. As | understand
in Buncombe County, a septic
system cannot be installed on
greater than a 2-4% slope, which
would only leave the driveway
area for installation on the steep
property, which | also understand
to be against code. The septic has
not been installed as of yet. They
had initially installed a well that
was at least 10’ from my property
line, but then unbeknownst to
me, had to move the well and
now it is at best 2’-3’ from my
line. There is no question that
they did cut into my property line
where they had cut out for the
well as the surveyor mark is there
in the corner, and they cut the
dirt away 10-12” onto my
property (though as best as | can
tell, the well appears to be on
their property).

| will also try to get some pictures
to send you, but | wanted to at
least get this email to you to begin
the process of investigation.

Thank you so very much for your
assistance in this matter!

Sincerely,

Christina Law, DVM
NCDA&CS, Veterinary Division
(919)218-2529





subject to the North Carolina
Public Records Law and may
be disclosed to third parties.






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Data request

Date: Tuesday, June 6, 2017 12:40:25 PM
Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 6, 2017, at 12:28 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

We can put something together

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Tuesday, June 06, 2017 11:01 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Data request

Any idea?

From: Anna Stearns (Rep. Brian Turner) [mailto:Turnerbla@ncleg.net]
Sent: Tuesday, June 06, 2017 11:00 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Data request

Mr. Creighton,

Representative Turner has asked if you can provide our office with information about
the number of new apartment complexes built in the last 5 years in southern
Buncombe County. Is that something that you can provide easily? | think he’d like to
have the number of complexes and the number of individual units if possible. If it
would be easier for us to get this from a different department, let me know. Just
starting with you because | thought you might have the most centralized data.

Thanks for any help you can give us.

Best,
Anna

North Carolina General Assembly

Office of Representative Brian M. Turner
District 116, Buncombe County

Anna V. Stearns
Legislative Assistant
NC Certified Paralegal



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

mailto:Turnerbla@ncleg.net

mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org



Legislative Building, 1209
Phone: 919.715.3012






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: Re: Data request
Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 2:37:11 PM

If there isn't a building permit applied for I wouldn't include.

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 7, 2017, at 2:33 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

If you want to include them, we have two more apartment complexes where grading
has begun but no building permits have been applied for
Long Shoals Apartments 252 Units 11 Buildings

Perry Lane Apartments 120 Units 11 Buildings
(Off Hendersonville Rd past Airport Rd)

From: Jon Creighton
Sent: Tuesday, June 06, 2017 12:40 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Data request

Thanks
Sent from my iPhone

OnJun 6, 2017, at 12:28 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

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
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Representative Turner has asked if you can provide our office with
information about the number of new apartment complexes built in the
last 5 years in southern Buncombe County. Is that something that you can
provide easily? | think he’d like to have the number of complexes and the
number of individual units if possible. If it would be easier for us to get
this from a different department, let me know. Just starting with you
because | thought you might have the most centralized data.

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
Subject: Re: Follow up after meeting with MSD
Date: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 10:37:51 AM

Hey do you have some time available over next few days to discuss. If so just let me know
what works and I will come in.

Sent from my iPad

On Mar 25, 2015, at 8:33 AM, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

FYI
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Wanda Greene <Wanda.Greene(@buncombecounty.org>
Date: March 25, 2015 at 8:28:43 AM EDT

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Follow up after meeting with MSD

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Kathy Hughes
<Kathy.Hughes@buncombecounty.org>
Date: March 25, 2015 at 8:18:38 AM EDT
To: "Michael C. Frue"

<Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org>, Wanda Greene

<Wanda.Greene@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Follow up after meeting with MSD

Just FYI

From: Joseph DeSantola [mailto:jdesantola@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 9:32 PM

To: Kathy Hughes

Cc: Matt Stone; Tom McVay; Jordan Bell; Joseph DeSantola;
Taylor Bell; Adana Taylor; Nancy Donahue

Subject: Follow up after meeting with MSD
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Hi Kathy,

Adana Taylor Kirk and Megan Taylor had a good
meeting with MSD Kevin Johnson and Ed Bradford
today. Adana was able to clarify that Bill Dorf had also
told her that he had brought a public sewer line to the
back of her property. She also says that after she had a
certificate of occupancy, she flushed a toilet and found
out the sewer was not hooked up yet as one of Bill Dorf's
employees was still digging it. This is disconcerting.

MSD informed us that they are only required to inspect
to within 10 feet of a public MSD line. They have a
hookup date in 2012 of private lines that Bill Dorf, the
developer put in before we were building. Bill Dorf
never clarified that the sewer of the concerned
homeowners was going to be behind the houses when he
made an application to MSD for each home and for this
reason Cecelia did not advise him that he needed an
easement. However, since he owned the property that the
lines were going through, MSD was not concerned when
he hooked private lines in before the homes were
constructed. These were misrepresented to the all 3
homeowners independently by Bill Dorf as a MSD
sewer and no discussion about the need for maintenance
was given to any new homeowner as Bill Dorf the
developer and contractor completed their homes. The
DeSantola and Bell family had no discussion about the
option of hooking into the MSD sewer in front of their
homes.

In summary, the construction of these private lines was
not done under a permit, was not surveyed, was not
platted nor given easement, nor supervised by any
regulatory division. The designation of a private sewer
line and responsibility for maintenance was not disclosed
to the prospective homeowners.

MSD believes that the Buncombe County Building
Inspectors and Plumbers are responsible for having
permits and inspections on these lines. MSD thinks that

the developer/contractor needs to obtain permits from
Buncombe County. We were told by Mike Silver at the
NC Licensing board that the Buncombe County
inspectors are only responsible for clean out inspection 5
feet from the house and MSD does the rest. The
Buncombe County Inspectors sent us to MSD initially
when we inquired about the lines in the woods behind
our house having no record of these lines. We wanted to





know why our lines were indicated as connecting in front
of our home on the website and in documentation, when,
in fact, they connected in the back of the property. We
were told that MSD supervises the hook up off the
homeowners property. MSD thinks that a building permit
needs to be taken out and the lines inspected by
Buncombe County plumbing inspectors before they can
be operational. It appears that there was no building
permit. In fact, in Adana Kirk's case a certificate of
occupancy was given without a sewer connection. It is
still unclear which County regulatory branch takes care
of insuring lines are placed appropriately. There is a
gray zone of inspection that needs to be cleared up. If
indeed sewer lines traversing woods and leaving distant
ends of properties are not inspected for proper
placement, there is a potential health risk if these lines
rupture due to improper depth/pitch, roots growing in
them, etc with leakage of sewage into the catch area of
Reems Creek as well as other streams, as did Bill Dorf's
poorly placed and non- surveyed lines.

Tom McVay, the father of the Bell's, looked at the lines
with Matt Stone the Buncombe County Building
Inspector and the Buncombe County Plumbing Inspector
3 weeks ago and there were concerns about the pitch of
the lines and undrained sewage in the lines. Kevin
Johnson and Ed Bradford are planning to discuss the
situation with the Buncombe County Building and
Plumbing Inspector this week and we hope there can be a
resolution of how to remediate these lines. We are
hoping that the developer who falsely represented the
lines as an MSD maintained sewer will remediate the
situation as he is in the process of developing over 80
more homes in this area with a civil engineer who is
looking at putting in sewers.

We are still in discovery and are awaiting the outcome
for the health and safety of our community. Buncombe
County is rapidly growing and we can not afford to allow
for errors in development that jeopardize the safety of
our community.

Thank you

Megan Taylor






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: Re: Follow up after meeting with MSD
Date: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 11:28:45 AM

That works just let me know what you have open

Sent from my iPad

On Mar 25, 2015, at 11:01 AM, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

I 'am in NY with Wanda. How about Monday?
Sent from my iPhone
On Mar 25, 2015, at 10:37 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org>

wrote:

Hey do you have some time available over next few days to discuss.
If so just let me know what works and I will come in.

Sent from my iPad
On Mar 25, 2015, at 8:33 AM, Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org> wrote:
FYI
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Wanda Greene
<Wanda.Greene(@buncombecounty.org>
Date: March 25, 2015 at 8:28:43 AM EDT
To: Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Follow up after meeting
with MSD

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=creighj

mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Wanda.Greene@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org



From: Kathy Hughes
<Kathy.Hughes@buncombecounty.org>
Date: March 25, 2015 at

8:18:383 AM EDT

To: "Michael C. Frue"

<Michael . Frue@buncombecounty.org>,
Wanda Greene

<Wanda.Greene@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Follow up after

meeting with MSD

Just FYI

From: Joseph DeSantola
[mailto:jdesantola@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2015
9:32 PM

To: Kathy Hughes

Cc: Matt Stone; Tom McVay;
Jordan Bell; Joseph DeSantola;
Taylor Bell; Adana Taylor; Nancy
Donahue

Subject: Follow up after meeting
with MSD

Hi Kathy,

Adana Taylor Kirk and Megan
Taylor had a good meeting with
MSD Kevin Johnson and Ed
Bradford today. Adana was
able to clarify that Bill Dorf had
also told her that he had brought
a public sewer line to the back
of her property. She also says
that after she had a certificate of
occupancy, she flushed a toilet
and found out the sewer was not
hooked up yet as one of Bill
Dorf's employees was still
digging it. This is
disconcerting.

MSD informed us that they are
only required to inspect to
within 10 feet of a public MSD
line. They have a hookup date
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in 2012 of private lines that Bill
Dorf, the developer put in
before we were building. Bill
Dorf never clarified that the
sewer of the concerned
homeowners was going to be
behind the houses when he
made an application to MSD for
each home and for this reason
Cecelia did not advise him that
he needed an easement.
However, since he owned the
property that the lines were
going through, MSD was not
concerned when he hooked
private lines in before the
homes were constructed. These
were misrepresented to the all 3
homeowners independently by
Bill Dorf as a MSD sewer and
no discussion about the need for
maintenance was given to any
new homeowner as Bill Dorf
the developer and contractor
completed their homes. The
DeSantola and Bell family had
no discussion about the option
of hooking into the MSD sewer
in front of their homes.

In summary, the construction of
these private lines was not done
under a permit, was not
surveyed, was not platted nor
given easement, nor supervised
by any regulatory division. The
designation of a private sewer
line and responsibility for
maintenance was not disclosed
to the prospective homeowners.

MSD believes that the
Buncombe County Building
Inspectors and Plumbers are
responsible for having permits
and inspections on these lines.
MSD thinks that the
developer/contractor needs to
obtain permits from Buncombe





County. We were told by Mike
Silver at the NC Licensing
board that the Buncombe
County inspectors are only
responsible for clean out
inspection 5 feet from the house
and MSD does the rest. The
Buncombe County Inspectors
sent us to MSD initially when
we inquired about the lines in
the woods behind our house
having no record of these lines.
We wanted to know why our
lines were indicated as
connecting in front of our home
on the website and in
documentation, when, in fact,
they connected in the back of
the property. We were told that
MSD supervises the hook up off
the homeowners property. MSD
thinks that a building permit
needs to be taken out and the
lines inspected by Buncombe
County plumbing inspectors
before they can be operational.
It appears that there was no
building permit. In fact, in
Adana Kirk's case a certificate
of occupancy was given without
a sewer connection. It is still
unclear which County
regulatory branch takes care of
insuring lines are placed
appropriately. There is a gray
zone of inspection that needs to
be cleared up. If indeed sewer
lines traversing woods and
leaving distant ends of
properties are not inspected for
proper placement, there is a
potential health risk if these
lines rupture due to improper
depth/pitch, roots growing in
them, etc with leakage of
sewage into the catch area of
Reems Creek as well as other
streams, as did Bill Dorf's
poorly placed and non-
surveyed lines.





Tom McVay, the father of the
Bell's, looked at the lines with
Matt Stone the Buncombe
County Building Inspector and
the Buncombe County
Plumbing Inspector 3 weeks
ago and there were concerns
about the pitch of the lines and
undrained sewage in the lines.
Kevin Johnson and Ed Bradford
are planning to discuss the
situation with the Buncombe
County Building and Plumbing
Inspector this week and we
hope there can be a resolution
of how to remediate these lines.
We are hoping that the
developer who falsely
represented the lines as an MSD
maintained sewer will
remediate the situation as he is
in the process of developing
over 80 more homes in this area
with a civil engineer who is
looking at putting in sewers.

We are still in discovery and
are awaiting the outcome for the
health and safety of our
community. Buncombe County
is rapidly growing and we can
not afford to allow for errors in
development that jeopardize the
safety of our community.

Thank you

Megan Taylor






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Meeting to discuss energy efficient construction
Date: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 9:04:35 AM

Okay

Sent from my iPhone

>On Jan 18, 2017, at 8:44 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

>

> I have continuing education in Greenville that week but Bob is going to get with you on scheduling the 23rd or
24th.

>

> From: Jon Creighton

> Sent: Wednesday, January 18,2017 8:25 AM

> To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Bob Haynes <Bob.Haynes@buncombecounty.org>

> Subject: FW: Meeting to discuss energy efficient construction

>

> [ would like you all to come along. I can do the afternoon of the 23rd and the morning of the 24th. Can you all do
either of those?

>

> From: Brownie W. Newman

> Sent: Wednesday, January 18,2017 8:17 AM

> To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

> Cc: Wanda Greene <Wanda.Greene@buncombecounty.org>; sam@wncgbc.org; joan@mountaintrue.org

> Subject: Meeting to discuss energy efficient construction

>

> Jon,

>

> Good morning. Joan Walker and Sam Ruark from the Energy Innovation Task Force and I wanted to get together
with you to talk about some ideas for how we can encourage more utilization of energy efficient construction
strategies through our land use and permitting processes. We understand that Buncombe County can not require
builders to do anything above the state building code. However, we think there could be good opportunities to
strongly incentivize it.

>

> Would you have time for a meeting next week? I am pretty flexible on January 23, 24 and 26. Let us know if you
might have a couple of times that would work on those dates. Once we know when you are available, we can select
the time that works best for the most people.

>

> Thanks,

>

>

> Brownie Newman,

> Chair, Buncombe County Commission

> 828-243-0107

>

> Sent from my iPad
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: Re: NCACC QRT Request: Planning and Zoning
Date: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 12:42:21 PM

Yes, I read it last week, it's one of the things I wanted to bring up to you as it relates to Gary
and residential plan review.

Sent from my iPad

On Mar 25, 2015, at 12:18 PM, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

FYI
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Leigh DeForth <Leigh.Deforth(@buncombecounty.org>
Date: March 25, 2015 at 11:35:54 AM EDT

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: NCACC QRT Request: Planning and Zoning

This actually seems more relevant to building permits and inspections-
here is the link to the bill:
http://ncga.state.nc.us/Sessions/2015/Bills/House/PDF/H255v1. pdf

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 11:07 AM

To: Debbie Truempy; Leigh DeForth; Gillian Phillips
Subject: Fwd: NCACC QRT Request: Planning and Zoning

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Amber Harris <amber.harris@ncacc.org>

Date: March 25, 2015 at 10:54:02 AM EDT

To: Amber Harris <amber.harris@ncacc.org>

Subject: RE: NCACC QRT Request: Planning and Zoning

Apologies, Planning and Zoning Team.
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The correct bill number is 255.

<QRT-PlanningandZoning3-27.docx>






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Cc: Diane Lankford

Subject: Re: Permit Fees

Date: Monday, September 15, 2014 3:15:36 PM

I'll will ask Diane to sent you a check.

Sent from my iPhone

On Sep 15, 2014, at 2:14 PM, "Matt Stone" <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Hey,

Don Collins came by today and applied for barn permit at Owen High, permit fees will
be $575. Let me know if you need any more info.

Matt



mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CREIGHJ

mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=lankfod

mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org




From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Cc: Gillian Phillips; Debbie Truempy; Cynthia Fox-Clark; Shannon T. Capezzali
Subject: Re: Picnic Shed

Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 2:05:07 PM

I have not but let me ask around.

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 5, 2017, at 1:55 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Have you spoken with anyone about permitting a picnic shed near the community
gardens on Clover Lane off of Lake Eden?
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Two abandoned and blighted houses in Fairview Forest
Date: Tuesday, January 19, 2016 8:58:32 AM

Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 19, 2016, at 8:48 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

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

From: Michael Sartisky <ssartiskvhome@gmail.com>

Date: January 18, 2016 at 9:50:47 AM EST

To: <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Two abandoned and blighted houses in Fairview Forest

Jon

We have two houses in our community that have been abandoned for
about five years and are now blighted. One is owned I believe by
Longview Inc and is at the very end of Apple Forest Road, I believe
the number is something like 40. It previously was owned by Grant
Goodge.

The other is owned by Adam Honig at the upper end of Fairview
Forest Drive, I believe the number is 690 or 700. It also has an
abandoned commercial trailer in front of it, also for about five years.

Can you advise me as to the proper person or department to address
to have these two situations addressed. Does the county have a
mechanism to compel the owners to remedy these situations?

Thank you for your assistance.
Michael Sartisky, PhD

Please ignore the baftling spelling of this iPad.
Sent from my iPad
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: Re: Voice Mail (1 minute and 5 seconds)
Date: Friday, June 9, 2017 10:16:58 AM

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

Caller-1d: 5364

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
Date: Friday, June 9, 2017 12:28:45 PM

Go ahead and schedule a meeting early next week and if I can make it fine but this is all going
to fall on you. That is my biggest concern that it will be in your lap and not the Fire Marshall's
and where do the bodies come from to enforce it?

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 9, 2017, at 12:22 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

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

On Jun 9, 2017, at 10:03 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org>
wrote:

Hi call me back at minimum.

Unsafe howling minimum tiles and -- drag Ins and wanna get together
Monday or Tuesday I know you know I have not talked about it I don't know
what your take on it he is are a few minutes you have a concern with it or
not -- I know we've trying to get these push something before robin with his
legal -- pushes in another minute housing I wasn't an image for the if that's
actually happening anyway -- if you want me to call something out with you
when you want to discuss it occurred realty and I'm just moving forward with
it I think I'm probably not some concerns I've got some testing concerns of
how we may be able to handle it on our end but that's probably want a
bigger one 2nd week coordinates with him.

But I just told for us well reach out to you and then get back with him and try
to set some up from under to do so he can get on the same about the gonna
do that so anyway just let me know what you think he is and if you're out a
town I'm just catch up with you first of next week bye.

Preview provided by Microsoft Speech Technology. Learn More...

You received a voice message from Matt Stone at 5364.

Caller-Id: 5364

Job Title: Engineering Inspections Coord
Company:  Buncombe County
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
Subject: Retaining Wall
Date: Friday, January 23, 2015 3:47:00 PM

Just let you know we issued permit for airport retaining wall today.
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From: Microsoft Outlook on behalf of Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: Voice Mail (1 minute and 5 seconds)

Date: Friday, June 9, 2017 10:03:49 AM
Attachments: 5364 (1 minute and 5 seconds) Voice Mail.mp3

Hi call me back at minimum.

Unsafe howling minimum tiles and -- drag Ins and wanna get together Monday or Tuesday I know you
know I have not talked about it I don't know what your take on it he is are a few minutes you have a
concern with it or not -- I know we've trying to get these push something before robin with his legal --
pushes in another minute housing I wasn't an image for the if that's actually happening anyway -- if you
want me to call something out with you when you want to discuss it occurred realty and I'm just moving
forward with it I think I'm probably not some concerns I've got some testing concerns of how we may be
able to handle it on our end but that's probably want a bigger one 2nd week coordinates with him.

But I just told for us well reach out to you and then get back with him and try to set some up from under
to do so he can get on the same about the gonna do that so anyway just let me know what you think he
is and if you're out a town I'm just catch up with you first of next week bye.

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

Subject: Voice Mail (36 seconds)

Date: Monday, May 8, 2017 9:38:47 AM
Attachments: 5364 (36 seconds) Voice Mail.mp3

Hey to let you know though menu P Friday but we have gone out looked that structure that robber was
wanting to use an it could be moved in use for residential use more pills talked with some insulation in
but other next up for least.

Rest of the we can work out from our end of it so if you need thing else from me let me know.

I've been asking my number so I think you files not most I can robber with with partly when he went out
there but if I need to get up with just let me know that then I'll talk to you later.

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

Subject: Voice Mail (56 seconds)

Date: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 3:57:29 PM
Attachments: 5364 (56 seconds) Voice Mail.mp3

Hi let you know to that one you sent me we had not gone out but he RE ran out there after talk to him
about it today and.

Off the other other said no was living there there's a guy down there that heads -- stuffy store worse for
like flea market E opens up sales out of my when he was down there they were down and talk told
walked around didn't see anything so there's no way I got living in there with all the crafty and that's a
DD never idea -- and I know this probable down or.

If you're station but they informed them that you know I need to keep noise down the road in comply it's
in a point that trash from from I can understand a lot of stuff from when you get in sale order 8:50 and
he was throwing over the bank so I think mike and Roger Ward address that's I that that would dives
department so anyway hi for latest if we need anything else with it just let me know.

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
Subject: me
Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 10:40:00 AM

Call me when you get a chance.
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From: Jon Creighton

To: josh.oconner@buncombecounty.org; Matt Stone; Chip Gingles; Gary Higgins; Steve Duckett;
David.Brigman@buncombecounty.org; Stephen.Hunter@buncombecounty.org; Cathy Ball; Lew Bleiweis; Greg
Borden; Brett Cannady; Jim Young; Leigh DeForth; Guy Cipriano (daddycip@yahoo.com); Gary Davis; Gabel,
Christopher; Bob Haynes; Ed Hilton (EHilton@scsengineers.com); Joe Wiseman; Scott Donald
(sdonald@pfarchitects.com); Martin Lewis (mlewis@lewisrealestatenc.com); peterson7@bellsouth.net;
maxgueen@charter.net; Judy Rhew Davidson; PattyBri@charter.net; Eric Rogers; Eric Jones; Ben Teague;
Meguiar, Michael (GE Aviation, US); CDuncan@ashevillechamber.org; Jerry Vehaun

Subject: retirement

Date: Monday, November 27, 2017 4:59:00 PM

Attachments: 20171127141249382.pdf
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November 27, 2017

Ms. Mandy Stone, County Manager
Buncombe County Government
200 College Street, Suite 300
Asheville, NC 28801

Dear Mandy,
Please accept this letter as official notification of my retirement effective December 30, 2017.

It has been a privilege to work for Buncombe County Government and its citizens for over 35
years. [ am proud to have been involved in the construction of several complex capital projects
and facilities undertaken by Buncombe County that have expanded our capacity to provide
services and programs to citizens. Buncombe County also underwent significant changes in its
land use ordinances during my tenure, including measures that would limit developmenit of steep
slopes and ridgetops. Although some changes were challenging to accomplish, these
advancements will help protect the natural beauty of our local communities and mountains for
future generations.

These and other accomplishments would not have been possible without the hard work of current
and former staff of the Planning Department. It has been an enormous pleasure working with
such fine individuals. I want to extend my sincere appreciation to all who have supported my
efforts and those of my staff over the years. |

Please let me know if I can provide any assistance to you or others to help ensure a smooth
transition of my responsibilities over the next month.

o i
E. Creighton











From: Jon Creighton

To: Josh O"Conner; Matt Stone; Chip Gingles; Gary Higgins; Steve Duckett; David Brigman; Stephen Hunter; Cathy
Ball; Lew Bleiweis; Greg Borden; Brett Cannady; Jim Young; Leigh DeForth; Guy Cipriano
(daddycip@yahoo.com); Gary Davis; Gabel, Christopher; Bob Haynes; Ed Hilton (EHilton@scsengineers.com);
Joe Wiseman; Scott Donald (sdonald@pfarchitects.com); Martin Lewis (mlewis@Ilewisrealestatenc.com);
peterson7@bellsouth.net; maxqueen@charter.net; Judy Rhew Davidson; PattyBri@charter.net; Eric Rogers; Eric
Jones; Ben Teague; Meguiar, Michael (GE Aviation, US); CDuncan@ashevillechamber.org; Jerry Vehaun

Subject: retirement

Date: Monday, November 27, 2017 4:59:50 PM

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
Subject: RE: Data request
Date: Tuesday, June 6, 2017 12:28:06 PM

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

Representative Turner has asked if you can provide our office with information about the number of
new apartment complexes built in the last 5 years in southern Buncombe County. Is that something
that you can provide easily? | think he’d like to have the number of complexes and the number of
individual units if possible. If it would be easier for us to get this from a different department, let me
know. Just starting with you because | thought you might have the most centralized data.

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
Date: Tuesday, June 6, 2017 12:28:00 PM

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
Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 2:33:26 PM

If you want to include them, we have two more apartment complexes where grading has begun but
no building permits have been applied for
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

To: Mila White; Lisa McKenna; Gene Hume; Jon Creighton; Geoffrey M. Noblitt
Subject: RE: Detached Garages - Addressing
Date: Wednesday, August 12, 2015 12:42:00 PM

Sure, just let Lisa and | know what times you all have available and we will get something scheduled.

From: Mila White

Sent: Wednesday, August 12, 2015 10:47 AM

To: Matt Stone; Lisa McKenna; Gene Hume; Jon Creighton; Geoffrey M. Noblitt
Subject: FW: Detached Garages - Addressing

Geoff and | both have a lot of questions after looking at these lists. Can we get together and talk
about addressing options and rules moving forward?

From: Mila White

Sent: Monday, August 10, 2015 2:49 PM

To: Matt Stone; Lisa McKenna; Gene Hume
Cc: Jon Creighton; Geoffrey M. Noblitt
Subject: RE: Detached Garages - Addressing

I am fine with keeping it as it is. Where detached garages are addressed upon permits discretion. |
am only familiar with the ones that have been sent to me for addressing and | didn’t know if there
was a rule for when detached garages or accessory building had to be addressed. | am not trying to
change the rules | am just looking for some information as to why some are sent to me for
addressing and some are not. Because people are going to ask and before | was told if they pull a
permit for it and it is a separate building it needs an address.

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Monday, August 10, 2015 11:43 AM
To: Mila White; Lisa McKenna; Gene Hume
Cc: Jon Creighton; Geoffrey M. Noblitt
Subject: RE: Detached Garages - Addressing

Mila,

In the past we had not been told a separate address is required for detached garages, if that needs
to change just let me know and | will pass the information along to the permit clerks. Does this also
apply to detached garages that are connected by something like a breezeway?

Matt

From: Mila White

Sent: Monday, August 10, 2015 11:31 AM
To: Matt Stone; Lisa McKenna; Gene Hume
Cc: Jon Creighton; Geoffrey M. Noblitt
Subject: Detached Garages - Addressing

Good Morning,
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| am reviewing a list of Permits Issued to assure that they have been assigned E911 addresses. Rick
previously took care of this task. | am seeing a lot of inconsistencies. One of my concerns is detached
garages. | was always under the impression that if a permit was pulled for a detached garage it had
to be issued an address. | have addressed several detached garages for this reason. None of the PINs
for permit pulled detached garages have addresses issued to the garages. They are all using the
primary structure address attached to the home.

| just want to clarify the rule.
Thanks,
T. Mila White

E911 Street Addressing
Buncombe County
Planning and Development
46 Valley Street

Asheville, NC 28801

(828) 250-4846






From: Matt Stone

To: Jason Williams; Jessica R. Silver; Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Determining the level of service needed for Accela
Date: Monday, December 19, 2016 12:08:00 PM

Not knowing yet how the addition of online permitting will be utilized by our contractors, | can’t
justify providing 24 hour support and would agree with your opinion of providing a message that
support will follow up the next business day.

Matt

From: Jason Williams

Sent: Monday, December 19, 2016 10:30 AM

To: Jessica R. Silver <Jessica.Silver@buncombecounty.org>; Matt Stone
<Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Determining the level of service needed for Accela

Accela is changing their support plan offerings and we would like to get your opinions on the level of
service required. | am not sure what we can afford, but | wanted to get feedback from you to
provide to my managers before we make a decision. As we move forward with online permitting,
the level of service needed may be different than what we have now. Please review the attached
documents. We just signed a 3 year agreement in June, 2016. The agreement that we signed will be
rolled into the Silver Plan, and that plan is typical for the type of service we have received since we
implemented Accela in 2011. The difference between each tier of plans is about $35000 for the
year. Are you interested in having 24 hour support when we go live with online permitting? If so, do
we want support during weekdays only or 7 days a week? Providing 24 hour support will mean that
someone from your department and someone from IT will need to be on call after hours. In my
opinion, we could put up a message on the website that says support will follow up the next
business day if there is an issue. Let me know what you think.

Thanks,

Jason Williams

Business Systems Specialist

Buncombe County Information Technology
828-250-6881



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Jason.Williams@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Jessica.Silver@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=creighj




From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: RE: Determining the level of service needed for Accela
Date: Monday, December 19, 2016 12:31:29 PM

| would agree.

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Monday, December 19, 2016 12:08 PM

To: Jason Williams <Jason.Williams@buncombecounty.org>; Jessica R. Silver
<Jessica.Silver@buncombecounty.org>; Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
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

Subject: RE: Ellington House 583 Chunns Cove Road
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 4:50:00 PM
Thanks

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2017 4:50 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: Ellington House 583 Chunns Cove Road

We do not have any permits for that address and | can have someone go by this week.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2017 3:18 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Ellington House 583 Chunns Cove Road

Do you want to put this on the list?

From: Stacy Merten [mailto:smerten@ashevillenc.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2017 12:47 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Cc: Alexandra Cole <acole@ashevillenc.gov>

Subject: Ellington House 583 Chunns Cove Road

Hi Jon,
| hope all is well with you!

| wanted to touch base with you about a call that we have received from a County
resident who is concerned that work may be taking place on the Ellington House at
583 Chunns Cove Road without proper building permits or Certificate of
Appropriateness from the HRC.

The current owner Sallie Parker sent a letter to some folks in the neighborhood
informing them that she intends to create a short term rental at the home in
conformance with Buncombe County zoning and one neighbor in particular, Terry
Finch, who lives at the RS Smith House on Chunns Cove is concerned that she is
making changes that might harm the historic character of the landmarked structure
and continues to contact our office. She insists that contractors are on site and work
is taking place.

We sent a friendly reminder to the owner, to remind her that she should obtain a CA if
any work that she is doing might impact the historic character, as described in the
ordinance, but she did not respond and we do not know if she has pulled the proper
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County zoning or building permits.

Could you verify if any building permits have been issued and if not, send out an
inspector to investigate. We don't know for sure if any work being done would require
a CA, but would like to know the extent of the work in order to make that
determination. At any rate building permits would be required.

Thanks so much for your help.

Take care, Stacy
Stacy Merten, Project Manager
Director, HRC

Asheville Department of Planning and Urban Design
828-259-5836

smerten@ashevillenc.gov
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Ellington House 583 Chunns Cove Road
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 4:49:31 PM

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



tel:(828)%20259-5836

mailto:smerten@ashevillenc.gov




From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Ellington House 583 Chunns Cove Road
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 4:49:00 PM

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
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 4:50:54 PM
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
Subject: RE: Ellington House Follow-UP
Date: Monday, October 16, 2017 8:20:00 AM

Sorry Gary was out on Friday. He went by the day after we spoke and posted the property to
contact us. He said no work was going on with the house but they were tearing the roof of an
accessory building and that is what he posted. He said he’ll go back by today.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 7:31 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Ellington House Follow-UP

Do you know if they were working on the house?
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Stacy Merten <smerten@ashevillenc.gov>

Date: October 13, 2017 at 5:13:34 PM EDT

To: Jon.Creighton <jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Cec: Alexandra Cole <acole@ashevillenc.gov>

Subject: Ellington House Follow-UP

Hi Jon,

| was just checking in to see if you had found out anything about work
being done on the Ellington House in Chunns Cove?

If you find out anything please make sure to copy Alex Cole on the
information as I'll be out of the office next week and she is expecting a call
from one of the neighbors.

Thanks again for your help!
Best,

Stacy

Stacy Merten, Project Manager

Asheville Department of Planning and Urban Design
828-259-5836

smerten(@ashevillenc.gov
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Ellington House Follow-UP
Date: Monday, October 16, 2017 8:20:54 AM

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
Subject: RE: Emailing: Exportmap.jpg
Date: Thursday, March 3, 2016 2:07:00 PM

Said it was huge and there was someone from Kessel's office on site. I talked to the owner and the wall is permitted
and the address for the wall is 472 Mostert Drive

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 1:25 PM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: RE: Emailing: Exportmap.jpg

Ouch, did Bob say it was a big wall?

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 12:23 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Emailing: Exportmap.jpg

This is the parcel with the retaining wall, they have a permit for a house but not the wall.

Your message is ready to be sent with the following file or link attachments:

Exportmap.jpg

Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending or receiving certain types of file
attachments. Check your e-mail security settings to determine how attachments are handled.
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From: Matt Stone

To: Wanda Greene; Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Eminent Domain Bills
Date: Friday, February 10, 2017 4:54:00 PM

I cannot think of a situation that would be applicable on my end as it relates to state building code requirements.

From: Wanda Greene

Sent: Friday, February 10, 2017 2:41 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>; Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Eminent Domain Bills

Can you see any time we would want to use eminent domain when it wasn't for our use?

From: Sen. Terry Van Duyn [mailto:Terry.VanDuyn(@ncleg.net]
Sent: Wednesday, February 08, 2017 9:27 PM

To: Wanda Greene <Wanda.Greene@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Eminent Domain Bills

Wanda,

It seems to me there are pros and cons to limiting public domain to public use. Have we ever, or do you forsee a
situation where Buncombe County would assert public domain for other than public use? If you or someone on
your staff could weigh in, I’d be very grateful.

The bills have just been filed, so there is no urgency. At this point, I do not have a feel how likely they are to move,
but they already have several Republican co-sponsors.

THANK YOU!
Terry

S34<http://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/BillLookUp/BillLookUp.pl?Session=2017&BillID=S34>: Eminent Domain
Constitutional Amendment

S35<http://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/BillLookUp/BillLookUp.pl?Session=2017&BillID=S35>: Eminent Domain
Statutory Revisions
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: GE CO
Date: Monday, December 8, 2014 5:00:00 PM

We are done on our end and only waiting for the city to release zoning/storm water.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, December 08, 2014 4:17 PM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: GE CO

Do you know what is outstanding in order for them to get a CO?
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: GIS
Date: Tuesday, January 19, 2016 8:20:00 AM

| will be there tomorrow
Thanks

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, January 15, 2016 4:45 PM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: FW: GIS

FYI

From: Tim Flora

Sent: Friday, January 15, 2016 4:29 PM
To: Jon Creighton

Subject: GIS

| want to clarify that GIS will not be down during the Tax CAMA conversion. It is only
the CAMA system that will not be accessible. Others have voiced that concern and |
wanted to make sure you didn’t have that misunderstanding as well.
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: House Bill 255
Date: Thursday, April 2, 2015 12:35:00 PM

OK, we’ve also been following the bill on the general assembly webpage

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 12:08 PM
To: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes

Subject: FW: House Bill 255

There isn’t any attachment just the text below.

From: Wanda Greene

Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 9:23 AM
To: Jon Creighton; Matt Stone
Subject: FW: House Bill 255

From: Jerry Vehaun

Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 3:04 PM
To: Wanda Greene

Subject: FW: House Bill 255

fyi

Hello,
this email contains important information from the NCMIA.

The House Regulatory Reform Committee on Tuesday signed off on a bill to make significant changes in the state
building code and inspection processes for residential construction. The bill is expected to be considered by the
full House on Wednesday. A sponsor, Rep. Mark Brody, R-Union, said the bill begins to address issues behind
why residential builders, in a state with a uniform building code, find widely divergent interpretations and
enforcement of the code in different jurisdictions. "In other words, every jurisdiction is taking the liberty of
deciding which part of the code they want to enforce and which they don't," said Brody, a contractor.

The bill would eliminate mandatory plan reviews prior to construction for one- and two-family residential
projects. Current law makes plan review for residential structures discretionary but many inspections
departments require it, according to information about the bill provided by Brody's office. Plan review still would
be required for nonresidential projects. It also would raise the threshold in residential projects for which a
building permit is required from $5,000 to $15,000.

House Bill 255 also would define "willful misconduct, gross negligence or gross incompetence" -- the basis for
disciplinary actions against code inspectors -- to include refusing to allow alternative designs or construction
methods approved by the Building Code Council, enforcing requirements more stringent than code requirements
and the habitual failure to provide requested inspections in a "timely manner." "We have to bring all the
inspectors with all the jurisdictions under one roof and we are going to start enforcing some of these particulars
here in order to accomplish that," Brody said.

The bill directs the Department of Insurance to post on its website all appeal decisions, interpretations and
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variations of the code issued by the Building Code Council within three days. It also requires that fees collected
from inspections be used to support only activities of the inspections department. Brody said some jurisdictions
use inspections to raise revenue for other purposes. "What we're saying is that the inspection department is not
a money-making venture for a community, and we don't want the inspection department to create dollars and
then have the municipality sweep them out and use them for other funds," he said. The bill also creates a five-
member Residential Code Committee of the Building Code Council to review and make recommendations about
proposed code changes regarding residential construction to the full council.

Rep. Chris Millis, R-Pender, said the legislation is "exactly the type of regulatory reforms that our state needs" to
protect health, safety and the environment without the "invisible tax of unnecessary regulation before us." But
opposition has surfaced. A spokesman for the N.C. League of Municipalities said defining a standard of conduct
for building inspectors with "vague, open-ended" language won't accomplish the purpose of the bill. "Establishing
by statute a quick, formal appeals process, in which supervisors learn of complaints immediately, is a much more
effective means of addressing the concerns of a builder who believes an inspector has not followed code
requirements or the law," Scott Mooneyham wrote in an email. Johanna Reese, government affairs director for
the N.C. Association of County Commissioners, said counties believe current law adequately covers misconduct
by code officials and that the new language is unnecessary. Reese also said eliminating the plan review
requirement creates the potential for mistakes to be caught during construction instead of up front, which could
add time and expense to the project. Tim Bradley, executive director of the State Firemen's Association, said the
number of firefighters injured or killed in residential fires per 100,000 people has increased significantly since the
1970s. He said he is concerned that fire professionals don't have representation on the new committee proposed
in the bill because "residential fires are our biggest issue." Rick McIntyre, senior deputy commissioner and
assistant state fire marshal in the Department of Insurance, said the bill came about quickly and "does need a lot
of review by a lot of folks." (Patrick Gannon, THE INSIDER, 4/01/15).

Rodger Lentz

Please join and Like us on Facebook [NC Mechanical Inspectors Asscn Community], Follow us on Twitter
[NCMIA1] and visit our website [www.ncmia.com].

This message was sent to ralph.morris@buncombecounty.org by listserve@ncmia.com
DO NOT reply to this message as all replies go to a mailbox that is unread.

To forward this message, please do not use the forward button of your email application, because this message
was made specifically for you only. Instead use the forward page in our newsletter system.

To change your details and to choose which lists to be subscribed to, visit your personal preferences page

Or you can opt-out completely from all future mailings.

Report abuse.
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Initial Design Criteria

Date: Tuesday, July 5, 2016 4:28:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

| sent him the information

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Tuesday, July 05, 2016 4:25 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Initial Design Criteria

From: Arthur Simmons [mailto:asimmons@fullergrp.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 05, 2016 4:20 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Initial Design Criteria

Mr. Creighton,

My name is Arthur Simmons; I'm an engineer for Fuller Group, Inc. We're getting ready to start the
engineering for a single story commercial building in Arden, NC and | just had a couple questions
before getting started. The building will be located at 341 Airport Road, Arden, NC.

1)what is the current building code you are enforcing?

2)what is the frost depth?

3)what is the wind speed?

4)what is the ground snow load?

5)do you require additional calculation packages be submitted in addition to the design documents?
(this is typically a 200 page report of detailed calculations some municipalities require be submitted.)

| appreciate the information.

Regards,
Arthur Simmons, PE

asimmons@fullergrp.com

Professional Engineer

N
FULLER

FULLER GROUP, INC.
1350 C Cleveland St. Greenville, SC 29607
0: 864.235.3580 | D: 864.720.1707 | F: 864.235.3577
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Just a heads up

Date: Wednesday, January 11, 2017 5:14:00 PM
Will do

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, January 11, 2017 5:09 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Bob Haynes
<Bob.Haynes@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Just a heads up

Mila is finding out that we are not addressing some of the community pools that are in
subdivision/home owners associations. I've alerted the planners here and if you all would try to flag

these | would appreciate it.
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Long sewer service lines Al Dorf Drive and Penley
Date: Monday, April 6, 2015 9:04:00 AM

Mrs. Taylor has not mentioned anything else about it since our 3/27 meeting.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 9:02 AM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: RE: Long sewer service lines Al Dorf Drive and Penley

Any idea if they are coming tomorrow night?

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 9:01 AM

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: FW: Long sewer service lines Al Dorf Drive and Penley

Hey,

Just wanted to let you know the sewer extension we discussed for Reems Creek Village appears to
be moving along on schedule. Will keep you posted.

From: tom [mailto:tom@tmscases.net]

Sent: Friday, April 03, 2015 1:38 PM

To: Johnson, Kevin; Joseph DeSantola

Cc: Matt Stone

Subject: RE: Long sewer service lines Al Dorf Drive and Penley

Thank you for all your help with getting the situation corrected so quickly. Appreciate the
extra effort for all concerned. Best, Tom

Sent from my Verizon Wireless 4G LTE smartphone

-------- Original message --------

From: "Johnson, Kevin" <KevinJ@msdbc.org>

Date: 04/03/2015 1:27 PM (GMT-05:00)

To: Joseph DeSantola <jdesantola@gmail.com>, Tom McVay <tom@tmscases.net>
Cc: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone(@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Long sewer service lines Al Dorf Drive and Penley

Megan, Tom,
| received sewer extension plans from Marvin Mercer yesterday.

The plans show for the public sewer to within approximately 40 feet of each lot being served by the
existing long service lines.
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There were some comments from these plans, so we will be receiving revisions in the next week and
will issue a permit to construct shortly thereafter.

| just wanted to send out a quick update.

Have a nice holiday,
Kevin






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Meeting to discuss energy efficient construction
Date: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 8:44:00 AM

I have continuing education in Greenville that week but Bob is going to get with you on scheduling the 23rd or 24th.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 8:25 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Bob Haynes <Bob.Haynes@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Meeting to discuss energy efficient construction

I would like you all to come along. I can do the afternoon of the 23rd and the morning of the 24th. Can you all do
either of those?

From: Brownie W. Newman

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 8:17 AM

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
Date: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 8:44:35 AM

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
Subject: RE: Meeting
Date: Friday, November 7, 2014 8:11:00 AM

Scratch my previous email Bob is going to meet Ken for me. What | wanted to run by you is a couple
of options MSD is pitching since Cecelia was relocated.

From: Matt Stone
Sent: Friday, November 07, 2014 7:35 AM
To: Jon Creighton
Subject: Meeting

| know you mentioned stopping by this morning but | will have to leave around 8:15, there is a
problem that developed yesterday afternoon with a Ken Jackson job on Rutledge Road that | need to
meet with him on. Should be back around 10:30.
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Mike Plemmons
Date: Wednesday, December 16, 2015 10:20:00 AM

It's taken care of.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, December 16, 2015 9:36 AM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: Mike Plemmons

Can you give him a call? He's wanting a final inspection on a mobile home out at the women's facility on Pete
Luther Rd. the permit # is BLD 2015-022. His cell is 777-7902. Thanks

Sent from my iPhone
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Cc: Ellen M. Frost

Subject: RE: North Buncombe County Pictures
Date: Thursday, April 10, 2014 8:27:13 AM

Ok will you do that? Thanks

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Thursday, April 10, 2014 8:24 AM

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: North Buncombe County Pictures

I thought Roger was working on the mobile home in the last picture, | think it is off Puggie Trail. We
looked at the other two several months back and didn’t pursue condemnation at the time, we can
revisit them and go the condemnation route but if the owners refuse we will have to present to the
commissioners to determine if they want to fund the demo. If nothing else | can post them and get
them boarded up.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, April 09, 2014 7:49 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: North Buncombe County Pictures

Anything you can do or do I pass this on to Roger?
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Ellen M. Frost" <Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org>
To: "Jon Creighton" <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: North Buncombe County Pictures

Sorry

Sent from my iPad
Ellen Frost

BedandBiscuitPetSpa.com<http://BedandBiscuitPetSpa.com>
828 669 6578

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Jan Nair" <jnairl511@gmail.com<mailto:jnairl511@gmail.com>>
To: "Ellen M. Frost"

<Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org<mailto: Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org>>

Subject: North Buncombe County Pictures

Ms. Frost, I have contacted the Buncombe County regarding the mess off Old
Mars Hill Hwy. and the torn down trailer on Flat Creek Church Rd. The
response was only they would "post" the single trailer as not livable.
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What has happened to our area? No one cares? Driving down Old Mars Hill
Hwy. off 126 exit 17 and you will see the dilapidated buildings. No pride in the
environment !!

Please help us get this cleaned up. Thank you, Jan Nair

jnairl511@gmail.com<mailto:jnairl511@gmail.com>
<mailto:jnair1511@gmail.com>

[c1d:005D1359-9E10-4448-BC41-9A676D12B201][cid:B2E3F5EF-0B32-408C-
B2CA-C8B2B66C8E11][cid:A16CF2A4-7CCC-472C-B95F-5AD79A3DB8CO]

[cid:5:6835:0]
[cid:5:6835:1]
[cid:5:6835:2]

2]

2]

2]
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From: Matt Stone

To: Michael C. Frue; Clint Shepherd; Jon Creighton
Cc: Jessica R. Silver

Subject: RE: Open Records Request The Aventine Arden NC
Date: Thursday, October 12, 2017 1:02:00 PM

It was originally built in the city’s ETJ so all | have is a couple of sign permits and I'll send you copies.

From: Michael C. Frue

Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 12:58 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Clint Shepherd
<clint.shepherd@buncombecounty.org>; Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Cc: Jessica R. Silver <Jessica.Silver@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Fwd: Open Records Request The Aventine Arden NC

Anybody have anything on this site ?

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Jessica R. Silver" <Jessica.Silver@buncombecounty.org>
Date: October 12, 2017 at 12:15:50 PM EDT

To: "Michael C. Frue" <Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Open Records Request The Aventine Arden NC

Jessica Silver, REHS
Environmental Health Director
Buncombe Co Health & Human Svcs

Begin forwarded message:

From: EHRequest <EHRequest@buncombecounty.org>

Date: October 12, 2017 at 10:53:53 AM EDT

To: "Jessica R. Silver" <Jessica.Silver@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Open Records Request The Aventine Arden NC

From: Shanley D'Innocenzo [mailto:sdinnocenzo@ebiconsulting.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 1:14 AM

To: EHRequest
Subject: Open Records Request The Aventine Arden NC

Dear Ms. Silver,

EBI Consulting (EBI) is conducting a Phase | Environmental Site
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Assessment (ESA) at The Aventine Asheville located in Arden, NC. As
part of the ESA process, we would like to request access to records
regarding the following, as applicable:

- Current and historical environmental health code violations
- Current and historical environmental health permits

- Septic permits and/or violations

- Asbestos or lead-based paint abatement

We understand that these records may not be available. Please inform
us if these records are available. If the option exists, we would like to
request electronic copies of available files. If you expect to exceed
$50.00 please notify us before completing the request, as our policy
requires prior approval for fees or charges greater than this amount.
If there are any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to
contact us.

Sincerely,

Shanley Daly

RE Research Associate

21 B Street | Burlington, MA | 01803
Phone: 781-425-5131

sdinnocenzo@ebiconsulting.com
Visit our website: www.ebiconsulting.com

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina
Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized State
or County official. Unauthorized disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged,
or otherwise confidential information, including confidential information relating
to an ongoing State or County procurement effort, is prohibited by law. If you
have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete
all records of this e-mail.
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From: Matt Stone

To: Michael C. Frue; Clint Shepherd; Jon Creighton
Cc: Jessica R. Silver

Subject: RE: Open Records Request The Aventine Arden NC
Date: Thursday, October 12, 2017 1:02:26 PM

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

To: Kathy Hughes; Jon Creighton; Michael C. Frue
Subject: RE: Open government request for public records permit 11-6766 for Onteora Oaks Subdivision
Date: Monday, October 5, 2015 5:11:00 PM

The permit number she references is not mine so | will contact her. | think what she is requesting is
from the city’s water authority and Mike has retired, but I'll see if they can have someone give her a
call.

From: Kathy Hughes

Sent: Monday, October 05, 2015 4:46 PM

To: Matt Stone; Jon Creighton; Michael C. Frue

Subject: FW: Open government request for public records permit 11-6766 for Onteora Oaks Subdivision

Can any of you help her?

From: Sylvia Landis [mailto:sylvialandis@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, October 05, 2015 4:44 PM

To: Kathy Hughes <Kathy.Hughes@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Open government request for public records permit 11-6766 for Onteora Oaks Subdivision

Dear Ms. Hughes:

The Onteora Oaks Subdivision was located in the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction with the City
permitting the infrastructure and the County permitting the houses (except one). The
information I'm seeking I believe falls under Water Engineering and it appears that Mike
Brookshire, from the County, was the representative for this part of the project to the
Technical Review Committee at the City. The form was called Water Line Extension Plan
Requirements.

The form used or perhaps it is renamed, gives information about the construction of the water
line extension to a new subdivision where water does not currently exist. Obviously, if there
were no utilities on the site before, there was a formal request to establish them. It appears
that the form submitted for that is called the Water LIne Extension Plan Requirements. It
includes the following information:

"Depict and label all proposed utilities, including sewer, drainage, gas, power, cable,
telephone (if location of other underground utilities is not final, include a typical road cross -
section showing the location of each." I am requesting the form and attached drawings. I have
requested the information from the City also and they have sent me the wrong information.

I am interested in this form and the utilities requested in the initial request from Windsor
Aughtry. Inspection of the documents will satisfy my request. Anything that makes it simpler
for everyone but an email attachment of the form and the related documents, if they could be
read under those circumstances, would also be fine.

Please feel free to contact me for any clarification.

Sylvia Landis
828 505-8828
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: RE:
Date: Wednesday, December 3, 2014 11:15:00 AM

No, Kevin just said the numbers didn’t justify a full time person. My take was it justified a full time
person when it was Cecelia and they didn’t want her in their offices. No biggie | just wanted to know
so | could move Mike Matthews into Lisa’s old office.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, December 03, 2014 11:11 AM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: RE:

Do you know if it was 7 permits issued a month?

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 3, 2014, at 10:35 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Okay thanks for trying to work it out

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, December 03, 2014 10:33 AM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re:

They bailed. Even Jerry wouldn't support me. Tom kept saying that they only issued 7
permits a month.

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 3, 2014, at 10:25 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Hey — did you hear anything else on staffing the MSD Satellite Office?
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From: Matt Stone

To: Kathy Hughes; Greg Isreal (Paul G.); Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: TREE CUTTING ALONG SMOKY PARK HIGHWAY
Date: Monday, October 5, 2015 5:14:00 PM

I’'ve got nothing on this one.

From: Kathy Hughes

Sent: Monday, October 05, 2015 3:31 PM

To: Greg Isreal (Paul G.); Matt Stone; Jon Creighton

Subject: FW: TREE CUTTING ALONG SMOKY PARK HIGHWAY

Do any of you know?

From: Frank Fraboni [mailto:ffraboni@sbgtv.com]

Sent: Monday, October 05, 2015 3:20 PM

To: Kathy Hughes <Kathy.Hughes@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: TREE CUTTING ALONG SMOKY PARK HIGHWAY

Hi Kathy:

A viewer wrote ask 13 wanting to know who's cutting down trees by the railroad along
Hominy Creek near AB Tech Enka Campus. | checked with school and they think it’s the county or
someone connected to the clock tower. Do have any idea if that’s the county and why?

Thanks,
Frank

Frank Fraboni
Anchor/Reporter

-
©.
WLOS
110 Technology Drive

Asheville, NC 28803
ffraboni@sbgtv.com

Phone 828-651-4550
Fax 828-6514618
Cell 828-775-3127
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Thank you
Date: Monday, January 4, 2016 3:03:00 PM

Bob and Harley did a great job on the project.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 2:54 PM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: FW: Thank you

These don’t come along very often.

From: Wanda Greene

Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 2:52 PM
To: Rick Conard

Cc: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Thank you

Thank you for sharing this information. I will be sure to pass the
compliments and appreciation along to Matt, Bob and Harley.

From: Rick Conard [mailto:rconard@biltmore.com]
Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 2:48 PM

To: Wanda Greene

Cc: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes; Harley M. Stewart

~ BILTMORE

Rick Conard
One North Pack Square
Asheville, NC 28801

January 4, 2015
Wanda Greene
Buncombe County Manager

200 College Street, Suite 300
Asheville, NC 28801

Ms. Greene,
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I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation, on behalf of the Biltmore
Company, to Matt Stone, Bob Haynes and Harley Stewart. Their attention-to-detail for
quality, safety and the current codes were continuously evident during the building of the new
Village Hotel on Biltmore Estate. These gentleman went above and beyond to provide great
customer service from beginning to end which resulted in the development of a cohesive
partnership allowing us to complete the project on time.

We are very pleased with the finished product and are happy knowing we have created a safe
building for guests to enjoy for the foreseeable future. Please pass along our thanks for a great
job.

Sincerely,

Rick Conard

Vice President, Attraction Operations
Biltmore Estate

One North Pack Square

Asheville, NC 28801






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: RE: Thank you
Date: Monday, January 4, 2016 3:28:55 PM

Not many people take the time to say thanks.

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 3:04 PM
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
Subject: RE: The Haven at Enka Lake
Date: Monday, July 31, 2017 1:22:00 PM

I'll give her a call

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, July 31, 2017 1:21 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: The Haven at Enka Lake

From: Sylvia Davila [mailto:Sylvia.Davila@RealPage.com]
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2017 11:57 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: The Haven at Enka Lake

Good morning,

Our company reports on new multifamily construction for the Asheville, NC area. | am writing for
information on the new apartment community at 100 Laurel Creek Dr, Candler, NC with 252 units
that broke ground April 2016. | have not been able to find any leasing or construction update on this
property that is being built by Triangle Real Estate of Gastonia, Inc. Can you give me the status of
this apartment community? Is it still under construction?

Your help is much appreciated.

Sylvia Davila

Market Research Analyst |
Data Analytics

RealPage, Inc.

2201 Lakeside Blvd
Richardson, TX 75082

Office: 972.820.4940
Fax: 877.405.6570
sylvia.davila@realpage.com

www.realpage.com
www.mpfresearch.com

Connect with MPF Research and RealPage:
Twitter | Facebook | YouTube I LinkedIn | Property Management Insider




mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=813740331fb045aa81ccd6759ee7ca8a-Jon Creight

mailto:Sylvia.Davila@RealPage.com

mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

mailto:sylvia.davila@realpage.com

http://www.realpage.com/

file:////c/www.mpfresearch.com

https://twitter.com/mpfresearch

http://www.facebook.com/realpage

http://www.youtube.com/realpagemedia

http://www.linkedin.com/company/mpf-research

http://www.propertymanagementinsider.com/category/mpf-research



This message is intended only for the use of the individual(s) or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is
privileged, confidential, and/or proprietary to RealPage and its affiliated companies. If the reader of this message is not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, forwarding or copying of this communication is prohibited without
the express permission of the sender. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete
the original message.






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: The Haven at Enka Lake
Date: Monday, July 31, 2017 1:22:44 PM

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
Subject: RE: Tiny house community possibility
Date: Wednesday, August 23, 2017 12:54:00 PM

I think we all need to be on the same page when addressing these tiny home questions, just let us
know when.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2017 10:24 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>; Bob Haynes
<Bob.Haynes@buncombecounty.org>; Debbie Truempy <Debbie.Truempy@buncombecounty.org>;
Nathan L. Pennington <Nathan.Pennington@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Fwd: Tiny house community possibility

Do we all want to sit down and talk about this?
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org>
Date: August 23,2017 at 9:37:37 AM EDT

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: FW: Tiny house community possibility

Hi Jon,

Hope you are doing well.

I received this message from a community member about a tiny home community
she is trying to create in Buncombe County.

Have y'all already been in touch with her about her options. You'll find more
background and detail about the situation below.

Is there someone I could connect her with at the county to help her best
understand her options?

Thank you!
Jasmine

Jasmine Beach-Ferrara

District 1, Buncombe County Commission

e: Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.or
p: 828.250.4004

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

From: Katherine Cuenco [ninal fire@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2017 4:41 PM

To: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara
Subject: Tiny house community possibility

Hello Jasmine,

Thank you for taking the time and helping us in any way you can. I just got
information that the final say for the state of NC is Bill Kirk with NC Dept of
Insurance regarding any possibility of adopting an amendment or variance to the
180 day rule for RVs, or to see if NC is considering adopting the recently
approved National Building Code specifically for tiny homes. The big question
remains is Buncombe County willing to not enforce the 180 day required move,
such as Henderson Co has done with the village here in Flat Rock. The bottom
line is, we need to set up as an RV park to be legal. The 180 day occupancy isn't
mandated by the state, only Buncombe County. What do we have to do to get a
variance so we can have a legal tiny community? No one can give us a clear
answer. If Buncombe County is a dead end, we will move on, but nothing is clear.

Here's a list of the parties involved:
* Deborah Kelly Thomas - purchaser of 8.98 acres, 61 Curtis Miles Rd,

Alexander NC, property zoned as Open use, no restrictions

* Derek Allen, Real Estate Attorney with Ward and Smith in Asheville - 336-339-
9993

* Chris Day, Civil Designs Concepts, PA (Known by most as CDC) - Site Planner
- 828-252-5388

* Steven J. Melin, LSS - Soil/Site Investigation, soil perk, 828-551-9903

With much appreciation,
Nina
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Tiny house community possibility
Date: Wednesday, August 23, 2017 12:55:02 PM

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
Date: Friday, October 13, 2017 7:30:33 PM

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

| was just checking in to see if you had found out anything about work being done on the
Ellington House in Chunns Cove?

If you find out anything please make sure to copy Alex Cole on the information as I'll be out
of the office next week and she is expecting a call from one of the neighbors.

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
Date: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 8:33:28 AM
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

From: Kathy Hughes <Kathy.Hughes@buncombecounty.org>
Date: March 25, 2015 at 8:18:38 AM EDT

To: "Michael C. Frue" <Michael Frue@buncombecounty.org>,
Wanda Greene <Wanda.Greene(@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: Follow up after meeting with MSD

Just FYI

From: Joseph DeSantola [mailto:jdesantola@gmail.com]

Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 9:32 PM

To: Kathy Hughes

Cc: Matt Stone; Tom McVay; Jordan Bell; Joseph DeSantola; Taylor Bell;
Adana Taylor; Nancy Donahue

Subject: Follow up after meeting with MSD

Hi Kathy,

Adana Taylor Kirk and Megan Taylor had a good meeting with
MSD Kevin Johnson and Ed Bradford today. Adana was able to
clarify that Bill Dorf had also told her that he had brought a public
sewer line to the back of her property. She also says that after she
had a certificate of occupancy, she flushed a toilet and found out the
sewer was not hooked up yet as one of Bill Dorf's employees was still
digging it. This is disconcerting.
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MSD informed us that they are only required to inspect to within 10
feet of a public MSD line. They have a hookup date in 2012 of
private lines that Bill Dorf, the developer put in before we were
building. Bill Dorf never clarified that the sewer of the concerned
homeowners was going to be behind the houses when he made an
application to MSD for each home and for this reason Cecelia did not
advise him that he needed an easement. However, since he owned the
property that the lines were going through, MSD was not concerned
when he hooked private lines in before the homes were constructed.
These were misrepresented to the all 3 homeowners independently

by Bill Dorf as a MSD sewer and no discussion about the need for
maintenance was given to any new homeowner as Bill Dorf the
developer and contractor completed their homes. The DeSantola and
Bell family had no discussion about the option of hooking into the
MSD sewer in front of their homes.

In summary, the construction of these private lines was not done
under a permit, was not surveyed, was not platted nor given
easement, nor supervised by any regulatory division. The designation
of a private sewer line and responsibility for maintenance was not
disclosed to the prospective homeowners.

MSD believes that the Buncombe County Building Inspectors and
Plumbers are responsible for having permits and inspections on these
lines. MSD thinks that the developer/contractor needs to obtain
permits from Buncombe County. We were told by Mike Silver at the
NC Licensing board that the Buncombe County inspectors are only
responsible for clean out inspection 5 feet from the house and MSD
does the rest. The Buncombe County Inspectors sent us to MSD
initially when we inquired about the lines in the woods behind our
house having no record of these lines. We wanted to know why our
lines were indicated as connecting in front of our home on the
website and in documentation, when, in fact, they connected in the
back of the property. We were told that MSD supervises the hook up
off the homeowners property. MSD thinks that a building permit
needs to be taken out and the lines inspected by Buncombe County
plumbing inspectors before they can be operational. It appears that
there was no building permit. In fact, in Adana Kirk's case a
certificate of occupancy was given without a sewer connection. It is
still unclear which County regulatory branch takes care of insuring
lines are placed appropriately. There is a gray zone of inspection that
needs to be cleared up. If indeed sewer lines traversing woods and
leaving distant ends of properties are not inspected for proper
placement, there is a potential health risk if these lines rupture due to
improper depth/pitch, roots growing in them, etc with leakage of

sewage into the catch area of Reems Creek as well as other streams,
as did Bill Dorf's poorly placed and non- surveyed lines.

Tom McVay, the father of the Bell's, looked at the lines with Matt





Stone the Buncombe County Building Inspector and the Buncombe
County Plumbing Inspector 3 weeks ago and there were concerns
about the pitch of the lines and undrained sewage in the lines. Kevin
Johnson and Ed Bradford are planning to discuss the situation with
the Buncombe County Building and Plumbing Inspector this week
and we hope there can be a resolution of how to remediate these

lines. We are hoping that the developer who falsely represented the
lines as an MSD maintained sewer will remediate the situation as he
is in the process of developing over 80 more homes in this area with a
civil engineer who is looking at putting in sewers.

We are still in discovery and are awaiting the outcome for the health
and safety of our community. Buncombe County is rapidly growing
and we can not afford to allow for errors in development that
jeopardize the safety of our community.

Thank you

Megan Taylor






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: Minimum Rental Housing Ordinance Revisions Draft
Date: Tuesday, October 18, 2016 5:15:53 PM

Attachments: Rental Housing Ordinance Draft Revision.docx

ATT00001.htm

FYI
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Terry Gentry <Terry.Gentry@buncombecounty.org>

Date: October 18, 2016 at 4:34:12 PM EDT

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>, Bob Haynes
<Bob.Haynes@buncombecounty.org>, "Michael C. Frue"
<Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Minimum Rental Housing Ordinance Revisions Draft

For Review
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RENTAL HOUSING ORDINANCE


[bookmark: _GoBack]DRAFT 2.25.16











ARTICLE I – UNSAFE HOUSING


		Section 1 ESTABLISHMENT OF MINIMUM HOUSING CODE


Sec. 1-1. Housing code established title. There are hereby established rules and regulations in Articles I and II herein for the inspection, repair or elimination of unfit and/or unsafe housing conditions in the County of Buncombe, North Carolina, all of which Articles shall be known as the “Buncombe Minimum Housing Code.”


[bookmark: OOR_CH4BUBURE_ARTVIIHOCO_S4-202EXPOPOAU]Sec. 1-2. Exercise of police powers: authority. The County Commissioners of the County of Buncombe hereby finds and declares pursuant to Articles 1, 6, and 18 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes that there exist in the County dwellings that are unfit for human habitation and are inimical to the welfare and dangerous and injurious to the health, safety and morals of the people of this County, and that a public necessity exists for the inspection, repair, closing or demolition of such dwellings.   The Buncombe County Commission further find and declare that there exists in the County dwellings that are unfit for human habitation due to dilapidation, defects increasing the hazards of fire, accidents or other calamities, lack of ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or due to other conditions rendering the dwellings unsafe or unsanitary, or dangerous or detrimental to the health, safety, morals, or otherwise inimical to the welfare of the residents of the County and that a public necessity exists to exercise the police powers of the County pursuant to Articles 1, 6 and 18 of Chapter 153A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as now or hereafter amended, to inspect, repair, close, or demolish such dwellings in accordance with the procedures herein.  





[bookmark: PTIICOOR_CH4BUBURE_ARTVIIHOCO_S4-203PU]In addition, the County of Buncombe finds and declares that there exist in the County certain abandoned structures which the County Commission finds to be a health or safety hazard as a result of the attraction of insects or rodents, conditions creating a fire hazard, dangerous conditions constituting a threat to children or frequent use by vagrants as living quarters in the absence of sanitary facilities and that  a public necessity exists for the inspection,  repair, closing or demolition of such structure pursuant to the same provisions and procedures as are prescribed herein for the inspection, repair, closing or demolition of dwellings found to be unfit for human habitation.


Sec. 1-3. Purpose   The purpose of this Code is to remedy and prevent the decay and deterioration of places of human habitation or intended for human habitation by providing minimum requirements of fitness for the initial and continued occupancy of places of human habitation thereby protecting the life, health, welfare, safety, and property of the general public and the owners and occupants of places of human habitation. 


[bookmark: PTIICOOR_CH4BUBURE_ARTVIIHOCO_S4-204SC]Sec. 1-4.  Scope  The provisions of this code shall apply to all existing rental dwellings and all rental dwellings hereinafter constructed within the County of Buncombe which are used or held out for use for human habitation.  This Code  constitutes minimum requirements and standards for residential premises, structures, equipment and facilities for light, ventilation, space heating, sanitation, protection from the elements, life safety, safety from fire and other hazards, and for safe and sanitary maintenance. The provisions shall also constitute minimum requirements and standards for the responsibility of owners, operators and occupants; the occupancy of existing structures and premises, and for administration, enforcement and penalties.  Demountable dwellings such as manufactured homes or demountable dwellings being moved and temporarily stored prior to relocation, when used or intended for use for human habitation, shall be subject to the applicable provisions of this Code and shall be subject to the North Carolina Regulations for Manufactured Homes and other applicable provisions of this Code.   


Sec. 1-5.  Intent  This code shall be construed to secure its expressed intent, which is to ensure public health, safety and welfare insofar as they are affected by the continued occupancy and maintenance of structures and premises.  Existing structures and premises that do not comply with these provisions shall be altered or repaired or demolished to provide a minimum level of health and safety as required herein.  Repairs, alterations, additions to and a change of occupancy in existing buildings shall comply with the North Carolina Building Code. 


Sec. 1-6. Maintenance. Equipment, systems, devices and safeguards required by this code or a previous regulation or code under which the structure or premises was constructed, altered or repaired shall be maintained in good working order. No owner, operator or occupant shall cause any service, facility, equipment or utility which is required under this section to be removed from or shut off from or discontinued for any occupied dwelling, except for such temporary interruption as necessary while repairs or alterations are in progress. The requirements of this code are not intended to provide the basis for removal or abrogation of fire protection and safety systems and devices in existing structures. Except as otherwise specified herein, the owner or the owner’s designated agent shall be responsible for the maintenance of buildings, structures and premises.  


Sec. 1-7.  Application of other codes. Repairs, additions or alterations to a structure, or changes of occupancy, shall be done in accordance with the procedures and provisions of the North Carolina Building Code. Nothing in this code shall be construed to cancel, modify or set aside any provision of the Buncombe County Zoning Ordinance.


Sec. 1-8.  Existing remedies. The provisions in this code shall not be construed to abolish or impair existing remedies of the County or its officers or agencies relating to the removal or demolition of any structure which is dangerous, unsafe and unsanitary.  


Sec. 1-9. Workmanship. Repairs, maintenance work, alterations or installations which are caused directly or indirectly by the enforcement of this code shall be executed and installed in a workmanlike manner and installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s installation instructions.  





Sec 1-10.   Requirements not covered by code. Requirements necessary for the strength, stability or proper operation of an existing fixture, structure or equipment, or for the public safety, health and general welfare, not specifically covered by this code, shall be determined by the public officer responsible for administration and enforcement of the State Building Code. 


Sec. 1-11.  Severability If a section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this code is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this code.  





[bookmark: PTIICOOR_CH4BUBURE_ARTVIIHOCO_S4-205DE]Section II DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE PUBLIC OFFICER 


Sec. 2-1.  Enforcement.  The various provisions of this ordinance herein shall be administered by the County of Buncombe Emergency Management Services under the primary direction of the Fire Marshal. The Fire Marshal and related departmental staffs are collectively referred to herein as the public officer and is the same as the public officer as referred to in NCGS 153A - 443. For the purposes of the administration of this ordinance, the public officer may be referred to herein as the inspection department as the term is used in NCGS 153A-424.Unless otherwise specified herein, the public officer is hereby authorized and directed to exercise, by and through his duly appointed agents, the powers prescribed by this Code.  The public officer is responsible for enforcement of this code and/or their designees shall enforce the provisions of this code. 


Sec. 2-2   Interpretation of code. The public officer shall have authority as necessary in the interest of public health, safety and general welfare, to interpret and implement the provisions of this code; to secure the intent thereof; and to designate requirements applicable because of local climatic or other conditions. Such rules shall not have the effect of waiving structural or fire performance requirements specifically provided for in this code, the North Carolina Building Code, or of violating accepted engineering methods involving public safety.  


Sec. 2-3.  Deputies In accordance with the prescribed procedures of this jurisdiction and with the concurrence of the appointing authority, the public officer shall have the authority to appoint a deputy public officer, other related technical officers, inspectors and other employees.


Sec. 2-4. Liability. Except as may otherwise be provided by statute or local law or ordinance, no officer, agent, or employee of the County charged with the enforcement of this Ordinance shall be personally liable for any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted in the discharge of his duties under this Code.  No person who institutes or assists in the prosecution of a criminal proceeding under this Ordinance shall be liable to damages hereunder unless he acted with actual malice and without reasonable grounds for believing that the person accused or prosecuted was guilty of an unlawful act or omission. 


Sec. 2-5.  Fees. The fees for activities and services performed by carrying out the responsibilities under this code shall be as defined by the Buncombe County Commission.  





Sec. 2-6.  Inspections of residential structures.   The public officer may make  inspections of residential structures only when there is reasonable cause to believe that unfit, unsafe, unsanitary, or otherwise hazardous or unlawful conditions may exist in a residential building or structure. For purposes of this section, the term "reasonable cause" means any of the following: (i) the landlord or owner has a history of more than two verified violations of the housing ordinances or codes within a 12‑month period; (ii) there has been a complaint that substandard conditions exist within the building or there has been a request that the building be inspected; (iii) the inspection department has actual knowledge of an unsafe condition within the building; or (iv) violations of the local ordinances or codes are visible from the outside of the property. For purposes of this section, the term “verified violation” means a violation which has been personally observed by the public officer who has generated a report documenting the violation pursuant to Section 2-9 herein below. In conducting inspections authorized under this section, the public officer shall not discriminate between single‑family and multifamily buildings. In exercising this power, members of the inspection department shall have a right to enter on any premises within the jurisdiction of the department at all reasonable hours for the purposes of inspection or other enforcement action, upon presentation of proper credentials. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit periodic inspections in accordance with State fire prevention code or as otherwise required by State law or to apply to the County’s inspection of non-residential structures.





Sec. 2-7.   Right of entry. The public officer is authorized to enter the structure or premises at reasonable times to inspect subject to constitutional restrictions on unreasonable searches and seizures. If entry is refused or not obtained, the public officer is authorized to pursue recourse provided by law including an administrative warrant. 


Sec. 2-8.  Identification. The public officer shall carry proper identification when inspecting structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 


Sec. 2-9.  Inspection Report.  Within a reasonable time not to exceed 15 days after an inspection taken in accordance with this code, the public officer shall issue a report documenting the results of the inspection. All reports of such inspections shall be in writing and be certified by a responsible officer of such approved agency or by the responsible individual. The public officer is authorized to engage such expert opinion as deemed necessary to report upon unusual technical issues that arise, subject to the approval of the appointing authority. 


The public officer shall serve upon the owner and all parties of interest a copy of the inspection report within a reasonable time, not to exceed 21 days.  


Sec. 2-10.  Department records. The public officer shall keep official records of all business and activities of the department specified in the provisions of this code   Copies shall be made available on request to interested parties. Such records shall be maintained in accordance with State regulations regarding the retention of records


Sec 2-11.  Coordination of inspections. Whenever in the enforcement of this code or another code or ordinance the responsibility of more than one code official of the jurisdiction is involved, it shall be the duty of the code officials involved to coordinate their inspections and administrative orders as fully as practicable so that the owners and occupants of the structure shall not be subjected to visits by numerous inspectors or multiple or conflicting orders. Whenever a code official from any agency or department observes an apparent or actual violation of some provision of some law, ordinance or code not within the code official’s authority to enforce, the code official shall report the findings to the code official having jurisdiction.  





Sec. 2-12. Liability. Except as may otherwise be provided by statute or local law or Ordinance, no officer, agent, or employee of the County charged with the enforcement of this Ordinance shall be personally liable for any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted in the discharge of his duties under this Code





Section III. NOTICE, REPAIR, OR DEMOLITION





Sec. 3-1 Notice of Hearing.    That whenever a petition is filed with the public officer 


by a public authority or by at least five residents of the County charging that any dwelling is unfit for human habitation or whenever it appears to the public officer (on his own


motion) that any dwelling is unfit for human habitation,  the public officer shall, if his preliminary investigation discloses a basis for such charges, issue and cause to be served upon the owner of and parties in interest in such dwellings a complaint stating the charges in that respect and containing a notice that a hearing will be held before the public officer (or his designated agent) at a place within the county in which the property is located not less than 10 days nor more than 30 days after the serving of the complaint; that the owner and parties in interest shall be given the right to file an answer to the complaint and to appear in person, or otherwise, and give testimony at the place  and time fixed in the complaint; and that the rules of evidence prevailing in courts of law or equity shall not be controlling in hearings before the public officer.





Sec. 3-2.  Notice to Landlord with Verified Violation.  If the public officer has inspected residential rental properties in accordance with Section 2-6 herein and has given the landlord a written report in accordance with Section 2-9 herein, and report documents violation(s) of this housing code and, if, within 30 days after receiving such report, the landlord has not kept and maintained the rental premises in compliance of this housing code or presented a reasonable plan to do so, then the public officer shall give the landlord notice of a hearing as set forth in Section 3-3 herein.


Sec. 3-3.  Form and Service of Notice of Hearing.  The form of such complaint shall be in accordance with all of the following:


(1) Be in writing;


(2) Include a description of the real estate sufficient for identification.


(3) Include a statement of the violation(s) and why the complaint is being issued.


Such complaint shall be deemed to be properly served if a copy thereof is:  


(1) Delivered personally; or 


(2) Sent by certified or first-class mail addressed to the last known address; or


(3) If the notice is returned showing that the register or certified letter was not claimed or refused, a copy thereof shall be sent by regular mail and  posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such notice;


 (4)  If the identities of any owners or the whereabouts of persons are unknown and cannot be ascertained by the public officer in the exercise of reasonable diligence, and the public officer makes an affidavit to that effect, then the serving of the complaint or order upon the owners or other persons may be made by publication in a newspaper having a general circulation in the County at least once, no later than the time at which personal service would be required under the provisions of this Part.  When service is made by publication, a notice of the pending proceedings shall be posted in a conspicuous place on the premises thereby affected.  





Sec. 3-4. Determination after hearing.  That if, after notice and hearing, the public officer determines that the dwelling under consideration is unfit for human habitation, he shall state in writing his findings of fact in support of that determination and shall issue and cause to be served upon the owner and all parties in interest therein an order: 


a.    If the repair, alteration or improvement of the dwelling can be made at a reasonable cost in relation to the value of the dwelling, requiring the owner, within the time specified, to repair, alter or improve the dwelling in order to render it fit for human habitation. The order may require that the property be vacated and closed only if continued occupancy during the time allowed for repair will present a significant threat of bodily harm, taking into account the nature of the necessary repairs, alterations, or improvements; the current state of the property; and any additional risks due to the presence and capacity of minors under the age of 18 or occupants with physical or mental disabilities. The order shall state that the failure to make timely repairs as directed in the order shall make the dwelling subject to the issuance of an unfit order under Section 2-6  of this section; or


b.   If the repair, alteration or improvement of the dwelling cannot be made at a reasonable cost in relation to the value of the dwelling, requiring the owner, within the time specified in the order, to remove or demolish such dwelling. However, notwithstanding any other provision of law, if the dwelling is located in a historic district of the County and the Historic District Commission determines, after a public hearing as provided by ordinance, that the dwelling is of particular significance or value toward maintaining the character of the district, and the dwelling has not been condemned as unsafe, the order may require that the dwelling be vacated and closed.





Sec 3-5.  Reasonable Cost.  For purposes of this ordinance,  “repairs can be made at a reasonable cost in relation to the value of the dwelling” shall mean that the repair of the dwelling to render it fit for human habitation can be made at a cost not exceeding fifty percent (50%) of the then current value of the dwelling.





Sec. 3-6.  Failure to Comply with Order to Repair.   That, if the owner fails to comply with an order to repair, alter or improve or to vacate and close the dwelling, the public officer may cause the dwelling to be repaired, altered or improved or to be vacated and closed; that the public officer may cause to be posted on the main entrance of any dwelling so closed, a placard with the following words: "This building is unfit for human habitation; the use or occupation of this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful." Occupation of a building so posted shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor. The duties of the public officer set forth in this subdivision shall not be exercised until the governing body shall have by ordinance ordered the public officer to proceed to effectuate the purpose of this Article with respect to the particular property or properties which the public officer shall have found to be unfit for human habitation and which property or properties shall be described in the ordinance. This ordinance shall be recorded in the office of the register of deeds in the county wherein the property or properties are located and shall be indexed in the name of the property owner in the grantor index.





Sec. 3-7.  Failure to Comply with Order to Remove or Demolish.  That, if the owner fails to comply with an order to remove or demolish the dwelling, the public officer may cause such dwelling to be removed or demolished. The duties of the public officer set forth in this subdivision shall not be exercised until the governing body shall have by ordinance ordered the public officer to proceed to effectuate the purpose of this Article with respect to the particular property or properties which the public officer shall have found to be unfit for human habitation and which property or properties shall be described in the ordinance. No such ordinance shall be adopted to require demolition of a dwelling until the owner has first been given a reasonable opportunity to bring it into conformity with the housing code. This ordinance shall be recorded in the office of the register of deeds in the county wherein the property or properties are located and shall be indexed in the name of the property owner in the grantor index.





Sec. 3-8.  Determination of Abandonment.  If the County Commission shall have adopted an ordinance as provided in Section 3-6, or the public officer shall have issued an order, ordering the dwelling to be repaired or vacated and closed, as provided in Section 3-4 herein, and if the dwelling has been vacated and closed for a period of one year pursuant to the ordinance or order, the County Commission shall find that the owner has abandoned the intent and purposed to repair, alter or improve the dwelling in order to render it fit for human habitation and that the continuation of the dwelling in its vacated and closed status would be inimical to the health, safety, morals and welfare of the municipality in that the dwelling would continue to deteriorate, would create a fire and safety hazard, would be a threat to children and vagrants, would attract persons intent on criminal activities, would cause or contribute to the blight and the deterioration of property values in the area, and would render unavailable property and a dwelling which might otherwise have been made available to ease the persistent shortage of decent and affordable housing in this State, then in such circumstances, the County Commission may, after the expiration of such one year period, enact an ordinance and serve such ordinance on the owner, setting forth the following:


(a) If it is determined that the repair of the dwelling to render it fit for habitation can be made at a reasonable cost (a cost not exceeding fifty percent (50%) of the then current value of the dwelling), the owner shall either repair or demolish and remove the dwelling within 90 days; or


(b) If it is determined that the repair of the dwelling to render it fit for habitation cannot be made at a reasonable cost (a cost exceeding fifty (50%) of the then current value of the dwelling) the owner shall be required to demolish and remove the dwelling within 90 days.


This ordinance as described by Section 3-6 herein shall be recorded in the Office of the Buncombe County Register of Deeds and shall be indexed in the name of the property owner in the grantor index.  If the owner fails to comply with this ordinance, the public officer shall effectuate the purpose of this ordinance.   


Sec. 3-9.  Liens.   That the amount of the cost of repairs, alterations or improvements, or vacating and closing, or removal or demolition by the public officer shall be a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred, which lien shall be filed, have the same priority, and be collected as the lien for special assessment provided in Article 10 of 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes. 


(a)     	The amount of the cost is also a lien on any other real property of the owner located within the County limits or within one mile thereof except for the owner's primary residence. The additional lien provided in this sub‑subdivision is inferior to all prior liens and shall be collected as a money judgment.


(b) 	If the dwelling is removed or demolished by the public officer, he shall sell the materials of the dwelling, and any personal property, fixtures or appurtenances found in or attached to the dwelling, and shall credit the proceeds of the sale against the cost of the removal or demolition and any balance remaining shall be deposited in the superior court by the public officer, shall be secured in a manner directed by the court, and shall be disbursed by the court to the persons found to be entitled thereto by final order or decree of the court. Nothing in this section shall be construed to impair or limit in any way the power of the County to define and declare nuisances and to cause their removal or abatement by summary proceedings, or otherwise.





Sec. 3-10. Equitable enforcement. In case any dwelling is erected, constructed, altered, repaired, converted, maintained, or used in violation of this article or any order or decision of the director or board made pursuant to this article, the director may institute any appropriate action or proceedings to prevent such unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, alternation, or use, to restrain, correct, or abate such violation and to prevent the occupancy of the dwelling.





Sec. 3-11. Civil enforcement. An owner who fails to comply with a violation notice of correction order or finding of fact and order to repair or to improve, vacate, close or demolish any dwelling determined unfit for human habitation pursuant to the provisions contained in this article, or who permits the occupancy or re-occupancy of an unsafe or unfit dwelling in violation of this article, shall be subject to civil penalty of $1000.00 for the first day following the expiration of an order to repair or improve, vacate or close any occupied dwelling or following a determination that an unfit dwelling has been reoccupied in violation of this article. In each instance, a penalty of $500.00 per day shall be imposed for each subsequent day that such failure to comply continues. If a person fails to pay the civil penalty within ten days after being notified of the amount due, the county may recover the penalty together with all costs by filing a civil action in the General Court of Justice in the nature of a suit to collect a debt.








Sec. 3-12.  Civil Action of Summary Ejectment   If any occupant fails to comply with an order to vacate a dwelling, the public officer may file a civil action in the name of the County to remove such occupant. The action to vacate the dwelling shall be in the nature of summary ejectment and shall be commenced by filing a complaint naming as parties‑defendant any person occupying such dwelling. The clerk of superior court shall issue a summons requiring the defendant to appear before a magistrate at a certain time, date and place not to exceed 10 days from the issuance of the summons to answer the complaint. The summons and complaint shall be served as provided in G.S. 42‑29. The summons shall be returned according to its tenor, and if on its return it appears to have been duly served, and if at the hearing the public officer produces a certified copy of an ordinance adopted by the governing body pursuant to Section 2-6 herein) authorizing the officer to proceed to vacate the occupied dwelling, the magistrate shall enter judgment ordering that the premises be vacated and that all persons be removed. The judgment ordering that the dwelling be vacated shall be enforced in the same manner as the judgment for summary ejectment entered under G.S. 42‑30. An appeal from any judgment entered hereunder by the magistrate may be taken as provided in G.S. 7A‑228, and the execution of such judgment may be stayed as provided in G.S. 7A‑227. An action to remove an occupant of a dwelling who is a tenant of the owner may not be in the nature of a summary ejectment proceeding pursuant to this paragraph unless such occupant was served with notice at least 30 days before the filing of the summary ejectment proceeding that the governing body has ordered the public officer to proceed to exercise his duties under subdivisions (4) and (5) of this section to vacate and close or remove and demolish the dwelling.





Sec. 3-13.  Modifications. Whenever there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out the provisions of this code, the public officer shall have the authority to grant modifications for individual cases, provided the public officer shall first find that special individual reason makes the strict letter of this code impractical and the modification is in compliance with the intent and purpose of this code and that such modification does not lessen health, life and fire safety requirements. The details of action granting modifications shall be recorded and entered in the department files. 


 


Sec. 3-14.  Alternative materials, methods and equipment.. The provisions of this code are not intended to prevent the installation of any material or to prohibit any method of construction not specifically prescribed by this code, provided that any such alternative has been approved. An alternative material or method of construction shall be approved where the public officer finds that the proposed design is satisfactory and complies with the intent of the provisions of this code, and that the material, method or work offered is, for the purpose intended, at least the equivalent of that prescribed in this code in quality, strength, effectiveness, fire resistance, durability and safety.  


Sec. 3-15. Required testing. Whenever there is insufficient evidence of compliance with the provisions of this code, or evidence that a material or method does not conform to the requirements of this code, or in order to substantiate claims for alternative materials or methods, the public officer shall have the authority to require tests to be made as evidence of compliance at no expense to the jurisdiction. 


Sec. 3-16. Test methods. Test methods shall be as specified in this code or by other recognized test standards. In the absence of recognized and accepted test methods, the public officer shall be permitted to approve appropriate testing procedures performed by an approved agency.  


Sec. 3-17. Test reports. Reports of tests shall be retained by the public officer for the period required for retention of public records. 


Sec. 3-18. Material and equipment reuse. Materials, equipment and devices shall not be reused unless such elements are in good repair or have been reconditioned and tested when necessary, placed in good and proper working condition and approved.


Sec. 3-19.  Notice. That whenever a determination is made pursuant to 3-4 of this section that a dwelling must be vacated and closed, or removed or demolished, under the provisions of this section, notice of the order shall be given by first‑class mail to any organization involved in providing or restoring dwellings for affordable housing that has filed a written request for such notices. A minimum period of 45 days from the mailing of such notice shall be given before removal or demolition by action of the public officer, to allow the opportunity for any organization to negotiate with the owner to make repairs, lease, or purchase the property for the purpose of providing affordable housing. The public officer or clerk shall certify the mailing of the notices, and the certification shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud. Only an organization that has filed a written request for such notices may raise the issue of failure to mail such notices, and the sole remedy shall be an order requiring the public officer to wait 45 days before causing removal or demolition.  





Sec. 3-20. Re-leasing. It shall be unlawful for the landlord of any dwelling unit or structure who has received an unfit order pursuant to Section 3-4 herein to lease the same unit or structure to another tenant until the provisions of the compliance order or notice of violation have been complied with.


 


Sec. 3-21.  Duties of Tenants and Owners.. This Code is not intended to interfere with or abolish the duties imposed on tenants and owners of rental property by North Carolina General Statutes, Sections 42-42 and 42-43.





Sec. 3-22.   Appeals.   Any appeal from any decision or order of the public officer shall be done in accordance with NCGS § 153A-370.








Section 4  HOUSING CODE DEFINITIONS 


Sec. 4-1.  Definitions. For the purposes of Articles I and II herein, certain terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 


Apartment house: Any dwelling which is designed, built, rented, leased, let or hired out to be occupied, or which is occupied as the home or residence of three or more families living independently of each other in dwelling units.


Approved:  Any written document, approval or housing certificate issued by the public officer following an inspection of a dwelling stating that the named dwelling is approved and appears to comply with the minimum requirements of this Code at the time of the inspection; provided however that such approval does not convey any guarantee or warranties on any building system or component. 


Area (as applied to the dimensions of a dwelling): The maximum horizontal projected area of the dwelling at grade.





Area (as applied to the dimensions of a room): The total square footage of floor area between finished walls.


Basement: A story having a clear height of at least seven feet from finished floor to finished ceiling, the floor level of which is below finished grade but not less than four feet below the average finished grade, having floor and walls of approved construction.


Boarding house (or rooming house): Any dwelling unit or that part of any dwelling unit containing one or more rooms in which space is let by the resident owner or operator to three or more tenants.


Building: That which is built or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind, or any piece of work artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner.  The term “building” shall be constructed as if followed by the words “or part thereof.”


Ceiling height: The clear vertical distance from finished floor to the finished ceiling.


County: County of Buncombe, North Carolina. 


Code official:  The public officer or officers as defined herein.


Demolish: The tearing down and disposal of the entire dwelling in a lawful manner, leaving the property free and clear of any debris and without holes or pockets.


Deteriorated: A dwelling that is unfit for human habitation or unsafe and can be repaired, altered, or improved to comply with all of the standards established by this Ordinance at a cost not in excess of 50 percent of its value, as determined by findings of the Director.


Director: The Director of Emergency Services or his/her designee.





Dwelling:  Any building, structure, manufactured home or mobile home, or part thereof, used and occupied for human habitation or intended to be so used, and includes any outhouses and appurtenances belonging thereto or usually enjoyed therewith, except that it does not include any manufactured home or mobile home, which is used solely for a seasonal vacation purpose. 


Enforcement officer: Any employee of the County whose assigned duties include the enforcement of one or more of the provisions of this Ordinance.


Exit: A clear and unobstructed way of departure from the interior of a dwelling to the exterior at a street or grade level.


Extermination: The controls and elimination of insects, rodents, and other pests by eliminating their harborage places; by removing or making inaccessible materials that serve as their food; by poisoning, spraying, fumigating, trapping, or by other recognized and lawful pest elimination method.


Family: One or more persons living together and having common housekeeping facilities.


Garbage: Waste produced by the handling, processing, preparation, cooking and consumption of animal or vegetable products used for human consumption. This definition shall include any other matter that is also subject to decomposition, decay, putrefaction or the generation of noxious or offensive gases or odors or which before, during or after decay may serve as feeding or breeding material for animals or flies or other insects and shall also include combustible and noncombustible waste materials, including, but not limited to, ashes, wood, coal, coke, and other combustible materials, paper, rags, cartons, boxes, excelsior, rubber, leather, tree branches, yard trimmings, leaves, tin cans, metals, mineral matter, glass, crockery, dust, and dirt


Governing body: The County Commission charged with governing the County of Buncombe.


Habitable space or habitable room: Any room or enclosed floor space in a dwelling used or intended for use for living, sleeping, cooking, or eating, including kitchens, but excluding bathrooms, toilets, halls, corridors, pantries, storage space, closets, laundries, and other spaces not used frequently or during extended periods. 


Inspect: The act of examining areas and parts of a dwelling to determine its compliance with the standards set out in this Code and undertaken pursuant to the authority to Article 19, Parts 5 and 6 of Chapter 153A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as now or hereafter amended. 


Inspector:  also known as code official and/or public officer.


Inspection Department: a division within the government of the County of Buncombe known as the Planning and Zoning Department which shall constitute the inspection department pursuant to Article 19, Part 5 of Chapter 106A of the North Carolina General Statutes and which shall be composed of the public officer and such other employees as shall be authorized by the County manager.


Landlord:  any owner and any rental management company, rental agency, or any other person having the actual or apparent authority of an agent to perform the duties imposed by Chapter 42 of the North Carolina General Statutes.  


"Manufactured home" or "mobile home" means a structure as defined in G.S. 143‑145(7).


North Carolina State Building Code or North Carolina Building Code: Any or all volumes of the North Carolina State Building Code as promulgated by the North Carolina State Building Code Council as adopted and being in effect by the Buncombe County Commission. 


Occupant: Any individual living or sleeping in a building, or having possession of space within a building under actual or apparent authority.


Owner: The holder of the title in fee simple and every mortgagee of record.  Any person representing the actual owner shall be bound to comply with the provisions of this ordinance and of the rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto, to the same extent as if he were the owner


Parties in interest: All individuals, associations and corporations who have interests of record in a dwelling and any who are in possession thereof. 


Pier: A post, pole or column of masonry, concrete, steel or pressure-treated wood extending from a concrete or masonry footing to and supporting the building or portion thereof.


Plumbing: The water supply system, sanitary drainage system, vent system, fixtures, and traps and shall include their respective connections, devices, appliances, and appurtenances within the property lines of the premises.


Premises:  A dwelling unit, including mobile homes or mobile home spaces, and the structure of which it is a part and facilities and appurtenances therein and grounds, areas, and facilities normally held out for the use of residential tenants.


Public authority: the inspection department or any officer who is in charge of any department or branch of the government of the County relating to health, fire, building regulations, or other activities concerning dwellings in the County. 


Public officer: the officer or officers who are authorized by this Article V of Chapter 18 adopted hereunder to exercise the powers prescribed herein. The County’s Emergency Management Services Director and related staff is collectively referred to herein as the public officer and is also referred to herein as the inspection department as is used in Article 19, Part 5 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes.  


Public space or common space: that space within any dwelling which is open to use by the general public or to occupants of more than one dwelling.


Rubbish: combustible and noncombustible waste materials, except garbage; including, but not limited to ashes, wood, cola, coke, or other combustible materials, paper, rags, cartons, boxes, excelsior, rubber, leather, tree branches, yard trimmings, leaves, tin cans, metals, mineral matter, glass, crockery, dust and dirt.


Readily accessible: Having direct access without the need of moving furniture, removing any panel, door or similar covering, and without the use of portable ladders, chairs, etc. 


Rooming house:  A building arranged or occupied for lodging, with or without meals, for compensation and not occupied as a one- or two-family dwelling.  Also known as a boarding house.


Story: That part of the dwelling comprised between a floor and the floor or roof next above having the required amount of ceiling height.


Structure:  Any walled and roofed building or other physical object, whether temporary or permanent, that is designed for human habitation and/or to uphold, house, contain or bear other objects or materials.


Tenant: A person, corporation, partnership or group, whether or not the legal owner of record, occupying a dwelling or dwelling unit by apparent right or title. 


Unfit and/or unfit for human habitation:  Defective conditions exist in the dwelling that render it dangerous or injurious to the health, safety or morals of the occupants of the dwelling, the occupants of neighboring dwellings, or other residents of the County.  Defective conditions may include the following (without limiting the generality of the foregoing): defects therein increasing the hazards of fire, accident, or other calamities; disrepair; structural defects; uncleanliness; is unsanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and contamination, or lacks ventilation, illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or other essential equipment required by this code; because the location of the structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants of the structure or to the public or if it appears to the code official to be in such dilapidated condition as to cause or contribute to blight, disease, vagrancy, fire or safety hazard, to be a danger to children, or to tend to attract persons intent on criminal activities or other activities which would constitute a public nuisance.  


Unsafe: Especially dangerous to life because of a dwelling's liability to fire or because of bad condition of walls, overloaded floors, defective construction, decay, dangerous wiring or heating system, inadequate means of egress, or other causes or conditions enumerated in section 5 of this Code. 


Meaning of certain words: Whenever the words “dwelling, dwelling unit, rooming house, rooming unit, premises” are used in this chapter, they shall be construed as though they were followed by the words “or any part thereof”.








Section 5 MINIMUM STANDARDS





Without excluding other ways and means of determining that a dwelling is unfit for human habitation, the enforcement officer shall apply the minimum standards set forth in section 5 of this Ordinance in determining whether a dwelling is unfit.





Sec. 5-1 Facilities.





a. Sanitary.  Every dwelling shall be furnished with a potable water supply system.  “Potable water supply” means direct connection to a well, to a public water utility or equivalent water service delivery system, and does not include water delivered through a hose or via containers.  Every dwelling shall contain not less than a kitchen sink, lavatory, tub or shower, and a water closet all in good working condition and properly connected to an approved water and sewer system. All plumbing fixtures shall meet the standards of the applicable provisions of the N.C. Building Code/Plumbing Code.





b. Location of sanitary facilities.  All required plumbing fixtures shall be located within the dwelling and be accessible to the occupants of same. The water closet, tub or shower and lavatory shall be located in a room (or adjoining rooms) affording privacy to the user.  Required bathrooms shall be accessible from habitable rooms, hallways, corridors or other protected or enclosed areas. 





c. Hot and cold water supply.  Every dwelling shall have connected to the kitchen sink, lavatory, and tub or shower an adequate supply of both cold and hot water.  All water shall be supplied through an approved distribution system connected to a potable water supply.





d. Water heating.  Every dwelling shall have water heating facilities which are properly installed and maintained in a safe and good working condition and are capable of heating water to such a temperature so as to permit hot water to be drawn consecutively (that is, at one tap after the other, and not simultaneously) at every required kitchen sink, lavatory basin, bathtub or shower at a temperature of not less than 116 degrees F.  Such water heating facilities shall be capable of meeting the requirements of this subsection when the dwelling’s heating facilities required under the provisions of the Ordinance are not in operation.  Apartment houses may use a centralized water heating facility capable of delivering an amount of hot water in the quantity and at the temperature described above.





i. Water heaters shall be equipped with approved relief valves, which are piped to a point not more than six inches above the floor.  The pipe material for the relief valve shall be threated pipe approved for interior water service lines.


ii. Provided, however, that the provision in subsection (1) d. of this section for hot water supplies for a kitchen sink shall not apply to hotels, motels and other transient dwellings where kitchen sinks are not required.


e. Heating.


1. Every dwelling shall have heating facilities which are properly installed, are maintained in safe and good working conditions, and are capable of safely and adequately heating all habitable rooms, bathrooms, and water closet compartments in every dwelling regulated herein to a temperature of at least 68 degrees F (20 degrees C) at a distance three feet above the floor level, at an outside temperature of 14 degrees Fahrenheit.  Each heating system shall have at least one readily-adjustable control for regulation of living space temperature in each dwelling unit.  Radiator control knobs in good working order shall be regarded as a readily-adjustable control.


2. Where a central heating system is not provided for a dwelling, the dwelling shall be provided with properly installed baseboard electric heat, properly installed and properly vented wood or fossil fuel heater (s), or unvented natural gas heaters having oxygen depletion sensors listed for residential use by UL, ETL, or other North Carolina recognized testing laboratory and installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions.


3. The following heating devices do not meet the requirements of subsection (1)e.2. of this section:


(i) Portable electric or kerosene heating units; and


(ii) Unvented fuel-burning heaters.


Cooking appliances shall not be used to provide space heating to meet the requirements of this section.  


4. The use of unvented fuel-burning heaters is prohibited in any bedroom.


f. Chimneys.


There shall be no chimneys or parts thereof which are defective, deteriorated or in danger of falling, or in such condition or location as to constitute a fire hazard.


1. Chimney inspections shall be conducted annually by certified chimney sweeps.


2. Chimneys must be safe for use as specified and intended.  “Specified” means use in connection with specific heating appliances of systems, or limitations of such use.  “Intended” means use in connection with combustion of fuel, for which the following minimum chimney standards apply:


(i) Flue liner instance;


(ii) Chimney mortar and bricks secure;


(iii) Flue unobstructed;


(iv)Fireplace firebricks intact;


(v) Stove piping placed and secured with clearances as follows:


X	Minimum 12-inch brick clearance separation from combustibles; or


X	Minimum nine-inch air separation for insulated listed stovepiping; or


X	Minimum one-inch air clearance surrounded by six-inch glass fiber insulation and ventilated thimble assembly; or


X	Minimum two-inch air separation for insulated listed stovepiping with one-inch air space between inner and outer chimney components; and as otherwise described in National Fire Protection Association’s Standard 211, Chimneys, Fireplaces, Vents and Solid Fuel-Burning Appliances, 1992 edition; and


(vi) Heating appliance clearances maintained at 36 inches from combustible materials and/or surfaces, except that clearances may be reduced as provided in National Fire Protection Association’s Standard 211, Chimneys, Fireplaces, Vents and Solid Fuel-Burning Appliances, 1992 edition.


3. Chimneys that do not meet these standards shall be either repaired or sealed.


g. Cooking equipment. All cooking equipment and facilities shall be installed in an approved manner and shall be maintained in safe working condition.  Portable cooking equipment employing flame is prohibited as a substitute for approved cooking equipment.  Portable cooking equipment is prohibited outside the kitchen area of a boarding or rooming house.


h. Smoke Detector. Every dwelling shall be provided with a smoke detector listed by Underwriter’s Laboratories, Inc., or other equivalent national testing laboratory on each level of the dwelling and in stairwells, hallways and other common area of multiple-unit dwellings.  Such detectors shall be installed in accordance with either National Fire Protection association Standard 72, National Fire Alarm Code, Chapter 2 or the minimum protection designated in the manufacturer’s instructions, which the owner of rental property shall retain or provide as proof of compliance.


i. Street Address. Each dwelling shall bear a street address number of a color contrasting with the surface on which the number is mounted, such number to be of sufficient size to be visible from the nearest public street but not less than two inches in height.  If the dwelling is not visible from the nearest public street, a sign or standard bearing the address number shall also be placed on the principle public street access point to the dwelling, such number to meet the standards set forth herein.


Sec. 5-2 Light and ventilation.


a. Windows.  Every habitable room shall have at least one window or skylight facing directly to the outdoors.  The minimum total window area, measured between stops, for every habitable room shall be ten percent of the floor area of such room.  Whenever walls or other portions of structure face window of any such room and such light-obstruction structures are located less than five feet from the window and extend to a level above that of the ceiling of the room, such a window shall not be deemed to face directly to the outdoors and shall not be included as contributing to the required minimum total window area.  Whenever the only window in a room is a skylight-type window in the top of such room, the total window area of such skylight shall equal at least 15 percent of the total floor area of such room.


b. Ventilation.


1. Every habitable room (except kitchen with exhaust fans in good working order) shall have at least one window or skylight which can be easily opened.  The total of openable window area in every habitable room shall be equal to at least 45 percent of the minimum window area size or minimum skylight-type window size, as required, or shall have other approved, equivalent ventilation.


Exception:  where rooms and spaces without openings to the outdoors are ventilated through an adjoining room, the unobstructing opening to the adjoining room shall be at least 8 percent of the floor area of the interior room or space.


2. Year-round mechanically venting conditioned air systems may be substituted for windows, as required herein, in rooms other than rooms used for sleeping purposes.  Window type air conditioning units are not included in this exception.


c. Bathrooms.


Every bathroom and water closet compartment shall comply with the light and ventilation requirements for habitable rooms except that no window or skylight shall be required in adequately ventilated bathrooms and water closet rooms equipped with an operable ceiling electrical exhaust fan.


d. Lighting in halls and stairways.


Every hall and stairway of every dwelling shall be adequately lighted by electric lights at all times when natural daylight is not sufficient, including exterior stairways and stairways in halls and public space.


Sec 5-3. Electrical systems.


a. Electrical service.  Adequate electric service must be provided to the dwelling.  “Adequate” means a minimum of 60 ampere service with no more than give two-wire branch circuits connected and a total connected load of less than ten kilowatts.  If a service has six or more two-wire branch circuits, 100 ampere service at a minimum must be provided.  If the connected electrical load exceeds the capacity of a 100 ampere service, a service of sufficient ampere capacity to safely bear the connected electrical load shall be furnished.  “Edison base” fuses shall not be permitted as components of any electrical service, and no more than one two-wire branch circuit shall be connected to any fuse, circuit breaker or other approved over-current protection device.  Drop cords from a neighboring source, generator or similar source are not “adequate” for purposes of this Ordinance.   Every new or additional electrical outlet and fixture required by this Ordinance shall be installed, maintained and connected to a source of electric power in accordance with the provisions of the North Carolina Building Code.


b. Lights and outlets.


1. Every habitable room or space shall contain at least two separate and remote duplex receptacle outlets.


2. Bedrooms shall have, in addition, at least one wall switch controlled lighting outlet or ceiling light fixture or permanent fixture controlled by a pull chain.


3. In kitchens, three separate, remote and accessible receptacle outlets shall be provided, and a wall or ceiling lighting outlet controlled by a wall stitch to fixture pull-chain shall be provided.  An outlet dedicated to powering an appliance and/or not easily accessible because it is blocked by an appliance shall not be counted as a separate outlet.  In kitchens with less than six linear feet of counter top, two of the three required outlets may be within the counter top space.


4. Every hall, water closet compartment, bathroom, laundry room or furnace room shall contain at least one ceiling-mounted or wall-mounted fixture outlet.  For purposes of this section a laundry closet shall not be considered a laundry room.


5. In bathrooms, the lighting outlet shall be controlled by a wall switch or fixture pull-chain.  In addition to the lighting outlet in every bathroom and laundry room, there shall be provided at least one receptacle outlet.  Any new or replacement bathroom receptacle outlet shall have ground fault circuit interrupter protection.


6. All outlets, switches, wiring and light fixtures shall be maintained in a state of good repair, safe, operable, and connected in such manner as determined by the applicable provisions of the N.C. Building Code/Electrical Code. No extension cords shall be spliced or used as fixed wiring of a dwelling.  Electrical odor, flickering lights, visibly frayed wiring, broken switch plates or outlet plates or failure of circuit-tester check shall be evidence of an unsafe electrical system.


In the event wall or ceiling light fixtures are not provided in any habitable room, then each such habitable room shall contain at least three (3) floor or wall-type electric convenience receptacles.


Sec. 5-4 Exterior and interior.


a. Foundation.  Foundations, foundation walls, piers or other foundation supports shall not be deteriorated or damaged.  The building foundation system shall be maintained in a safe manner and capable of supporting the load which normal use may cause to be placed thereon.  Beneath the dwelling, there must be firm, reasonably dry ground (“reasonably dry” means no mud, standing water, running water or evidence of same).  Mobile homes shall be set up and secured as required by the State Building Code’s Regulations for Manufactured/Mobile Homes.


b. Exterior walls.


Walls or partitions or supporting members, sills, joists, rafters or other structural members shall not list, lean or buckle, and shall not be rotted, deteriorated, or damaged, and shall not have holes or cracks which might admit rodents.


1. Every exterior wall shall be reasonably weather tight, (free of holes, breaks, loose or rotting boards or timbers, and any other conditions which might admit rain, dampness, vermin or air to the wall cavity or to the occupied spaces in the building).  All siding material shall be kept in repair.  “Kept in repair” includes the maintenance of wood or other organic building materials from weather damage, repair of cracks or holes exceeding one-quarter (1/4) inch in width and replacement of wood or other organic component that show visual signs of rot, are soft to the touch or otherwise show evidence of rotting.


2. Existing skirting shall be maintained free from broken or missing sections, pieces or cross members which comprise the insulation characteristics of the skirting.  Skirting shall be securely attached and sized from the ground to the lower outside perimeter of the structure.  If skirting is not provided, or if existing skirting is removed, water lines and drain lines shall be insulated to prevent freezing.


3. Replacement or new skirting shall be constructed of materials intended for exterior use and properly seized and mounted to prevent free access to the crawl space of the dwelling.  Adequate means to gain access to heating or other mechanical equipment, via inside or outside, shall be furnished.


c. Roofs.


1. Roofs shall be weather- and watertight, structurally sound, and maintained in a safe manner and have no defects which might admit rain or cause dampness in the walls or interior portion of the dwelling.  The following may constitute evidence of defects:


(i) Missing shingles;


(ii) Flashing (s) missing;


(iii) Roof deflection deeper than 1/6 of the depth of the rafter and/or rafters cracked.


(iv) Damage to ceilings (ceiling plaster loose or falling, brown spots, etc.), sheet rock hanging, etc. in rooms below roof; or 


(v) Fire damage.


2. No more than three layers of roofing materials (shingles, shakes, roofing) shall be permitted without certification by an architect or engineer registered in North Carolina that the roof will safely support all required live and dead loads pursuant to requirements of the North Carolina State Building Code.


d. Attics. All attics shall be ventilated.


e. Means of egress. In multi-family houses having two or more dwelling units above the first story, every dwelling unit above the first story shall have access to at least two exit ways.  One common exit is permitted provided that all of the following conditions are met:


1. Maximum distance to travel to reach the exit or stairs from the entrance door to any dwelling unit shall not exceed 30 feet.


2. Maximum number of dwelling units served by the exit shall not exceed four per floor.


3. Maximum gross area of the dwelling units shall not exceed 3,500 square feet per floor.


4. Maximum building height shall be one story above the level of exit discharge.


f. Stairs, porches and appurtenances.


Every inside and outside stair, porch and any appurtenances thereto shall be safe to use and capable of supporting the load that normal use may cause to be placed thereon and shall be kept in sound condition and good repair.  Stairs and steps shall be free of holes, grooves and/or cracks large enough to constitute accident hazards.  Risers shall be reasonably uniform in height.  Stair coverings shall be securely mounted and shall not interfere with safe use of the stairs.


g. Protective railings. Every porch, terrace or entrance platform 30 inches above adjacent finish grade shall be equipped with railings or guards not less than 36 inches high.  Handrails, continuous on all open sides of stairs exceeding four risers, leading to a platform, porch or terrace, shall be installed at least 30 inches high.  Interior stairs exceeding four risers, open on both sides, including basement stairs, shall have a continuous handrail on one side.  Stairs open on one side exceeding four risers shall have a continuous handrail on the open side. 


Stairs exceeding four risers, enclosed on both sides, shall have a minimum of one continuous handrail.  When exterior stairwell step flight has total rise of 30 inches or more, a continuous durable handrail must be maintained.  Handrails or protective railings shall be capable of bearing normally-imposed loads and be maintained in good and safe condition.


h. Windows and window assemblies.


1. Each window shall be weather tight, water tight, and rodent proof and shall be kept in sound working condition and good repair.  If daylight can be seen around the inside or outside perimeter of the window casing, that window does not meet this standard.  Every openable window shall be equipped with an effective locking mechanism that functions as a lock.


2. Each window sash shall be fully supplied with glass window panes or an approved substitute which are without open cracks or holes.  Wood, cardboard or polyethylene or other plastic film are not approved substitutes.  A window pane with a crack or hole must be replaced or the crack or hole sealed with clear silicone seal.  A broken window (pieces missing or exposed glass edge) must be replaced.


3. Each window sash shall be properly fitted and weathertight within the window frame.  If daylight can be seen from around the inside or outside perimeter of the window sash, that window does not meet this standard.


4. Each window required for ventilation for habitable rooms shall be capable of being easily opened or closed and secured in position by window hardware.


i. Exterior doors.


1. Every exterior door, basement or cellar door and hatchway shall be substantially weathertight, watertight, and rodent proof, and shall be kept in sound working conditions and good repair.  “Good  repair” includes no delimination or splitting of wood doors.


2. Every exterior door to a dwelling shall be provided with properly installed hardware that is maintained to insure reasonable ease of operation to open, close or secure in an open or closed position, as intended by the manufacturer of the door and the attached hardware.  Properly installed hardware shall consist of knob, bib and operating lock with sufficient strength to prevent unauthorized entry in all situations short of disassembly, force of use of a key or pick.  All exterior doors shall be capable of being locked from the inside and outside in a manner that will provide for the safety and security of the occupant(s).


j. Exterior door frames.


1. Exterior door frames shall be properly maintained and shall be equipped with weather-stripping and thresholds as required to be substantially weathertight, watertight, and rodent and insect restrictive when the door is in a closed position.  If daylight can be seen from inside around the inner perimeter of an exterior door frame, that door frame does not meet this standard.


2. Exterior door jambs, stops, headers and moldings shall be securely attached to the dwelling, maintained in good condition without splitting or deterioration that would minimize the strength and security of the door in a closed position.  If daylight can be seen from inside around the outer perimeter of an exterior door frame, that door frame does not meet this standard.


k. Screens.  In every dwelling unit, if central air conditioning is not provided, for protection against mosquitoes, flies, and other insects, every door opening directly from a dwelling unit to outdoor space shall have supplied and installed screens in good repair and a self-closing device; and every window or other device with openings to outdoor space, used or intended to be used for ventilation, shall likewise be supplied with screens in good repair installed.


On floors below eight feet above finished grade, screens are required on operable windows required by section 9 (2) of this Ordinance.  “Good repair” means screens providing a continuous barrier to insects.


Every basement or cellar window used or intended to be used for ventilation, and every other opening to a basement which might provide an entry for rodents, shall be supplied with screens installed or such other approved device as will effectively prevent their entrance.


l. Protective treatment.  All exterior wood surfaces (other than decay-resistant woods, such as cedar, redwood, cypress or pressure-treated lumber) shall be protected from the elements and decay by painting or other protective covering or treatment.  Minimal chipping or peeling of surfaces not directly exposed to the elements and not reasonably expected to contribute to decay of wood surfaces is not required to be treated.  All siding shall be weather-resistant and water-tight.  All masonry joints shall be sufficiently tuckpointed to insure water and air tightness.  “Sufficiently tuckpointed” means that mortar shall not be removable by finger pressure.


m. Interior floors, walls, and ceilings.  Interior walls and ceilings of all rooms, closets and hallways shall be finished with suitable materials, which will, by use of reasonable household methods promote sanitation and cleanliness, and shall be maintained in such a manner so as to enable the occupants to maintain reasonable privacy between various spaces. Every floor, interior wall and ceiling shall be substantially vermin-proof, shall be kept in sound condition and good repair and shall be safe to use and capable of supporting the load which normal use may cause to be placed thereon.  Interior finish shall be free of excessive holes and cracks.  No cardboard or other highly combustible or improper wall finish or ceiling finish shall be allowed.  No rotted, fire damaged, or loose flooring shall be allowed.  All floors shall be level enough so as not to present a tripping hazard.  Every bathroom floor surface and kitchen floor surface shall be constructed and maintained so as to be reasonably impervious to water and so as to permit such floor to be readily kept in clean and sanitary condition.


There shall be no use of the ground for floors, or wood floors on the ground.


Every bathroom floor surface and water closet compartment floor surface shall be constructed and maintained so as to be reasonably impervious to water and so as to permit such floor to be easily kept in a clean and sanitary condition.


n. Structural supports.  Every structural element of the dwelling shall be maintained in a structurally sound condition and show no evidence of deterioration which would render it incapable of carrying normal loads.  Termites, termite damage, fire damage, absence of footings or cracked or split wood structural supports are examples of evidence of deterioration.


When additional direct support is required, piers shall be used under girders, at walls or other primary support points.  Stiff knees shall not be used under girders, at walls or at other primary support points, but may be used for indirect support only.


o. Fire-stopping and draft-stopping.  Fire-stopping shall be maintained to cut off all concealed draft openings both horizontal and vertical and to form a fire barrier between floors and between the upper floor and the roof space.


Draft-stopping shall be maintained to cut off all concealed draft openings in floor/ceiling assemblies and in attics.


p. Interior door hardware. Every interior door shall be provided with proper hardware, securely attached and maintained in good condition.  Hasp lock assemblies are not permitted on any side of the door of habitable rooms.


q. Bathroom access. Bathroom access shall be provided in a manner that does not require an occupant to leave the dwelling to gain access.  Privacy of bathrooms shall be afforded by doors complete with privacy hardware intended by the manufacturer for that purpose.


r. Water closet, lavatory and bath facilities for boarding houses. At least one flush water closet, lavatory basin, and bathtub or shower, properly connected to a water and sewer system and in good working condition, shall be supplied for each four rooms within a rooming house whenever such facilities are shared.  All such facilities shall be located on the floor they serve within the dwelling so as to be private and reasonably accessible from a common hall or passageway to all persons sharing such facilities.


Sec. 5-5 Space requirements.


a. Required space.  Every dwelling shall contain at least 150 square feet of floor space for the first occupant thereof and at least 100 additional square feet of floor area per additional occupant.  The floor area shall be calculated on the basis of the total area of all habitable rooms.  Provided, however, the requirement of this section shall not be applicable to hotels, motels, and other transient dwellings. Closed area and wall area within the dwelling unit may count for not more than ten percent (10%) of the required habitable floor area.


b. Required space in sleeping rooms.  In every dwelling, every room occupied for sleeping purposes by one occupant shall contain at least 70 square feet of floor space, and every room occupied for sleeping purposes by more than one occupant shall contain at least 50 square feet of floor space for each occupant thereof.


c. Ceiling height. Habitable rooms other than kitchens, storage rooms and laundry rooms shall have a ceiling height of not less than seven feet.  Hallways, corridors, bathrooms, water closet rooms and kitchens shall have a ceiling height of not less than seven feet measured to the lowest projection from the ceiling.  If any room in a dwelling has a loping ceiling, the prescribed ceiling height of the room is required in only one-half the room area.  No portion of the room measuring less than five feet from the finished floor to the finished ceiling shall be included in any computation of the minimum room area.


d. Occupancy below grade. No basement or cellar space shall be used as a habitable room or dwelling unless:


1. The floor and walls are resistant to the leakage of underground and surface runoff water, and show no evidence of recent water leakage or accumulation; and 


2. The total window area, total openable window area, and ceiling height are equal to those required for habitable rooms;


3. The required minimum window area of every habitable room is entirely above the grade adjoining such window area, except where the window or windows face a stairwell, window well, or access way.


4.   Where rooms and spaces without openings to the outdoors are ventilated through an adjoining room, the unobstructed opening to the adjoining room shall be at least 8 percent of the floor area of the interior room or space.


5. An easily-accessible means of fire escape in addition to the basement of cellar stair is provided.  Windows which are easily accessible and of sufficient size to accommodate occupants escaping a fire are acceptable.


e.  Sanitation requirements.  Every owner of a dwelling or rental lot shall provide a clean, safe and sanitary dwelling and shall be responsible for maintaining in a clean, safe and sanitary condition outbuildings and appurtenances to the extent that such outbuildings and appurtenances are regulated by this Ordinance.


 f.  Extermination. Every owner of a multi-dwelling building or boarding house dwelling shall be responsible for the extermination of any insects, rodents, or other pests within the dwelling or premises.


 If the owner fails to provide such extermination services and evidence of insect, rodent or other pest infestation is present, extermination shall be ordered by the enforcement officer; such extermination shall be conducted by a licensed exterminator; the owner shall then provide the enforcement officer with a statement of action from the licensed exterminator.  Monthly extermination treatment is the maximum that an owner shall be required to provide.


g. Rubbish Storage and Disposal. Every dwelling and every dwelling unit shall be supplied with approved containers and covers for storage of rubbish as required by County ordinances, and the owner, operator or agent in control of such dwelling or dwelling unit shall be responsible for the removal of rubbish.


h. Garbage Storage and Disposal.  Every dwelling and every dwelling unit shall be supplied with an approved garbage disposal device, which may be an adequate mechanical garbage disposal unit (mechanical sink grinder) in each dwelling unit or an incinerator unit, to be approved by the Inspector, in the structures for the use of the occupants of each dwelling unit, or an approved outside garbage can as required by County ordinance.


i. Drainage.  Every yard near to and used in connection with a dwelling shall be properly graded so as to obtain thorough drainage and so as to prevent the accumulation of stagnant water.


j. Noxious Weeds.  Every yard near to and used in connection with a dwelling shall be kept free of species of weeds or plant growth which are noxious or detrimental to health.


k. Mold.  Every dwelling and every dwelling unit shall be free from conditions that promote the growth of mold, and present mold must be removed.  Water and humidity problems must be repaired.  Visible mold and mildew will be noted on the inspection report, and the owner, operator or agent in control of the dwelling unit must demonstrate that either the noted item is not mold or mildew or that it has been removed.





Section 6  	EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 


If any of the following conditions exist, the enforcement officer shall issue an inspection report in accordance with Section 2.9, and the owner, within 5 days of receiving the inspection report, must notify Officer that corrections have been made or have begun and will be completed forthwith.


1. No operating heating facilities between November 1 and March 30 of any year;





2. No potable water service;





3. No hot water supply;





4. No electricity;





5. Failing or failed primary structural members that threaten the stability of the dwelling and/or visible structural defects that appear to render the structural members ineffective;





6. Improperly operating or no sanitary facilities;





7. Overloaded, non-isolateable electrical circuits or unsafe or exposed electrical wiring;





8. Presence of raw sewage or open sewer, inside the dwelling, whether from broken, plugged or inoperative fixtures or pipes inside the dwelling, or migrating into the dwelling from outside;





9. Presence of uncontained flammable or combustible liquids or gases, poisonous solids, liquids or gases or life-or-health threatening depletion of oxygen;





10. Missing roof, or part of roof missing;





11. Chimney flues clogged;





12. Immediate possibility of collapse;





13. The primary means of exit or escape in the event of fire or other emergency is blocked or structurally unsafe;





14. Occupancy of habitable space that does not meet below-grade occupancy standards;





15. Internal accumulation of garbage;





16. Interior wall sheathing or sheeting that is not present, or has been removed, to a point where there is little or no protection from spread of fire from story to story, or from other habitable spaces to bedrooms;





17. Multiple violations of the standards set forth.
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: North Buncombe County Pictures
Date: Wednesday, April 9, 2014 7:49:00 PM
Attachments: IMAGO0181.ipa

IMAG0180.ipg
IMAGO0183.ipa

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
<Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org<mailto:Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org>>
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

jnairl 511(@gmail.com<mailto:jnairl511@gmail.com>
<mailto:jnair1511@gmail.com>

[cid:005D1359-9E10-4448-BC41-9A676D12B201][cid:B2E3F5EF-0B32-408C-
B2CA-C8B2B66C8E11][cid:A16CF2A4-7CCC-472C-B95F-5AD79A3DB8CO]

[cid:5:6835:0]
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: Permitting coordination with planning??
Date: Tuesday, May 23, 2017 6:22:37 AM

I sent this to Bob also.

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jeff Wallace <jwallacenc@gmail.com>
Date: May 22,2017 at 6:35:46 PM EDT
To: "Nathan L. Pennington" <Nathan.Pennington@buncombecounty.org>

Cc: Amy Nasta <amynasta99(@gmail.com™>, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton ncom nty.org>
Subject: Permitting coordination with planning??

I hope the point was not lost that they are putting this infill on the lot adjacent to the Madison's lot.
This is a R-1 lot. They do NOT have any permits at all for work on this lot.

They did get a permit for the Madison's lot, but there is no mention of any engineering certifaction nor
a drawing on a napkin indicating where this retaining wall was being placed.

Has the permitting office been notified to scrutinize and forward permits and other information to
planning?

This fiasco will get worse and more complicated if the planning department is rubber stamping
permits without close examination. He will have approved permits to counter objections to the work
being done and any question regarding his compliance with the CUP.

On May 22,2017 10:23 AM, "Nathan L. Pennington" <Nathan.Pennington@buncombecounty.org>
wrote:

Amy,

Thank you for the picture. We will make sure this gets to our Erosion Control staff to assure that measures
are in place to contain runoff if applicable.

Retaining walls greater than 10 feet are required to receive additional zoning approval and a separate
permit. The intent statements of the zoning districts are introductory statements that serve as a summary
for specific district goals that are evaluated during rezoning/text/conditional use applications. In this case,
the applicant applied for a specific and limited development permit (i.e. conditional use permit) as allowed
pursuant to the zoning ordinance. We are, as discussed in the meeting, in the process of evaluation
compliance with the scope of the permit.

Thanks,

Nate
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Nathan Pennington, CFM
Buncombe County Planning

250-4856

From: Amy Nasta [mailto:amynasta99@gmail.com]

Sent: Monday, May 22, 2017 9:19 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>; Nathan L. Pennington <Nathan.Pennington@
buncombecounty.org>; Jeff Wallace <jwallacenc@gmail.com>

Subject: Fwd:

Hello John and Nate,

Thank you again for your time on Friday.

When I arrived home on Friday evening I saw that massive amounts of dirt had been brought in
and land been broken on the lot behind my house. I'm assuming this in preparation for what will be
the retaining wall for which they have a permit to be completed on 15 Dixon Road only.

I've attached a photo that was taken yesterday evening. After all the rain it looks very different this
morning and my house is located at the base of this lot which causes concern.

I believe that a retaining wall above 4 feet requires additional approval and this wall is set to be 10
feet X 150 feet. Is this accurate?

I would also like to highlight this portion of the zoning codes, is this something that is being taken
into consideration?

(b) Residential District (R-1). The R-1 Residential District is primarily intended to provide
locations for single-family and two-family residential development and supporting
recreational, community service, and educational uses in areas where public water and
sewer services are available or will likely be provided in the future. This district is further
intended to protect existing subdivisions from encroachment of incompatible land uses,
and this district does not allow manufactured home parks.

(c) Residential District (R-2). The R-2 Residential District is primarily intended to provide
locations for residential development and supporting recreational, community service and
educational uses in areas where public water and sewer services are available or will likely
be provided in the future. These areas will usually be adjacent to R-1 Residential Districts,
will provide suitable areas for residential subdivisions requiring public water and sewer
services, and in order to help maintain the present character of R-1 districts, will not allow
manufactured home parks.
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Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,

Amy Nasta

—————————— Forwarded message ----------

From: Nasta, Amy <anasta@givenshighlandfarms.org>
Date: Mon, May 22, 2017 at 8:51 AM

Subject:

To: Amy Nasta <amyn. mail.com>

Amy Nasta | Marketing Director
Office: (828) 357-2002

]

This message may contain privileged and confidential information and is intended only for the individual or entity to which it is addressed.
If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately. Any distribution or copying is strictly prohibited.
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: Permitting coordination with planning??
Date: Tuesday, May 23, 2017 6:22:38 AM

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

Subject: Fwd: S&ME Additional Ground Penetrating Radar Services - Firearms Training Range Project #5844, Asheville, NC
Date: Friday, March 25, 2016 3:10:33 PM

Attachments: GPR Figures BC Firearms Floor Slab First Test Report.pdf

ATT00001.htm
BC Firearms GPR Figures Floor Slab 2nd Report.pdf
ATT00002.htm

Please let me have your thoughts on this.
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Mike Merrell <MMerrell@hickory-construction.com>
Date: March 25, 2016 at 12:44:52 PM EDT
To: "jshields@clarknexsen.com" <jshields@clarknexsen.com>

Cc: "David Lancor (DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com)"

<DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com>, "Mark Baucom" <MBaucom(@hickory-
construction.com>, "Matt S. Hickey" <mhickev(@ClarkNexsen.com>,

Christopher D'Angelo <CDangelo@hickory-construction.com>, Jon Creighton

<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>, "Bill Stafford

(Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org)" <Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org>,

"Greg Isreal (greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org)"

<greg.isreal(@buncombecounty.org>, "ian@thekesselgroup.com"

<ian@thekesselgroup.com>, Aaron Beam <ABeam(@hickory-construction.com>,

Christopher D'Angelo <CDangelo@hickory-construction.com>, Mark Baucom

<MBaucom@hickory-construction.com>, "Chris Rhyne

<rhino@elukegreene.com> (thino@elukegreene.com)"

<rhino@elukegreene.com>, "S&H Waterproofing and Construction, LLC"

<solutionsbyepro@aol.com>, "darren purser (darren@cardinalconcretecorp.com)"
<darren(@cardinalconcretecorp.com>, "chad.h@cardinalconcretecorp.com"

<chad.h@cardinalconcretecorp.com>, "Eric Rogers

(Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org)" <Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: S&KME Additional Ground Penetrating Radar Services - Firearms

Training Range Project #5844, Asheville, NC

John,

I would like you to please review the 2" floor slab testing report that | received today
from S&ME. | am seeing a lot of yellow and red floor areas that should be within specs
and | would like to talk about doing some select concrete slab replacement in lieu of
replacing the entire floor slab area. Also last week we core drilled some of the green

areas that were shown in the 1 testing report and the floor slab cores that we
removed were approximately 5” to 5 %” in thickness. After my review of the attached

2nd testing report | feel that this is the reason that the BC Building inspector only

targeted the original floor slab areas that we were ask to test the 1 time and | believe
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REFERENCE:
* Google Earth Pro Aerial Photograph
» Dated October 18, 2015
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that the 2" floor slab testing report confirms what the BC inspector was thinking that
most all of the remaining floor areas were within specs. Please feel free to give me a
call ASAP, so that we can talk about this matter in more detail. | am putting very hard to

keep the floor slab replace matter moving forward, but due to the 2" floor slab testing
report results | feel that we need to revised our current slab replacement plan.

Thanks,
Mike Merrell






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes

Subject: Fwd: S&ME Additional Ground Penetrating Radar Services - Firearms Training Range Project #5844, Asheville, NC
Date: Monday, March 28, 2016 7:58:23 AM

Attachments: image001.png

It seems by the new radar imaging there was still a lot of green. Please let me have your
thoughts.

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Mike Merrell <MMerrell@hickory-construction.com>
Date: March 28, 2016 at 7:51:26 AM EDT

To: "John C. Shields" <jshields@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cec: David Lancor <DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com>, Mark Baucom
<MBaucom(@hickory-construction.com>, "Matt S. Hickey"

<mhickey@ClarkNexsen.com>, Christopher D'Angelo <CDangelo@hickory-

construction.com>, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>, "Bill

Stafford (Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org)"

<Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org>, "Greg Isreal

(greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org)" <greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org>,
"lan@thekesselgroup.com" <ian@thekesselgroup.com>, Aaron Beam
<ABeam(@hickory-construction.com>, Christopher D'Angelo
<CDangelo@hickory-construction.com>, Mark Baucom <MBaucom@hickory-

construction.com>, "Chris Rhyne <rhino@elukegreene.com>
(rhino@elukegreene.com)" <rhino@elukegreene.com>, "S&H Waterproofing and
Construction, LLC" <solutionsbyepro@aol.com>, "darren purser

(darren(@cardinalconcretecorp.com)" <darren@cardinalconcretecorp.com>,
"chad.h(@cardinalconcretecorp.com" <chad.h@cardinalconcretecorp.com™, "Eric
Rogers (Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org)"

<Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: S&ME Additional Ground Penetrating Radar Services -
Firearms Training Range Project #5844, Asheville, NC

John,

Thanks for the update on Matt and as you already know my plans were to have
everyone a revised construction schedule for review this coming Wednesday 3/30/16
and then have our slab replacement preconstruction meeting this coming Friday
4/1/16, so that we could start the slab removal work on Monday 4/4/16, but of course
this was the plan when everyone “assumed” that the entire Range slab area needed to
be replaced, but now that we have the new GPR test results for review you can see that
most of the remaining Range slab areas were within spec should not need to be
replaced. | don’t want the delay the preparing of the new revised project schedule, the
preconstruction meeting and/or the slab removal start dates, but in light of the new
GPR tests and onsite core drill tests results we are going to need to discuss the revised
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actually Range slab areas that need to be replaced now due to the new tests and | will
possibly have to reschedule the dates for the new revised project schedule, the
preconstruction meeting and the slab removal start until we have the revised
replacement Range slab areas from you so that we can adjust our current slab
replacement plan of action. Just so that everyone knows we have a very small window
to try and get all of the slab replacement work completed in the next twenty (20)
calendar days starting today in hopes of not delaying the overall project completion
date possibly, so your speedy response to the new revised Range slab replacement
areas is very important so that we will be able to move forward with all of my
upcoming slab replacement items. If you have any questions, please feel free to give
me a call at 828-310-2100.

Thanks,
Mike Merrell

From: John C. Shields [mailto:jshields@ClarkNexsen.com]
Sent: Sunday, March 27, 2016 9:34 PM

To: Mike Merrell
Cc: David Lancor; Mark Baucom; Matt S. Hickey; Christopher D'Angelo; Jon Creighton; Bill

Stafford (Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org); Greg Isreal
(greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org); ian@thekesselgroup.com; Aaron Beam; Christopher
D'Angelo; Mark Baucom; Chris Rhyne <rhino@elukegreene.com>

(rhino@elukegreene.com); S&H Waterproofing and Construction, LLC; darren purser

(darren@cardinalconcretecorp.com); chad.h@cardinalconcretecorp.com; Eric Rogers

(Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org)
Subject: RE: S&ME Additional Ground Penetrating Radar Services - Firearms Training

Range Project #5844, Asheville, NC
Mike:

Matt Hickey, our structural department head, is out of the office on Monday. We have
a meeting scheduled for Tuesday morning. We’ll review these test results and
communicate our recommendations to the County as quickly as possible.

John Shields aia, ccs

Senior Architect | Associate

.

CLARKNEXSEN

213 South Jefferson Suite 1011
Roanoke, VA 24011
540.613.6692 Direct
540.982.0800 Office
jshields@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com
From: Mike Merrell [mailto:MMerrell@hickory-construction.com]

Sent: Friday, March 25, 2016 12:45 PM
To: John C. Shields <jshields@ClarkNexsen.com>
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Cc: David Lancor <DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com>; Mark Baucom <MBaucom@hickory-
construction.com>; Matt S. Hickey <mhickey@ClarkNexsen.com>; Christopher

D'Angelo <CDangelo@hickory-construction.com>; Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>; Bill Stafford
(Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org) <Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org>; Greg Isreal
(greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org) <greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org>;
ian@thekesselgroup.com; Aaron Beam <ABeam@hickory-construction.com>;
Christopher D'Angelo <CDangelo@hickory-construction.com>; Mark Baucom
<MBaucom@hickory-construction.com>; Chris Rhyne <rhino@elukegreene.com>
(rhino@elukegreene.com) <rhino@elukegreene.com>; S&H Waterproofing and
Construction, LLC <solutionsbyepro@aol.com>; darren purser
(darren@cardinalconcretecorp.com) <darren@cardinalconcretecorp.com>;
chad.h@cardinalconcretecorp.com; Eric Rogers (Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org)

<Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: S&ME Additional Ground Penetrating Radar Services - Firearms Training Range

Project #5844, Asheville, NC
Importance: High

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
removed were approximately 5” to 5 %4” in thickness. After my review of the attached

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

To: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes; Debbie Truempy; Nathan L. Pennington
Subject: Fwd: Tiny house community possibility

Date: Wednesday, August 23, 2017 10:24:13 AM

Do we all want to sit down and talk about this?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org>
Date: August 23, 2017 at 9:37:37 AM EDT

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






From: Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

To: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes; Debbie Truempy; Nathan L. Pennington
Subject: Fwd: Tiny house community possibility
Date: Wednesday, August 23, 2017 10:24:12 AM

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

Date: Wednesday, August 23, 2017 10:24:15 AM

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
Date: Tuesday, January 19, 2016 8:25:16 AM

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

The other is owned by Adam Honig at the upper end of Fairview Forest Drive, |
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
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From:

Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: Fwd: addition to April 7th agenda
Date: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 8:33:27 AM
Attachments: ATT00001.htm
20150219112335222.pdf
ATT00002.htm
18aldorfdrmsd.pdf
ATT00003.htm
ATT00004.htm
FYI

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Michael C. Frue" <Michael . Frue@buncombecounty.org>
To: "Matt Stone" <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>, "Jon Creighton"

<Jon.Creighton(@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: addition to April 7th agenda

Anything I need to know about this ?

From: Kathy Hughes

Sent: Monday, March 23, 2015 1:53 PM
To: Michael C. Frue

Subject: FW: addition to April 7th agenda

Let me know if I need to do anything this this.

From: Megan Taylor [mailto:jdesantola@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, March 23, 2015 1:28 PM

To: Kathy Hughes
Subject: addition to April 7th agenda

Hi Kathy,

3 Homeowners are having trouble with Reems Creek Village property
developer, real estate agent,contractor and builder-Bill Dorf with respect to a
sewer which he misrepresented as MSD maintained to the homeowners property
lines. MSD was negligent in documentation and permits and have not been
helpful to the owners. We would like to be added to the April 7th agenda to ask
for help in this matter in relationship to Buncombe County MSD's part.

Here is our complaint. The Attorney General's Office said we needed to bring it
up with the Board of Commissioners.

Bill Dorf functions under many roles/names as a real estate agent,
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Metropolitan Sewerage District

OF BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA ¢ AR 12
SEWER SERVICE APPLICATION SY: _Che
APP. #: WE-936 APPLIED: 4/9/2012 APPROVED: 4/12/2012

METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT OF BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
DOMESTIC WASTEWATER SEWER SERVICE APPLICATION

MSD must approve all new connections to the District Sewerage System in accordance with North Carolina Law. “New sewer connections” includes any new construction
to be connected to the District Sewerage system, mobile homes to be connected to the District Sewerage System and additions or alterations to existing residences already

connected to the District Sewerage System if, in the opinion of the MSD, the addition or alteration will result in additional wastewater flow. The applicant for wastewater

service is responsible for obtaining any necessary rights of way for sewer service between the applicant's property and the connection to the District Sewerage System. If

there are sewer lines located on the property, it is the owner’s responsibility to identify and locate the sewer lines to ensure that no structures or other improvements are

located in violation of North Carolina Law. Contact MSD for assistance in locating the sewer lines.MSD reserves the right to rescind any approval of this application and any
allocation of wastewater flow if any information on this application is incorrect or if MSD is prohibited by the State of North Carolina or EPA from accepting additional flows.

APPLICANT NAME: RABBIT RIDGE PROPERTIES
| MAILING ADDRESS: 11 RABBIT RIDGE DRIVE, WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA ZIP: 28787

| CONTACT BILL DORF PHONE #: (828) 712-5566 Mobile PHONE#2

SERVICE ADDRESS: AL DORF DRIVE (22) - Lot #16 in REEMS CREEK VILLAGE - WEAVERVILLE, ZIP: 28787

NORTH CAROLINA
|  DIRECTIONS: (Please reference attached map.)

PROJECT NAME: REEMS CREEK VILLAGE SUBDIVISION MSD PROJECT # 2002152
PIN NUMBER(s): 9752-06-4700-00000

( CONNECTION STATUS: EXISTING CONNECT TO: MSD SEWER LINE
NUMBER OF TAPS REQUIRED: 0 TAP SIZE REQUIRED 4 |NCH

RESP. FOR MAINT MSD

WATER SOURCE: WEAVERVILLE NO. OF NEW USER ACCTS: 1
DATE TAP INSTALLATION REQUIRED: N/A
Fees  FeeTyjpe  CostPer . ExtCost Descripion
( 1 RESIDENCE (Each Unit) $2,500.00 $2,500.00 Three-bedroom, single-family residence
Comments:
|
‘.,
TOTAL: 4
CHECK NUMBER: SUBTOTAL $2,500.00
/ 4305690830 AMOUNT OF TOTAL FEES RECEIVED: $2,500.00
DATED:  4/12/2012 AMOUNT OWED: $0.00

Signature: Date Signed:

L Approved B)Q%(% '%QL\) Date Signed: L‘IL" &—{; ITB: Cecelia

If box is checked, MSD will place the C/O ON HOLD until sewer requirements are completed. MSD will hold final inspections
(Certificate of Occupancy or Completion) for projects where the sewer system has not been transferred to MSD, or for projects where
required sewer work has not yet been completed.







WE-G 3o

DOMESTIC WASTEWATER SEWER SERVICE APPLICATION
METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT OF BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

MSD must approve all new connections to the District Sewerage System in accordance with North Carolina Law. "New sewer connections” include any
new construction to be connected to the District Sewerage System, mobile homes to be connected to the District Sewerage System and additions or
alterations to existing wastewater flow. The applicant for wastewater service is responsible for obtaining any necessary rights of way (deeded
easements) for sewer service between the applicant's property and the connection to the District Sewerage System. If there are any sewer lines located

on the property, it is the owner's responsibility to identify and locate the sewer
violation of North Carolina Law. Contact MSD for assistance in locating the

or EPA from accepting additional flows.

lines to ensure that na structures or other improvements are located in
sewer lines, MSD reserves the right to rescind any approval of this

application and any allocation of wastewater flow if ar;Wrmation on this application is incorrect or if MSD is prohibited by the State of North Carolina

APPLICANT NAME: _ (/?/5;’7/,7’ LG ://zc;ﬁ(%f/é;
MAILING ADDRESS: /2 //2? ya ,ég@_ d@
(WITH ZIP CODE) i %
Ll it e AKX
SERVICE ADDRESS: 2ol /IL- %’%jﬂ 777

(WITH ZIP CODE)

DIRECTIONS TO PROPERTY;

PIN #: ?Z]i? ob 7 79}?() o000 &

" (REQUIRED)

CONTACT PERSON: ,é”}é;v’« A%K;’:/’
CONTACT PHONE: s 7L / '4/(7

0 WORK, RﬂOBILE, O PAGER, 0OFAX, 0 HOME

ALTERNATE PHONE:
OWORK, 0MOBILE, 0 PAGER, [1FAX, 0 HOME

)
@%@44/@%,’//}< Ny Ry A

PROJECT NAME: _ AZ7 R gros Cruake
wrs___ /6 Villag,e sdiv
aLLocaTion# _ QOO S S

O —

CHECK IF APPLICABLE: [ FOOD SERVICE [ ASHEVILLE CITY LIMITS [ OTHER

TAP CONNECTION STATUS: [ TO BE INSTALLED A‘EXISTING (Itis the APPLICANT’s responsibility to verify existing tap.)

e CONNECTTO: B’ﬁSD SEWER [ PRIVATE SEWER SYSTEM

SEWER TAP SIZE:

(List name of responsible homeowner, developer, etc.)

Z/
INCH NUMBER OF NEW WATER ACCOUNTS: 1 WATER METER SIZE: //ﬁ INCH

e TAPIS NEEDED: 0 ASAP O WILL CALL (828) 255-0061 WHEN READY

ORIDGECREST [WEAVERVILLE )OWELL OWOODFIN [ OTHER

WATER SOURCE:;{SHE![EI: BILTMORE FOREST [ BLACK MOUNTAIN [ CHRISTMOUNT [ MONTREAT

NUMBER OF RESIDEN_TI__AL{ COMMERCIAL
UNITS (Briefly describe proposed project)

NUMBER OF AMOUNT OF
BEDROOMS FACILITY FEE

My Novra)

3 | 00

sustoTaL: 2| ZZ/

MSD-INSTALLED TAP FEE: $650 NUMBER OF TAPS REQUIRED: TOTAL AMOUNT OF TAP FEES:
DEVELOPER-INSTALLED TAP INSPECTION FEE: $140 NUMBER OF TAPS: TOTAL AMOUNT OF INSPECTION FEES:

(To be filled in by MSD Personnel only)

BORE/PAVEMENT DISTURBANCE FEE: $2.200 NUMBER QF

SIGNATURE: ///4 /‘/-\// i /

RES:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF BORE FEES: 2 c; :
TOTAL FEES: ,

DATE SIGNED: ;”(/ f/ 247~

Applieation must be COMPLETELY filled out.

{(Updated 07/01/11)

Effective 07/01/2011







22 Al Dorf Drive

Printed:Apr 09, 2012
Soale 11200

111734
0D 1
The Metropoliten Sewerasge District of Buncombe County, NC has prepared these maps based on best available informeation
for use in ésgisting District maintenance work, service ares analysis, and planning. The District does not warrant the
a:curaq of sny of the informstion shown, Field verification is advised for all informetion shown on the maps or included
with manhole data, No gusrantes is given a3 to the sccurscy or currency of any of the dets, Therefore, in no event shall the
District be lisble for sny special, indirect, or congsequential damages or any deamsges whatsoever resulting from loss of use,
dets, or profits, whether in an sction of contract, negligence, or other action, ariging out of or in connection with the use
of the informetion herein provided. Grid shown is North Caroling State Plane Coordinsate System NAD 1983 (North American
Datum 1983},
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~ Metropolitan Sewerage District .

| o OF BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA i N/ 07 2l
SEWER SERVICE APPLICATION BY: _CCYL
APP. #: WE-919 APPLIED: 11/3/2011 APPROVED: 11/7/2011

METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT OF BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
DOMESTIC WASTEWATER SEWER SERVICE APPLICATION

MSD must approve all new connections to the District Sewerage System in accordance with North Carolina Law. “New sewer connections” includes any new construction to
€ connected to the District Sewerage system, mobile homes to be connected to the District Sewerage System and additions or alterations to existing residences already
connected to the District Sewerage System if, in the opinion of the MSD, the addition or alteration will result in additional wastewater flow. The applicant for wastewater
service is responsible for obtaining any necessary rights of way for sewer service between the applicant's property and the connection to the District Sewerage System. If
there are sewer lines located on the property, it is the owner's responsibility to identify and locate the sewer lines to ensure that no structures or other improvements are
located in violation of North Carolina Law. Contact MSD for assistance in locating the sewer lines.MSD reserves the right to rescind any approval of this application and any
allocation of wastewater flow if any information on this application is incorrect or if MSD is prohibited by the State of North Carolina or EPA from accepting additional flows.

[ ]
‘ APPLICANT NAME: KIRK, P. ‘
‘ MAILING ADDRESS: 11 WORLEY LANE, FLETCHER, NORTH CAROLINA

ZIP: 28732
“ CONTACT BILL DORF PHONE #: (828) 712-5566 Mobile PHONE#2 \
| SERVICE ADDRESS: AL DORF DRIVE (18) - Lot #15 in REEMS CREEK VILLAGE - WEAVERVILLE, ZIP: 28787 ﬂ
| NORTH CAROLINA |
‘. ~ DIRECTIONS:  Please reference attached map. |
PROJECT NAME: REEMS CREEK VILLAGE SUBDIVISION MSD PROJECT # 2002152
“ PIN NUMBER(s): 9752-06-5764-00000
| CONNECTION STATUS: EXISTING | CONNECTTO:  MSD SEWER LINE |
\ NUMBER OF TAPS REQUIRED: 0 TAP SIZE REQUIRED: 4 INCH ‘
WATER SOURCE: WEAVERVILLE NO. OF NEW USER ACCTS: 1 ‘ RESP. FOR MAINT MSD
L |
‘ DATE TAP INSTALLATION REQUIRED: N/A ‘
Fees Fee Type Cost Per Ext. Cost Description
‘L 1 RESIDENCE (Each Unit) $2,500.00 $2,500.00  Three-bedroom, single-family residence
1 Comments:

| SUBTOTAL:

- J S S

| CHECK NUMBER: $2,500.00
3964971787 AMOUNT OF TOTAL FEES RECEIVED: $2,500_00
o DATED: twwROWM  ___ AMOUNTOWED:  $0.00
Signature: , Date Signed: -
[7 Approved B@Q%/QQ“;@M% Signed: l L‘j: ,L( ITB: Cecelia

OomXxXr>»mn

If box is checked, MSD will place the C/O ON HOLD until sewer re
of Occupancy or Completion) for projects where the sewer system
work has not yet been completed.

quirements are completed. MSD will hold final inspections (Certificate
has not been transferred to MSD, or for projects where required sewer







DOMESTIC WASTEWATER SEWER SERVICE APPLICATION
METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT OF BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

MSD must approve all new connectians to the District Sewerage System in accordance with North Carolina Law. "New sewer connections” include any
new construction to be connected to the District Sewerage System, mobile homes to be connected to the District Sewerage System and additions or
alterations to existing wastewater flow. The applicant for wastewater service is responsible for obtaining any necessary rights of way (deeded
easements) for sewer service between the applicant's property and the connection to the District Sewerage System. If there are any sewer lines located
on the property, it is the owner's responsibility to identify and locate the sewer lines to ensure that no structures or other improvements are located in
violation of North Carolina Law. Contact MSD for assistance in locating the sewer lines. MSD reserves the right to rescind any approval of this
application and any allocation of wastewater flow if any information on this application is incorrect or if MSD is prohibited by the State of North Carolina

or EPA from accepting additional flows.

APPLICANT NAME/ yor PIN#:_ 7 76206576% 00000
(REQUIRED)

MAILING ADDRESS:
CONTACT PERSON: e Lonf

TH ZIP CODE ‘M@'ML_
W ) 231 -
CONTACT PHONE: _ 928 712-5 ks

SERVICE ADDRESS: /f A ) € ZWORK, AMOBILE, 0 PAGER, 0FAX, 0 HOME

(WITH ZIP CODE)
au ¢ 747 ALTERNATE PHONE:

DIRECTIONS TO PROPERTY: Cyrr 2/ _Jo Ke6ms 0 WORK, 0MOBILE, 0 PAGER, OFAX, 0 HOME

ke Bp  2-TMnls Leg o/ Uyow PROJECT NAME: __ ASRr—fetroenrecr—
Guacee A mu lcé'z' 2w ,va /Z ﬂ(_ LoT# /5 QQQ,Mbcr@g_(gl%}(_@gy
4 —_— < o
B o A bBher D ALLOCATION #: Q@Q[g{&; A VRO N RIS

CHECK IF APPLICABLE: 0 FOOD SERVICE [ ASHEVILLE CITY LIMITS 0 OTHER
TAP CONNECTION STATUS: 0O TO BE INSTALLED k(EXlSTING (Itis the APPLICANT's responsibility to verify existing tap.)

e CONNECTTO: SD SEWI O PRIVATE SEWER SYSTEM __
(1.is* name of responsible homeowner, developer, etc.)
« TAPIS NEEDED: 0 ASAP OWILL CALL (828) 255-0061 'WHEN READY

SEWER TAP SIZE: INCH NUMBER OF NEW WATER ACCOUNTS: WATER METER SIZE: 3{ g INCH

WATER SOURCE: _“g# ~ § BILTMORE FOREST [ BLACKMGINTAIN 0O CHRISTMOUNT 0O MONTREAT

0 RIDGECREST ( @ WEAVERVIL OWELL OWOODFIN 0OOTHER

NUMBER OF | RESIDENTIAL or COMMERCIAL NUMBER OF AMOUNT OF

UNITS (Briefly describe proposed project) BEDROOMS FACILITY FEE
Vi Cysrom /444,( j 2200

SUBTOTAL : "2400
MSD-INSTALLED TAP FEE: $600 NUMBER OF TAPS REQUIRED: . TOTAL AMOUNT OF TAP FEES:

DEVELOPER-INSTALLED TAP INSPECTION FEE: $140 NUMBER OF TAPS: _, __ _ TOTAL AMOUNT OF INSPECTION FEES:

(To be filled in by MSD Personnel only)
BORE/PAVEMENT DISTURBANCE FEE: $2,200 NUMBER OF BORES: o TOTAL AMOUNT OF BORE FEES:

TOTAL FEES;

SIGNATURE: w"' ( .__  DATE SIGNED: f%"/’”fl

Application must be COMPL%:"’#’LY filled out.

(Updated 07/01/10) : Effecti» 07/01/2010







18 Al Dorf Drive

Printed:Naov 03, 2011
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The Metropolitan Sewersge District of Buncombe County, NC has prepsred these maps based on best available information
for use in assisting District maintenance work, service sres snalysis, and planning. The District does not warrant the
accurgcy of any of the information shown. Field verification is advised for all information shown on the maps or included
with menhole data, No gusrantes is given a3 to the accurscy or currency of any of the data, Therefore, in no event shall the
District be lisble for any special, indirect, or consequential dsmages or sny damages whatsoever resulting from loss of use,
date, or profits, whether in an action of contract, negligence, or other action, #rising out of or in connection with the use
of the informeation herein provided. Grid shown is North Carolinas State Plane Coordinste System NAD 1983 (North American

Datum 1983).


























contractor,designer,builder as well as the developer of Reems Creek Village in
Weaverville North Carolina.

There is a public sewer in the street in the front of the homes in Reems Creek

Village, Weaverville NC. Bill Dorf, as the developer, put these in. Bill Dorf, as
the developer, also put MSD lines behind some properties. Bill Dorf also told 3
homeowners that he had a direct connection to MSD at the bottom of their
properties when in fact he had installed private lines running over 300 feet
through rough wood terrain to a distant manhole that was not charted in MSD.
No easements or surveys of these lines was made.
The have been various reporting by Kevin Johnson and Ed Bradford at MSD with
regards to if there were permits done for this and when they were paid. We would
like to be able to review those records. Documentation of where the lines are was
incorrect at MSD until we reported a problem and started an investigation.

The first homeowner, Peter Kirk, had told Bill Dorf that he would build
elsewhere if he needed a sewer pump to use the front sewer in the development.
Bill Dorf kept his business by telling him he would connect an MSD maintained
sewer to the bottom of his property. The other homeowners came next and never
had the option discussed. Bill Dorf charged them to trench to the back to the
"MSD maintained line" at the bottom of their property line. All other aspects of
the build were discussed in detail and all appliances purchased. We also would
not have built here if we needed a sewer pump and would not have built here if
we had to maintain a long private sewer line through woods that we have no
ownership or ability to adequate clear. Bill Dorf would have lost about $160,000
in fees directly to him and all the extra money he got in association with his ADS
subcontractors for the build just for the Kirk's and DeSantola's home. This would
be ample reason for his misrepresentation. Bill Dorf erroneously registered where
the lines were located and paid the 2500.00 fee to MSD which we were all
required to reimburse at 2500 plus his 18.5% fee. Bill Dorf did not provide the
full documents so the homeowners could see that they had been connected in the
front of their homes rather than in the back.

The lines were never surveyed or recorded by Bill Dorf. When one of the sewer
lines exploded as it ruptured when one of Bill Dorf's workers a year ago hit it off
property and it ultimately froze proximally leaking solid sewage over their back
yard in December 2014 , we discovered that the lines were small private lines
that had not been documented correctly with MSD. Bill Dorf is the developer
who put in the public MSD sewer lines above and would also be the person who
put in the lines to the bottom of the property of these 3 homeowners. Buncombe
County Building Inspector Matt Stone and the plumbing inspector recently
looked at the lines and told the Bell's father, Tom McVay that there is a drainage
problem in the woods on these lines with sewage not draining properly . The 3
homeowners were lied to as to who was responsible for the lines by the
contractor, Bill Dorf, who built their homes. Adana Taylor and Peter Kirk owned
1 home, Megan Taylor and Joseph DeSantola owned the second and Jordan and
Taylor Bell owned the third. Bill Dorf, the developer,real estate agent who created
the lines, later transferred the land the lines are on to himself and another group
of people called Greenwood Park. There were no easements on the land for the
sewer.





MSD is siding with the developer stating the homeowners should have known
what was going on when they did not even have it documented. They have been
negligent in their duties to record the lines and insure that the proper easements
were in place. Three owners have been deceived. We feel that Buncombe County
is not working in the interest of its taxpayers.

We are requesting that the developer,contractor-Bill Dorf- put in the MSD
maintained line to the back of our properties where there is reasonable access as
all 3 of us were told were present. We built here with the all 3 parties
independently being told the that this MSD line is present in the location when it
is not there. We would like the lines to be inspected by MSD Buncombe County
as we paid for this service at the start of our builds. The builder, contractor,
developer(Bill Dorf) got 18.5% on top of every service he performed(including
his associated building company) including to trench our lines to the back of our
property where they were misrepresented as connected to a MSD maintained
portal at the bottom of our property line. The same was done for the Bell's and
the Kirk.

Thank you,

Megan Taylor and Joseph DeSantolas.






From: Jon Creighton
To: Cynthia Fox-Clark; Donna Cottrell; Matt Stone; Bob Haynes
Subject: Fwd: revised minimum housing ordinance
Date: Tuesday, May 9, 2017 11:03:12 AM
Attachments: draft 4.26.17.docx
ATT00001.htm
FYI

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jerry Vehaun <Marshall.Vehaun@buncombecounty.org>
Date: May 9, 2017 at 10:53:35 AM EDT

To: Wanda Greene <Wanda.Greene@buncombecounty.org>, Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: FW: revised minimum housing ordinance

FYI

From: Robin Merrell [mailto:Robin@pisgahlegal.org]
Sent: Monday, May 08, 2017 8:58 AM

To: Jerry Vehaun <Marshall.Vehaun@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: revised minimum housing ordinance

Good morning Jerry,

I’'m attaching the revised minimum housing ordinance for you. | am meeting with
Chairman Newman this morning.

Robin

Robin L. Merrell
Managing Attorney
Pisgah Legal Services
P.O. Box 2276
Asheville, NC 28802
828.253.0406
828.252.8927 fax
robin@pisgahlegal.org
www.pisgahlegal.org

Pursuing Justice. Improving Lives.

(This message is sent by an attorney and is intended for the exclusive use of the individual
or entity that is the named addressee. It may contain information that is privileged,
confidential or otherwise legally protected from disclosure. If you are not the named
addressee or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the named
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RENTAL HOUSING ORDINANCE


[bookmark: _GoBack]DRAFT 4.26.17











ARTICLE I – HOUSING UNFIT FOR HUMAN HABITATION


		Section 1 ESTABLISHMENT OF MINIMUM HOUSING CODE


Sec. 1-1. Housing code established title. There are hereby established rules and regulations in Articles I and II herein for the investigation, repair or elimination of unfit and/or unsafe housing conditions in the County of Buncombe, North Carolina, all of which Articles shall be known as the “Buncombe Minimum Housing Code.”


[bookmark: OOR_CH4BUBURE_ARTVIIHOCO_S4-202EXPOPOAU]Sec. 1-2. Authority. The County Commissioners of the County of Buncombe hereby finds and declares pursuant to Article 19, Part 6 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes that there exist in the County dwellings that are unfit for human habitation and are inimical to the welfare and dangerous and injurious to the health, safety and morals of the people of this County, and that a public necessity exists for the investigation, repair, closing or demolition of such dwellings.   The Buncombe County Commission further find and declare that there exists in the County dwellings that are unfit for human habitation due to dilapidation, defects increasing the hazards of fire, accidents or other calamities, lack of ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or due to other conditions rendering the dwellings unsafe or unsanitary, or dangerous or detrimental to the health, safety, morals, or otherwise inimical to the welfare of the residents of the County and that a public necessity exists to exercise the minimum housing regulation powers of the County pursuant to Articles 19 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as now or hereafter amended, to investigate, repair, close, or demolish such dwellings in accordance with the procedures herein.  





Sec. 1-3. Purpose   The purpose of this Code is to remedy and prevent the decay and deterioration of places of human habitation or intended for human habitation by providing minimum requirements of fitness for the initial and continued occupancy of places of human habitation thereby protecting the life, health, welfare, safety, and property of the general public and the owners and occupants of places of human habitation. 


[bookmark: PTIICOOR_CH4BUBURE_ARTVIIHOCO_S4-204SC]Sec. 1-4.  Scope  The provisions of this code shall apply to all existing residential dwellings and all residential dwellings hereinafter constructed within the County of Buncombe which are used or held out for use for human habitation.  This Code  constitutes minimum requirements and standards for residential premises, structures, equipment and facilities for light, ventilation, space heating, sanitation, protection from the elements, life safety, safety from fire and other hazards, and for safe and sanitary maintenance. The provisions shall also constitute minimum requirements and standards for the responsibility of owners, operators and occupants; the occupancy of existing structures and premises, and for administration, enforcement and penalties.  Demountable dwellings such as manufactured homes or demountable dwellings being moved and temporarily stored prior to relocation, when used or intended for use for human habitation, shall be subject to the applicable provisions of this Code and shall be subject to the North Carolina Regulations for Manufactured Homes and other applicable provisions of this Code.   


Sec. 1-5.  Intent  This code shall be construed to secure its expressed intent, which is to ensure public health, safety and welfare insofar as they are affected by the continued occupancy and maintenance of structures and premises.  Existing structures and premises that do not comply with these provisions shall be altered or repaired or demolished to provide a minimum level of health and safety as required herein.  Repairs, alterations, additions to and a change of occupancy in existing buildings shall comply with the North Carolina Building Code. 


Sec. 1-6. Maintenance. Equipment, systems, devices and safeguards required by this code or a previous regulation or code under which the structure or premises was constructed, altered or repaired shall be maintained in good working order. No owner, operator or occupant shall cause any service, facility, equipment or utility which is required under this section to be removed from or shut off from or discontinued for any occupied dwelling, except for such temporary interruption as necessary while repairs or alterations are in progress. The requirements of this code are not intended to provide the basis for removal or abrogation of fire protection and safety systems and devices in existing structures. Except as otherwise specified herein, the owner or the owner’s designated agent shall be responsible for the maintenance of buildings, structures and premises.  


Sec. 1-7.  Application of other codes. Repairs, additions or alterations to a structure, or changes of use from non-residential to residential, shall be done in accordance with the procedures and provisions of the North Carolina Building Code. Nothing in this code shall be construed to cancel, modify or set aside any provision of the Buncombe County Zoning Ordinance.


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


Sec. 2-1.  Enforcement.  The various provisions of this ordinance herein shall be administered by the County of Buncombe Emergency Management Services under the primary direction of the Fire Marshal. The Fire Marshal and related departmental staffs are collectively referred to herein as the public officer and is the same as the public officer as referred to in NCGS 160A - 443. Unless otherwise specified herein, the public officer is hereby authorized and directed to exercise, by and through his duly appointed agents, the powers prescribed by this Code.  The public officer is responsible for enforcement of this code and/or their designees shall enforce the provisions of this code. 


Sec. 2-2   Interpretation of code. The public officer shall have authority as necessary in the interest of public health, safety and general welfare, to interpret and implement the provisions of this code; to secure the intent thereof; and to designate requirements applicable because of local climatic or other conditions. Such rules shall not have the effect of waiving structural or fire performance requirements specifically provided for in this code, the North Carolina Building Code, or of violating accepted engineering methods involving public safety.  


Sec. 2-3.  Deputies In accordance with the prescribed procedures of this jurisdiction and with the concurrence of the appointing authority, the public officer shall have the authority to appoint a deputy public officer, other related technical officers, investigators, and other employees.


Sec. 2-4. Liability. Except as may otherwise be provided by statute or local law or ordinance, no officer, agent, or employee of the County charged with the enforcement of this Ordinance shall be personally liable for any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted in the discharge of his duties under this Code.  No person who institutes or assists in the prosecution of a criminal proceeding under this Ordinance shall be liable to damages hereunder unless he acted with actual malice and without reasonable grounds for believing that the person accused or prosecuted was guilty of an unlawful act or omission. 


Sec. 2-5.  Fees. The fees for activities and services performed by carrying out the responsibilities under this code shall be as defined by the Buncombe County Commission.  





Sec. 2-6.  Investigations of residential structures.   The public officer may make  investigations of residential structures either (1) when it appears to the officer that a dwelling is unfit for human habitation or (2) upon receipt of a petition filed by at least five citizens (or by a public authority) charging that a dwelling is unfit for human habitation.  In conducting investigations authorized under this section, the public officer shall not discriminate between single‑family and multifamily buildings. In exercising this power, members of the department shall have a right to enter on any premises within the jurisdiction of the department at all reasonable hours for the purposes of investigation or other enforcement action, upon presentation of proper credentials. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit periodic inspections in accordance with State fire prevention code or as otherwise required by State law or to apply to the County’s inspection of non-residential structures.





Sec. 2-7.   Right of entry. The public officer is authorized to enter the structure or premises at reasonable times to investigate subject to constitutional restrictions on unreasonable searches and seizures. If entry is refused or not obtained, the public officer is authorized to pursue recourse provided by law including an administrative warrant. 


Sec. 2-8.  Identification. The public officer shall carry proper identification when investigating structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 


Sec. 2-9.  Report.  Within a reasonable time not to exceed 15 days after an investigation taken in accordance with this code, the public officer shall issue a report documenting the results of the investigation. All reports of such investigations shall be in writing and be certified by a responsible officer of such approved agency or by the responsible individual. The public officer is authorized to engage such expert opinion as deemed necessary to report upon unusual technical issues that arise, subject to the approval of the appointing authority. 


The public officer shall serve upon the owner and all parties of interest a copy of the investigation report within a reasonable time, not to exceed 21 days.  


Sec. 2-10.  Department records. The public officer shall keep official records of all business and activities of the department specified in the provisions of this code   Copies shall be made available on request to interested parties. Such records shall be maintained in accordance with State regulations regarding the retention of records.


Sec 2-11.  Coordination of investigations. Whenever in the enforcement of this code or another code or ordinance the responsibility of more than one code official of the jurisdiction is involved, it shall be the duty of the code officials involved to coordinate their investigations and administrative orders as fully as practicable so that the owners and occupants of the structure shall not be subjected to visits by numerous investigators or multiple or conflicting orders. Whenever a code official from any agency or department observes an apparent or actual violation of some provision of some law, ordinance or code not within the code official’s authority to enforce, the code official shall report the findings to the code official having jurisdiction.  





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





Sec. 3-2.  Form and Service of Notice of Hearing.  The form of such complaint shall be in accordance with all of the following:


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





Sec. 3-3. Determination after hearing.  That if, after notice and hearing, the public officer determines that the dwelling under consideration is unfit for human habitation, he shall state in writing his findings of fact in support of that determination and shall issue and cause to be served upon the owner and all parties in interest therein an order: 


a.    If the repair, alteration or improvement of the dwelling can be made at a reasonable cost in relation to the value of the dwelling, requiring the owner, within the time specified, to repair, alter or improve the dwelling in order to render it fit for human habitation. The order may require that the property be vacated and closed only if continued occupancy during the time allowed for repair will present a significant threat of bodily harm, taking into account the nature of the necessary repairs, alterations, or improvements; the current state of the property; and any additional risks due to the presence and capacity of minors under the age of 18 or occupants with physical or mental disabilities. The order shall state that the failure to make timely repairs as directed in the order shall make the dwelling subject to the issuance of an unfit order under Section 2-6  of this section; or


b.   If the repair, alteration or improvement of the dwelling cannot be made at a reasonable cost in relation to the value of the dwelling, requiring the owner, within the time specified in the order, to remove or demolish such dwelling. However, notwithstanding any other provision of law, if the dwelling is located in a historic district of the County and the Historic District Commission determines, after a public hearing as provided by ordinance, that the dwelling is of particular significance or value toward maintaining the character of the district, and the dwelling has not been condemned as unsafe, the order may require that the dwelling be vacated and closed.





Sec 3-4.  Reasonable Cost.  For purposes of this ordinance,  “repairs can be made at a reasonable cost in relation to the value of the dwelling” shall mean that the repair of the dwelling to render it fit for human habitation can be made at a cost not exceeding fifty percent (75%) of the then current value of the dwelling.





Sec. 3-5.  Failure to Comply with Order to Repair.   That, if the owner fails to comply with an order to repair, alter or improve or to vacate and close the dwelling, the public officer may cause the dwelling to be repaired, altered or improved or to be vacated and closed; that the public officer may cause to be posted on the main entrance of any dwelling so closed, a placard with the following words: "This building is unfit for human habitation; the use or occupation of this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful." Occupation of a building so posted shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor. The duties of the public officer set forth in this subdivision shall not be exercised until the governing body shall have by ordinance ordered the public officer to proceed to effectuate the purpose of this Article with respect to the particular property or properties which the public officer shall have found to be unfit for human habitation and which property or properties shall be described in the ordinance. This ordinance shall be recorded in the office of the register of deeds in the county wherein the property or properties are located and shall be indexed in the name of the property owner in the grantor index.





Sec. 3-6.  Failure to Comply with Order to Remove or Demolish.  That, if the owner fails to comply with an order to remove or demolish the dwelling, the public officer may cause such dwelling to be removed or demolished. The duties of the public officer set forth in this subdivision shall not be exercised until the governing body shall have by ordinance ordered the public officer to proceed to effectuate the purpose of this Article with respect to the particular property or properties which the public officer shall have found to be unfit for human habitation and which property or properties shall be described in the ordinance. No such ordinance shall be adopted to require demolition of a dwelling until the owner has first been given a reasonable opportunity to bring it into conformity with the housing code. This ordinance shall be recorded in the office of the register of deeds in the county wherein the property or properties are located and shall be indexed in the name of the property owner in the grantor index.





Sec. 3-7.  Determination of Abandonment.  If the County Commission shall have adopted an ordinance as provided in Section 3-6, or the public officer shall have issued an order, ordering the dwelling to be repaired or vacated and closed, as provided in Section 3-4 herein, and if the dwelling has been vacated and closed for a period of one year pursuant to the ordinance or order, the County Commission shall find that the owner has abandoned the intent and purposed to repair, alter or improve the dwelling in order to render it fit for human habitation and that the continuation of the dwelling in its vacated and closed status would be inimical to the health, safety, morals and welfare of the municipality in that the dwelling would continue to deteriorate, would create a fire and safety hazard, would be a threat to children and vagrants, would attract persons intent on criminal activities, would cause or contribute to the blight and the deterioration of property values in the area, and would render unavailable property and a dwelling which might otherwise have been made available to ease the persistent shortage of decent and affordable housing in this State, then in such circumstances, the County Commission may, after the expiration of such one year period, enact an ordinance and serve such ordinance on the owner, setting forth the following:


(a) If it is determined that the repair of the dwelling to render it fit for habitation can be made at a reasonable cost (a cost not exceeding fifty percent (75%) of the then current value of the dwelling), the owner shall either repair or demolish and remove the dwelling within 90 days; or


(b) If it is determined that the repair of the dwelling to render it fit for habitation cannot be made at a reasonable cost (a cost exceeding fifty (75%) of the then current value of the dwelling) the owner shall be required to demolish and remove the dwelling within 90 days.


This ordinance as described by Section 3-6 herein shall be recorded in the Office of the Buncombe County Register of Deeds and shall be indexed in the name of the property owner in the grantor index.  If the owner fails to comply with this ordinance, the public officer shall effectuate the purpose of this ordinance.   


Sec. 3-8.  Liens.   That the amount of the cost of repairs, alterations or improvements, or vacating and closing, or removal or demolition by the public officer shall be a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred, which lien shall be filed, have the same priority, and be collected as the lien for special assessment provided in Article 9 of 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes. 


(a)     	The amount of the cost is also a lien on any other real property of the owner located within the County limits or within one mile thereof except for the owner's primary residence. The additional lien provided in this sub‑subdivision is inferior to all prior liens and shall be collected as a money judgment.


(b) 	If the dwelling is removed or demolished by the public officer, he shall sell the materials of the dwelling, and any personal property, fixtures or appurtenances found in or attached to the dwelling, and shall credit the proceeds of the sale against the cost of the removal or demolition and any balance remaining shall be deposited in the superior court by the public officer, shall be secured in a manner directed by the court, and shall be disbursed by the court to the persons found to be entitled thereto by final order or decree of the court. Nothing in this section shall be construed to impair or limit in any way the power of the County to define and declare nuisances and to cause their removal or abatement by summary proceedings, or otherwise.





Sec. 3-9 . Equitable enforcement. In case any dwelling is erected, constructed, altered, repaired, converted, maintained, or used in violation of this article or any order or decision of the director or board made pursuant to this article, the director may institute any appropriate action or proceedings to prevent such unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, alternation, or use, to restrain, correct, or abate such violation and to prevent the occupancy of the dwelling.





Sec. 3-10.  Civil Action of Summary Ejectment   If any occupant fails to comply with an order to vacate a dwelling, the public officer may file a civil action in the name of the County to remove such occupant. The action to vacate the dwelling shall be in the nature of summary ejectment and shall be commenced by filing a complaint naming as parties‑defendant any person occupying such dwelling. The clerk of superior court shall issue a summons requiring the defendant to appear before a magistrate at a certain time, date and place not to exceed 10 days from the issuance of the summons to answer the complaint. The summons and complaint shall be served as provided in G.S. 42‑29. The summons shall be returned according to its tenor, and if on its return it appears to have been duly served, and if at the hearing the public officer produces a certified copy of an ordinance adopted by the governing body pursuant to Section 2-6 herein) authorizing the officer to proceed to vacate the occupied dwelling, the magistrate shall enter judgment ordering that the premises be vacated and that all persons be removed. The judgment ordering that the dwelling be vacated shall be enforced in the same manner as the judgment for summary ejectment entered under G.S. 42‑30. An appeal from any judgment entered hereunder by the magistrate may be taken as provided in G.S. 7A‑228, and the execution of such judgment may be stayed as provided in G.S. 7A‑227. An action to remove an occupant of a dwelling who is a tenant of the owner may not be in the nature of a summary ejectment proceeding pursuant to this paragraph unless such occupant was served with notice at least 30 days before the filing of the summary ejectment proceeding that the governing body has ordered the public officer to proceed to exercise his duties under subdivisions (4) and (5) of this section to vacate and close or remove and demolish the dwelling.





Sec. 3-11.  Modifications. Whenever there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out the provisions of this code, the public officer shall have the authority to grant modifications for individual cases, provided the public officer shall first find that special individual reason makes the strict letter of this code impractical and the modification is in compliance with the intent and purpose of this code and that such modification does not lessen health, life and fire safety requirements. The details of action granting modifications shall be recorded and entered in the department files. 


 


Sec. 3-12.  Alternative materials, methods and equipment.. The provisions of this code are not intended to prevent the installation of any material or to prohibit any method of construction not specifically prescribed by this code, provided that any such alternative has been approved. An alternative material or method of construction shall be approved where the public officer finds that the proposed design is satisfactory and complies with the intent of the provisions of this code, and that the material, method or work offered is, for the purpose intended, at least the equivalent of that prescribed in this code in quality, strength, effectiveness, fire resistance, durability and safety.  


Sec. 3-13. Required testing. Whenever there is insufficient evidence of compliance with the provisions of this code, or evidence that a material or method does not conform to the requirements of this code, or in order to substantiate claims for alternative materials or methods, the public officer shall have the authority to require tests to be made as evidence of compliance at no expense to the jurisdiction. 


Sec. 3-14. Test methods. Test methods shall be as specified in this code or by other recognized test standards. In the absence of recognized and accepted test methods, the public officer shall be permitted to approve appropriate testing procedures performed by an approved agency.  


Sec. 3-15. Test reports. Reports of tests shall be retained by the public officer for the period required for retention of public records. 


Sec. 3-16. Material and equipment reuse. Materials, equipment and devices shall not be reused unless such elements are in good repair or have been reconditioned and tested when necessary, placed in good and proper working condition and approved.


Sec. 3-17.  Notice. That whenever a determination is made pursuant to 3-4 of this section that a dwelling must be vacated and closed, or removed or demolished, under the provisions of this section, notice of the order shall be given by first‑class mail to any organization involved in providing or restoring dwellings for affordable housing that has filed a written request for such notices. A minimum period of 45 days from the mailing of such notice shall be given before removal or demolition by action of the public officer, to allow the opportunity for any organization to negotiate with the owner to make repairs, lease, or purchase the property for the purpose of providing affordable housing. The public officer or clerk shall certify the mailing of the notices, and the certification shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud. Only an organization that has filed a written request for such notices may raise the issue of failure to mail such notices, and the sole remedy shall be an order requiring the public officer to wait 45 days before causing removal or demolition.  





Sec. 3-18. Re-leasing. It shall be unlawful for the landlord of any dwelling unit or structure who has received an unfit order pursuant to Section 3-4 herein to lease the same unit or structure to another tenant until the provisions of the compliance order or notice of violation have been complied with.


 


Sec. 3-19.  Duties of Tenants and Owners.. This Code is not intended to interfere with or abolish the duties imposed on tenants and owners of rental property by North Carolina General Statutes, Sections 42-42 and 42-43.





Sec. 3-20.   Appeals.   Any appeal from any decision or order of the public officer shall be made to the Appeals Board in accordance with NCGS § 160A-446.








Section IV  HOUSING CODE DEFINITIONS 


Sec. 4-1.  Definitions. For the purposes of Articles I and II herein, certain terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 


Apartment house: Any dwelling which is designed, built, rented, leased, let or hired out to be occupied, or which is occupied as the home or residence of three or more families living independently of each other in dwelling units.


Approved:  Any written document, approval or housing certificate issued by the public officer following an investigation of a dwelling stating that the named dwelling is approved and appears to comply with the minimum requirements of this Code at the time of the investigation; provided however that such approval does not convey any guarantee or warranties on any building system or component. 


Area (as                                                                                                                                                                                                                  applied to the dimensions of a dwelling): The maximum horizontal projected area of the dwelling at grade.





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


Investigate The act of examining areas and parts of a dwelling to determine its compliance with the standards set out in this Code and undertaken pursuant to the authority to Article 19, Parts 5 and 6 of Chapter 153A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as now or hereafter amended. 


Investigator:  also known as code official and/or public officer.


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








Section V MINIMUM STANDARDS





Without excluding other ways and means of determining that a dwelling is unfit for human habitation, the enforcement officer shall apply the minimum standards set forth in section 5 of this Ordinance in determining whether a dwelling is unfit.





Sec. 5-1 Emergency Conditions.





If any of the following conditions exist, the enforcement officer shall issue an investigation report in accordance with Section 2.9, and the owner, within 5 days of receiving the investigation report, must notify Officer that corrections have been made or have begun and will be completed forthwith.


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





Sec. 5-2 Facilities.





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


Sec. 5-3 Light and ventilation.


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


Sec 5-4. Electrical systems.


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


Sec. 5-5 Exterior and interior.


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


Sec. 5-6 Space requirements.


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


k. Mold.  Every dwelling and every dwelling unit shall be free from conditions that promote the growth of mold, and present mold must be removed.  Water and humidity problems must be repaired.  Visible mold and mildew will be noted on the investigation report, and the owner, operator or agent in control of the dwelling unit must demonstrate that either the noted item is not mold or mildew or that it has been removed.
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addressee, you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy or disseminate this message
or any part of it. If you have received this message in error, please notify me immediately by
email, discard any paper copies and delete all electronic files of the message. Thank you.)






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: GE CO
Date: Monday, December 8, 2014 4:16:43 PM

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
Date: Wednesday, January 11, 2017 5:09:22 PM

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

Subject: List

Date: Tuesday, June 2, 2015 10:19:00 AM
Attachments: 20150602095420379.pdf

----- Original Message-----

From: bemfp@buncombecounty.org [mailto:bemfp@buncombecounty.org]
Sent: Tuesday, June 02, 2015 9:54 AM

To: Matt Stone
Subject:

This E-mail was sent from "PERMITS-RECEPTION-MFD" (Aficio MP 3351).

Scan Date: 06.02.2015 09:54:20 (-0400)
Queries to: bemfp@buncombecounty.org
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: MSD
Date: Tuesday, November 4, 2014 7:50:00 AM

| won’t be able to attend TRC this morning but want to catch up with you sometime to discuss the
MSD satellite office since Cecelia has been relocated.
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Date: Thursday, July 27, 2017 4:25:00 PM

Gary said | just missed you, let me know if you need anything



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Date: Tuesday, June 20, 2017 1:58:29 PM

Gary said for me to catch up with you, what works on your end?
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Date: Tuesday, June 20, 2017 1:58:00 PM

Gary said for me to catch up with you, what works on your end?
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Date: Thursday, September 17, 2015 4:56:00 PM

| was doing an inspection in Sandy Mush, did you get everything you need from Gary?

Matt Stone, Inspections Coordinator
Buncombe County Permits & Inspections
30 Valley Street

Asheville, NC 28801

(828)250-5364 office

(828) 250-6082 fax
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Date: Wednesday, December 3, 2014 10:25:00 AM

Hey — did you hear anything else on staffing the MSD Satellite Office?
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Date: Monday, August 25, 2014 10:05:00 AM
Hey,

Need to meet with you on a couple of things, could you let me know when you have some time over

the next couple of days that | could stop by.

Thanks
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Date: Thursday, July 27, 2017 4:25:41 PM

Gary said | just missed you, let me know if you need anything
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: Meeting
Date: Friday, November 7, 2014 7:34:00 AM

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

Subject: Permit Fees

Date: Monday, September 15, 2014 2:14:00 PM
Hey,

Don Collins came by today and applied for barn permit at Owen High, permit fees will be $575. Let
me know if you need any more info.

Matt



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: Picnic Shed
Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 1:55:00 PM

Have you spoken with anyone about permitting a picnic shed near the community gardens on Clover
Lane off of Lake Eden?
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: Picnic Shed
Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 1:55:50 PM

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
Date: Friday, March 17, 2017 11:02:37 AM

The manufactured home industry does have an energy star program for some new homes but not all and it isn't a
code requirement (the home just has to be HUD labeled). Mobile home code doesn’t require gutters, modular and
stick-built homes have to have gutters only when they are built on expansive or collapsible soil.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, March 17,2017 10:45 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: FW:

From at building code perspective can we require mh's to be energy star and do you know of a building application

it they are that? Are all new homes energy star? Do you require all new homes to have gutters and downspouts?

From: Wanda Greene

Sent: Friday, March 17,2017 10:02 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject:

When I talked to Belcher about modulate in R1 and R2, these are guidelines/requirements he mentioned:
Masonry foundation (brick, stucco, decorative masonry - not just gray blocks)
Energy smart/energy star. I think energy smart is a Clayton term.

Pitch doesn't matter

Double wide

New units only

Gutters and downspouts.

Brownie wants me to set up a meeting with you, me, him and EF. She doesn't support this anymore.

Sent from my iPhone



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE:

Date: Friday, January 16, 2015 3:51:00 PM
10-4

----- Original Message-----

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, January 16, 2015 2:22 PM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: RE:

Damn the torpedo's, double fee!

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Friday, January 16, 2015 10:34 AM
To: Jon Creighton

Subject: FW:

Hey, I'll call you on this but wanted to give you a heads up.

From: bemfp@buncombecounty.org [mailto:bemfp@buncombecounty.org]
Sent: Friday, January 16, 2015 10:20 AM

To: Matt Stone
Subject:

This E-mail was sent from "PERMITS-RECEPTION-MFD" (Aficio MP 3351).

Scan Date: 01.16.2015 10:20:26 (-0500)
Queries to: bemfp@buncombecounty.org
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE:
Date: Wednesday, December 3, 2014 10:35:00 AM

Okay thanks for trying to work it out

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, December 03, 2014 10:33 AM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re:

They bailed. Even Jerry wouldn't support me. Tom kept saying that they only issued 7 permits a
month.

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
Date: Monday, August 25, 2014 11:20:00 AM

Sure, no rush just when you have some time. Thanks

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 11:14 AM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re:

| am at a course. Can | call you?

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 25, 2014, at 9:05 AM, "Matt Stone" <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:
Hey,

Need to meet with you on a couple of things, could you let me know when you have
some time over the next couple of days that | could stop by.

Thanks
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE:
Date: Friday, March 17, 2017 11:03:00 AM

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
Date:

Matt Stone

Jon Creighton

RE: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE Aviation
Tuesday, December 9, 2014 7:59:00 AM

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

Subject: FW: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE Aviation

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
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FYl, today | resulted the GR Final inspection as approved for the subject
project. | included the following comments:

“Buncombe County is the permit holder for GE Aviation. Therefore, in
accordance with City of Asheville Ordinances subsection 7-12-2 (a) (7) a 4,
State of North Carolina has exclusive regulatory jurisdiction over erosion
and sediment control for this project as set forth in NCGS 113A-56(a) and
the project is exempt from the provisions of the erosion prevention and
sediment control regulations of the City of Asheville Ordinances
subsection 7-12-2(e).”

Basically, this project is exempt from the City’s grading and erosion
control rules because of the way the permit application was structured
with the County as the official applicant.

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
Subject: RE: 140 Ramsey Road
Date: Monday, May 16, 2016 8:31:00 AM

Gary is going by this morning.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Friday, May 13, 2016 11:49 AM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: FW: 140 Ramsey Road

Could you have someone check this?

From: Tracy Hannah [mailto:tracyshannah@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, May 09, 2016 4:36 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: 140 Ramsey Road

Hi! Tlive at 142 Ramsey Road, and my right of way is through the property located at 140.
This property has been vacant for a number of years, and the last people that were "living"
there were supposedly doing so without the owner's consent. There have been 'No
Trespassing' sings on and around the property because of this. I saw some people there over
the weekend, and because I was told to notify the owner of the property or the authorities if
someone was on the property, I called the Sheriff's Department. The deputy that I spoke with
called the owner of the property, and there are some friends of his moving into the house with
his permission. My concern is that I saw children with these people, and this house is falling
apart and to my knowledge does not have any running water. Maybe they are getting these
issues worked out prior to moving in, but [ wanted to run it by your attention just in case. |
have also contacted Jan Shepard, but I was unsure as to which department this should go to. 1
would like for this report to be anonymous, as I share a right of way through this property.

Thanks,

Tracy Stephens
828-450-2210

Virus-free. www.avast.com
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: 140 Ramsey Road

Date: Friday, May 13, 2016 1:14:00 PM
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

Date: Monday, May 16, 2016 11:52:15 AM
Thanks

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Monday, May 16, 2016 8:32 AM

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

Hi! Ilive at 142 Ramsey Road, and my right of way is through the property located at 140.
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
issues worked out prior to moving in, but I wanted to run it by your attention just in case. |
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

Subject: RE: 5844 Buncombe Co range - door frames
Date: Tuesday, April 5, 2016 4:05:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

I think it would be more of an aesthetics concern than anything else because | think we will end up
with a saw cut where then new concrete joint would be.

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

Cc: David Lancor <DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com>; Patrick Ward <pward@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: 5844 Buncombe Co range - door frames

Jon:

Hickory would like permission to leave existing concrete at the overhead doors in place, so as not to
have to demolish door frames already installed. See attached pictures. I'll call you about this
shortly.

Thanks,

John Shields Ala, ccs
Senior Architect | Associate

&

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

Subject: RE: 5844 Buncombe County - topping slab
Date: Thursday, March 10, 2016 11:03:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Bob and | went by the range this morning and have some additional questions related to altering
rated doors as well as the effect on ADA in the building that raising the slab will have. Do you want
to discuss them with you or just contact John Shields with them?

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

This is an draft outline of what Clark Nexsen would recommend for a topping slab over the existing
firing range floor slab, to correct the deficient slab thickness problem.

Option — Striate slab, add bonding agent and an additional 2” minimum of concrete topping

- Procedure:

e  The existing concrete slab would be mechanically striated to create a rough surface for
improved bonding of the topping. Welded wire fabric would be installed over the
existing slab, and a bonding agent would be applied to the existing slab. Then, a topping
concrete mix would be applied and finished. Topping concrete mixes typically have a
lower water-cement ratio than normal concrete, to reduce shrinkage in the topping.
Control joints would be cut in the topping near the location of the control joints in the
existing slab.

- Pros:

e There should be no damage to the methane barrier as work in place remains in place

e End product is thicker than specified.

e  Construction schedule impact will be less than with total slab replacement.

- Cons:
e (lient loses vertical clearance in the Range if baffle heights cannot be raised to
compensate.

e Height of existing door openings will be reduced by two inches. Note: This includes
reducing vehicle access clearance through doors 100E and 100C by two inches.
o Personnel doors, if already furnished, will need to be replaced with new doors and
frames.
o If coiling overhead doors cannot be adjusted to compensate for reduced opening
height, new doors will be required.

e  Contractor will have to adjust design to accommodate new finished floor elevation. This

will require, at a minimum:

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

A transition at door 100A will be required. The transition method will require
discussion, as elevation change may affect adjacent toilets and plumbing rough-
ins.

Coordination with bullet trap-related wall penetrations.

O

@)
@)
@)
@)

o
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

Subject: RE: 61 Clover Lane

Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 3:40:00 PM
Thanks

----- Original Message-----

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, June 05, 2017 3:36 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: 61 Clover Lane

No one here has talked to anyone about it.

From: Matt Stone

Sent: Monday, June 05, 2017 2:59 PM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: 61 Clover Lane

Okay, this is a copy of their application if it helps.
Thanks

From: bemfp@buncombecounty.org [mailto:bemfp@buncombecounty.org]
Sent: Monday, June 05, 2017 3:08 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Message from "PERMITS-RECEPTION-MFD"

This E-mail was sent from "PERMITS-RECEPTION-MFD" (MP C3503).

Scan Date: 06.05.2017 15:08:20 (-0400)
Queries to: bemfp@buncombecounty.org
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: RE: 61 Clover Lane
Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 3:36:29 PM

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

From: bemfp@buncombecounty.org [mailto:bcmfp@buncombecounty.org]
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
Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 3:36:00 PM

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

Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 3:40:49 PM
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

To: Michael C. Frue; Greg Isreal (Paul G.); Matt Stone
Subject: RE: AB Tech and permits

Date: Friday, October 13, 2017 4:36:00 PM

Oh man, that’s bad news.

From: Michael C. Frue

Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 4:17 PM

To: Greg Isreal (Paul G.) <Greg.lsreal@buncombecounty.org>; Jon Creighton
<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>; Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: AB Tech and permits

See below. AB Tech permits NOT in county property looks like a no go.

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jannice Ashley <jashl ashevillenc.gov>

Date: October 13, 2017 at 4:14:04 PM EDT

To: "Michael C. Frue" <Michael Frue@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: AB Tech and permits

Sorry Michael, the other attorney is still checking into this-she is not certain that
the statutes allow us to do with just the interlocal agreement as I had thought.
Also, even if we can, this will have to go to Council which at this point, next
meeting is November 14th so this may not fit into the timeframe AB Tech
wanted.

Have a nice weekend.

Jannice

On Fri, Oct 13, 2017 at 9:20 AM, Michael C. Frue
<Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Good morning -
I just saw your name pop up and thought I'd ask how this is going.
Thanks, Jannice

Michael Frue

Jannice Ashley
Senior Assistant City Attorney
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Michael C. Frue; Greg Isreal (Paul G.); Matt Stone
Subject: RE: AB Tech and permits

Date: Friday, October 13, 2017 4:36:31 PM

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

To: Kathy Hughes; Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Abandoned homes in the county
Date: Tuesday, September 1, 2015 8:11:00 AM
Hey Kathy,

County Ordinance Article IV: Unsafe Buildings, Sections 10-126 —10-136. Buildings can be
condemned when dangerous to life, health and property due to disrepair or substandard
conditions. Let me know if you need any additional information.

Matt

From: Kathy Hughes

Sent: Monday, August 31, 2015 3:55 PM

To: Jon Creighton; Matt Stone

Subject: FW: Abandoned homes in the county

Would one of you know?

From: Frank Fraboni [mailto:ffraboni@sbgtv.com]
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2015 3:50 PM

To: Kathy Hughes <Kathy.Hughes@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Abandoned homes in the county

Hi Kathy:

Is there someone in code enforcement from the county | could talk to on camera about
what the rules are for abandoned properties? I’'m wondering what the county codes are regarding
run down properties and if there are any protections for folk’s property values when it comes to a
neighboring abandoned property.

Thanks,
Frank

Ps. You can have them call me at 828-775-3127.

Frank Fraboni
Anchor/Reporter

Oy
Q.
WLODS
110 Technology Drive
Asheville, NC 28803
ffraboni@sbgtv.com

Phone 828-651-4550
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Cell 828-775-3127






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd
Date: Monday, November 3, 2014 8:55:00 AM

Hey,

Environmental Health says septic & well are okay and they could find no history of the property
being turned down previously. | also spoke with the neighbor on Friday and tried to convey to him
that there is not a building code violation with the grading, at that time he wanted to speak to
Erosion Control so he may have spoken with Doug. On our end there is not a setback requirement
on the mobile home but if the home has a deck that is more than 36 sq ft it will have to be at least
five feet off the property. Let me know if you want me to do anything else on my end.

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

On Oct 31, 2014, at 9:48 PM, Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
wrote:

Can you look at this one? Josh will look about the wall but can you ask the
septic guys look also?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Ellen M. Frost" <Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org>
Date: October 31, 2014 at 9:16:22 PM GMT-3

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>,
Joshua OConner <Joshua.OConner@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Building/permit concerns for property
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
Subject: Building/permit concerns for
property adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd

Mrs. Frost,

Per our conversation this afternoon, | am
sending this email to you to express concerns
regarding new construction for a double wide
trailer being installed on a lot adjacent to my
property. My property address is 294 Martin
Branch Rd, Leicester, NC 28748. | am not sure
what the issued address for the adjacent
property will be, but it is directly in front of my
property on Martin Branch Rd. The building
permit number for the new dwelling is 2014-
02038.

One concern is that they have possibly
encroached onto my property during the site
excavating process, and | have a surveyor
coming out to officially determine whether my
property has been damaged at the first of next
week. There has been a nearly vertical bank
cut at the property line in question, which to
my understanding in Buncombe County,
requires either a 2:1 slope or an engineered
retaining wall installed to prevent erosion
issues. At best, this bank is a 1:1 slope, but
more likely 0.5:1 slope. The double wide trailer
has been installed with only 9 feet from the
back door of the new dwelling to the top of the
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bank, so it is not likely feasible for them to be
able to install the retaining wall or to come
back in and repair the slope (where they are
planning to install an 8'x15" deck as well).
There is no ditch at this time to divert water
runoff from the hill and bank, nor the dwelling
itself. There is a huge concern for erosion as
there is a large sloping hill down to where the
bank has been cut, and no question that there
will be erosion issues that will ultimately
undermine my property (which is a livestock
pasture containing horses), due to the way the
bank has been cut. There has been no silt
fence or any other apparent attempts to
prevent erosion during this process as well.

Another concern is that the property in
guestion has been previously been turned
down on inspection for well and septic, though
somehow it has passed inspection now. As |
understand in Buncombe County, a septic
system cannot be installed on greater than a 2-
4% slope, which would only leave the driveway
area for installation on the steep property,
which | also understand to be against code.
The septic has not been installed as of yet.
They had initially installed a well that was at
least 10" from my property line, but then
unbeknownst to me, had to move the well and
now it is at best 2’-3’ from my line. There is no
question that they did cut into my property line
where they had cut out for the well as the
surveyor mark is there in the corner, and they
cut the dirt away 10-12” onto my property
(though as best as | can tell, the well appears to
be on their property).

I will also try to get some pictures to send you,
but | wanted to at least get this email to you to

begin the process of investigation.

Thank you so very much for your assistance in
this matter!

Sincerely,





Christina Law, DVM
NCDAG&CS, Veterinary Division
(919)218-2529






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Buncombe County Multifamily Pipeline
Date: Monday, March 20, 2017 2:14:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Sure

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Monday, March 20, 2017 1:49 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Buncombe County Multifamily Pipeline

Can you give her a link to look at permits?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Katherine Bell <Katherine.Bell@cushwake.com>
Date: March 20, 2017 at 10:31:14 AM EDT

To: "jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org" <jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Buncombe County Multifamily Pipeline

HiJon!

| hope you are well. My name is Katherine Bell with Cushman & Wakefield in
Charlotte, NC. | am working on gathering some market information regarding new
construction / planned / proposed multifamily properties in the Buncombe County /
Asheville area, and was wondering if you could provide me with the Buncombe County
Multifamily Pipeline? If | should reach out to someone else, please feel free to redirect
me! Thanks so much!

Katherine Bell
Jr. Appraiser
Valuation & Advisory

Direct: +1 704 916 1557
Mobile: +1 704 975 9410
katherine.bell@cushwake.com

|||I CUSHMAN &
dllliMh WAKEFIELD

5605 Carnegie Boulevard, Suite 100
Charlotte, NC 28209 | USA
www.cushmanwakefield.com

LinkedIn | Eacebook | Twitter | YouTube | Google+ | Instagram
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The information contained in this communication is confidential, may be
privileged and is intended for the exclusive use of the above named addressee(s).
If you are not the intended recipient(s), you are expressly prohibited from
copying, distributing, disseminating, or in any other way using any information
contained within this communication. If you have received this communication in
error please contact the sender by telephone or by response via mail.

We have taken precautions to minimize the risk of transmitting software viruses,
but we advise you to carry out your own virus checks on any attachment to this
message. We cannot accept liability for any loss or damage caused by software
viruses.






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: RE: Buncombe County New Development Data Request
Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2017 12:21:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png

I'll see if our current reports cover this or if Jason can run one.

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Tuesday, March 07, 2017 12:19 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: FW: Buncombe County New Development Data Request

Can you run a report to get him the info that he needs?

From: Jon Beck [mailto:jon@landofsky.org]

Sent: Tuesday, March 07, 2017 11:41 AM

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Cc: Lyuba Zuyeva <lyuba@landofsky.org>

Subject: Buncombe County New Development Data Request

HiJon,

French Broad River MPO/ Land of Sky Regional Council staff are in the process of updating the
Regional Land Use Inventory in preparation for the 2020 Travel Demand Model update. We are
looking for a list of new developments already approved/built or planned in Buncombe County from
late 2014-into 2017, to include commercial, office, industrial and multi-family residential
developments, as well as any schools, medical or government buildings-in short, any development
beyond individual single-family residential sites that is likely to disturb or change existing traffic
patterns.

If you could provide this information, with a parcel id/pin number (we would need to be able to link
it back to county parcel data), square footage for commercial/office/industrial buildings (if known)
and the number of residences for multi-family residential developments (if known), that would be
most appreciated. Our target deadline is the end of March.

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Thanks,

Jon Beck

GIS Planner

828-251-7463

339 New Leicester Hwy., Suite 140 ¢ Asheville, NC 28806
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REGHONAL COUNCIL

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.
All email correspondence to and from this address is subject to public review under the NC Public Records Law.






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Buncombe County New Development Data Request
Date: Wednesday, March 8, 2017 8:25:00 AM

Yes, I'll send them over today

From: Jon Creighton

Sent: Wednesday, March 08, 2017 8:08 AM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Re: Buncombe County New Development Data Request

This will work. Can you get the info back to '14 for him?
Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 7, 2017, at 12:34 PM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Jon,

We have this report available of the Citizen Access portal of our website as well as
construction numbers based on townships. | only ran this year’s as a sample but if this
is something that would work let me know.

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

French Broad River MPO/ Land of Sky Regional Council staff are in the process of
updating the Regional Land Use Inventory in preparation for the 2020 Travel Demand
Model update. We are looking for a list of new developments already approved/built
or planned in Buncombe County from late 2014-into 2017, to include commercial,
office, industrial and multi-family residential developments, as well as any schools,
medical or government buildings-in short, any development beyond individual single-
family residential sites that is likely to disturb or change existing traffic patterns.

If you could provide this information, with a parcel id/pin number (we would need to
be able to link it back to county parcel data), square footage for
commercial/office/industrial buildings (if known) and the number of residences for
multi-family residential developments (if known), that would be most appreciated. Our
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target deadline is the end of March.
Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,

Jon Beck

GIS Planner

828-251-7463

339 New Leicester Hwy., Suite 140 * Asheville, NC 28806

<image001.png>

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

All email correspondence to and from this address is subject to public review under the NC Public
Records Law.

<Building Report 1-1-17 - 3-7-17.pdf>






From: Matt Stone

To: Perry J Martino; GisHelp; Teresa Proffitt; Jon Creighton; Drew Reisinger
Subject: RE: Crescent street

Date: Monday, July 20, 2015 8:07:00 AM

Perry,

Since the house is located within the city limits of Asheville you will need to contact their
Development Services Department at 250-5846.

Matt

From: Perry J Martino [mailto:perry@perfectgiftssobe.com]

Sent: Monday, July 20, 2015 5:59 AM

To: GisHelp; Teresa Proffitt; Jon Creighton; Matt Stone; Drew Reisinger
Subject: Crescent street

Hi Folks,
Not sure who is the correct contact to help with the below:

I'm wondering if you can assist. I'm looking to purchase a house located at 29 Crescent St.
Directly across is fence with grass behind it and the back of Premier federal Credit union.

My concern/question is the land behind this fence. Is this property which can be build on from
crescent street? In other words can a house be built directly across from 29 crescent street? See
the pic below. Maybe this can help. Thank you!

This is direct across from 29 Crescent Street

This is 29 Crescent st. Other pic is the view from in front of 29 crescent and concern is if a
home(s) can be build on this land.
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Perry Martino
Perfect Gifts

8 Biltmore Avenue
Asheville, NC 28801
828 774 5096 Store
631 334 8036 Cell

www.perfectgiftsanc.com



http://www.perfectgiftsanc.com/




From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: RE: Data request
Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 2:33:00 PM

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

Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 2:59:00 PM
Attachments: 20170605150820515.pdf

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

mailto:bcmfp@buncombecounty.org



. CASE #

BUNCOMBE COUNTY PERMIT APPLICATION
Site Location: Ju:&/ﬂ/?}ﬁdﬂm /U /j PIN # 76 ?? 7 ‘fgé} ’7(?1 514 8

Township: Subdivision/Park Name: Lot# Ridge Law:

Directions: £). S, Zo S L{% e % 4&?@( g Z e IE;}}‘K‘I‘ Je 3(‘7‘= &5+

Cleve~ [gue . ol ?MV‘@/ FFail e PoshE.

Circle Permit Type: Single Family ~ Townhouse  Duplex  Mobile Home  Modular Home — Commercial Multi-Family =~ Other SRED

Type of Work:  Circle Applicable Type(s) ‘ New } Addition  Remodel Upfit/Repair ~ Change of Use ~ Moved House ~ Garage (Att / Det) SQ. FT.
Use of Property: (Circle One) Owner Occupie Rental Sale

Project Description: picaric S B
Total Cost of Project: ? 268G # of Stories ! # of Bedrooms # of Bathrooms
Total Heated SQ. FT. [ SQ. FT. of New Construction (or Renovated Area)
Foundation — Circle Applicable Type: Basement Crawlspace Slab @ Other,
Basement Finished: Yes/No Total Heated SQ. FT. of Basement Total Unheated. SQ. FT. of Basement
Mobile Homes Only: Year Manufacturer Size Electric Furnace — Yes / No
Mobile Home Dealer: Phone #
Address: City State Zip
Set-up Contractor: Phone # Lic#
Address: : City State Zip
Owner: - -tz?f [~ Q‘p “ v@, Phone #
Address: City State Zip
Applicant (If Different from Owner): Sy g naies Q@ud& wwév.( G CU“&{GG'\ Phone #
Address: City ﬁ%wmq State M [ Zip Qg 77&
Contractor:_ ¢s€ R (AW S RIS TLON NCGCLIC#Y6YS 2. Phonet 728 TEE Ldof
Address: 29 M . Pers C‘AA’/‘S Iea{ - City )46‘:1»?4/\./ Z,Z'Q State MMC Zip =505
Lien Agent Name: Phone #
Address : : City State Zip
Sub-Contractors: Electrical - State Lic #
Mechanical State Lic #
Plumbing i State Lic #
Sprinkler ‘ State Lic #
Other State Lic #
Utilities — Circle Applicable Type(s) N OrIE ’
Electric: Duke Power Progress Energy French Broad EMC Haywood EMC Other
Fossil Fuel: Natural Gas LP Gas Oil Heat Pump/AC Other
Water: Private Well (New) or (Existing) Community Well Public Water
Sewer: Septic Tank (New) Septic Tank (Existin&) MSD Sewer Other

The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she is the contractor and authorized agent of the owner and the above information is correct to the best of his/her knowledge and
hereby makes application for a permit and inspection of work described above. All work will be done in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and

regulations and that it is understood that this permit will expire if work is not commenced and inspected within six months of the date of issue. This permit will also expire

if work stops at any time for 12 months or more and no inspections are performed to verify work in progress.

 DLupran Keue ~ &/ /2007 Duirches BUORR
Contractor / Owner Signature Date Printed Name
OFFICE USE ONLY: Zoning Approval - Asheville ETJ Beaverdam Biltmore Forest Limestone Weaverville Woodfin

Flood Hazard Zone: FIRM # Grading/Erosion Permit # Lot Size Disturbed Area Watershed










From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: 61 Clover Lane

Date: Monday, June 5, 2017 2:59:29 PM
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
Subject: Apartment units
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 9:32:00 AM

Do you have for the last 3 years the number that have come on line?

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
Subject: Complaint
Date: Thursday, October 20, 2016 9:32:00 AM

Sorry about the timing but Ed told me this morning you’re going to get a complaint from a
contractor about an inspector’s professionalism. I've heard nothing on my end but just let me know

if it materializes and | can get the details.

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

Date: Thursday, March 3, 2016 12:22:00 PM
Attachments: Exportmap.ipg

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

Date: Friday, January 16, 2015 10:33:00 AM
Attachments: 20150116102026851.pdf

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
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§ 10-86

(d) Heating-air conditioning permit. No person
shall commence or proceed with the installation,
extension, alteration or general repair of any
heating or cooling equipment system without first
securing a permit from the heating-air condi-
tioning inspector; provided, however, that no
permit shall be requlred for minor repairs or minor
burner services.

(e) Electrical permit. No person shall commence
or proceed with the installation, extension, alter-
ation or general repair of any electrical wiring,
devices, appliances or equipment without first se-
curing a permit therefor from the electrical in-
spector; provided, however, that no permit shall
be required for minor repair work such as the
connection of portable devices to suitable recepta-
cles which have been permanently installed; pro-
vided, further, that no permit shall be required
for the installation, alteration or repair of the elec-
trical wiring, devices, appliances and equipment
installed by or for an electrical public utility cor-
poration for the use of such corporation in the
generation, transmission, distribution or metering
of electrical energy, or for the use of such corpo-
ration in the operation of signals or the transmis-
sion of intelligence.

(0 Mobile and modular home permit. No person
shall proceed with the installation, placement, al-
teration, repair, removal or demolition of any mo-
bile and modular home without first securing a
permit from the department of general services.

(g) Demolition permit. No person shall com-
mence or proceed with the removal or demolition
of any building or structure without first obtaining
a demolition permit from the Western North Caro-
lina Regional Air Pollution Control Agency at
least 15 days prior to commencement of such dem-
olition or removal.

(h) Asbestos removal. No person shall commence
or proceed with the removal of any asbestos ma-
terials from any building or structure without first
obtaining a written permit therefor from the
Western North Carolina Regional Air Pollution
Control Agency.

(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-3(a)—(f), 5-21-91; Ord. No.
20371, § 3-3(a)—(h), 1-18-94)

Cross reference—~Mobile homes, § 46-26 et seq.

BUNCOMBE COUNTY CODE

Sec 10-87. Work ‘without permit; charge

Work performed without a permit under sec-
tion 10-97 shall result in a charge of the currently
required late fee equal in amount to the fee spec-.
ified in section 10-97, and, in addition thereto, the
late fees so charged shall not be construed as a
penalty, but as a charge for additional adminis-
trative expense.

(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-3(g), 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371,
§ 3-3(i), 1-18-94)

Sec. 10-88. Returned chelcks; charge.

Checks returned to the department of general
services from a financial institution for insuffi-
cient funds shall result in a charge in addition to
the currently required permit fee. The fee so
charged shall not be construed as a penalty, but
as a charge for additional administrative expense.
(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-3(h), 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371,
§ 3-3(j), 1-18-94)

Sec. 10-89. Refund for unused permit; charge
deducted.

A refund for an unused building permit will be
allowed up to six months from the issue date with
the approval of the director of general services
and/or the county engineer/inspections supervisor.
A charge shall be deducted from the currently
required permit fee and shall not be construed as
a penalty, but as a charge for additional admin-
istrative expense. Refunds will be dispersed by

. the county finance department within 20 working

days. .
(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-3(i), 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371,
§ 3-3(k), 1-18-94) :

Sec. 10-90. Application.

Written application shall be made for all per-
mits required by this chapter and shall be made
on forms provided by the department of general
services. Such application shall be made by the
owner of the building or structure affected, or by
his authorized agent or representative, and, in
addition to such other information as may be re-
quired by the appropriate inspector to enable him
to determine whether the permit applied for should
be issued, shall show the following:

(1) Name, residence and business address of
owner;

CD10:8







§ 10-96

such changes or deviations has been obtained from
the appropriate inspector.
(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-10, 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371, §
3-10, 1-18-94) ‘

State law reference-—Slmllar provisions, G.S. 153A-359.

Sec 10- 97 Fees

Fees for permlts shall be charged at the time of
approval of the application and shall be collected
prior to the beginning of any work. Each subcon-
tractor or his agent shall be responsible for the
payment of the permit fees charged to enable him
to perform the work for which the permit is is-
sued. The fees shall be set from time to time, and
a schedule of such fees is on file and available in
the county offices.

(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-11, 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371, §
3-11, 1-18-94)

Sec. 10-98, Number of inspections.

The schedule of permit fees referenced in sec-
tion 10-97 shall entitle the person holding the

permit to the required number of inspections for

the completion of the installation of the fixtures
involved, plus one additional reinspection for cor-
rections to the installation of the fixtures involved.
For inspection trips, in addition to such one addi-
tional to inspect a corrected installation, the cur-
rently required fee shall be imposed for each ad-
ditional trip.

(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-11(h), 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371,
§ 3-11(Sched. (G)), 1-18-94)

Sec. 10-99. Late fee.

Any work perforrned w1thout a permit shall be
subject to a late fee equal in amount to the fees
specified for the work in this chapter. Such late
fee shall not be construed as a penalty, but as a
surcharge for additional administrative expense.
(Ord. No. 19828, § 3-11(j), 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371,
§ 3-3(i), 1-18-94)

Secs. 10-100—10-125. Reserved.

BUNCOMBE COUNTY CODE

ARTICLE IV. UNSAFE BUILDINGS*

Sec. 10-126. Duties of building inspector.

(2) Any building or structure, or part thereof,
partially destroyed or otherwise, which is ‘found
by the building inspector to be in such a dilapi-
dated state of disrepair or other substandard con-
dition as to be dangerous to life, health or prop-
erty, or to constitute a fire or safety hazard or a
public nuisance shall be declared by the building
inspector to be unsafe.

(b) Such unsafe conditions may be caused by
defective construction, overloaded structural parts,
decay, susceptibility to fire, exits or other haz-
ardous conditions or circumstances.

(¢) The building inspector shall have authority
and it shall be his duty to declare all such build-
ings or structures unsafe and to take appropriate
action to have such conditions corrected or re-

moved.

(d) Such declaration by the building inspector
shall constitute an order of condemnation for the
purposes of this article.

(Ord. No. 19828, § 4-1, 5-21-91; Ord. No. 20371, §

4-1, 1-18-94)

Sec. 10-127, Duties of owner.

Whenever any building or structure has been
condemned by the building inspector, and the ex-
istence of such building or structure in a dilapi-
dated state or disrepair or other substandard con-
dition is found and determined by the building
inspector, or, upon appeal from or report by the
building inspector, as hereafter provided, to the
county board of commissioners, to be dangerous to
life, health or other property, or is in such condi-
tion as to constitute a fire or safety hazard or a
public nuisance, the owner of such building or
structure shall be required to demolish and re-
move the same and remedy such conditions under
the regulations and procedures provided in this
article. If such owner fails or refuses to do so within
the time directed by the building inspector or by
the board of commissioners, as in this article, the
board of commissioners may cause the same to be
demolished and removed or cause such other steps

*State law reference—Authority to close or demolish sub-
standard buildings, G.S. 160A-441 et seq.
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: FW: 140 Ramsey Road
Date: Friday, May 13, 2016 11:48:38 AM

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
Trespassing' sings on and around the property because of this. 1 saw some people there over
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
have also contacted Jan Shepard, but I was unsure as to which department this should go to. I
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

Subject: FW: 2013, 2014, 2015 2016 AND 2017 (APARTMENTS)
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 10:25:00 AM
Attachments: NOVEMBER 2013 MF TOTALS.pdf

JUNE AND OCTOBER 2014 MF TOTALS.pdf
MAY AND AUGUST 2015 MF TOTALS.pdf
MARCH 2016 MF TOTALS.pdf

AUGUST 2016 MF TOTALS.pdf
SEPTEMBER 2016 MF TOTALS.pdf
OCTOBER 2016 MF TOTALS.pdf
NOVEMBER 2016 MF TOTALS.pdf

APRIL 2017 MF TOTALS.pdf

Here are the apartment numbers we sent to Joh n Boyle, if you want me to format them in a cleaner
version just let me know.

From: Lisa McKenna

Sent: Friday, July 14, 2017 5:51 PM

To: Boyle, John (JBOYLE@ashevill.gannett.com) <JBOYLE@ashevill.gannett.com>
Cc: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: 2013, 2014, 2015 2016 AND 2017 (APARTMENTS)

HEY JOHN,
APARTMENT TOTALS....
CALL WITH ANY QUESTIONS?

THANKS,

Lisa McKenna

Administrative Technician 1l
Buncombe County

Permits and Inspections

30 Valley Street

Asheville, NC 28801
828-250-5365

Fax 828-250-6082

lisa.mckenna@buncombecounty.org

From: Boyle, John [mailto:JBOYLE@ashevill.gannett.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2017 4:18 PM

To: Lisa McKenna <Lisa.McKenna@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Apartment building



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=813740331fb045aa81ccd6759ee7ca8a-Jon Creight
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

NOVEMBER 2013
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULTI - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW |MOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 2 $950.00
AVERY CREEK 5] $14,340,874.00 3 $63,000.00
BEAVERDAM 1 $28,000.00 1 $1,300.00 13 $101,568.00
BILTMORE 1 $48,060.00 6 $155,515.00 2 $9,850.00
BLACK MOUNTAIN 3 $1,420,000.00 2 $114,200.00 3 $231,000.00
BROAD RIVER
FAIRVIEW 4 $1,522,000.00 2 $97,166.00 9 $229,795.00 2 $12,400,00
FLAT CREEK 3 $460,000.00 1 $35,000.00 1 $80,000.00
FRENCH BROAD 3 $898,000.00 1 $0.00 5 $64,976.00 1 $1,000.00
JHAW CREEK
HAZEL 2 $512,820.00 1 $29,640.00 4 $38,025.00
VY 1 $250,000.00 2 $63,400.00
|LEICESTER 1 $60,000.00 5 80|  $2,563,480.00 o] $2,274,000.00 2 $50,000.00 4 $74,450.00 1 $1,000.00
LIMESTONE 1 $489,000.00 1] $6,000,000.00 1 $81,798.00 9 $736,018.00 1 $98,825.00
LOWER HOMINY 1 $85,000.00 2 $29,818.00 1 $15,000.00
REEMS CREEK 3 $583,817.00 1] $1,169,783.00 5 $63,400.00 1 $3,500.00
JSANDY MUSH
ISWANNANOA 4 $1,016,609.00 2 4 $420,000.00 1 $15,000.00 1 $12,000.00] § $130,600.00 4] $3,849 550.00
UPPER HOMINY 4 $1,090,000.00 2| $2,213,000.00 1 $15,000.00 7 $89,877.00
T TOTAL 34]  $22,643,120.00 5 80]  $2,563,480.00 0 0 $0.00 2 4 $420,000.00 14] $11,671,783.00 14 1] $545,004.00 63] " $1,870,974.00 31 $4,324,643.00
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 432] $105,080,381.00 0 0 $0.00 5 11] $1,471,935.00 12 24| $3,677,561.00 42[ $19,214,064.00 154 76] $4,970,152.00 583 16,203,762.00 337] $13,032,611.00
YEAR 10 DATE TOTAL 466] ~ $127,703,501.00 5 80|  $2,563,480.00 5 11]  $1,471,935.00 14 28]  $4,087,561.00 56] $30,885,847.00) 168 17] $5,515,156.00 856} $18,074,756.00 368] $17,357,254.00

il
&

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY:
YEAR TO DATE:

166 $44,039,004.00
1775  $207,669,490.00
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

OCTOBER 2014
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL . RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULTI - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL BLDGS| UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW _ [MOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 4 $713,059.00
AVERY CREEK 5 $2,333,000.00 1 $37,454.00 6 $119,925.00 1 $9,200.00
BEAVERDAM 7 $313,593.00 2 $240,345.00
BILTMORE 1 $100,000.00 1] $33,700,000.00, 1 $20,000.00
BLACK MOUNTAIN 3 $1,270,000.00 1 $28,000.00 10 208,359.00 2] $1,230,000.00
BROAD RIVER 3 129,193.00
FAIRVIEW 12 $3,722,972.00 3 $63,231.00 5 479,000.00
FLAT CREEK 1 $150,000.00 2 $21,000.00
[FRENCH BROAD 4 $555,000.00 1 $200,000.00 2 $6,700.00
1 $0.00 4 $35,800.00
1 $80,000.00! 1 $8,700.00
2 $240,000.00 1 55] $3,528,000.00 1 $1,000,000.00 6 $431,746.00 6 $41,800.00 1 10,000.00
{LIMESTONE 8 $5,286,255.00 1 44,294.00 6 22,061.00 3 20,800.00
[LOWER HOMINY 2 $600,000.00 2 $4,795,000.00 2 1 28,800.00 10 178,000.00 2 $276,400.00
[REEMS CREEK 10 $4,223,892.00 2 9] $1,215,155.00 1 $15,000.00 1 33,499.00 8 294,883.00 2 $27,600.00
JSANDY MUSH 1 $260,000.00
SWANNANOA 6 $1,167,240.00 1 $88,000.00 14 $483,497.00 2 $566,500,00
UPPER HOMINY. 6 $977,000.00 - 2 $140,000.00 5 $33,400.00 3]  $1,111,948.00
TOTAL 62 $20,975,459.00 1 55 $3,g_2_8,000,00 2 9 1,215,155.00 0 0 $0.00 8] $39,775,454.00 16 2}  $828,670.00 _90 $2,496,911.00 22]  $4,205,852.00,
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 438 131,812,061.00 17 296] $14,754,237.00 7 21}  $3,263,568.00 4 7 1,339,158.00 66] $92,629,191.00 177 19] $6,836,210.00 650 19,158,891.00 378] $25,796,655.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 500] $152,787,520.00 18 351} $18,282,237.00 El 30 4,478,721.00 4 7 1,339,158.00 74] $132,404,645.00 193 21] $7,665,880.00 740 21,665,802.00 401} $30,002,507.00

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY: 210 $73,026,501.00
YEAR TO DATE: 1984 $368,616,470.00








BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS
JUNE 2014

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULT! - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW __JMOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TJOTAL

ASHEVILLE 2] $13,297,564.00, 4 $75,840.00

AVERY CREEK 4 $6,543,000.00 17 206] $14,754,237.00 23] $6,134,999.00 1 $38,000.00 4 $180,000.00 4 $80,100.00

BEAVERDAM 1 207,000.00 7 $26,000.00 2 $14,500.00 2 $5,000.00

BILTMORE 8 771,800.00 4] $83,000.00 1 $2,500.00

BLACK MOUNTAIN 3 $495,000.00 1 $29,000.00 1 $55,000.00 2 $135,000.00 1 $125,000,00
BROAD RIVER 2 $256,350.00 1 $52,381.00
FAIRVIEW 6 $3,013,267.00 2 $180,000,00 $61,916.00 8 $456,687.00

FLAT CREEK 1 $120,000.00 $57,547.00 3 $203,700.00
RENCH BROAD 3 $400,000.00 1 $4,000.00 $80,000.00 4 $61,875.00

HAW CREEK ]

HAZEL 1 177,000.00, 1 $10,000.00 2 $23,354.00 1 $2,000.00
1 $434,000.00, 2 $42,600.00

LEICESTER 5 $792,870.00 1 $26,500.00 4 $56,875.00 3 $53,285.00)

LIMESTONE 6 $3,454,000.00 13 $508,800.00 1 $55,000.00

LOWER HOMINY 3 $1,395,183.00, 2 2 $79,650,00 4 $181,600.00 1 10,000.00

JREEMS CREEK 2 $520,000.00 1 2| $407,399.00 2 $340,000.00] 7 $54,800.00 4 36,725.00

ISANDY MUSH 1 $365,691.00, 1 $10,000.00

SWANNANOA 1 $34,000.00 1 $9,500.00 1 $0.00 10 $154,654.00 4 $68,965,00

UPPER HOMINY 5 $1,380,000.00 4 $295,000.00 5 $52,500.00 1 $18,398.00

TOTAL 58] $20,359,161.00 17 298] $14,754,237.00 1 3 $407,399.00 0 0 $0.00 33] $20,021,063.00 14 3] $713,613.00 72 $2,068,626.00 30 $739,5613.00

PREVIOUS YEAR TQ DATE TOTAL 218]  $61,627,876.00 0 0 $0.00, 3 10| $1,653,206.00 4 71 $1,339,158.00 21| $50,935,138.00 93 9] $2,996,663.00 334]  $9,876,210.00 196] $12,959,400.00

YEAR 7O DATE TOTAL 274]  $B1,087,037.00 17 296] $14,754,237.00 3 12]  $2,060,605.00 3 7] $1,339,158.00 54| $70,956,201.00, 107 12| $3,710,276.00 406]  $11,044,836,00 226] $13,698,913.00

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY:
YEAR TO DATE:

227 $59,063,612.00
1115  $200,451,263.00
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS
AUGUST 2015

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULTI - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL BLDGS TOTAL UNITS UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 3 $67,460.00
AVERY CREEK 5 $1,752,350.00 $2,5620,000.00 13 $8,835,000.00 $77,000.00 2 $57,723.00
BEAVERDAM 7 $189,176.00 1 $500.00
BILTMORE 1 $65,000.00 4 $92,200.00 1 $15,667.00,
BLACK MOUNTAIN 5 $1,162,000.00 3 $182,000,00 2 $2,484.00
BROAD RIVER 2 $177,750.00
FAIRVIEW 9 $3,009,400.00 1 $38,752.00 16 $650,364.00, 1 $0.00
FLAT CREEK 3 $536,000.00 3 $1659,960.00 3 $33,500.00
FRENCH BROAD 2 $150,000.00 1 $3,288,000.00 1 $985,000.00 2 $25,200.00,
HAW CREEK
HAZEL 4 $499,000.00 1 23,500.00 2 $12,250.00
VY 1 43,526.00 1 $52,200.00
LEICESTER 3 $734,000.00 6 $365,278,00 7 $315,184.00 3 $253,500.00
LIMESTONE 6 $1,645,400.00 3 $230,410.00 12 $892,925.00
LOWER HOMINY 1 $477,000.00 2 $30,700.00 13| $459,674.00
REEMS CREEK 3 $681,615,00 2 1 $94,000.00 10 $200,800.00 5 $239,800.00
JSANDY MUSH 1 $95,850.00 1 $18,800.00,
SWANNANOA 3 $527,000.00 4 $2386,776.00 10 $376,826.00 3 $11,874.00
UPPER HOMINY 14 $2,348,724.00 2 6 $232,233.00 9 $168,200.00 1]~ $1,900,000.00
TOTAL _‘:'33 $13,422,489.00 7 $2,520,000.00 4 0 $0.00 15 12,208,000.00 1,800,735.00 102 $3,727,022.00 20]  $2,491,385.00
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 437 133,484,401.00 7 $251,797.00, 3 9 4 $874,523.00 50] $79.432,887.00 $4,603,609.00 536] $18,066,166.00 276} $30,161,856.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 495 146,906,890,00 4 $2,771,797.00 13 2 4 $674,523.00 65] $91,640,887.00 $6,504,344.00 638 21,793,188.00 296] $32,643,243.00

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
’ MONTHLY: 243 $37,139,713.00
YEAR TO DATE: 1697  $305,492,998.00
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

MAY 2015
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL . RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULTI - FAMILY TOWNHQUSES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL TOTAL UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL MOVED TOTAL NO, TOTAL TOTAL

ASHEVILLE $17,250.00
IAVERY CREEK 12 $3,286,350.00 1 $78,501.00 4 $60,750.00 74,000.00,
BEAVERDAM 1 $23,000.00 3 $38,387.00 $15,000.00,

IélLTMORE 1 207,000.00 1 $25,000.00 2 $105,000.00
BLACK MOUNTAIN 2 $400,000.00 1 $29,000.00 $99,861.00

BROAD RIVER 1 $580,000,00 1 $8,000.00
{FAIRVIEW 8 $3,157,875.00 8 $251,012.00 $5,000.00
IFLAT CREEK 5 $996,225.00 3 $97,000.00 $91,117.00

FRENCH BROAD 1 $140,000.00 1 $600,000.00: 11 $371,060.00

HAW CREEK 1 $11,000.00

HAZEL 1 $45,000.00 1 $6,000.00

VY 3 43,000.00 2 $21,678.00:

LEICESTER 4 1,695,000.00 4 $145,100.00 3 $33,600.00
LIMESTONE 6 1,622,681.00, $251,797.00 7 $3,093,506.00 1 $0.00 10! 431,379.00 $394,783.00

JLOWER HOMINY 6 1,612,000.00 4 1 $193,500.00] 7 146,356,00;
REEMS CREEK 4 $1,938,900.00 5| $555,825,00 2 $21,800.00 3 312,000.00 $5,850.00

SANDY MUSH 1 $38,000.00 1 $54,000.00 2 $57,500.00
SWANNANOA 6 $1,154,231.00 3 $45,250.00 8 $694,490.00 $724,205.00
UPPER HOMINY 5 $760,000.00 1 $375,000.00 3 1 $101,700.00 5 $127,028.00 $165,000.00
TOTAL 61 $17,550,262.00; 7 $251,797.00 5 $555,825.00 $0.00 12, $4Q£4,506.00 22 3 $727,851.00 75 $2,801,241.00 $1,5692,356.00
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 233 'ﬁ1 ,226,162.00 0 $0.00 1 2 1 2 374,523.00 31 $74,520,748.00 60 5] $2,359,697.00 274 $9,050,227.00] $12,517,781.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 294 $88,776,424.00 7 $251,797.00 7 2 § 3745‘23.00 43 78,675,254,00 82 8} $3,087,548.00 349] $11,851,468.00 $14,110,137.00

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY: 217 $27,633,838.00
YEAR TO DATE: 960 $198,117,195,00
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

MARCH 2016
RESIDENTIAL RESDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULT! - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NG. TOTAL | BLDGS | UNITS | TOTAL | BLDGS| UNIs | TOTAL _|BLDGS] UNITS| _ TOTAL NO.] __TOTAL | NEW [WOVED | TOTAL | No. TOTAL RO TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 5] $954,131.00
AVERY CREEK 14| $5,145,200.00 i $80.000.00 4] $106,733.00
BEAVERDAM 3] $525.000.00 1| $25,000.00 3] 93185100 1 $5.000.00
BILTMORE 3 450,000.00 1 1| —$7,00000 4] $376,000.00 2 $2,762.00
BLACK MOUNTAIN 3| $480,000.00 $90,000.00 4| $117,000.00 3] $12.015.00
BROAD RIVER 1| $408,000.00 2| $85,000.00 2[_$11,50000
FAIRVIEW T3] $6,829,149.00 1| $450,000.00 1 $109,000.00 11| $372,500,00
8] $1,010,000.00 8| $665500.00 3 $6,713.00
B[ $1,651,281.00 2 $205,900.00 1 $6,000.00
1 §17,712.00
1| $100,00000 2 $16,000.00
7] $1,635,862.00 : 1 1| $175,000.00 S| §966,168.00 3 $6,773.00
[omEsTONE 8] $3,450,773.00 1 3| $264,610.00 To|_$481,000.00 S| $777.567.00
|Cower oy 2 $301,657.00] 11| 12| $12,029,661.00 18] $7,562.125.00 2 $60,000.00 7] $260.840,00 8] $216,822.00
[REEWS cREEK 10| $3,011.100.00 7] $325,500.00 2 $6,395.00
[sANDY MusH 1| $29,80000 2| $34,00.00 1 2.000.00
[SWANNANOA B[ $L.737452.00 1| $30,000.00 5 $210,976.00 10| $327,00000 | $27.163.00
UPPER HOMINY 7] $1,367,500.00 1 $5.000.00 3 [ $161.179.00 S| $130,650.00 3| $35,353.00
TOTAL 57| $29,03007400] 11| 312| 1702656100 7 ) ST X 0] I $0.00] 73| $5.132,025.00 70 3] $1,038,055.00 56| 389181100 54| $2.170,007.00
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 93] $21,275,863.00 5 5 $0.00 7 2| $000,084.00] 1| 2| 390000000 7| _$7.029,878:00 25 1| $924,690.00] ___716] _ $3,750.410.00] __107] _$3,77,781.00
VEAR TODATE TOTAL] ___180] _ $50,306,857.00] 11| 312] §17,025861.00 p 7] $985,504.00] 1] 2] $900,000.00] 30| $15,161,003.00 3 7] §1.960.754.00] 202] _57.651,22%.00] __161] _$5,950,698.00
TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY: 267  $56,589,043.00
YEARTODATE: 640  $94,949,686.00 Capnn [ ourN H‘W\k f\'\/\ (MF C)‘IA( > )
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

AUGUST 2016
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULT! - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO, TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS| UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW |MOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 16 $598,740.00
AVERY CREEK 2 3,540,000.00 3 $69,650.00 6 $249,972.00 3 $37,350.00
BEAVERDAM 3 1,085,000.00 1 $50,000.00 3 $38,400.00
BILTMORE 4 $3,338,070.00 7 $244,150.00 5 $163,000.00
|BLACK MOUNTAIN 4 $732,000.00 1 $77,320.00 1 $28,500,00 3 $115,500.00
BROAD RIVER 1 $100,000.00 1 $28,640.00
FAIRVIEW I} $2,180,500.00 1 $20,000.00 1 $30,000.00 12 $1,246,650.00 3 $19,251.00
[FLAT CREEK 2 $355,000.00 1 $81,000.00 8 $183,638.00 4 $178,450.00
JFRENCH BROAD 5 $1,165,752.00 1 ) $70,000.00 6 $124,124.00 1 $3,500.00
HAW CREEK 1 $500,000.00
HAZEL 2 $504,924.00 1 $7,500.00 4 $39,800.00 1 $5,000.00
vy 1 $15,000.00 1 $5,000.00
LEICESTER 8 $2,016,579.00 2 24] $1,098,500.00 2 $1,660,500.00 2 $144,000.00 8 $149,500.00 6 $46,660.00
LIMESTONE 2 $865,000.00 1 5 $506,252,00 1 $462,240.00 1 $32,000.00 13 294,099.00 2 $10,000.00
LOWER HOMINY 4 $1,705,000,00 - 1 $42,880.00 2 $192,928.00 12 $165,422.00
REEMS CREEK 18 $5,0265,446.00 3 $253,106.,00 12 $513,250.00 3 $16,000.00
SANDY MUSH 1 $215,000.00
SWANNANOA 2 $900,000.00 9 $3,000.00 8 $217,000.00 5 $44,000.00
UPPER HOMINY 7 $1,510,000.00 8 1]  $476,540.00 8 $162,427.00 4 $95,800.00
TOTAL 72 $25,748,271.00; 2 24] $1,098,500.00 1 5 $506,252.00 0 0 $0.00 4 $2,142,740.00 25 1] $1,302,006.00 105 $3,724,778,00 72[_$1,641,073.00]
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 497 148,436,381.00 11 312} $12,029,661.00 3 13 1,375,594.00 2 4]  $1,225,000.00 44]  $26,129,958.00 119 16] $5,484,790.00 547 16,448,925.00 290] $16,199,408.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 569] $174,184,652.00 13 336] $13,128,161.00 4 18 1,881,846.00 2 4]  $1,225,000.00 48 28,272,698.00 144 17] $6,786,796.00 652 20,173,703,00 362] $17,740,481.00

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY:
YEAR TO DATE:

286 $36,063,620.00
1827 $263,393,337.00
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

SEPTEMBER 2016
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULT! - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL “BLDGS| UNITS TOTAL BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW __JMOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 6 $300,674.00
AVERY CREEK 3 $335,000.00 2 1] $104,000.00 2 $61,730.00 2 $228,865.00
[BEAVERDAM 2 $460,000.00 4 126 $120,855.00 4] $2,870,957.00 4 $129,995.00 1 $8,000.00
IBILTMORE 3 $3,100,000.00 3 $210,200.00 2 $21,100.00
BLACK MOUNTAIN 1 $50,000.00 1 $75,000.00 3 $27,500.00 2 $56,000.00
BROAD RIVER . 11 $160,000.00 1 $50,000.00
IFAIRVIEW 7 $1,983,000.00 1 $65,000.00 12 $588,112.00 1 $1,024.00
FLAT CREEK 5 $1,327,551.00 1 $65,000.00 5 $47,000.00 3 $20,871.00
FRENCH BROAD 4 $879,000.00 2 $54,915.00 3 $44,000.00
[FAW CREEK ) 1 $8,000.00
HAZEL 4 $1,156,572.00 2 $13,000.00 3 $17,000.00
VY 1 $15,000.00
LEICESTER 10 1,816,000.00 1 $65,000.00 3 1] $174,995.00 5 23,500.00 4 $130,896.00
LIMESTONE 5 2,706,325.00 1 $45,000.00 8 423,100.00 3 $44,500.00
LOWER HOMINY 4 $1,070,000.00 1 $240,000.00 6 $281,333.00 5 399,100.00
JREEMS CREEK 7 $2,111,732.00 7 168]  $2,514,713.00 17| $8,853,715.00 1 $111,483.00 8 $97,700.00 6 $206,753.00
ISANDY MUSH
SWANNANOA 4 $565,000.00 2 $139,500.00 14 $422,668.00 1 $90,000.00
UPPER HOMINY 9 $1,377,694.00 1 4 $805,782.00 1 $20,000.00 4 3] $146,480.00 4 $43,500.00 2 $7,136.00
TOTAL 68]  $18,037,874.00 11 204] $2,635,568.00 1 4 $805,762.00 0 0 $0.00 25 $12,124,672.00 26 5| $1,360,706.00 82|  $2,698,105.00 33| $1,116,015.00
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 568] $174,184,662.00 13 336] $13,128,161.00 4 18] $1,867,846.00 2 4]"$1,225,000.00 48| $26,272,698.00 144 171 $6,786,796.00 652] $20,173,703.00 362] $17,740,481.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 637] $193,122,526.00 24 630| $15,763,729.00 5 22|  $2,687,628,00 2 4] $1,225,000.00 73] $40,397,370.00 170 22] $8,147,502.00 734] $22,871,808.00 395] $18,856,500.00
TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY: 254  $39,678,726.00
YEAR TO DATE: 2081 $303,072,063.00 -\ﬁ [ § \/ ! — ,/MS
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

OCTOBER 2016
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULTI ~FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS [ UNITS TOTAL BLDGS[ UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW _|MOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
[ASHEVILLE 3 $17,000.00
AVERY CREEK 9 $1,483,950.00 15 $702,300.00
BEAVERDAM 8 $2,868,000.00] 6 $562.000.00 3 $166,458.00
BILTMORE 3 $595,000.00] - 2 $8,200.00
§BLACK MOUNTAIN 2 494,500.00 3 $84,000.00 1 $17,000.00 4 $217,089.00 1]~ $1,100,000.00
{BROAD RIVER 1 $240,000.00 2 $82,000.00
{FAIRVIEW 10 $2,925,099.00 3 $212,142.00 13 $200,000.00 2 $150,850.00
FLAT CREEK 4 1,034,150.00 1 $130,000.00 4 $35,422.00
FRENCH BROAD 4 1,239,955.00 1 3 $255,000.00 2 $78,316.00 2 $46,120.00 1 $9,500.00
HAW CREEK 1 $25,270.00
HAZEL 1 $278,000.00 2 $39,691.00 2 $19,800.00 1 $3,000.00
VY
ILEICESTIER 12 $2,088,522.00 1 $300,000.00 3 $206,000.00 5 $60,640.00 2 $1,750.00
LIMESTONE 7 $4,455,000.00 4] $9,809,400.00 11 $414,900.00 3 $48,000.00
LOWER HOMINY 1 $250,000.00 9 248 $86,800.00 20} $16,035,098.00 1 $21,000.00 9 $412,100.00 1 $3,600.00
REEMS CREEK 8 $1,570,752.00 2 $42,500.00 11 $360,970.00 4 $99,500.00
SANDY MUSH 1 $180,000.00
SWANNANOA 5 $1,029,000.00 2 $89,948.00 7 $159,082.00 3 $651,000.00
UPPER HOMINY 6 $1,223,000.00 1 2 $628,627.00 8 $412,416.00 8 $279,259.00
TOTAL 89|  $21,954,928.00 9 248 $66,800.00 2 5 $883,627.00 0 0 $0.00 30] $26,306,814.00 23 0] $1,170,697.00 102]  $3,585,252.00 241 $2,250,658.00
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 637| $193,122,526.00 24 630]_$15,763,729.00 5 22|  $2,687,628.00 2 4| $1,225,000.00 73| $40,397,370.00 170 22| $8,147,502.00 734]  $22,871,808.00 395 $18,856,500.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 718|  $215,077,454.00 33 678] $15,850,529.00 7 27| $3,5671,255.00 2 4] $1,225,000.00] 103] $66,704,184.00 193 22| $9,318,199.00 836] $26,457,060.00 418] $21,107,158.00
w%" %
TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED -@%
MONTHLY: 275  $56,238,776.00
YEAR TO DATE: 2356 $359,310,839.00
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

NOVEMBER 2016
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERGIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULTI - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
ND. TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL | BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL | BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW _|MOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 1| 520.044,000.00 5 $33.956.00
AVERY CREEK 7| $1,838475.00 7 $20.229.00 2 $16,000.00
BEAVERDAM 2 725,000.00 2 $330,340.00
BILTMORE 2 400,000,00 1 $57.000.00 Z $88,994.00 4| $411,884.00
BLACK MOUNTAIN 2 466,567.00 2 $28,084.00
BROAD RIVER 3 567,032.00 70| $108.,800.00
FAIRVIEW 72| $3.065.252.00 1 $0.00 71 §873 818.00 1 $5.000.00
FLAT CREEK 2|. " $458,507.00 2 $74.773.00 3 $159,765.00 2 $35,500.00
FRENCH BROAD 3] $1.016,000.00 7 $90,000.00 3 $145.000.00 7 $8,200.00
OAW CREEK . 3 $414,000,00
DAZEL 7 $99,000.00 7 7l $61,000.00
v
LEICESTER 71| $2.365.000.00 8 $584,241.00 8 $200,000.00 2 §13.751.00
LIMESTONE 4 2,243,408.00 7| $1.327,000.00 ) 707.100.00 11 5536,400.00
LOWER HOMINY 3 1,129,000.00 0] "258| _$6,385,000.00 30| $9.474,560.00 3 $110.687.00 3 $55.000.00 7 $6,000.00
REEMS CREEK 3 $325.000.00 5 $65,000.00 T $48,840.00 3 $205,000.00 2] $9£8,000.00
SANDY MiSH 1 $18,150.00
SWANNAEIOA 3 $605.000.00 7 $75.000.00 3 $37,500.00 1 52.800.00
UPPER HOMINY 4 $555,963.00 3 1| $37,000.00 10 $206,403.00 1 $1,500.00
TOTAL 1] 515.859,524.00 70| 258]  $5,385,000.00 o T $6.00 i 3 $0.00] 25| $31.200,560.00 76 3| 51.304.641.00 54l $3,071.095.00 36| $621.175.00
PREVIOUS YEAR T0 DATE TOTAL 719| $215,077,454.00 33| 878] $15,850.529.00 7 27| $3.571.256.00 7 3| $7225.000.00]  103] $66,704,184.00 5 55| $9,318.195.00 §36]  $26,457,060.00 Z16] $21,107.158.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 780|  $230,936,978.00 | 7136| $24,235,529.00 7 57| $53.571,255.00 3 2| $71,225,000.000  128]  $97,804,744.00 219 251 510,622,840.00 T00] $29.525.150.00 755| $22,028,333.00
TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
MONTHLY: 225 $60,741,999.00 ,
YEAR TODATE: 2581 $420,052,838.00 f
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BUNCOMBE CGUNTY BUILDING PERMITS

APRIL 2017
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERGIAL
TOWNSHIP SINGLE- FAMILY MULTI - FAMILY TOWNHOUSES DUPLEXES COMMERCIAL MOBILE HOMES . ADD & ALTER ADD & ALTER
NO. TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS | UNITS TOTAL BLDGS] UNITS TOTAL NO. TOTAL NEW _ |MOVED TOTAL NO. TOTAL NO. TOTAL
ASHEVILLE 4 $43,659.00
[AVERY CREEK 4| $1,085,917.00 1 $112,000.00 3 §191,337.00 8 §132,627.00 4 $170,486.00
BEAVERDAM 8l $1,532,825.00 1 28 $26,665.00 ) 1 $746,620.00 P $236,500.00 1 $4,500.00
BILTMORE 7 $656,000.00 1 $5,000.00
BLACK MOUNTAIN 2 $482,000.00 1 $5,000.00 1 $17,000.00
BROAD RIVER 1 $4,500.00
FAIRVIEW 8] $2,874,000.00 2 $125,391.00 13 $392,863.00 7 $17,250.00
{FLAT CREEK 1] $275,000.00 1 $75,000.00 4 $82,300.00
JFRENCH BROAD 5 $656,000.00 i $95,000.00 2 $284,000.00 2] $7,034,600.00
HAW CREEK
HAZEL 7 $307,930.00 . 1 $3,000.00 7 $1,200.00
VY 3 $45,000.00
LEICESTER 8] $1.310,000.00 5 370,285.00 3 $497,200.00
LIMESTONE 4 $757,000.00 i 1 $278,500.00 3 129,000.00 11 $399,461.00 i $15,000.00
LOWER HOMINY 2 $520,000.00 1 $197,000.00 2 131,130.00 12 $398,500.00 1 $8,000.00
IREEMS CREEK o] §1,958,772.00 1 $3,480.00 4 $51,000.00 2 $11,700.00
[sANDY MUSH 1 $1,500.00 1 $6,000.00
IswanNANOA 8| $2,116,106.00 2 $273,800.00 1 $27,600.00 5 $136,550.00 3 $200,000.00
UPPER HOMINY 8] $1,080,222.00 ‘ 3 $70,464.00 8 $120,200.00 i $15,000.00
TOTAL B4 15.155,772.00 7 28 $26.665.00 i 0 $0.00 i i $0.00 71 $1.611,400.00 73 0 £1,218,207.00 35 2,947,201.00 28] $8,045,395.00
PREVIOUS YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 221 73,110,000.00 i 0 $0.00 1 3 319,202.00 2 4] $648,137.00] 15| $12.953,039.00 59 3 2,700,757.00 233 7,787,509.00 91| $7.756,873.00
YEAR TO DATE TOTAL 285| _ $88,265,772.00 1 28 $26,665.00 T 3 319,202.00 2 2| $648,137.000 22| $14,564,439.00 92 8 3.918,964.00 318]  $10,734,510.00 T10]  $15,802,268.00

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED )
MONTHLY: 208 $29,004,640.00
YEAR TODATE: 852 $134,279,957.00










Hi Lisa,

| hope you're doing well.

I’'m working on a story for Sunday about apartment building in the area, and I'm trying to find out if
you guys have figures for apartments built in recent years and permits issued this year. Trying to see
if building is slowing, picking up, etc. Do you have that kind of info? Something | can find on your
site?

Also glad to talk via phone.

Thanks,

John

John Boyle, reporter/columnist
Asheville Citizen-Times

14 O. Henry St., Asheville, NC 28801
W. (828) 232-5847

C. (828) 506-9706






From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: FW: 2013, 2014, 2015 2016 AND 2017 (APARTMENTS)
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 10:25:16 AM
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

mailto:lisa.mckenna@buncombecounty.org

mailto:JBOYLE@ashevill.gannett.com

mailto:Lisa.McKenna@buncombecounty.org



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

PNW @@&4/{ = __(

oo las -
[ -+ %m@w—»

* 10,920, 000

596 D’DQ

oD,








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
Date: Tuesday, April 5, 2016 2:48:12 PM
Attachments: image001.png

bunc.co firing pics.4-5-2016 016.pdf
bunc.co firing pics.4-5-2016 014.pdf
bunc.co firing pics.4-5-2016 020.pdf

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

Subject: FW: AVL MSE Wall

Date: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 2:31:00 PM
Attachments: image9203c7.aif@9e11d550.d99c4f54

MSE Wall - Typical Repair Procedure.pdf

From: Rysdon, Eric [mailto:Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com]

Sent: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 10:50 AM

To: Matt Stone

Cc: mreisman@flyavl.com; ekuehnel@thalle.com; DeVitto, Janis; ryanz@flyavl.com
Subject: AVL MSE Wall

Mr. Stone;

Per our conversation this morning attached to this email are the proposed repair information that
we received from the contractor last night. | have also send you an email link to download the
original MSE wall plans as the file size was too large to email.

As we discussed you will send out to us the required paperwork for the contractor to begin the
permitting process on the MSE wall repairs.

During our construction meeting this morning we did discuss the wall and currently the contractors
plans are to continue to work on safely removing damaged sections of the MSE wall panels so that
they can identify those that need to be replace and begin the casting of these panels.

We will also begin gathering the testing information from the MSE wall construction and any reports
referencing the wall for your office records as requested.

If you have any questions please contact me.

Sincerely

Eric Rysdon, PE

Charlotte Aviation Manager

1520 South Blvd, Suite 200

Charlotte, NC 28203

Phone: 704-940-4731 / Fax: 704-949-2672
Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com

Visit our website at www.rsandh.com
Connect with RS&H on Eacebook Twitter LinkedIn

RS&H
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THALLE

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

December 30, 2014

Mr. Eric Rysdon, PE

Charlotte Aviation Manager

RS&H Architects-Engineers-Planners, Inc.
1520 South Blvd, Suite 200

Charlotte, North Carolina 28203

Ph: (704) 940-4731

Fax: (704) 949-2672

Re: Asheville Regional Airport
Airfield Redevelopment Program
Bid Package 1 — Temporary Runway 17-35 Site Preparation & Grading.
ARES Retaining Wall System - Typical Repair Procedure

Dear Mr. Rysdon,

Please find the attached Typical Repair Procedure provided by Tensar International (TIC) for the
Damage that has occurred to the ARES Retaining Wall System for your review and approval.

At this time Thalle Construction Company Inc., does not assume any responsibility for the
damage that has occurred to the retaining wall and other related areas until such time that a full
investigation to the root cause of the damage is concluded. Thalle will proceed with safely
securing the retaining wall and a repair, but reserves the right to seek full compensation for any
and all costs and time related impacts associated with work related to the damage to the wall
and other related areas.

We trust this information meets your needs. If you need further information or have additional
questions please contact me at 434-210-2936 or ekuehnel@thalle.com

Sincerely,

e

Efic Kuehnel
Superintendent
Thalle Construction Company, Inc.

Thalle Construction Company, Inc. — Highway 86 N, Hillsborough, NC 27278 — Ph. (919) 245-1490







|
' 5883 Glenridge Drive
; Suite 200

H

i Atlanta, GA 30328

Tensaﬁ | Tel, 404-250-1290

IHTE RHATICHAL ! Fax 404-250-9185
; www.tensarcorp.com

December 30, 2014 |

Mr. Bill Cheek

Tricor Construction
1983 Chesnee Highway
Spartanburg, SC 29303

Re:

ARES® Retaining Wall System for Asheville Airport
Asheville, NC
Project ID: 2013.157.01

Tensar Project No. R14302

Dear Mr. Cheek:

As requested during our meeting yesterday, Tensar International Corporation (TIC) is
providing the typical repair procedure for the ARES wall affected during the rain event on
December 24% 2014,

The typical repair steps are the following:

Typical Repair Steps:

1.

Grade to the top of the wall to ensure that the water runoff is directed away from the
face of the wall. Positive drainage must be provided so that the water does not
collect in the reinforced zone. A temporary soil berm shall be constructed near the
crest of the repair area. At the end of each workday cover the areas with trenches of
plastic held down with sand bags and/or stakes.

Remove and discard in a safe way any ARES precast panel that has been damaged or
moved out from his original location.

Prior to excavation of the reinforced zone, the ARES precast panels that have not
been damaged, shall be properly secured with wood clamps.

During the excavation of the reinforced fill care should be taken so that damage does
not occur to the in-place geogrid. The bodkin bar should be removed as soon as
possible or cut the uniaxial geogrids attached to the geogrid tabs to avoid damage to
the panels and geogrid tabs.

Provided that the panel’s geogrid tabs are in good condition after the excavation, the
in-place ARES panels may be reused in the repair. Alternatively, new panels may be
made or an allowance may be made for the damage such as attaching a higher

strength geogrid to the panel than originally called for in the design. TIC should be

consulted prior to making any allowances for damage.

Remove the panels in a reverse order that they were installed. Discard the geogrid
attached to the panel, bodkin bars, geotextile and bearing pads.







7. Remove (or cut if necessary) the geogrid exposed during step 4. This grid shall not
be reused in the repair.

8. During excavation remove any loose material and extend excavation on both sides of
the repair area, as necessary. The stability of the back-cut is the responsibility of
the contractor.

9. Replace the bearing pads, panels, bodkin bars, geotextile and geogrid as shown in
TIC approved construction drawings. Do not drive any equipment on exposed
geogrids.

10.Tension the geogrid with a Steel Rake (or “Mechanic Rake”) to eliminate slack and
anchor by pinning or placing soil on the geogrid. Do not overlap the geogrid.

11. Compact the soil to the specified density stated on the construction requirements of
the project specifications using standard compaction equipment such as vibratory
plate and smooth roller.

12. Repeat as needed until the final wall height is reached.

This repair will not affect the stability of the wall provided the installation of new layers of
geogrid and reconstruction are in accordance with TIC's Construction Drawings. For the
purposes of this assessment, TIC has assumed that the wall has been constructed in
accordance to the plans and specifications in all areas.

If you have further concerns, please contact us and we will assist in addressing those
concerns.

Sincerely,
Tensar International Corporation

Luis A. Velez
Senior Project Manager

Cc: Chris Greenway, TIC
Willy Liew, TIC















From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: FW: AVL MSE Wall

Date: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 9:52:00 AM
FYI

From: Rysdon, Eric [mailto:Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com]

Sent: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 9:48 AM

To: Michael A. Reisman; ekuehnel@thalle.com; BSharp@thalle.com

Cc: JMoose@avconinc.com; Rita Yanz; DeVitto, Janis; Loder, Nick; Darcangelo, Mike; Lew Bleiweis; Tina
Kinsey; Matt Stone

Subject: RE: AVL MSE Wall

Mike,

As soon as the construction call ends this am, | am going to call Matt stone with respect to the
submittal of the proposed repair letter and the original MSE wall plans. One of our questions was if
he needs this submittal from us (RS&H, AVL, Avcon) or Thalle (contractor) for his permitting
requirement.

I will also update him on the work that Thalle has stated they are planning to try and commence to
complete stabilization of the site and removal of possible After | speak with Matt, | will update you
with any comments.

Eric

Eric Rysdon, PE

Charlotte Aviation Manager

1520 South Blvd, Suite 200

Charlotte, NC 28203

Phone: 704-940-4731 | Fax: 704-949-2672
Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com

Visit our website at www.rsandh.com
Connect with RS&H on Eacebook Twitter LinkedIn

From: Michael A. Reisman [mailto:mreisman@flyavl.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 9:31 AM

To: Rysdon, Eric; ekuehnel@thalle.com; Brian Sharp (BSharp@thalle.com)

Cc: JMoose@avconinc.com; Rita Yanz; DeVitto, Janis; Loder, Nick; Darcangelo, Mike; Lew Bleiweis; Tina
Kinsey; 'Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org'

Subject: RE: AVL MSE Wall

I want to remind everyone that other than stabilization, storm water, and safety related efforts, no
repairs may be undertaken on the wall until such time as Buncombe County has reviewed the
original plans, the repair methods proposed, and has issued a building permit for the wall.



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=creighj

mailto:Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com

http://www.rsandh.com/

https://www.facebook.com/WeAreRSandH

https://twitter.com/wearersandh

http://www.linkedin.com/company/rs%26h

mailto:mreisman@flyavl.com

mailto:ekuehnel@thalle.com

mailto:BSharp@thalle.com

mailto:JMoose@avconinc.com



Eric Rysdon — | provided you with Matt Stone’s contact info at Buncombe County. If you have not
already done so, you need to call him today to ensure he outlines for you every part of the process
to get this done, and to ensure that everything he wants concerning our third party inspections is
submitted to him along with all other documentation. | gave him a heads up yesterday that you
would be calling him.

Mike Reisman

From: Rysdon, Eric [mailto:Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 8:16 AM

To: Michael A. Reisman
Cc: IMoose@avconinc.com; Rita Yanz; DeVitto, Janis; Loder, Nick; Darcangelo, Mike
Subject: FW: AVL MSE Wall

Mike,
| just saw this email from Eric Kuehnel. | expect we will discuss it during the call this morning.

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

From: Eric Kuehnel [mailto:EKuehnel@thalle.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 30, 2014 8:04 PM

To: Rysdon, Eric

Cc: DeVitto, Janis; Loder, Nick

Subject: RE: AVL MSE Wall

Eric,

Please find the attached MSE Wall Repair Procedure for review and approval.

| spoke with Tensar regarding the request for a statement. Chris Greenway with Tensar needed to
discuss/review internally before supplying a statement. | have not heard back or received anything

from them yet. Take a look at the repair procedure and see if any of that information can be used to
satisfy a statement for the news release. | will check with them again in the morning and let you
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know.
Thanks

Eric Kuehnel

THALLE

900 NC 86 North
Hillsborough, NC 27278
Cell: (434) 210-2936

From: Rysdon, Eric [mailto:Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 30, 2014 6:41 PM

To: Eric Kuehnel

Cc: JMoose@avconinc.com; mreisman@flyavl.com; DeVitto, Janis; ryanz@flyavl.com; Loder, Nick
Subject: AVL MSE Wall

Eric,

| wanted to follow up with you on the status of the proposed repair plans for the MSE wall. When
we talked earlier this afternoon you had stated that you were in the process of reviewing the plans.
And during our meeting on Monday at the airport we were under the impression that Tensar and
Thalle would have something to us for our review by this afternoon.

Also | wanted to follow up on the requested statement from Tensar for our news release with
regards to the walls stability and that it is safe in its current condition. If you can provide me with an
update on this information it would be appreciated.

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
Sent: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 10:51 AM

To: Matt Stone
Subject: AVL MSE Wall

Sender : Rysdon, Eric
Link : https://pd.rsandh.com/pd/Login.do?id=A0572148482&p1=naj04fisbgidcfifidlejcgefij20

Sent To : matt.stone@buncombecounty.org

Welcome to the Biscom File Delivery Services. In order to retrieve files sent to you by any RS&H associate, you
will need to create a user account using your email address and a password you create.
Please click on the included link to get started.

**Note: Folder/subfolder sending is supported.

The steps are:

1. Using the link above, register to create an account and log-in;
2. Download files;

**Important Notice: Biscom FDS is a 'point-to-point' secure file delivery service. Only the original recipient(s) of
the message from the Biscom server can retrieve the files. That message cannot be forwarded to other recipients. To
allow others to retrieve the files, contact the RS&H associate that sent you the package and ask them to send the
package to the other recipients. If you have any questions, please call the RS&H HelpDesk at 1-877-435-7890.

This email and its attachments may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of the individual to whom it is
addressed. If you are not the intended recipient of this email and its attachments, you must take no action based
upon them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone. Please contact the sender if you believe you have received
this email in error.

Eric Rysdon, PE

Charlotte Aviation Manager

1520 South Blvd, Suite 200

Charlotte, NC 28203

Phone: 704-940-4731 / Fax: 704-949-2672

mailto:Eric.Rysdon@rsandh.com

Visit our website at http://www.rsandh.com Connect with RS&H on https://www.facebook.com/WeAreRSandH
https://twitter.com/wearersandh http://www.linkedin.com/company/rs%26h
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: FW: Building Permit Trend Reports - 03/31/15 Editions
Date: Monday, April 27, 2015 8:08:00 AM

From: Dale Akins [mailto:dakins@themarketedge.com]
Sent: Sunday, April 26, 2015 5:34 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Building Permit Trend Reports - 03/31/15 Editions

To: Matt Stone
Buncombe County (NC) Code Enforcement

THE 03/31/15 EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING REPORTS ARE NOW AVAILABLE:

1) RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT. This report includes a map of our
coverage area plus the corresponding residential building permit totals for each of those counties.
The totals reported include the NEW residential building permits issued by ALL code enforcement
offices within each respective county (ie. county code office PLUS the cities and towns within those
counties that also issue building permits.) The "# OF CODE OFFICES" per county is listed on the left
side of the page next to the county name beginning on Page 2. This report also includes the number
of HIGH END building permits per market and per county for 2012, 2013, 2014, and Quarter 1,
2015.

www.themarketedge.com/?p=a4e086 5e9a2b <--- CLICK THIS LINK TO PREVIEW OR
DOWNLOAD

2) COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT . Please be advised: It is our belief that
commercial building permit trends are actually NOT a reliable "trend indicator" due to the
differences in how commercial construction projects are permitted. For example: permits for a 200
unit apartment complex could be issued as 1 permit, 1 permit per building, or 1 permit per unit,
depending upon the requirements of the local code enforcement office. This difference will void any
attempt to extract a meaningful comparison between counties or markets. To obtain detailed
commercial building permit reports, please feel free to call or correspond.

www.themarketedge.com/?p=36fff0 996b39 <--- CLICK THIS LINK TO PREVIEW OR
DOWNLOAD

THESE REPORTS ARE PRODUCED EACH CALENDAR QUARTER FREE OF CHARGE FOR OUR
CUSTOMERS AND CONTACTS.

FEEL FREE TO FORWARD THIS E-MAIL TO YOUR ASSOCIATES WHO HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY.

If we can be of further service in any way, please feel free to call or correspond.

Dale Akins

President

The Market Edge LLC.
10433 Hickory Path Way
Knoxville, TN 37922
800-357-3343 / Ext 226
dakins@themarketedge.com
www.themarketedge.com

* Providing Quality Leads Since 1993 *
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: FW: Building Permit Trend Reports - 09/30/15 Editions

Date: Monday, November 2, 2015 11:47:00 AM

Attachments: Residential Building Permit Trend Report - 2015-09-30 Edition.pdf

Commercial Building Permit Trend Report - 2015-09-30 edition.pdf

From: Dale Akins [mailto:dakins@themarketedge.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 29, 2015 2:45 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Building Permit Trend Reports - 09/30/15 Editions

To: Matt Stone
Buncombe County (NC) Code Enforcement

Attached you will find the 09/30/15 editions of the following:

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
of HIGH END building permits per market and per county for 2012, 2013, 2014, and YTD 2015.

2) COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT. Please be advised: It is our belief that
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
CUSTOMERS AND CONTACTS. FEEL FREE TO FORWARD THIS E-MAIL TO YOUR ASSOCIATES
WHO HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY.

LIKE US ON FACEBOOK AT www.facebook.com/themarketedge< /b> TO RECEIVE
ADVANCE NOTICE OF FUTURE REPORTS AND UPCOMING SPEECHES.

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
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION

SUMMARY OF ALL MARKETS

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ. FT
ANNUAL QUARTERLY OR WITH PERMIT VALUE ANNUAL
PERMIT OVER $400,000

#OF 2011 2012 2013 2014 | 2015

CODE 2014 2015 YTD VS Vs VS VS VS

MAP ST MARKET OFFICES|| 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014| QL Q2 Q3 Q4| Q1 Q2 Q3| 2014 2015| 2013 2014 2015 2010 2011 2012 2013 | 2014
A IN EVANSVILLE 8 720 676 730 648 746 124 205 219 198 151 203 226 548 580 108 133 84 -6.1% 8.0% -11.2% 15.1% 5.8%
B KY LOUISVLLE 20 2,155 1,836 2,616 2,674 2,743 577 768 781 617 489 828 815 | 2126 2132 463 467 376 -14.8%  42.5% 2.2% 2.6% 0.3%
C KY LEXINGTON 14 1427 1217 1620 1,731 1,609 270 488 470 381 314 503 552 | 1,228 1,369 325 330 294 -147%  33.1% 6.9%  -7.0% 11.5%
D TN CHATTANOOGA | 19 1225 1142 1461 1486 1,505 364 381 417 343 396 481 440 | 1,162 1317 43 60 48 6.8%  27.9% 1.7% 1.3% 13.3%
E TN KNOXVILLE 31 1,749 1420 1,759 2313 2,399 493 622 675 609 595 852 716 | 1,790 2,163 189 213 196 -18.8%  23.9%  31.5% 3.7% 20.8%
F TN TRI-CITIES 22 914 776 741 843 688 151 192 186 159 152 247 222 529 621 51 46 51 -15.1%  -45%  13.8% -18.4% 17.4%
G NC ASHEVILLE 17 1532 1315 1478 1,803 1,940 400 530 544 466 489 530 601 | 1474 1,620 253 392 345 -142% 12.4%  22.0% 7.6% 9.9%
H SC UPSTATE 27 2,472 2,643 3491 4,178 4,615 999 1,200 1,287 1,129 | 1212 1513 1425 3,486 4,150 768 836 654 6.9% 321% 19.7% 10.5% 19.0%
I SC COLUMBIA 18 2,252 2,204 2,624 3,057 2,430 579 633 630 588 680 739 650 | 1,842 2,069 213 249 258 21%  191%  16.5% -20.5% 12.3%
J NC HICKORY 10 611 503 479 598 614 131 170 171 142 141 187 227 472 555 125 127 124 17.7%  -48% 24.8% 2.7% 17.6%
K NC CHARLOTTE 16 5845 6,030 7,874 9,869 10,048 2,499 2,609 2,727 2213 | 2,790 3,185 3,122 | 7,528 9,097 | 1,718 1622 1,478 3.2% 30.6%  25.3% 1.8% 20.8%
L NC TRIAD 15 2,342 2,214 2284 2887 3,166 665 906 841 754 866 1,022 888 | 2412 2776 225 286 232 -5.5% 32%  26.4% 9.7% 15.1%
M NC TRIANGLE 24 5858 5494 7278 9,624 9,024 2,213 2,402 2434 1975| 2,254 2965 2607 | 7,049 70826| 1921 1919 1559 6.2% 325% 322%  -6.2% 11.0%
N NC FAYETTEVILLE 17 2,900 2,445 2405 2,663 2,349 538 654 618 539 552 619 624 | 1810 1,795 230 160 132 -15.7%  -16% 10.7% -11.8% -0.8%
o NC ROCKY MOUNT 17 1,091 868 962 1,085 710 171 210 179 150 160 316 254 560 730 21 39 -20.4%  10.8%  12.8% -34.6% 30.4%
275 33,093 30,783 37,802 45,459 44,586‘ 10,174 11,970 12,179 10,263‘ 11,241 14,190 13,369‘ 34,016 38,800‘ 6,632 5,870 -1.0% 14.1%

-
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION
EVANSVILLE /7 LOUISVILLE /7 LEXINGTON

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ. FT
ANNUAL QUARTERLY OR WITH PERMIT VALUE ANNUAL
PERMIT OVER $400,000
#OF YTD=Q1+Q2+Q3 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
CODE 2014 2015 YTD VS Vs VS VS VS
MARKET ST COUNTY OFFICES|| 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 01 Q2 Q3 Q4 01 Q2 Q3| 2014 2015| 2013 2014 2015 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
L
2 | IN VANDERBURGH 1 212 215 272 218 291 55 67 80 89 61 76 89 202 226 49 56 34 1.4% 265% -19.9% 335% | 11.9%
= | IN WARRICK 3 172 160 124 161 180 27 52 58 43 41 48 53 137 142 18 30 18 -7.0% -225% 29.8% 11.8% 3.6%
A & | KY DAVIESS 2 296 237 280 229 240 34 74 72 60 44 63 72 180 179 34 36 22 -19.9% 18.1% -182%  4.8% | -0.6%
<z( KY HENDERSON 2 40 64 54 40 35 8 12 9 6 5 16 12 29 33 7 11 10 60.0% -15.6% -25.9% -12.5% | 13.8%
>
W
8
IN CLARK 5 207 227 349 318 384 86 111 103 84 76 93 89 300 258 11 22 16 9.7% 53.7% -8.9% 20.8% | -14.0%
IN FLOYD 3 135 98 169 149 151 29 37 55 30 26 63 48 121 137 77 61 68 274% 724% -11.8%  1.3% | 13.2%
W | IN HARRISON 1 71 64 96 77 74 11 24 17 22 8 30 21 52 59 7 5 7 -9.9% 50.0% -19.8% -3.9% | 13.5%
2 | KY BULLITT 1 290 213 292 282 238 34 86 74 a4 61 103 89 194 253 4 6 7 -26.6% 37.1% -3.4% -15.6% | 30.4%
B > | KY HARDIN 5 333 210 254 226 144 25 42 47 30 29 71 39 114 139 16 11 17 -36.9% 21.0% -11.0% -36.3% | 21.9%
@ | KY JEFFERSON 1 676 671 1,003 1,022 1,081 249 239 301 292 168 233 270 789 671 242 204 144 -0.7% 495%  1.9%  58% | -15.0%
8 KY NELSON 1 142 122 114 141 171 35 66 42 28 23 48 34 143 105 4 12 1 -14.1%  -6.6% 23.7% 21.3% | -26.6%
= | KY OLDHAM 1 120 112 156 234 218 61 65 51 41 50 78 81 177 209 47 60 48 -6.7% 39.3% 50.0% -6.8% | 18.1%
KY SHELBY 1 114 73 136 149 204 39 69 66 30 37 83 109 174 229 51 82 65 -36.0% 86.3%  9.6% 36.9% | 31.6%
KY SPENCER 1 67 46 47 76 78 8 29 25 16 11 26 35 62 72 4 4 3 -31.3%  22% 617%  2.6% | 16.1%
20 2,155 1,836 2,616 2,674 2,126
KY BOURBON 2 33 16 29 25 35 1 20 9 5 1 6 6 30 13 4 5 1 -51.5% 81.3% -13.8% 40.0% | -56.7%
% KY CLARK 2 39 a4 23 30 21 3 8 10 0 4 11 20 21 35 0 2 2 12.8% -47.7% 30.4% -30.0% | 66.7%
£ | KY FAYETTE 1 638 516 764 718 708 106 222 204 176 111 150 230 532 491 176 164 142 -19.1%  48.1%  -6.0%  -1.4% | -7.7%
C | © |KY FRANKLIN 2 a1 14 21 25 34 4 10 7 13 4 12 16 21 32 11 15 9 -65.9% 50.0% 19.0% 36.0% | 52.4%
Z | KY JESSAMINE 2 154 104 109 165 149 31 36 47 35 37 56 43 114 136 40 43 43 -325%  4.8% 51.4% -9.7% | 19.3%
S | KY MADISON 3 282 274 357 308 245 47 69 82 47 43 95 86 198 224 6 14 9 -2.8% 30.3% -13.7% -205% | 13.1%
2 | KY scoTT 1 185 198 245 348 316 55 100 87 74 89 145 114 242 348 69 67 63 7.0% 23.7% 42.0% -9.2% | 43.8%
KY WOODFORD 1 55 51 72 112 101 23 23 24 31 25 28 37 70 90 19 20 25 73% 41.2% 55.6% -9.8% | 28.6%
14 552 | 1,228 294 -14.7% 11.5%
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION

CHATTANOOGA /7 KNOXVILLE /7 TRI-CITIES

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
L | GA CATOOSA 2 112 74 107 130 107 16 32 23 36 26 42 26 71 94 2 9 5 -33.9% 44.6% 215% -17.7% | 32.4%
= | GA WALKER 5 64 55 53 79 89 13 31 24 21 19 28 35 68 82 5 10 4 -14.1%  -36% 49.1% 12.7% | 20.6%
D | < |GA WHITFIELD 1 53 37 28 36 53 8 19 15 11 14 28 22 42 64 4 8 7 -30.2% -24.3% 28.6% 47.2% | 52.4%
5 TN BRADLEY 2 212 222 260 291 337 107 58 106 66 88 106 68 271 262 6 9 4 47% 17.1% 11.9% 158% | -3.3%
TN HAMILTON 9 784 754 1,013 950 919 220 241 249 209 249 277 289 710 815 26 24 28 -3.8% 34.4% -62% -33% | 14.8%
19
TN ANDERSON 3 123 48 65 73 81 16 19 29 17 17 30 31 64 78 1 1 6 -61.0% 35.4% 12.3% 11.0% | 21.9%
w | TN BLOUNT 5 221 182 264 388 378 67 99 113 99 101 143 95 279 339 31 31 35 -17.6% 451% 47.0%  -2.6% | 21.5%
— | TN HAMBLEN 2 47 a4 67 42 50 7 14 17 12 23 23 17 38 63 1 5 5 -6.4% 52.3% -37.3% 19.0% | 65.8%
= | TN JEFFERSON 2 111 62 68 124 100 12 33 41 14 33 48 50 86 131 7 3 16 -441%  9.7% 82.4% -19.4% | 52.3%
E | & | TN KNOX 3 786 707 895 1,149 1,209 283 313 331 282 281 428 316 927 1,025 100 90 71 -10.1% 26.6% 28.4%  52% | 10.6%
O | TN LOUDON 5 161 123 121 187 223 40 48 52 83 57 56 80 140 193 26 30 25 -236% -16% 545% 19.3% | 37.9%
Z | TN MONROE 2 55 56 43 46 64 15 14 13 22 17 14 21 42 52 4 17 11 1.8% -232%  7.0% 39.1% | 23.8%
X | TN ROANE 5 75 55 66 53 71 13 19 18 21 13 24 20 50 57 8 22 12 -26.7% 20.0% -19.7% 34.0% | 14.0%
TN SEVIER 4 170 143 170 251 223 40 63 61 59 53 86 86 164 225 11 14 15 -15.9% 18.9% 47.6% -11.2% | 37.2%
31
o | TN CARTER 2 75 57 a4 51 54 11 21 15 7 6 16 8 47 30 1 1 0 240% -228% 15.9%  5.9% | -36.2%
& | TN GREENE 5 106 119 80 89 84 17 31 14 22 20 23 26 62 69 1 6 6 12.3% -32.8% 11.3% -56% | 11.3%
= | TN HAWKINS 4 29 19 12 8 12 2 5 3 2 4 5 5 10 14 0 0 1 -345% -36.8% -33.3% 50.0% | 40.0%
F | G | TN SULLIVAN 4 239 183 210 275 220 46 54 76 44 34 71 79 176 184 18 9 5 -234% 14.8% 31.0% -20.0% 4.5%
< | TN WASHINGTON 3 326 243 278 314 235 51 57 62 65 69 102 81 170 252 16 18 24 255% 14.4% 12.9% -252% | 48.2%
& |vA scoTT 1 24 18 29 24 12 5 3 3 1 5 6 4 11 15 0 0 0 -250% 61.1% -17.2% -50.0% | 36.4%
VA WASHINGTON 3 115 137 88 82 71 19 21 13 18 14 24 19 53 57 15 12 15 19.1% -35.8% -6.8% -13.4% 7.5%
22 13.8% -18.4% | 17.4%
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION

ASHEVILLE /7 UPSTATE /7 COLUMBIA

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
NC BUNCOMBE 4 540 512 613 757 829 174 223 234 198 229 232 240 631 701 82 138 139 5.2% 19.7% 235%  95% | 11.1%
NC HAYWOOD 2 130 89 86 118 124 26 34 32 32 25 33 35 92 93 10 26 16 -315% -34% 37.2%  5.1% 1.1%
W | NC HENDERSON 1 226 205 238 310 344 63 115 96 70 93 111 142 274 346 42 55 54 -93% 16.1% 30.3% 11.0% | 26.3%
2 |NC JACKSON 2 157 105 121 154 168 30 33 65 40 28 29 54 128 111 51 51 56 -33.1% 152% 27.3%  9.1% | -13.3%
G | & |NC MACON 1 82 77 73 76 107 23 23 28 33 19 26 18 74 63 18 40 12 6.1% -52%  4.1% 40.8% | -14.9%
& |NC MADISON 1 49 47 42 40 54 14 14 15 11 17 20 23 43 60 7 8 11 -41% -10.6% -4.8% 35.0% | 39.5%
» |NC McDOWELL 2 108 97 84 101 103 20 31 25 27 23 13 26 76 62 14 27 22 -10.2% -13.4% 20.2%  2.0% | -18.4%
< |NC POLK 1 42 40 46 41 50 14 12 11 13 17 18 14 37 49 1 11 7 -48% 15.0% -10.9% 22.0% | 32.4%
NC RUTHERFORD 2 109 81 102 147 81 18 18 28 17 21 29 29 64 79 10 14 10 257% 25.9% 44.1% -44.9% | 23.4%
NC TRANSYLVANIA 1 89 62 73 59 80 18 27 10 25 17 19 20 55 56 18 22 18 -30.3% 17.7% -19.2%  35.6% 1.8%

17
SC ABBEVILLE 1 52 35 22 34 42 11 12 12 7 4 12 5 35 21 1 0 0 -32.7% -37.1% 545% 23.5% | -40.0%
w | SC ANDERSON 2 274 271 414 531 692 159 203 151 179 143 219 210 513 572 108 140 97 -1.1% 52.8% 28.3% 30.3% | 11.5%
= | SC GREENVILLE 7 1,169 1,289 1,869 2025 2,152 433 580 657 482 544 685 637 | 1670 1,866 408 452 398 10.3% 45.0%  83%  6.3% | 11.7%
H £ | sC GREENWOOD 1 50 50 114 78 83 17 18 29 19 21 28 15 64 64 0 0 0 0.0% 128.0% -31.6%  6.4% 0.0%
» | SC LAURENS 4 61 53 47 62 62 10 17 23 12 16 16 29 50 61 4 8 1 -131% -11.3% 31.9%  0.0% | 22.0%
& | SC OCONEE 4 181 195 173 229 235 62 49 72 52 60 96 55 183 211 49 47 33 77% -11.3% 32.4%  2.6% | 15.3%
SC PICKENS 5 161 249 172 253 300 70 78 68 84 121 88 87 216 296 59 57 45 54.7% -30.9% 47.1% 18.6% | 37.0%
SC SPARTANBURG 3 524 501 680 966 1,049 237 243 275 294 303 369 387 755 1,059 139 132 80 -4.4% 357% 42.1%  8.6% | 40.3%

27
% SC LEXINGTON 9 1,140 1,143 1,340 1506 1,279 345 299 335 300 382 408 399 979 1,189 119 165 128 03% 17.2% 12.4% -15.1% | 21.5%
S | SC NEWBERRY 2 69 57 78 77 55 7 13 19 16 14 23 21 39 58 2 5 6 -17.4% 36.8% -1.3% -28.6% | 48.7%
I | S |SC RICHLAND 5 1,009 981 1,175 1443 1,071 222 310 270 269 279 303 220 802 802 91 78 122 2.8% 19.8% 22.8% -25.8% 0.0%
3 | SC sALUDA 2 34 23 31 31 25 5 11 6 3 5 5 10 22 20 1 1 2 -324% 34.8%  0.0% -19.4% | -9.1%

(@)

18 2,252 2,204 2,624 650 | 1,842 258 -2.1% 16.5% 12.3%
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HICKORY / CHARLOTTE / TRIAD

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ. FT
ANNUAL QUARTERLY OR WITH PERMIT VALUE ANNUAL
PERMIT OVER $400,000
#OF YTD=Q1+Q2+Q3 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
CODE 2014 2015 YTD VS Vs VS VS VS
MARKET ST COUNTY OFFICES|| 2010 2011 2012 2014 01 Q2 Q3 Q4 01 Q2 Q3| 2014 2015| 2013 2014 2015 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
> | NC ALEXANDER 1 a4 29 33 50 10 19 11 10 7 15 20 40 42 9 9 6 -34.1% 13.8% 515%  0.0% 5.0%
&r |NC BURKE 2 101 77 72 94 17 29 21 27 22 29 45 67 96 21 18 23 -238% -65%  5.6% 23.7% | 43.3%
O |NC CALDWELL 1 87 77 65 95 23 30 21 21 23 21 27 74 71 27 39 34 -115% -15.6% 32.3% 10.5% | -4.1%
J & | NC CATAWBA 1 167 136 144 229 51 53 76 49 63 67 81 180 211 62 52 56 -18.6%  5.9% 36.1% 16.8% | 17.2%
= |NC CLEVELAND 3 127 94 84 55 15 14 15 11 9 18 24 a4 51 6 3 2 -26.0% -10.6% 15.5% -43.3% | 15.9%
T | NC WILKES 2 85 90 81 91 15 25 27 24 17 37 30 67 84 0 6 3 59% -10.0% 14.8% -2.2% | 25.4%
10

NC CABARRUS 1 573 664 794 1,262 325 306 315 316 363 354 392 873 1,109 131 134 82 159% 19.6% 40.1% 13.5% | 27.0%
w | NC GASTON 2 448 324 427 599 115 178 172 134 206 253 217 535 676 17 25 25 277% 31.8%  0.0% 40.3% | 26.4%
— |NC IREDELL 1 319 403 538 748 178 191 191 188 225 262 297 611 784 211 249 240 26.3% 335% 20.1% 15.8% | 28.3%
'6 NC LINCOLN 1 140 150 151 368 80 113 92 83 107 136 122 435 365 93 85 95 71%  0.7% 78.8% 36.3% | -16.1%
K | 2 |NC MECKLENBURG|| 1 2,253 2,495 3,242 3,510 946 904 931 729 914 1,043  975| 2,092 2932 279 312 268 10.7% 29.9% 12.0% -3.3% | 40.2%
@ |NC ROWAN 1 152 97 130 163 31 50 45 37 36 54 56 323 146 30 a4 40 -36.2% 34.0% 22.3%  2.5% | -54.8%
< | NC STANLY 1 118 69 57 64 7 22 15 20 16 33 38 271 87 0 1 5 -415% -17.4% 49.1% -24.7% | -67.9%
O | NC UNION 1 466 547 757 1,061 205 308 264 194 244 256 254 845 754 479 434 340 17.4% 38.4% 50.6% -6.9% | -10.8%
SC LANCASTER 2 557 585 766 925 232 202 275 216 270 303 250 676 823 100 93 121 50% 30.9% 36.9% -11.8% | 21.7%
SC YORK 5 819 696 1,012 1,348 290 335 427 296 409 491 521 867 1,421 378 245 262 -15.0% 45.4% 33.4% -0.1% | 63.9%

16 25.3%
NC ALAMANCE 4 381 346 323 550 145 149 139 117 162 190 132 433 484 14 28 10 9.2% -6.6% 53.9% 10.7% | 11.8%
QO |NC DAVIDSON 3 232 205 194 260 54 87 59 60 68 99 93 200 260 15 26 15 -11.6%  -5.4% 222%  9.7% | 30.0%
L | < [Nc paviE 1 61 34 39 86 18 23 18 27 15 39 38 59 92 5 9 9 -44.3% 14.7% 30.8% 68.6% | 55.9%
@ |NC FORSYTH 2 711 792 723 955 166 303 248 238 274 274 242 717 790 37 68 41 11.4% -8.7% 165% 13.4% | 10.2%
F |NC GUILFORD 3 723 663 850 1,148 257 296 329 266 304 363 285 882 952 152 148 152 -83% 28.2% 29.3%  45% 7.9%
NC RANDOLPH 2 234 174 155 167 25 48 48 46 43 57 98 121 198 2 7 5 -256% -10.9%  3.9%  3.7% | 63.6%
15 2,342 2,214 2,284 754 866 1,022 888 | 2,412 225 15.1%
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION

TRIANGLE /7 FAYETTEVILLE /7 ROCKY MOUNT

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
W |NC CHATHAM 2 269 257 306 452 557 132 153 141 131 114 169 131 426 414 178 228 191 -45% 191% 47.7% 232% | -2.8%
% |NC DURHAM 1 832 947 1,000 1,152 1,264 322 300 345 297 330 417 518 967 1,265 36 63 43 138%  5.6% 152%  9.7% | 30.8%
O |[NC FRANKLIN 1 158 120 169 233 220 56 65 41 58 58 98 85 162 241 28 15 9 241% 40.8% 37.9% -5.6% | 48.8%
M | 2 |NC JOHNSTON 6 598 408 492 784 931 225 252 243 211 237 342 259 720 838 54 54 29 -31.8% 20.6% 59.3% 18.8% | 16.4%
< INC LEE 1 110 114 83 86 81 19 19 16 27 24 25 25 54 74 15 24 16 3.6% -27.2%  3.6% -5.8% | 37.0%
£ |NC ORANGE 3 250 211 220 177 238 39 42 87 70 43 69 53 168 165 69 79 69 -156%  4.3% -195% 34.5% | -1.8%
NC WAKE 10 3,641 3437 5008 6,740 5733 | 1420 1571 1561 1,181 | 1,448 1,845 1536 | 4,552 4,829| 1541 1456 1,202 5.6% 45.7% 34.6% -14.9% 6.1%

24 5,858 5,494 7,278 2,254 2,965 7,049 1,921 1,919 32.2%
W |NC CUMBERLAND 4 1,055 1,059 982 965 814 162 238 260 154 182 159 180 660 521 96 96 68 04% -7.3% -1.7% -15.6% | -21.1%
T | NC HARNETT 4 831 514 510 857 691 186 178 151 176 197 229 210 515 636 32 22 19 -38.1% -0.8% 68.0% -19.4% | 23.5%
N | > |NC HOKE 2 555 406 405 292 234 71 65 59 39 52 68 64 195 184 42 2 2 -26.8% -02% -27.9% -19.9% | -5.6%
5> |NC MOORE 6 366 396 420 473 549 107 159 132 151 99 146 150 398 395 50 34 35 82%  6.1% 12.6% 16.1% | -0.8%
< |NC SAMPSON 1 93 70 88 76 61 12 14 16 19 22 17 20 42 59 10 6 8 247% 257% -13.6% -19.7% | 40.5%

17 10.7%
E |Nc EDGECOMBE 25 37 27 18 29 11 3 2 4 2 1 4 1 9 6 - 0 0 27.0% -333% 61.1% -63.2% | -30.8%
S |NC GREENE 1 9 9 11 34 35 6 6 2 21 2 5 8 14 15 - 0 0 0.0% 222% 209.1%  3.4% 5.9%
O |NC LENOIR 3 32 39 37 45 32 9 5 9 9 4 8 6 23 18 - 7 0 21.9% -5.1% 21.6% -29.6% | -20.6%
0 = |NC NASH 15 175 165 127 165 96 17 36 21 22 27 59 37 74 123 - 3 0 5.7% -23.0% 29.9% -41.8% | 66.2%
T |NC PITT 4 434 336 390 430 277 51 104 69 53 66 124 120 224 310 - 13 33 -226% 16.1% 10.3% -35.6% | 38.5%
S |NC WAYNE 3 279 205 263 277 171 57 43 42 29 40 79 53 142 172 - 0 1 -265% 28.3%  53% -38.4% | 21.4%
O |NC WILSON 2 125 87 116 105 89 29 14 32 14 20 37 29 75 86 - 4 5 -304% 33.3% -95% -15.2% | 14.7%

x

17 962 1,085 12.8% 30.4%
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION
SUMMARY OF ALL MARKETS

ANNUAL QUARTERLY YTD PERMIT VALUE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014 2015 2013 2014
ST MARKET Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 (YTD = Q1+Q2+Q3)

A IN EVANSVILLE - - - 409 633 131 144 207 151 132 169 210 482 511 $105,611,582  $136,926,370 $150,884,581
B KY LOUISVLLE 1193 1375 1538 1,379 1,707 327 391 533 456 390 458 485 1,251 1,333 $626,133,218  $896,093,710 $566,269,644
C KY LEXINGTON 889 1043 904 920 1,004 231 298 259 216 172 277 274 788 723 $421,207,588  $532,802,824 $423,744,789
D TN CHATTANOOGA 807 915 869 769 936 216 248 253 219 208 224 184 717 616 $264,796,130  $414,892,245 $317,998,285
E TN KNOXVILLE 1170 1171 1656 1,214 1,317 293 334 341 349 263 383 379 968 1,025 $531,002,655 $615,190,488 $641,556,270
F TN TRI-CITIES 566 633 628 666 642 148 171 159 164 185 166 178 478 529 $278,890,212  $253,695,866 $196,528,706
G NC ASHEVILLE 888 771 1248 1,089 1,149 280 324 243 302 350 411 291 847 1,052 $323,497,323  $398,773,287  $555,109,559
H SC UPSTATE 1913 2101 2473 2,261 2,533 531 684 727 591 660 747 916 1,942 2,323 $808,203,712 $1,024,438,160 $1,401,393,281
| SC COLUMBIA - - - - - 272 324 386 322 299 478 224 982 1,001 -~ $402,881,120 $438,448,675
J NC HICKORY 587 592 752 665 636 156 156 172 152 168 283 211 484 662 $249,740,378  $373,569,862 $219,889,405
K NC CHARLOTTE 3286 4071 4589 4,841 4,536 | 1,130 1,153 1,083 1,170 | 1,136 1,403 1,288 3,366 3,827 $2,577,202,246 $2,421,135,703 $2,054,682,824
L NC TRIAD 1538 1832 1895 1,913 1,964 454 516 549 445 506 548 557 1,519 1,611 $311,940,465 $867,909,774 $1,009,630,020
M NC TRIANGLE 2127 2451 2805 3,180 3,225 675 783 918 849 809 861 874 2,376 2,544 $2,269,701,353 $2,577,373,917 $2,242,518,986
N NC FAYETTEVILLE 0 0 0 941 863 196 205 237 225 196 232 204 638 632 $262,119,474  $335,361,234  $383,772,751
(0] NC ROCKY MOUNT -- -- -- -- -- - 43 54 35 103 157 162 - 422 -- -~ $323,643,787

14964 16955 19357 20247 21,145 | 5040 5774 6,121 5646 | 5577 6,797 6437 | 16838 18811 |  $9,030,046,336 $11251044,560 $10,926,071563
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION
EVANSVILLE /7 LOUISVILLE / LEXINGTON

ANNUAL QUARTERLY YTD PERMIT VALUE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
MARKET COUNTY Q2 Q3 Q4 Q2 (YTD = Q1+Q2+Q3) YTD
w | IN VANDERBURGH -- -- -- 224 411 91 97 137 86 88 108 135 325 331 $21,013,636 $53,389,902 $72,456,736
= | IN WARRICK -- -- -- 66 42 10 7 17 8 6 10 16 34 32 $21,659,228 $17,321,211 $5,024,632
A a KY DAVIESS -- -- -- 87 133 17 30 43 43 29 34 43 90 106 $52,134,037 $58,909,387 $53,872,302
<2t KY HENDERSON -- -- -- 32 47 13 10 10 14 9 17 16 33 42 $10,804,681 $7,305,870 $19,530,911
>
Ll
409 633 131 144 207 151 132 169 210 482 511 $105,611,582 $136,926,370 $150,884,581
IN CLARK 124 153 163 118 145 25 50 41 29 46 44 43 116 133 $29,496,366 $41,802,051 $21,900,864
IN FLOYD 70 77 56 55 73 10 25 20 18 9 32 23 55 64 $36,305,817 $19,217,495 $10,848,106
w | IN HARRISON 13 24 13 1 2 0 2 0 0 1 6 1 2 8 $3,100,000 N/A $545,000
; KY BULLITT 13 24 46 38 40 6 10 11 13 7 11 18 27 36 $57,216,759 $25,384,240 $38,631,860
B a KY HARDIN 36 142 134 149 112 11 19 50 32 42 44 49 80 135 $2,228,000 $3,361,495 $20,103,610
5 KY JEFFERSON 870 835 974 901 1,078 228 214 331 305 227 248 287 773 762 $404,201,355 $743,458,314 $389,287,916
O | KY NELSON 8 67 69 46 91 18 25 24 24 23 27 24 67 74 $9,382,324 $18,191,237 $10,096,306
= | KY OLDHAM 34 34 50 44 59 16 15 21 7 9 15 8 52 32 $49,316,314 $16,040,000 $37,016,968
KY SHELBY 14 13 28 17 70 7 23 24 16 18 24 20 54 62 $33,546,435 $26,172,898 $36,952,841
KY SPENCER 11 6 5 10 37 6 8 11 12 8 7 12 25 27 $1,339,848 $2,465,980 $886,173
1,193 1,375 1,538 1,379 1,707 327 391 533 456 390 458 485 1,251 1,333 $626,133,218 $896,093,710 $566,269,644
KY BOURBON 13 9 14 7 14 3 3 3 5 7 5 5 9 17 $2,046,500 $2,982,713 $1,500,654
= | KY CLARK 35 39 22 30 28 6 8 12 2 5 12 7 26 24 $19,957,638 $6,842,500 $11,366,170
O | KY FAYETTE 539 655 539 581 621 142 188 159 132 83 156 167 489 406 $296,617,110  $287,037,261  $235,221,997
C G KY FRANKLIN 54 51 53 38 66 9 23 13 21 15 20 15 45 50 $19,766,236 $79,808,068 $57,071,340
Z | KY JESSAMINE 36 40 33 25 51 13 15 11 12 8 11 11 39 30 $6,908,000 $53,347,362 $11,659,089
5 KY MADISON 143 164 171 148 123 32 31 36 24 27 48 39 99 114 $42,385,273 $40,478,697 $38,197,007
= | KY SCOTT 53 63 54 59 73 18 21 17 17 18 12 26 56 56 $13,427,275 $36,489,032 $46,523,042
KY WOODFORD 16 22 18 32 28 8 9 8 3 9 13 4 25 26 $20,099,556 $25,817,191 $22,205,490
889 1,043 904 920 1,004 231 298 259 216 172 277 274 788 723 $421,207,588 $532,802,824 $423,744,789
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION
CHATTANOOGA /7 KNOXVILLE /7 TRI-CITIES

ANNUAL QUARTERLY YTD PERMIT VALUE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
MARKET COUNTY Q3 (YTD = Q1+Q2+Q3) YTD
GA CATOOSA 48 74 44 37 59 9 22 17 11 10 18 11 43 39 $5,068,407 $30,982,393 $13,754,190
I: GA WALKER 49 32 68 32 53 6 16 6 25 12 15 15 28 42 $9,200,794 $7,019,876 $25,665,610
D § GA WHITFIELD 57 77 67 76 73 13 17 27 16 22 37 18 57 77 $25,220,953 $29,998,980 $50,638,151
O | TN BRADLEY 96 113 163 101 96 18 18 28 32 28 15 22 64 65 $42,980,945 $24,682,713 $30,311,684
TN HAMILTON 557 619 527 523 655 170 175 175 135 136 139 118 520 393 $182,325,031  $322,208,283 $197,628,650
807 915 869 769 936 216 248 253 219 208 224 184 717 616 $264,796,130 $414,892,245 $317,998,285
TN ANDERSON 51 41 89 59 78 22 16 15 25 19 20 23 53 62 $20,950,581 $20,175,551  $149,407,504
TN BLOUNT 86 104 106 89 96 16 27 30 23 30 29 30 73 89 $71,039,382 $64,111,896 $35,489,810
Y | TN HAMBLEN 38 48 58 51 67 14 23 14 16 4 18 37 51 59 $15,318,595 $38,795,054 $32,212,485
g TN JEFFERSON 13 11 15 12 25 4 7 6 8 6 9 3 17 18 $3,094,704 $8,206,613 $7,723,458
E X [ TN KNOX 771 753 1,090 795 747 156 196 202 193 133 208 194 554 535 $304,028,104  $315,639,462 $273,922,343
<23 TN LOUDON 28 19 52 22 58 13 9 10 26 10 14 19 32 43 $13,552,619 $30,670,584 $17,434,171
¥ [ TN MONROE 2 10 2 2 8 1 0 1 6 0 6 3 2 9 $873,000 $2,142,000 $14,608,190
TN ROANE 8 19 33 15 29 8 4 6 11 12 6 10 18 28 $3,605,342 $8,874,335 $4,174,108
TN SEVIER 173 166 211 169 209 59 52 57 41 49 73 60 168 182 $98,540,328 $126,574,993 $106,584,201
1,170 1,171 1,656 1,214 1,317 293 334 341 349 263 383 379 968 1,025 $531,002,655 $615,190,488 $641,556,270
TN CARTER 39 36 26 37 22 2 3 8 9 8 8 14 13 30 $7,689,188 $16,192,585 $5,211,295
D | TN GREENE 73 56 62 66 83 19 28 15 21 15 20 19 62 54 $19,688,507 $15,978,458 $29,220,895
E TN HAWKINS 10 35 13 12 12 1 1 5 5 3 6 4 7 13 $1,014,465 $547,000 $5,029,370
F Q | TN SULLIVAN 186 169 211 249 236 58 50 61 67 74 62 58 169 194 $156,566,877  $123,805,600 $82,718,228
o | TN WASHINGTON 170 188 176 191 187 45 61 38 43 57 a7 59 144 163 $53,745,336 $59,955,159 $43,591,583
= | vA scoTT 3 9 17 16 15 4 2 7 2 5 1 2 13 8 $14,656,000 $3,568,805 $511,329
VA WASHINGTON 85 140 123 95 87 19 26 25 17 23 22 22 70 67 $25,529,839 $33,648,259 $30,246,006
566 633 628 666 642 148 171 159 164 185 166 178 478 529 $278,890,212  $253,695,866 $196,528,706
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION
ASHEVILLE /7 UPSTATE /7 COLUMBIA

ANNUAL QUARTERLY YTD PERMIT VALUE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
MARKET COUNTY QZ Q4 QZ (YTD = Q1+Q2+Q3) YTD
NC BUNCOMBE 456 236 444 414 512 103 171 110 128 133 107 133 384 373 $134,725,798  $236,083,615 $176,641,496
NC HAYWOOD 64 36 65 50 59 10 12 19 18 19 16 26 41 61 $17,358,119 $11,372,702 $20,218,447
w | NC HENDERSON 139 225 417 334 238 80 55 48 55 101 205 40 183 346 $63,738,557 $58,089,148 $75,464,747
= | NC JACKSON 12 19 34 61 41 14 8 11 8 12 3 7 33 22 $35,994,635 $12,174,005 $6,190,963
G S [NC MACON 64 68 49 51 70 17 13 6 34 18 15 11 36 44 $20,794,030 $12,925,019 $7,770,819
g NC MADISON 7 4 58 4 10 2 3 1 4 3 3 4 6 10 $82,000 $183,650 $15,631,000
gt't NC McDOWELL 25 49 33 35 28 7 6 9 6 11 12 16 22 39 $19,681,717 $6,670,184 $11,791,362
NC POLK 14 14 24 24 70 20 14 11 25 29 12 10 45 51 $7,355,541 $25,050,083 $8,677,116
NC RUTHERFORD 60 80 91 70 69 18 23 15 13 15 18 27 56 60 $15,087,162 $30,114,002 $214,948,061
NC TRANSYLVANIA 47 40 33 46 52 9 19 13 11 9 20 17 41 46 $8,679,764 $6,110,879 $17,775,548
888 771 1,248 1,089 1,149 280 324 243 302 350 411 291 847 1,052 $323,497,323 $398,773,287 $555,109,559
SC ABBEVILLE 52 39 28 29 28 8 7 7 6 8 14 10 22 32 $3,390,503 $1,017,354 $2,646,020
w SC ANDERSON 295 234 286 237 296 73 73 79 71 77 62 66 225 205 $49,365,667 $72,210,891 $101,988,797
= | SC GREENVILLE 661 753 986 746 932 156 256 287 233 224 318 343 699 885 $408,799,602  $537,142,636  $600,580,867
H ,‘E SC GREENWOOD 120 147 165 116 129 30 39 33 27 32 23 18 102 73 $31,388,327  $110,736,062 $79,173,800
'-,5_’ SC LAURENS 39 44 27 23 41 5 12 3 21 11 8 7 20 26 $5,967,556 $11,106,703 $7,813,514
D [ SC OCONEE 126 103 132 152 122 28 21 45 28 26 25 32 94 83 $52,536,554 $45,643,757 $12,408,029
SC PICKENS 135 115 261 386 178 57 50 43 28 49 47 34 150 130 $95,799,401 $47,206,603 $33,725,741
SC SPARTANBURG 485 666 588 572 807 174 226 230 177 233 250 406 630 889 $160,956,102  $199,374,154  $563,056,513
1,913 2,101 2,473 2,261 2,533 531 684 727 591 660 747 916 1,942 2,323 $808,203,712 $1,024,438,160 $1,401,393,281
<L | SC LEXINGTON -- -- -- -- -- 68 86 88 97 86 103 109 242 298 -- $72,424,468 $21,354,344
g SC NEWBERRY -- -- -- -- -- 19 15 10 10 27 21 19 44 67 -- $13,822,039 $26,631,375
| S SC RICHLAND -- -- -- -- -- 181 211 281 213 183 349 93 673 625 -- $309,872,114  $385,894,899
(_D' SC SALUDA -- -- -- -- -- 4 12 7 2 3 5 3 23 11 -- $6,762,499 $4,568,057
o
272 324 386 322 299 478 224 982 1001 $402,881,120 $438,448,675
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION
HICKORY /7 CHARLOTTE / TRIAD

ANNUAL QUARTERLY YTD PERMIT VALUE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
MARKET COUNTY Q3 Q1 (YTD = Q1+Q2+Q3) YTD
NC ALEXANDER 18 10 16 18 19 6 4 4 5 7 12 3 14 22 $3,827,390 $1,544,500 $12,746,368
E NC BURKE 86 89 215 163 100 26 20 26 28 19 108 54 72 181 $30,183,903 $12,269,057 $8,590,618
J g NC CALDWELL 79 89 75 73 67 13 19 21 14 15 17 11 53 43 $34,708,675 $154,183,296 $17,420,410
O | NC CATAWBA 208 213 253 266 259 69 64 71 55 90 103 99 204 292 $102,424,753  $110,568,222 $147,884,306
I [ NC CLEVELAND 117 87 85 71 104 21 26 31 26 19 24 24 78 67 $78,297,444 $92,362,667 $27,336,066
NC WILKES 79 104 108 74 87 21 23 19 24 18 19 20 63 57 $298,213 $2,642,120 $5,911,637
587 592 752 665 636 156 156 172 152 168 283 211 484 662 $249,740,378 $373,569,862 $219,889,405
NC CABARRUS 150 216 256 219 226 48 67 54 57 97 77 57 169 231 $35,620,521 $19,964,529 $44,742,587
NC GASTON 164 284 212 217 157 53 29 39 36 45 53 62 121 160 $137,282,279  $178,059,647 $106,716,374
w [ NC IREDELL 230 203 329 277 230 51 47 78 54 44 51 52 176 147 $73,821,499 $98,279,627 $39,044,772
I: NC LINCOLN 73 65 80 76 72 16 16 20 20 13 19 21 52 53 $28,750,656 $29,033,852 $11,478,786
K 9 NC MECKLENBURG 2,171 2,580 2,989 3,305 3,245 810 891 752 792 795 1,011 884 2,453 2,690 $1,797,208,644 $1,717,805,142 $1,451,650,481
E NC ROWAN 87 171 108 109 114 25 22 31 36 30 50 44 78 124 $69,923,308 $40,204,714 $62,736,508
T | NC STANLY 2 52 43 47 31 8 3 8 12 12 21 13 19 46 - - -
O | NC UNION 77 93 79 88 112 37 28 18 29 24 28 35 83 87 $38,306,226 $42,866,956 $67,855,743
SC LANCASTER 90 81 107 133 59 12 20 13 14 17 18 29 45 64 $126,092,277 $36,650,833 $45,788,351
SC YORK 242 326 386 370 290 70 30 70 120 59 75 91 170 225 $270,196,836  $258,270,403  $224,669,222
3,286 4,071 4,589 4,841 4,536 | 1,130 1,153 1,083 1,170 | 1,136 1,403 1,288 3,366 3,827 | $2,577,202,246 $2,421,135,703 $2,054,682,824
NC ALAMANCE 222 215 196 177 213 41 49 61 62 59 73 89 151 221 $85,941,283  $120,302,336  $349,153,420
a | NC DAVIDSON 128 125 146 150 134 31 40 32 31 37 33 37 103 107 $44,786,512 $39,578,426 $38,423,670
L <t | NC DAVIE 23 22 33 44 35 7 10 10 8 13 19 13 27 45 $36,419,102 $22,418,720 $69,242,688
& | NC FORSYTH 420 580 577 493 564 138 165 141 120 125 169 155 444 449 $48,433,703  $228,290,877 $210,912,948
F | NC GUILFORD 657 806 858 972 938 225 227 283 203 247 225 241 735 713 $71,256,408  $439,150,755 $308,600,098
NC RANDOLPH 88 84 85 77 80 12 25 22 21 25 29 22 59 76 $25,103,457 $18,168,660 $33,297,196
1,538 1,832 1,895 1,913 1,964 454 516 549 445 506 548 557 1,519 1,611 $311,940,465 $867,909,774 $1,009,630,020
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
09/30/15 EDITION
TRIANGLE /7 FAYETTEVILLE /7 ROCKY MOUNT

ANNUAL QUARTERLY YTD PERMIT VALUE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
MARKET COUNTY QZ Q3 Q4 Q1 QZ (YTD = Q1+Q2+Q3) YTD
NC CHATHAM 62 78 76 71 84 22 19 20 23 18 20 30 61 68 $27,843,802 $42,561,791 $21,932,067
W [ NC DURHAM 444 672 732 781 712 147 203 170 192 186 217 221 520 624 $774,684,439  $531,187,117 $662,210,882
O | NC FRANKLIN 39 19 18 14 12 3 1 0 8 4 6 1 4 11 $5,724,463 $1,673,540 $3,656,552
M <Zt NC JOHNSTON 172 125 154 158 111 30 31 29 21 31 33 35 90 99 $116,943,709  $162,727,416 $37,373,527
e | NC LEE 75 48 75 86 114 15 26 48 25 23 36 29 89 88 $15,523,000 $29,288,400 $7,949,185
= [ NC ORANGE 136 104 135 126 192 39 62 75 16 20 23 32 176 75 $35,001,006 $39,173,756 $18,740,702
NC WAKE 1,199 1,405 1,615 1,944 2,000 419 441 576 564 527 526 526 1,436 1,579 $1,293,980,934 $1,770,761,897 $1,490,656,071
2,127 2,451 2,805 3,180 3,225 675 783 918 849 809 861 874 2,376 2,544 $2,269,701,353 $2,577,373,917 $2,242,518,986
w [ NC CUMBERLAND - - - 504 492 118 113 123 138 103 117 99 354 319 $140,567,774  $202,094,793  $192,087,835
E‘ NC HARNETT 62 44 62 168 124 19 36 39 30 32 41 38 94 111 $11,727,347 $69,211,942 $7,134,194
N > | NC HOKE - - - 48 18 4 3 9 2 7 9 6 16 22 $58,280,529 $2,292,105 $5,973,018
E NC MOORE - - - 173 156 35 34 47 40 31 42 35 116 108 $46,986,330 $53,251,310 $47,302,471
w [ NC SAMPSON - - - 48 73 20 19 19 15 23 23 26 58 72 $4,557,494 $8,511,084 $131,275,233
941 863 196 205 237 225 196 232 204 638 632 $262,119,474 $335,361,234 $383,772,751
E NC EDGECOMBE - - - - - -- 1 3 1 5 6 6 -- 17 - - $7,765,104
2D [ NC GREENE -- -- -- -- -- - 2 3 0 2 6 6 - 14 -- -- $15,541,684
O | NC LENOIR -- - - - - -- 8 8 4 3 14 10 -- 27 - - $68,230,935
O = NC NASH -- -- -- -- -- - 4 9 4 20 23 37 - 80 -- -- $19,074,706
; NC PITT -- - - - - -- 17 11 16 31 58 46 -- 135 - - $158,197,690
O | NC WAYNE -- -- -- -- -- - 7 9 3 18 25 34 - 77 -- -- $35,054,340
8 NC WILSON -- - - - - -- 4 11 7 24 25 23 -- 72 - - $19,779,328
43 54 35 103 157 162 422 $323,643,787
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Building Permit Trend Reports

-Residential and Commercial-

Hello Matt Stone,

| am pleased to advise the 06/30/17 editions of our FREE TREND
REPORTS are now available for your review.

Residential Report Commercial Report

« Our trend reports are produced as a courtesy to our subscribers and
industry contacts each calendar quarter.

« Feel free to forward this e-mail to your associates that have an interest
in construction industry news and building growth trends.
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

Date: Tuesday, June 6, 2017 11:00:00 AM
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
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 3:18:00 PM

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
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 3:18:21 PM

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
Subject: FW: Erosion Control
Date: Monday, April 6, 2015 1:15:00 PM

My latest correspondence with Mrs. Taylor.

From: Joseph DeSantola [mailto:jdesantola@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 1:13 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Re: Erosion Control

Thank you Matt. The Buncombe County Building Inspector ofice is incredible and you are a
key reason.

Best regards,
Megan

On Mon, Apr 6, 2015 at 10:03 AM, Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org> wrote:
Hey Megan,

Just wanted to touch base and let you know I did speak with the county’s Erosion Control
Department regarding your concerns with the silt fence. They said they have the subdivision
on a regularly scheduled inspection list to make sure the erosion control measures in place are
being maintained and will look at re-inspect the silt fence on their next visit.

Let me know if you have any other questions.
Matt

Matt Stone, Inspections Coordinator
Buncombe County Permits & Inspections
30 Valley Street

Asheville, NC 28801

(828)250-5364 office
828) 250-6082 fax
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes
Subject: FW: House Bill 255
Date: Thursday, April 2, 2015 12:07:44 PM

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

To: wanda.greene@buncombecounty.org; Jon Creighton
Subject: FW: Lake Drive

Date: Monday, November 24, 2014 11:46:00 AM

Hey Wanda,

| think you have dealt with Mr. Moore on another issued, but he was convinced my department is
responsible for inspections and repairs of the sidewalks in Enka Village. After a lengthy discussion
with him he understands | do not have jurisdiction but is still convinced the county has responsibility
and | am sure he will be contacting you and/or the commissioners when | call him back and tell him |
have looked into the issue further and the county will not be doing any repair work on the
sidewalks. | just wanted to give you both a heads up and | am missing anything on this let me know.

Thanks

From: Bill Moore [mailto:wpmfour@aol.com]
Sent: Friday, November 21, 2014 4:48 PM
To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: Lake Drive

Matt:

Great talking to you today! | really appreciate your kindness and willingness to help me chase down
how best to get Enka Village neighborhood side of sidewalks on Lake Drive repaired. There are
tripping hazards as well as general repairs and or sidewalk overall replacement needs there. My
opinion is it may be cheaper and make more sense to replace as opposed to repair of them due to
the age and condition they are in. Of course identifying who is responsible and how to enforce
maintenance must be established first.

Additionally thanks for trying to get me a PDF of the New Ingles plan that hopefully shows sidewalks
being put in there to connect existing Sandhill Rd. sidewalks to Ingles and Lake Drive sidewalk
mentioned above which connects now to existing sidewalk on Lake Drive and Sandhill Rd.

Have a great weekend?

Bill Moore cell 703-981-9081
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jerry Yates <JYates@ashevillenc.gov>
Date: November 5, 2014 at 1:40:07 PM EST

To: 'Bill Moore' <wpmfour@aol.com>
Cc: James Boone <jboone@ashevillenc.gov>, Chad Bandy <CBandy@ashevillenc.gov>,
Justin Rice <jrrice@ncdot.gov>, Anna G Henderson <aghenderson@ncdot.gov>, Alisa

McLaughlin <AMclaughlin@ashevillenc.gov>
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Subject: RE: Lake Drive

Mr. Moore,

Hope all is well. | enjoyed our talk yesterday. We spoke with the Contractor and the
repairs to the Gutter should be done Friday of this week. The sidewalk we were talking
about yesterday is not maintained by us. It appears to be private and with this being in
the County the City does not have any jurisdiction on it. | would recommend calling the
County permitting office and see if they have any enforcement or advice they can give
you. You may also check with the register of deeds and see if the owner is identified on
any plats.

Hope this helps!!

Jerry Yates

Streets Operations Manager
Public Works/ Street Division
P.o. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802
828-259-5459

b% Think Green! Please do not print this e-mail unless necessary

From: Bill Moore [mailto:wpmfour@aol.com]
Sent: Tuesday, November 04, 2014 1:50 PM

To: Alisa McLaughlin
Cc: Jerry Yates; James Boone; Chad Bandy; Justin Rice; Anna G Henderson
Subject: Re: Lake Drive

Tks!
and tks Jerry for offering to further check in to this. Much appreciated!

Bill Moore cell 703-981-9081
Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 4, 2014, at 12:15 PM, Alisa MclLaughlin <AMclaughlin@ashevillenc.gov> wrote:

Mr. Moore,

My maintenance maps state that these sidewalks are privately
maintained. They are not in the City limits and do not look to be
NCDOT maintained.

Hope this helps.

Customer Service Technician
Public Works/Streets Division
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828-259-5406

From: Bill Moore [mailto:wpmfour@aol.com]

Sent: Tuesday, November 04, 2014 11:46 AM

To: Jerry Yates

Cc: Alisa MclLaughlin; James Boone; Chad Bandy; Justin Rice; Anna G
Henderson

Subject: Re: Lake Drive

Jerry:

Who can tell me who maintains sidewalks on Lake Drive. Obe side on lake
side of road is new the other is old the elevation is one foot or more
where sidewalk section pads there have been pulled up by growing tree
roots. This is a hazard and | need your help in identifying responsible
party so repairs or replacement can be made. Is it the county? Someone
on this email thread should know answer.

Thanks,

Bill Moore cell 703-981-9081
Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 29, 2014, at 5:27 PM, Jerry Yates <JYates@ashevillenc.gov> wrote:

Mr. Moore,

Hope all is well. James Boone asked me to contact you in
reference to Lake Drive in the Biltmore Lake area. The City of
Asheville does not maintain the sidewalks on this road and
any other road in the Biltmore Lake area. James also
mentioned a water cut out there. Can you give me the
address where this cut is at, so | can follow up and get it
scheduled for repair?

Thanks!!!

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
Date: Monday, April 6, 2015 9:00:00 AM

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
Subject: FW: Meeting Request
Date: Monday, September 22, 2014 3:45:00 PM

This was the original request

From: Sidney McCormick [mailto:reception@davidgantt.com]
Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 11:31 AM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Meeting Request

Good Morning Mr. Stone,

Mr. David Gantt has requested | reach out to you and request you attend a Meeting with David
Gantt and Todd Williams to discuss construction cost reduction on Tuesday, September 23 at 2pm
at the County Commissioner’s Office.

Please let me know if you can attend.

Have a great day

Sidney McCormick

Administrative Assistant

David Gantt Law Office

82 Church Street, Asheville, NC 28801
Office: 828-252-2852 Ext. 110

Toll Free: 800-273-4002

Fax: 828-254-4539

Email: reception@davidgantt.com

P PS, think green. Do not print this email unless absolutely necessary.

confidential or proprletary information intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If
the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible to deliver it to
the intended recipient, you are hereby requested to notify us immediately and inform us of the fact that this
transmission has been received by someone other than its intended recipient. You are further notified that
any improper dissemination of the information contained in this transmission may be actionable.
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone; Bob Haynes

Subject: FW: NCACC Planning and Zoning Quick Response Request
Date: Monday, March 6, 2017 12:37:39 PM
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FYI

From: Amber Harris [mailto:amber.harris@ncacc.org]

Sent: Monday, March 06, 2017 12:31 PM

To: Amber Harris <amber.harris@ncacc.org>

Cc: Hugh Johnson <hugh.johnson@ncacc.org>

Subject: NCACC Planning and Zoning Quick Response Request

Good Afternoon Planning and Zoning Quick Response Team,

H252/Building Code Regulatory Reform was filed on Thursday. NCACC would like your input on the
potential impact to counties. Please review the bill, and respond with any insights you may have.

Please let me know if | can offer any clarification.
Thank you for all that you do!
Best,

Amber

Amber Harris

Grassroots Coordinator

N.C. Association of County Commissioners
Phone (919) 715-7654 | Fax (919) 733-1065
WWW.Nhcacc.or
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From: Matt Stone

To: Kathy Hughes; Jon Creighton; Michael C. Frue

Subject: FW: Open government request for public records permit 11-6766 for Onteora Oaks Subdivision
Date: Tuesday, October 6, 2015 10:11:00 AM

FYI

From: Chad Pierce [mailto:cpierce@ashevillenc.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, October 06, 2015 10:10 AM

To: Matt Stone

Cc: Kathy Hughes; Sarah Terwilliger

Subject: RE: Open government request for public records permit 11-6766 for Onteora Oaks Subdivision

Matt

| have already provided the information requested to Ms. Landis through a public records request
that she filed through the City. If she wants additional or different information she will need to
make that request through the proper channels at the City. | have cc’d Sarah Terwilliger on this e-
mail as she handled the original request from Ms. Landis.

Thanks
Chad

William C. Pierce, PE

Engineering Services Manager

City of Asheville - Water Resources Department
Phone: (828) 259-5420

Fax: (828)259-5710

From: Matt Stone [mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org]
Sent: Tuesday, October 06, 2015 9:53 AM

To: Chad Pierce
Cc: Kathy Hughes
Subject: FW: Open government request for public records permit 11-6766 for Onteora Oaks Subdivision

Hey Chad,

Can you provide the information Ms. Landis is requesting? Let me know if | can provide any
additional information.

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
Subject: FW: Parrish treehouse classification
Date: Thursday, June 9, 2016 8:12:00 AM

The county’s first legal treehouse

From: Michael Parrish [mailto:liveslowsailfast1@gmail.com]
Sent: Thursday, June 09, 2016 5:59 AM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: RE: Parrish treehouse classification

I appreciate you getting back so quickly, Matt! Soooo, if I want to avoid installing sprinklers,
then I would need to parcel off my five acres into ten individual lots with two treehouses per
lot? Is there anything else I may be missing? Thanks, Mike

PS....we should have our “punch list” completed and utilities in by the end of June, so hope to
apply for our final inspection at that time!

From: Matt Stone [mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org]
Sent: Wednesday, June 08, 2016 4:18 PM

To: Michael Parrish
Subject: RE: Parrish treehouse classification

Hey Michael,

You are correct that a single family dwelling falls under the NC Residential Code which does not
require a sprinkler system in one and two family dwellings, as long as each lot does not have more
than two dwellings on it. Once you exceed the two dwellings on an individual lot then it falls under
the NC Building Code which triggers the sprinkler requirements. Let me know if this does not
address your questions.

Matt

P.S. still have not receive any inspections reports from Bernie’s office.

From: Michael Parrish [mailto:liveslowsailfastl @gmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, June 08, 2016 5:51 AM

To: Matt Stone
Cc: Jason Young
Subject: Parrish treehouse classification

Happy Wednesday, Matt! [ wanted to clarify the classification of our treehouse, which I
believe is considered a “single family residence”? I have had various input from different
entities regarding a sprinkler system within the future treehouses, but not sure if this is a
requirement or a “best practice”? My understanding is that if we are a “single family
residence” then no sprinkler system is required? Would like to use these as all rental units, but
may consider selling them as individual parcels.

I have looked extensively, but not been able to access the code on sprinkler system
requirements, so any help you can give will be greatly appreciated! Thanks much, Mike
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: FW: Residential & Commercial Building Permit Trend Reports - 06/30/14 Editions
Date: Thursday, September 4, 2014 1:50:00 PM

Attachments: Residential Building Permit Trend Report - 2014-06-30.pdf

Commercial Building Permit Summary - 2014-06-30 edition.pdf

From: Dale Akins [mailto:dakins@themarketedge.com]

Sent: Thursday, September 04, 2014 1:46 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Residential & Commercial Building Permit Trend Reports - 06/30/14 Editions

To: Matt Stone
Buncombe County (NC) Code Enforcement

ATTACHED YOU WILL FIND THE 06/30/14 EDITIONS OF OUR:

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
side of the page next to the county name beginning on Page 2.

2) COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT SUMMARY. Please note: It is our belief that this report is
NOT a reliable "trend indicator" due to the differences in how commercial construction projects are
permitted. For example: permits for an apartment complex could be issued as 1 permit per building
or 1 permit per unit, depending upon the requirements of the local code enforcement office. This
difference will void any attempt to extract a meaningful comparison between counties or markets.
To obtain detailed commercial building permit reports, please feel free to call or correspond.

THESE REPORTS are produced each calendar quarter and e-mailed FREE OF CHARGE to our
customers and contacts. FEEL FREE TO FORWARD THIS E-MAIL TO YOUR ASSOCIATES WHO HAVE
AN INTEREST IN THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY.

Please accept my apologies for the delay in sending this edition of the trend reports. I have been
out of the office extensively dealing with a family medical emergency. If we can be of further
service in any way, please feel free to call or correspond.

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
06/30/14 EDITION
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
06/30/14 EDITION

SUMMARY OF ALL MARKETS

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ.
ANNUAL QUARTERLY FT OR WITH PERMIT ANNUAL
VALUE OVER $400,000
T YTD = Q1402 2010 2011 2012 2013 | 2014
For 2013 2014 YD || Ss” s ust Sus | s
orfices|| 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013| Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4| Q1 Q2| 2013 2014 || 2012 2013 2014 || 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013
MAP ST MARKET

A IN EVANSVILLE 8 717 720 676 731 648 136 148 209 155 124 205 284 329 0 108 71 0.4% -6.1% 8.1% -11.4% 15.8%
B IN LOUISVLLE 20 2,346 2,155 1836 2,616 2,674 605 826 714 529 577 768 1,431 1,345 384 463 244 -8.1% -14.8% 42.5% 2.2% -6.0%
C IN LEXINGTON 14 1,614 1,427 1,217 1,620 1,731 323 534 451 423 270 480 857 750 262 325 167 -11.6% -14.7% 33.1% 6.9% | -12.5%
D TN CHATTANOOGA 21 1,358 1,225 1,142 1,461 1,486 367 395 403 321 359 379 762 738 33 43 30 -9.8% -6.8% 27.9% 1.7% -3.1%
E TN KNOXVILLE 30 2,102 1,749 1420 1,759 2,313 555 579 653 526 493 622 1,134 1,115 166 189 74 -16.8% -18.8% 23.9% 31.5% -1.7%
F TN TRI-CITIES 22 939 914 776 741 843 167 228 261 187 170 234 395 404 42 51 37 -2.7% -15.1% -45% 13.8% 2.3%
G NC ASHEVILLE 17 1,825 1,532 1,315 1,478 1,803 422 457 479 445 393 531 879 924 212 253 171 -16.1% -14.2% 12.4% 22.0% 5.1%
H SC UPSTATE 27 2,623 2,472 2,643 3,491 4,178 1,014 1,221 972 971 1,000 1,200 2,235 2,200 591 768 386 -5.8% 6.9% 32.1% 19.7% -1.6%
| SC COLUMBIA 18 2,240 2,252 2,204 2,624 3,057 732 896 687 742 583 642 1,628 1,225 0 213 143 05% -2.1% 19.1% 16.5% | -24.8%
J NC HICKORY 10 732 611 503 479 598 137 129 161 171 131 170 266 301 98 125 71 -16.5% -17.7% -4.8% 24.8% 13.2%
K NC CHARLOTTE 16 6,254 5,845 6,030 7,874 9,869 2,459 2,771 2,563 2,076 2,504 2,574 5,230 5,078 1,072 1,718 842 -6.5% 3.2% 30.6% 25.3% -2.9%
L NC TRIAD 15 2,561 2,342 2,214 2,284 2,887 578 801 853 655 665 906 1,379 1,571 188 225 129 -8.6% -5.5% 3.2% 26.4% 13.9%
M NC TRIANGLE 24 5,634 5,858 5,494 7,278 9,624 2,472 2,644 2572 1,936 2,247 2,411 5,116 4,658 1,726 1,921 895 4.0% -6.2% 325% 32.2% -9.0%
N NC FAYETTEVILLE 17 2,812 2900 2445 2405 2,663 785 723 652 503 529 529 1,508 1,058 0 230 73 3.1% -15.7% -1.6% 10.7% | -29.8%
(o] NC ROCKY MOUNT 17 --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 209 --- --- --- --- --- - - - - -

276 33,757 32,002 29,915 36,841 44,374 | 10,752 12,352 11,630 9,640 | 10,045 11,860 | 23,104 6,152 6,698 3,333 23.2%

RECEIVE FREE UPDATES THE
THIS REPORT IS COMPILED EACH CALENDAR MARKET EDGEm

QUARTER AND DISTRIBUTED FREE OF CHARGE Information  »  Technology  +  Advantage .

VIA A PRIVATE E-MAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST.

REGISTER TO RECEIVE FREE UPDATES AT i

www.themarketedge.com COPYRIGHT 2014

OR SEND AN E-MAIL TO www.themarketedge.com
dakins@themarketedge.com 800-357-3343

PAGE 2 OF 7








RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
06/30/14 EDITION
EVANSVILLE / LOUISVILLE / LEXINGTON

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ.
ANNUAL QUARTERLY FT OR WITH PERMIT ANNUAL
VALUE OVER $400,000
#OF YTD = Q1+Q2 2010 2011 2012 2013 | 2014
CODE 2013 2014 YTD Vs Vs Vs Vs VS
MARKET ST COUNTY offices || 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Q1 Q2 Q3 04 Q1 Q2| 2013 2014 || 2012 2013 2014 || 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013
[Im]
—| IN VANDERBURGH 1 215 212 215 272 218 50 38 60 70 55 67 88 122 NA 49 31 -1.4%  14% 265% -19.9% | 38.6%
S| IN WARRICK 3 161 172 160 124 161 31 35 49 46 27 52 66 79 NA 18 11 6.8% -7.0% -22.5% 29.8% | 19.7%
A | @ | KY DAVEESS 2 286 296 237 280 229 52 63 85 29 34 74 115 108 NA 34 21 35% -19.9% 18.1% -18.2% | -6.1%
<Z( KY HENDERSON 2 55 40 64 55 40 3 12 15 10 8 12 15 20 N/A 7 8| -27.3% 60.0% -14.1% -27.3% | 33.3%
>
i
8 108 04% -6.1%  8.1% -11.4%
IN CLARK 5 328 207 227 349 318 85 118 73 42 86 111 203 197 27 11 8| -36.9% 9.7% 53.7% -8.9%| -3.0%
w | N FLOYD 3 146 135 98 169 149 38 49 38 24 29 37 87 66 57 77 34 75% -27.4% @ 72.4% -11.8% | -24.1%
Y| IN HARRISON 1 88 71 64 96 77 15 26 28 8 11 24 41 35 N/A 7 11| -19.3% -9.9% 50.0% -19.8% | -14.6%
2| KY BULLITT 1 274 290 213 292 282 76 81 80 45 34 86 157 120 7 4 2 5.8% -26.6% 37.1% -3.4% | -23.6%
B & | KY HARDIN 5 228 333 210 254 226 45 85 66 30 25 42 130 67 8 16 4| 46.1% -36.9% 21.0% -11.0% | -48.5%
@ | KY JEFFERSON 1 837 676 671 1,003 1,022 229 292 262 239 249 239 521 488 200 242 109 || -19.2% -0.7% 495%  1.9% | -6.3%
8 KY NELSON 1 150 142 122 114 141 25 a4 46 26 35 66 69 101 4 4 9 53% -14.1%  -6.6% 23.7% | 46.4%
O | KY OLDHAM 1 108 120 112 156 234 48 64 57 65 61 65 112 126 39 47  33|| 11.1% -6.7% 39.3% 50.0%| 12.5%
KY SHELBY 1 124 114 73 136 149 32 49 39 29 39 69 81 108 41 51 43 -8.1% -36.0% 86.3%  9.6% | 33.3%
KY SPENCER 1 63 67 46 47 76 12 18 25 21 8 29 30 37 1 4 1 6.3% -31.3%  2.2% 61.7%| 23.3%
20 2,346 384 463 244 8.1% -14.8% 425% 2.2%| -6.0%
— | KY BOURBON 2 27 33 16 29 25 1 16 6 2 1 20 17 21 4 4 11]| 222% -515% 81.3% -13.8% | 23.5%
5 | KY CLARK 2 46 39 a4 23 30 3 12 8 7 3 8 15 11 0 0 11| -152% 12.8% -47.7% 30.4% | -26.7%
= | KY FAYETTE 1 782 638 516 764 718 154 185 191 188 106 222 339 328 151 176 90 || -18.4% -19.1% 48.1% -6.0%| -3.2%
C O | KY FRANKLIN 2 43 41 14 21 25 3 10 6 6 4 3 13 7 6 11 2 -47% -65.9% 50.0% 19.0% | -46.2%
Z | KY JESSAMINE 2 113 154 104 109 165 23 55 38 49 31 36 78 67 24 40 23|| 36.3% -325%  4.8% 51.4% | -14.1%
25| KY MADISON 3 252 282 274 357 308 50 97 83 78 47 69 147 116 8 6 6| 11.9% -2.8% 30.3% -13.7% | -21.1%
S | KY scotT 1 278 185 198 245 348 64 118 96 70 55 100 182 155 48 69 34 || -335%  7.0% 23.7% 42.0% | -14.8%
KY WOODFORD 1 73 55 51 72 112 25 41 23 23 23 22 66 45 21 19 10| -247% -7.3% 41.2% 55.6% | -31.8%
14 262 325 167 | YN A )
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
06/30/14 EDITION
CHATTANOOGA / KNOXVILLE /7 TRI-CITIES

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ.
ANNUAL QUARTERLY FT OR WITH PERMIT ANNUAL
VALUE OVER $400,000
#OF YTD = Q1+Q2 2010 2011 2012 2013 | 2014
CODE 2013 2014 YTD Vs Vs Vs Vs Vs
MARKET ST COUNTY offices || 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Q1 Q2 Q3 04 Q1 Q2| 2013 2014 || 2012 2013 2014 || 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013
| GA CATOOSA 3 136 112 74 107 130 43 33 20 34 16 32 76 48 4 2 2| -17.6% -33.9% 44.6% 21.5% | -36.8%
= | GA WALKER 5 108 64 55 53 79 9 27 31 12 13 31 36 44 5 5 4| -40.7% -14.1%  -3.6% 49.1% | 22.2%
D | < | GA WHITFIELD 2 71 53 37 28 36 9 6 13 8 8 19 15 27 2 4 6 || -25.4% -30.2% -24.3% 28.6% | 80.0%
6 TN BRADLEY 2 251 212 222 260 291 79 58 87 67 107 58 137 165 5 6 6| -155%  4.7% 17.1% 11.9% | 20.4%
TN HAMILTON 9 792 784 754 1,013 950 227 271 252 200 215 239 498 454 17 26 12 -1.0% -3.8% 34.4% -6.2%| -8.8%
21 1,358 33 43
TN ANDERSON 3 148 123 48 65 73 19 19 15 20 16 19 38 35 3 1 0| -16.9% -61.0% 354% 12.3%| -7.9%
w | TN BLOUNT 4 224 221 182 264 388 98 97 96 97 67 99 195 166 17 31 11 -13% -17.6%  45.1% 47.0% | -14.9%
Z | TN HAMBLEN 2 61 47 a4 67 42 7 11 12 12 7 14 18 21 4 1 2|| -23.0% -6.4% 52.3% -37.3% | 16.7%
= | TN JEFFERSON 2 128 111 62 68 124 24 28 47 25 12 33 52 45 15 7 0| -13.3% -44.1%  9.7% 82.4% | -13.5%
E ; TN KNOX 3 1,038 786 707 895 1,149 293 305 323 228 283 313 598 596 77 100 33 || -24.3% -10.1% 26.6% 28.4% | -0.3%
O | TN LOuDON 5 153 161 123 121 187 41 46 44 56 40 48 87 88 24 26 8 52% -23.6% -1.6% 545%| 1.1%
Z | TN MONROE 2 72 55 56 43 46 9 13 12 12 15 14 22 29 4 4 51| -23.6%  1.8% -232%  7.0%| 31.8%
¥ | TN ROANE 5 96 75 55 66 53 13 11 22 7 13 19 24 32 8 8 11| -21.9% -26.7%  20.0% -19.7% | 33.3%
TN SEVIER 4 182 170 143 170 251 51 49 82 69 40 63 100 103 14 11 4 -6.6% -15.9% 18.9% 47.6% | 3.0%
30 166 189 -16.8% -18.8% 31.5%
o | TN CARTER 2 97 75 57 a4 51 13 12 18 8 11 22 25 33 0 1 11| -22.7% -24.0% -22.8% 15.9% | 32.0%
W | TN GREENE 5 92 106 119 80 89 12 26 28 23 17 31 38 48 4 1 5| 152% 123% -32.8% 11.3% | 26.3%
= | TN HAWKINS 4 16 29 19 12 8 3 2 2 1 2 5 5 7 0 0 0|| 81.3% -345% -36.8% -33.3% | 40.0%
F |G| TN SULLIVAN 4 272 239 183 210 275 59 69 88 59 46 54 128 100 16 18 3| -12.1% -234% 14.8% 31.0% | -21.9%
<~ | TN WASHINGTON 3 331 326 243 278 314 67 81 91 75 70 98 148 168 16 16 20 -15% -255% 14.4% 12.9% | 13.5%
& | vA scoTT 1 28 24 18 29 24 4 9 9 2 5 3 13 8 1 0 0| -143% -25.0% 61.1% -17.2% | -38.5%
VA WASHINGTON 3 103 115 137 88 82 9 29 25 19 19 21 38 40 5 15 8| 11.7% 19.1% -358% -6.8%| 5.3%
22 939 914 776 741 843| 167 228 261 187 | 170 234 | 395 404 42 51 37 27% -15.1% -45% 13.8% | 2.3%
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
06/30/14 EDITION
ASHEVILLE / UPSTATE / COLUMBIA

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ.
ANNUAL QUARTERLY FT OR WITH PERMIT ANNUAL
VALUE OVER $400,000
#OF YTD = Q1+Q2 2010 2011 2012 2013
CODE 2013 2014 YTD Vs Vs Vs Vs Vs
MARKET ST COUNTY offices || 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Q1 Q2 Q3 04 Q1 Q2| 2013 2014 || 2012 2013 2014 || 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013
NC BUNCOMBE 4 645 540 512 613 757 168 200 198 191 174 223 368 397 75 82 62| -163% -52% 19.7% 235%| 7.9%
w | NC HAYwWOOD 2 164 130 89 86 118 26 32 29 31 26 34 58 60 5 10 12|| -20.7% -315% -3.4% 37.2% | 3.4%
“ | NC HENDERSON 1 310 226 205 238 310 64 86 85 75 63 115 150 178 26 42 25| -271% -9.3% 16.1% 30.3% | 18.7%
— | NC JACKSON 2 152 157 105 121 154 33 47 44 30 30 33 80 63 34 51 22 33% -33.1% 152% 27.3% | -21.3%
G |3 | Nc MAcoN 1 148 82 77 73 76 11 15 26 24 16 24 26 40 14 18 10 || -446% -6.1% -52% 4.1%| 53.8%
‘-'IJ NC MADISON 1 69 49 47 42 40 5 7 17 11 14 14 12 28 8 7 4| -29.0% -4.1% -10.6% -4.8% | 133.3%
¥ | NC McDOWELL 2 98 108 97 84 101 25 17 30 29 20 31 42 51 18 14  13|| 102% -10.2% -13.4% 20.2% | 21.4%
< | NC POLK 1 52 42 40 46 41 8 8 7 18 14 12 16 26 4 1 4| -192% -48% 15.0% -10.9% | 62.5%
NC RUTHERFORD 2 111 109 81 102 147 75 24 29 19 18 18 99 36 6 10 6 -1.8% -25.7% 25.9% 44.1% | -63.6%
NC TRANSYLVANIA 1 76 89 62 73 59 7 21 14 17 18 27 28 45 22 18 13|| 17.1% -30.3% 17.7% -19.2% | 60.7%
17 212 253 -14.2%  12.4% 22.0%
SC ABBEVILLE 1 35 52 35 22 34 7 9 10 8 11 12 16 23 0 1 0| 486% -32.7% -37.1% 54.5% | 43.8%
w | SC ANDERSON 2 349 274 271 414 531 133 168 113 117 160 203 301 363 61 108 67 || -21.5% -1.1% 52.8% 28.3% | 20.6%
—~ | SC GREENVILLE 7 1,006 1,169 1,289 1,869 2,025 473 542 506 504 433 580 | 1,015 1,013 369 408 221 || 16.2% 10.3% 450%  8.3%| -0.2%
H ,E SC GREENWOOD 1 62 50 50 114 78 29 13 19 17 17 18 42 35 0 0 0| -19.4%  0.0% 128.0% -31.6% | -16.7%
» | SC LAURENS 4 97 61 53 47 62 23 19 14 6 10 17 42 27 8 4 4| -371% -13.1% -11.3% 31.9% | -35.7%
O | SC OCONEE 4 227 181 195 173 229 56 81 45 47 62 49 137 111 36 49 23 || -203%  7.7% -11.3% 32.4% | -19.0%
2 | sC PICKENS 5 251 161 249 172 253 52 68 58 75 70 78 120 148 37 59 24| -35.9% 54.7% -30.9% 47.1%| 23.3%
SC SPARTANBURG 3 596 524 501 680 966 241 321 207 197 237 243 562 480 80 139 47 || -121% -4.4% 35.7% 42.1%| -14.6%
27 1,000 591 768 386 58% 6.9% 321% 19.7%| -1.6%
% SC LEXINGTON 9 1,052 1,140 1,143 1,340 1,506 384 433 324 365 345 299 817 644 N/A 119 79 8.4% 0.3% 17.2% 12.4% | -21.2%
S | SC NEWBERRY 2 78 69 57 78 77 20 24 12 21 7 13 a4 20 N/A 2 2 || -11.5% -17.4% 36.8% -1.3% | -54.5%
I | S| SC RICHLAND 5 1,070 1,009 981 1,175 1,443 323 428 345 347 226 319 751 545 NA 91 61 5.7% -2.8% 19.8% 22.8% | -27.4%
- SC SALUDA 2 40 34 23 31 31 5 11 6 9 5 11 16 16 N/A 1 11| -15.0% -32.4% 34.8%  0.0%| 0.0%
(@)
18 732 213 143 19.1% 16.5% | -24.8%
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
> | NC ALEXANDER 1 52 a4 29 33 50 9 12 15 14 10 19 21 29 6 9 71| -15.4% -34.1% 13.8% 51.5% | 38.1%
& | NC BURKE 2 127 101 77 72 76 20 27 15 14 17 29 47 46 24 21 9| -205% -23.8% -65% 5.6%| -2.1%
O | NC CALDWELL 1 121 87 77 65 86 23 18 118 27 23 30 41 53 5 27 23| -281% -115% -15.6% 32.3% | 29.3%
J [ X | NC CATAWBA 1 220 167 136 144 196 42 38 59 57 51 53 80 104 26 62 23|| -241% -186%  59% 36.1% | 30.0%
© | NC CLEVELAND 3 103 127 94 84 97 23 17 31 26 15 14 40 29 34 6 3|| 233% -26.0% -10.6% 155% | -27.5%
T | NC WILKES 2 109 85 90 81 93 20 17 23 33 15 25 37 40 3 0 6| -22.0% 59% -10.0% 14.8% | 8.1%
10 98 125 -16.5% -17.7%  -4.8% 24.8% | 13.2%
NC CABARRUS 1 514 573 664 794 1112 292 306 273 241 329 306 598 635 62 131 95| 115% 159% 19.6% 40.1% | 6.2%
w | NC GASTON 2 470 448 324 427 427 84 103 169 71 116 143 187 259 15 17 6 47% -27.7% 31.8%  0.0% | 38.5%
| NC IREDELL 1 331 319 403 538 646 187 162 177 120 178 191 349 369 135 211 120 -36% 26.3% 335% 20.1%| 5.7%
'5 NC LINCOLN 1 167 140 150 151 270 60 72 87 51 80 113 132 193 41 93 43 || -162% 7.1%  0.7% 78.8% | 46.2%
K | = | NC MECKLENBURG 1 2,663 2,253 2,495 3,242 3,631 943 1,091 841 756 946 904 | 2,034 1,850 181 279 137 || -15.4% 10.7% 29.9% 12.0%| -9.0%
@ | NC ROWAN 1 170 152 97 130 159 34 36 51 38 31 50 70 81 26 30 24| -106% -36.2% 34.0% 22.3% | 15.7%
% NC STANLY 1 132 118 69 57 85 17 21 2 25 7 22 38 29 N/A 0 0| -10.6% -415% -17.4% 49.1% | -23.7%
O | NC uNION 1 551 466 547 757 1,140 272 321 295 252 295 308 593 603 302 479 275 || -15.4% 17.4% 38.4% 50.6% | 1.7%
SC LANCASTER 2 510 557 585 766 1,049 277 266 297 209 232 202 543 434 51 100 35 9.2%  5.0% 30.9% 36.9% | -20.1%
SC YORK 5 746 819 696 1,012 1,350 293 393 351 313 290 335 686 625 259 378 107 9.8% -15.0% 45.4% 33.4% | -8.9%
16 6,254 2,459 2771 2,504 1,072 1,718 842 65% 3.2% 30.6% 25.3%| -2.9%
NC ALAMANCE 4 454 381 346 323 497 89 161 149 98 145 149 250 294 7 14 15| -161% -9.2%  -6.6% 53.9% | 17.6%
0O | NC DAVIDSON 3 255 232 205 194 237 51 62 56 68 54 87 113 141 1 15 9 9.0% -11.6%  -5.4% 22.2% | 24.8%
L < | NC DAVIE 1 63 61 34 39 51 18 11 13 9 18 23 29 41 5 5 3 -3.2% -443% 14.7% 30.8% | 41.4%
@ | NC FORSYTH 2 586 711 792 723 842 158 195 288 201 166 303 353 469 44 37 28|| 21.3% 11.4% -8.7% 16.5% | 32.9%
= | NC GUILFORD 3 991 723 663 850 1,099 219 328 306 246 257 296 547 553 118 152 72 || -27.0% -8.3% 282% 29.3%| 1.1%
NC RANDOLPH 2 212 234 174 155 161 43 44 41 33 25 48 87 73 3 2 2 || 10.4% -25.6% -10.9%  3.9% | -16.1%
15 188 225 129 -8.6% -55%  32% 264%| 13.9%
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RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT TREND REPORT
06/30/14 EDITION
TRIANGLE / FAYETTEVILLE / ROCKY MOUNT

TOTALS HIGH END % CHANGE
UNITS OVER 4,000 SQ.
ANNUAL QUARTERLY FT OR WITH PERMIT ANNUAL
VALUE OVER $400,000
#OF YTD = Q1+Q2 2010 2011 2012 2013 | 2014
CODE 2013 2014 YTD VS VS VS VS VS
MARKET ST COUNTY offices|| 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2| 2013 2014 || 2012 2013 2014 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013
W | NC CHATHAM 2 205 269 257 306 452 103 125 128 96 132 153 228 285 92 178 132 || 312% -45% 19.1% 47.7%| 25.0%
~ | NC DURHAM 1 761 832 947 1000 1,52 | 301 273 315 263 | 322 300 574 622 72 36 20 93% 13.8%  56% 152% | 8.4%
O | NC FRANKLIN 1 133 158 120 169 233 48 72 66 47 56 65 120 121 19 28 13|| 18.8% -241% 40.8% 37.9% | 0.8%
M | Z | NC JOHNSTON 6 646 598 408 492 784 172 240 223 149 | 225 256 412 481 35 54 32| -74% -31.8% 206% 59.3%| 16.7%
< | NC LEE 1 106 110 114 83 86 20 28 21 17 19 19 48 38 5 15 10 38% 36% -27.2%  3.6% | -20.8%
& | NC ORANGE 3 210 250 211 220 177 46 43 48 40 39 42 89 8l 65 69 37| 19.0% -156%  43% -19.5% | -9.0%
NC WAKE 10 3,573 3641 3,437 5008 6,740 | 1,782 1,863 1,771 1324 | 1454 1,576 | 3,645 3030 || 1,438 1,541 651 19% -5.6% 457% 34.6% | -16.9%
24 2,572 1,936 1726 1,921 895 40% -6.2% 325% 322%| -9.0%
L
= | NC CUMBERLAND 4 1286 1,055 1,059 982 965 | 293 267 225 180 162 107 560 269 || NA 96 43 || -180% 04%  -7.3% -1.7%| -52.0%
S | NC HARNETT 4 670 831 514 510 857 | 291 220 210 136 176 185 511 361 20 32 16|| 24.0% -381% -0.8% 68.0% | -29.4%
L | NC HOKE 2 468 555 406 405 292 74 80 78 60 71 65 154 136 || NA 42 0| 186% -268% -0.2% -27.9% | -11.7%
N | E | Nc Moore 6 312 366 396 420 473 115 134 111 113 108 159 249 267 || NA 50 13 || 17.3% 82%  61% 12.6%| 7.2%
W | NC SAMPSON 1 76 93 70 8 76 2 22 28 14 12 13 34 25| NA 10 1| 224% -247% 257% -13.6% | -26.5%
<
[T
17 230 31% -157% -1.6% 10.7%
£ | Nc EDGECOMBE 25 - - - - - - - - { - 2 - || ~nA NA 0 - - - - -
3| Nc GREENE 1 - - o - - - 6 - || ~nA NA 0 - - - - -
NC LENOIR 3 - - — o\LE - b - - o€ - 5 - | ~nA NA 1 - - - - -
0 = | NC NASH 15 - . @/c:)j\_\ﬂ\:-"’f - - - _@_QK}JJ\--" - - 36 - ~|| NA  NA 1 - - - - -
T | NCopiTT 4 -0 BT - - - - 3@BEF- - —~ 103 - | ~nA NA 2 - - - - -
S | NG WAYNE 3 - - - - - B - - - 43 - || ~nA NA 0 - - - - -
d | NC WILSON 2 - - - - - 14 - || NnA NA 0 - - - - -
g
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06/30/14 EDITION
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT SUMMARY

MARKET

EVANSVILLE
LOUISVLLE
LEXINGTON
CHATTANOOGA
KNOXVILLE
TRI-CITIES
ASHEVILLE
UPSTATE
COLUMBIA
HICKORY
CHARLOTTE
TRIAD
TRIANGLE
FAYETTEVILLE
ROCKY MOUNT

SUMMARY OF ALL MARKETS

06/30/14 EDITION

ANNUAL UARTERLY PERMIT VALUE
2010 2011 2012 YTD
UNITS UNITS UNITS (YTD = Q1+Q2)

N/A N/A N/A 409 96 89 119 105 131 144 $105,611,582 $69,630,634
1193 1375 1538 1,379 330 412 357 280 327 391 $626,133,218 $435,063,079
889 1043 904 920 226 239 236 219 231 298 $421,207,588 $245,622,893
807 915 869 769 162 195 171 241 216 248 $264,796,130 $206,559,542
1170 1171 1656 1,214 293 321 327 273 293 334 $531,002,655 $271,783,802
566 633 628 666 143 200 167 156 148 171 $278,890,212 $113,134,577
888 771 1248 1,089 262 348 277 202 280 324 $323,497,323 $223,755,207
1913 2101 2473 2,261 765 496 532 468 531 684 $808,203,712 $521,094,719
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 271 286 298 272 324 N/A $193,066,788
587 592 752 665 141 183 174 167 156 156 $249,740,378 $139,098,859
3286 4071 4589 4,841 | 1,078 1,279 1,261 1,223 | 1,130 1,153 $2,577,202,246  $1,129,902,814
1538 1832 1895 1,913 459 550 511 393 454 516 $311,940,465 $398,778,404
2127 2451 2805 3,180 614 771 940 855 675 783 $2,269,701,353  $1,286,704,977
N/A N/A N/A 941 236 249 245 211 196 205 $262,119,474 $221,498,427
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  NA NA N/A 43 N/A N/A
6,951 8,354 9,289 10,875 | 2,387 2,849 2,957 2,682 | 2,455 2,657 | $5,420,963,538 $3,036,884,622
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MARKET ST

COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT SUMMARY

COUNTY

2010
UNITS

06/30/14 EDITION
EVANSVILLE 7 LOUISVILLE /7 LEXINGTON

ANNUAL

2011 2012

UNITS

UNITS

UARTERLY

PERMIT VALUE

YTD
(YTD = Q1+Q2)

www.themarketedge.com

L
:,' IN  VANDERBURGH -- -- -- 224 58 56 51 59 91 97 $21,013,636 $26,602,756
S IN  WARRICK -- -- -- 66 23 13 19 11 10 7 $21,659,228 $13,996,100
A | ©® | KY DAVIESS -- -- -- 87 8 14 35 30 17 30 $52,134,037 $25,850,508
<Z( KY HENDERSON -- -- -- 32 7 6 14 5 13 10 $10,804,681 $3,181,270
>
L
N/A N/A N/A 409 96 89 119 105 131 144 $105,611,582 $69,630,634
IN CLARK 124 153 163 118 23 52 26 17 25 50 $29,496,366 $22,917,736
w IN FLOYD 70 7 56 55 12 18 14 11 10 25 $36,305,817 $13,258,500
1 IN HARRISON 13 24 13 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 $3,100,000 N/A
= | KY BULLITT 13 24 46 38 9 15 7 7 6 10 $57,216,759 $5,326,675
B > | KY HARDIN 36 142 134 149 46 44 36 23 11 19 $2,228,000 $1,833,700
9 | KY JEFFERSON 870 835 974 901 219 244 234 204 228 214 $404,201,355 $360,756,186
8 KY NELSON 8 67 69 46 11 16 9 10 18 25 $9,382,324 $6,871,185
-1 | KY OLDHAM 34 34 50 44 5 20 12 7 16 15 $49,316,314 $13,236,000
KY SHELBY 14 13 28 17 1 1 15 0 7 23 $33,546,435 $9,327,757
KY SPENCER 11 6 5 10 4 2 3 1 6 8 $1,339,848 $1,535,340
1,193 1,375 1,538 1,379 330 412 357 280 327 391 $626,133,218 $435,063,079
KY BOURBON 13 9 14 7 3 3 1 0 3 3 $2,046,500 $1,030,000
% KY CLARK 35 39 22 30 9 7 4 10 6 8 $19,957,638 $1,974,500
— | KY FAYETTE 539 655 539 581 137 150 160 134 142 188 $296,617,110 $118,818,599
C O | KY FRANKLIN 54 51 53 38 10 12 9 7 9 23 $19,766,236 $51,561,923
Z | KY JESSAMINE 36 40 33 25 4 10 7 4 13 15 $6,908,000 $27,411,161
E KY MADISON 143 164 171 148 41 30 43 34 32 31 $42,385,273 $15,024,283
1 | KY SCOTT 53 63 54 59 15 18 6 20 18 21 $13,427,275 $13,883,577
KY WOODFORD 16 22 18 32 7 9 6 10 8 9 $20,099,556 $15,918,850
889 1,043 904 920 226 239 236 219 231 298 $421,207,588 $245,622,893
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT SUMMARY

06/30/14 EDITION
CHATTANOOGA /7 KNOXVILLE 7 TRI-CITIES

www.themarketedge.com

ANNUAL UARTERLY PERMIT VALUE
2010 2011 2012 YTD
MARKET ST COUNTY UNITS UNITS UNITS (YTD = Q1+Q2)
I | GA CATOOSA 48 74 44 37 11 12 10 4 9 22 $5,068,407 $12,426,626
~ | GA WALKER 49 32 68 32 8 11 5 8 6 16 $9,200,794 $1,848,876
D % GA WHITFIELD 57 77 67 76 19 13 21 23 13 17 $25,220,953 $8,575,896
@) TN BRADLEY 96 113 163 101 20 38 24 19 18 18 $42,980,945 $5,932,371
TN HAMILTON 557 619 527 523 104 121 111 187 170 175 $182,325,031 $177,775,773
807 915 869 769 162 195 171 241 216 248 $264,796,130 $206,559,542
TN ANDERSON 51 41 89 59 9 19 21 10 22 16 $20,950,581 $13,810,442
L TN BLOUNT 86 104 106 89 30 24 14 21 16 27 $71,039,382 $16,424,316
j TN HAMBLEN 38 48 58 51 11 7 15 18 14 23 $15,318,595 $25,935,369
S TN JEFFERSON 13 11 15 12 1 2 4 5 4 7 $3,094,704 $3,068,051
E < TN KNOX 771 753 1,090 795 196 219 207 173 156 196 $304,028,104 $133,143,555
(@) TN LOUDON 28 19 52 22 7 2 6 7 13 9 $13,552,619 $9,415,174
Z TN MONROE 2 10 2 2 1 0 0 1 1 0 $873,000 $388,000
X TN ROANE 8 19 33 15 2 2 8 3 8 4 $3,605,342 $5,409,140
TN SEVIER 173 166 211 169 36 46 52 35 59 52 $98,540,328 $64,189,755
1170 1171 1656 1,214 293 321 327 273 293 334 $531,002,655 $271,783,802
n TN CARTER 39 36 26 37 5 19 6 7 2 3 $7,689,188 $4,965,667
Ll TN GREENE 73 56 62 66 11 20 22 13 19 28 $19,688,507 $9,567,096
E TN HAWKINS 10 35 13 12 3 5 2 2 1 1 $1,014,465 $57,000
F $) TN SULLIVAN 186 169 211 249 64 65 61 59 58 50 $156,566,877 $65,788,114
0—': TN WASHINGTON 170 188 176 191 41 56 48 46 45 61 $53,745,336 $20,446,834
— VA SCOTT 3 9 17 16 3 5 3 5 4 2 $14,656,000 $233,950
VA WASHINGTON 85 140 123 95 16 30 25 24 19 26 $25,529,839 $12,075,916
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
MARKET ST COUNTY UNITS UNITS UNITS (YTD:Q1+Q2)
NC BUNCOMBE 456 236 444 414 108 107 114 85 103 171 $134,725,798 $130,383,142
NC HAYWOOD 64 36 65 50 7 12 14 17 10 12 $17,358,119 $3,493,542
W | NC HENDERSON 139 225 417 334 57 162 84 31 80 55 $63,738,557 $38,010,116
3 | NC JACKSON 12 19 34 61 11 17 15 18 14 8 $35,994,635 $8,984,505
G | > | Nc MAcoN 64 68 49 51 14 12 12 13 17 13 $20,794,030 $2,656,360
LiJ NC MADISON 7 4 58 4 1 2 0 1 2 3 $82,000 $120,750
| NC McDOWELL 25 49 33 35 8 6 10 11 7 6 $19,681,717 $3,918,468
< | NC POLK 14 14 24 24 10 5 8 1 20 14 $7,355,541 $8,770,063
NC RUTHERFORD 60 80 91 70 27 16 10 17 18 23 $15,087,162 $24,590,282
NC TRANSYLVANIA 47 40 33 46 19 9 10 8 9 19 $8,679,764 $2,827,979
888 771 1,248 1,089 262 348 277 202 280 324 $323,497,323 $223,755,207
SC ABBEVILLE 52 39 28 29 5 6 12 6 8 7 $3,390,503 $511,900
W | SC ANDERSON 295 234 286 237 71 59 61 46 73 73 $49,365,667 $21,340,836
';: SC GREENVILLE 661 753 986 746 190 203 204 149 156 256 $408,799,602 $273,917,000
H | = | SC GREENWOOD 120 147 165 116 20 24 34 29 30 39 $31,388,327 $89,258,783
@ | SC LAURENS 39 44 27 23 6 4 5 8 5 12 $5,967,556 $2,089,814
S | SC OCONEE 126 103 132 152 74 28 24 26 28 21 $52,536,554 $19,135,863
SC PICKENS 135 115 261 386 260 51 48 27 57 50 $95,799,401 $30,671,500
SC SPARTANBURG 485 666 588 572 130 121 144 177 174 226 $160,956,102 $84,169,023
1,913 2,101 2,473 2,261 765 496 532 468 531 684 $808,203,712 $521,094,719
<
m | SC LEXINGTON - - - - - 81 99 102 68 86 - $37,889,665
S | SC NEWBERRY - - - - - 29 12 15 19 15 - $8,416,447
| | 5 | sc RICHLAND - - - - - 156 169 178 181 211 - $143,416,915
6' SC SALUDA - -- - -- - 5 6 3 4 12 - $3,343,761
O
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 271 286 298 272 324 N/A $193,066,788
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COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMIT SUMMARY

06/30/14 EDITION
HICKORY / CHARLOTTE /7 TRIAD

UARTERLY

ANNUAL

PERMIT VALUE

YTD
(YTD = Q1+Q2)

2010 2011 2012

MARKET ST COUNTY UNITS UNITS UNITS

www.themarketedge.com

> | NC ALEXANDER 18 10 16 18 3 4 8 3 6 4 $3,827,390 $533,500

% NC BURKE 86 89 215 163 21 50 48 44 26 20 $30,183,903 $1,497,725

J | ¥ | NC CALDWELL 79 89 75 73 12 20 16 25 13 19 $34,708,675 $27,915,180
O | NC CATAWBA 208 213 253 266 65 73 65 63 69 64 $102,424,753 $65,411,602

T | NC CLEVELAND 117 87 85 71 10 19 20 22 21 26 $78,297,444 $41,405,232

NC WILKES 79 104 108 74 30 17 17 10 21 23 $298,213 $2,335,620

587 592 752 665 141 183 174 167 156 156 $249,740,378 $139,098,859

NC CABARRUS 150 216 256 219 60 48 54 57 48 67 $35,620,521 $11,833,629

w NC GASTON 164 284 212 217 44 63 61 49 53 29 $137,282,279 $153,381,465

— | NC IREDELL 230 203 329 277 69 79 86 43 51 47 $73,821,499 $24,474,430

= | NC LINCOLN 73 65 80 76 28 20 14 14 16 16 $28,750,656 $23,029,890

K 9 NC MECKLENBURG 2,171 2,580 2,989 3,305 694 870 838 903 810 891 $1,797,208,644 $764,533,297
o [ NC ROWAN 87 171 108 109 29 31 24 25 25 22 $69,923,308 $16,013,611

< [ NC STANLY 2 52 43 a7 13 17 7 10 8 3 N/A N/A

5 NC UNION 77 93 79 88 21 26 18 23 37 28 $38,306,226 $19,338,852

SC LANCASTER 90 81 107 133 27 23 60 23 12 20 $126,092,277 $29,143,428

SC YORK 242 326 386 370 93 102 99 76 70 30 $270,196,836 $88,154,212

3,286 4,071 4,589 4,841 | 1078 1279 1261 1223 | 1,130 1,153 $2,577,202,246  $1,129,902,814

NC ALAMANCE 222 215 196 177 47 45 46 39 41 49 $85,941,283 $58,377,594

O | NC DAVIDSON 128 125 146 150 34 42 41 33 31 40 $44,786,512 $9,262,936

L << | NC DAVIE 23 22 33 44 2 13 16 13 7 10 $36,419,102 $2,365,093
o | NC FORSYTH 420 580 577 493 119 141 135 98 138 165 $48,433,703 $128,770,802

= | NC GUILFORD 657 806 858 972 234 294 248 196 225 227 $71,256,408 $193,253,603

NC RANDOLPH 88 84 85 77 23 15 25 14 12 25 $25,103,457 $6,748,376

1,538 1,832 1,895 1,913 459 550 511 393 454 516 $311,940,465 $398,778,404
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

L NC CHATHAM 62 78 76 71 15 17 24 15 22 19 $27,843,802 $17,358,076
6 NC DURHAM 444 672 732 781 137 167 283 194 147 203 $774,684,439 $283,925,335
M > NC FRANKLIN 39 19 18 14 1 7 4 2 3 1 $5,724,463 $177,000
< NC JOHNSTON 172 125 154 158 19 35 47 57 30 31 $116,943,709 $120,844,093
o0 NC LEE 75 48 75 86 18 26 21 21 15 26 $15,523,000 $15,681,740
= NC ORANGE 136 104 135 126 2 12 38 74 39 62 $35,001,006 $23,496,474
NC WAKE 1,199 1,405 1,615 1,944 422 507 523 492 419 441 $1,293,980,934 $825,222,259
2,127 2,451 2,805 3,180 614 771 940 855 675 783 | $2,269,701,353 $1,286,704,977
"_',J NC MOORE -- - - 173 48 37 37 51 35 34 $46,986,330 $19,366,417
= NC HARNETT 62 44 62 168 44 58 37 29 19 36 $11,727,347 $56,511,032
N | > | NC HOKE - - - 48 5 28 12 3 4 3 $58,280,529 $673,000
> NC CUMBERLAND -- -- -- 504 125 116 142 121 118 113 $140,567,774 $139,928,344
E NC SAMPSON -- -- -- 48 14 10 17 7 20 19 $4,557,494 $5,019,634
N/A N/A N/A 941 236 249 245 211 196 205 $262,119,474 $221,498,427
|_
Z | NC EDGECOMBE - - - - - - - - - 1 - -
D | NC GREENE - - - - - - - - - 2 - -
g NC LENOIR - - - - - - - - - 8 - -
0 NC NASH - - - - - - - - - 4 - -
§ NC PITT - - - - - - . - - 17 - -
S | NC WAYNE - - - - - - - - - 7 - -
O | NC WILSON - - - - - - - - - 4 - -
o
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A NA NA N/A 43 N/A N/A
www.themarketedge.com
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton

Subject: FW: Sacred Mountain

Date: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 9:04:00 AM
Attachments: 20170320115716612.pdf

Without going into a lot of details, this is regarding a home school for Septimbor Lim off of Beaverdam. Frue
wanted me to talk to you about it from a planning perspective before he advises me on how to move forward.

http://www.sacredmountainsanctuary.org/home

Just let me know if you have some free time this week.

From: Michael C. Frue

Sent: Monday, March 20, 2017 12:00 PM

To: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Sacred Mountain

See Attached. Let me know what you think



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=813740331fb045aa81ccd6759ee7ca8a-Jon Creight
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SUBCHAPTER X. PRIVATE AND PROPRIETARY SCHOOLS.
Article 39.
Nonpublic Schools.

Part 3. Home Schools.
§ 115C-563. Definitions.

As used in this Part or Parts 1 and 2 of this Article:

(a) "Home school" means a nonpublic school consisting of the children of not more than two
families or households, where the parents or legal guardians or members of either household determine the
scope and sequence of academic instruction, provide academic instruction, and determine additional
sources of academic instruction.

(b) "Duly authorized representative of the State" means the Director, Division of Nonpublic
Education, or his staff. (1987 (Reg. Sess., 1988), c. 891, s. 1; 2013-57, 5. 1.)

§ 115C-564. Qualifications and requirements.

A home school shall make the election to operate under the qualifications of either Part 1 or Part 2 of
this Article and shall meet the requirements of the Part'elected, except that any requirement related to
safety and sanitation inspections shall be waived if the school operates in a private residence and
except that testing requirements in G.S. 115C-549 @nﬁl G.S. 115C-557 shall’be on an annual basis. The
persons providing academic instruction in a home school shall hold at least a high school diploma or its
equivalent. (1987 (Reg. Sess., 1988), c. 891, 5. 1.)

§ 115C-565. Requirements exclusive.

No school which complies with this Part shall be subject to any other provision of law relating to
education except requirements of law respecting immunization. The Division of Nonpublic Education,
Department of Administration, shall provide to home schools information about meningococcal meningitis
and influenza and their vaccines. This information may be provided electronically or on the Division's Web
page. The information shall include the causes, symptoms, and how meningococcal meningitis and
influenza are spread and the places where parents and guardians may obtain additional information and
vaccinations for their children.

The Division of Nonpublic Education, Department of Administration, shall also provide to home
schools information about cervical cancer, cervical dysplasia, human papillomavirus, and the vaccines
available to prevent these diseases. This information may be provided electronically or on the Division's
Web page. This information shall include the causes and symptoms of these diseases, how they are
transmitted, how they may be prevented by vaccination, including the benefits and possible side effects of
vaccination, and the places where parents and guardians may obtain additional information and vaccinations
for their children.

The Division of Nonpublic Education, Department of Administration, shall also provide to home
schools information on the preventable risks for preterm birth in subsequent pregnancies, including induced
abortion, smoking, alcohol consumption, the use of illicit drugs, and inadequate prenatal care. This
information may be provided electronically or on the Division's Web page.

The Division of Nonpublic Education, Department of Administration, shall also provide to home
schools information on the manner in which a parent may lawfully abandon a newborn baby with a
responsible person, in accordance with G.S. 7B-500. This information may be provided electronically or
on the Division's Web page. (1987 (Reg. Sess., 1988), c. 891, s. 1;2004-118, s. 6; 2007-59, 5. 5; 2007-126,
s. 5;2013-307, 5. 1.4.)










From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: FW: Thank you
Date: Monday, January 4, 2016 2:53:42 PM

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
Date: Monday, July 31, 2017 1:20:00 PM

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
Date: Monday, July 31, 2017 1:20:34 PM

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
Subject: FW: Tomorrow’s Meeting Must be Rescheduled
Date: Monday, September 22, 2014 3:44:00 PM

Was postponed.

From: Sidney McCormick [mailto:reception@davidgantt.com]
Sent: Monday, September 22, 2014 10:47 AM

To: Todd Williams; Matt Stone

Subject: Tomorrow’s Meeting Must be Rescheduled

Mr. Williams and Mr. Stone,
Mr. Gantt has spoken with Wanda and they believe that this meeting needs to be rescheduled until
after the election. If you have specific questions please email Mr. Gantt at lawyer@davidgantt.com

or contact Wanda Greene.
| look forward to rescheduling this meeting following the election.
Have a great day.

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

confidential or proprietary information intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If
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

To: Jon Creighton; Debbie Truempy
Subject: FW: Voice Mail (27 seconds)

Date: Friday, June 23, 2017 10:28:00 AM
Attachments: 8282325847 (27 seconds) Voice Mail.mp3

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

Date: Friday, June 23, 2017 10:29:01 AM
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

Subject: FW: Voice Mail from METROPOLITAN SE (1 minute and 4 seconds)
Date: Thursday, November 13, 2014 5:33:00 PM

Attachments: 8282258289 (1 minute and 4 seconds) Voice Mail.mp3

You have any input before | call him back? | think part time is better than nothing, | won’t do a
computer kiosk because will spend our time telling people how to use it.

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

Caller-1d: 8282258289



mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: FW: [ncpermits] Court Case: Allow if not prohibited
Date: Tuesday, February 7, 2017 10:44:00 AM

You've probably already seen this but it was on a list serve is follow.

From: Andrew Gahagan [mailto:andrew.gahagan@montgomerycountync.com]
Sent: Tuesday, February 07, 2017 8:45 AM

To: North Carolina Permitting Personnel Association <ncpermits@listserv.unc.edu>
Subject: RE: [ncpermits] Court Case: Allow if not prohibited

Gerard,

The case was Byrd v. Franklin County. We amended our ordinance in response to the
Supreme Court decision to simply state that all unlisted uses shall be deemed as conditional uses
and must follow all standard CU procedures. A few other links for you below:

The News and Observer
.PDF from NC School of Government

Town of Duck Staff Report

That should give you a pretty good start.
Hope this helps,
Andrew M. Gahagan

Montgomery County Planning Director
444 North Main St. Troy, NC 27371
Office - (910) 572-3304 Ext. 1432
Fax —(910) 576-0043

andrew.gahagan@montgomerycountync.com

From: Gerard E. Seibert [mailto:gerard_seibert@outlook.com]
Sent: Tuesday, February 07, 2017 5:51 AM

To: North Carolina Permitting Personnel Association
Subject: [ncpermits] Court Case: Allow if not prohibited

There was a court case, last year | believe, that basically stated that if a use was not specifically
prohibited, it would have to be allowed. | don’t remember the case or the particulars of it, nor have |
been able to find it. | was hoping that someone might have a link to the case or tell me where | can
gather further info on it.
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https://appellate.nccourts.org/opinions/?c=2&pdf=31807
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http://www.townofduck.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/PB_agenda2015-12-09item4.pdf
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Thanks!

Gerard E. Seibert, CZO
300 Coachmns Trl
Stem NC 27581-9125

(919) 529-2260

To unsubscribe send an unsubscribe message that says [unsubscribe ncpermits] to

jhmidler@email.unc.edu

You are currently subscribed to ncpermits as: matt.stone@buncombecounty.org.
To unsubscribe send email to listservi@unc.edu with the subject line "unsubscribe

ncpermits"
(remove quotes before sending)
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: FW: complaint
Date: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 11:27:56 AM

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
Subject: FW: plotter/scanner
Date: Friday, January 20, 2017 12:36:00 PM

PCM Business Direct Quote #48414713063 Reaardina Revised with Care Pack ndf
image002.0nq

Just to let you know that IT will be replacing the large scanner, they couldn’t find necessary parts to repair.

From: Mason Scott

Sent: Friday, January 20, 2017 10:47 AM

To: Lisa McKenna <Lisa.McKenna@buncombecounty.org>; Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>

Cc: Joel Vess <Joel.Vess@buncombecounty.org>; Isaac Gottfried <lsaac.Gottfried@buncombecounty.org>; Nicole Polat <Nicole.Polat@buncombecounty.org>; Monica Stewart
<Monica.Stewart@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: RE: plotter/scanner

IT will be covering this replacement out of our technology refresh funding. This is based on some changes we are making to the way that we proactively support non-computer tech assets.

Just to keep everyone in the loop...| have attached the best quote received for the replacement plotter — Please review and let me know if there are any concerns with the model. We've included 5-year
extended support, as our printer service agreement doesn’t currently include large format devices.

We'll proceed with processing the purchase so there’s no extra hold up, but please let me know if any new concerns arise as we work through this.

Thank you,
Mason

@
&
>
o

mason.scott@buncombecounty.org

From: Monica Stewart

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 10:49 AM

To: Mason Scott <Mason.Scott@buncombecounty.org>; Nicole Polat <Nicole.Polat@buncombecounty.org>

Cc: Joel Vess <Joel.Vess@buncombecounty.org>; Isaac Gottfried <lsaac.Gottfried@buncombecounty.org>; Lisa McKenna <Lisa.McKenna@buncombecounty.org>; Matt Stone
<Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: FW: plotter/scanner

Nicole/Mason,
Can you reach out to HP and get some quotes on the item at the bottom of this page please and send over to Lisa and Matt (and cc me and Isaac, as Isaac as the ticket).

Thank you.

From: Lisa McKenna

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 10:09 AM

To: Monica Stewart <Monica.Stewart@buncombecounty.org>
Ce: Matt Stone <Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: plotter/scanner

YES PLEASE.....

Lisa McKenna

Administrative Technician Il

Buncombe County

Permits and Inspections

30 Valley Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828-250-5365

Fax 828-250-6082
a.mckenna@buncombecounty.org

From: Monica Stewart

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 9:57 AM

To: Lisa McKenna <Lisa.McKenha@buncombecounty.org>

Cc: Joel Vess <Joel.Vess@buncombecounty.org>; Isaac Gottfried <lsaac.Gottfried@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: plotter/scanner

Lisa,
Do you want us to get a formal quote on this from our HP resellers?

Thanks,

Monica Stewart | Service Desk Manager | Buncombe County Information Technology | 828.250.6801 | monica.stewart@buncombecounty.org

From: Joel Vess

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 9:41 AM

To: Monica Stewart <Monica.Stewart@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: FW: plotter/scanner

From: Joel Vess
Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2017 4:52 PM
To: Lisa McKenna <Lisa.Mickenna@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: plotter/scanner

Lisa,
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THE RIGHT
TECHNOLOGY,
DELIVERED

Business Direct

Dear Nicole Polat ,

Good news. The quote you requested is ready. Please log in to your Business Direct account to review it now.

Quote Details

Quote Number: 48414713063
Quote Label: Revised with Care Pack
Status: Pending Approval from Buyer
Quote is valid until: 02/17/2017*
Company Name: BUNCOMBE COUNTY
Customer #: 166800037
Requested by: Nicole Polat
Billing Address Shipping Address
Main
BUNCOMBE COUNTY BUNCOMBE COUNTY IT DEPT
P.0.BOX 7526, ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, Nicole Polat
ASHEVILLE, NC 28802 59 WOODFIN PLACE, 2ND FLOOR,
Phone Number: 828- 250-4119 Asheville, NC 28801
Phone Number: 828- 250-4119
Shipping Method
Overweight Ground
Product Description PCM Part # Mfr Part # Qty Unit Price Ext. Price
Mfr: HP Inc.

DesignJet SD Pro MFP - 44"

multifunction printer - color - ink-jet -

Roll (44.02 in) (original) - Roll (44 in), 13875847 L3S81B#B1K 1 $13,999.00 $13,999.00
44 in X 66 in (media) - up to 0.5

min/page (printing) - 2 rolls - USB 2.0,

Gigabit LAN

Comment to this item: No comment added

Mfr: HP Inc.
Electronic Care Pack Next Business
@ Day Hardware Support with Defective
Media Retention - Extended service 13628620 U7UN1E 1 $3,708.12 $3,708.12
Care Pack agreement - parts and labor - 5 years -
PEETNENY onssite - 95 - response time: NBD -
for DesignJet SD Pro MFP

Comment to this item: No comment added

Comments: Group Subtotal: $17,707.12
Estimated Sales Tax: $990.44

Shipping (Overweight Ground): $150.00

Total: $18,847.56

No Comments Added







* Promotional pricing is limited to the duration of the specific promotion, and is subject to change.

If you have any questions regarding your order, contact your Account Representative, Nadeem Qamar at (888)318-4437 Ext or eMail
at Nadeem.Qamar@pcm.com.

Thanks again for shopping at PCM Business Direct.

1940 E. Mariposa Ave, El Segundo, CA 90245 - 800-700-1000
©2017 PCM Sales, Inc.
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Laptops & tablets  Desktops  Printers Ik &Toner  Displays & accessories

HP DesignJet SD Pro Multifunction Printer

Overview  Products  Workflowsolutions  Supportservices  Ink and media

HP DesignJet HD Pro MFP. HP SD Pro 44-in HPHD Pro 42-in
Scanner Scanner

Preview the prints

Cash In & Trade Up

Business solutions  Support Q Aw}

Detailed document reproduction

Scan and copy your everyday documents and maps at high speeds
without fringing, using the HP DesignJet D Pro Multifunction Printer
and advanced CIS technology. Simplify operation and boost workflow
productivity with dual rolls and smart switching.

¥ HP Designet SD Pro Multifunction Printer data sheet
(PDF, 0.3 MB, EN only)

$15,495.00%

“Estimated US. retai price. Actuzl price may vary.

Order print samples from any HP Designlet printer and see the quality firsthand

Get cash back on select HP Designlet printers when you upgrade

Image gallery







Purchasing just the CPU is not an option, due to the fact that it has been discontinued.
Here is the next viable option...the price may vary. Probably less...this is straight out of HP’s website.
Nicole would have to research to get the price down a little.

Thanks,
Joel

@ Laptops & tablets ~ Desktops  Printers  Ink & Toner  Displays & accessories

HP Designlet SD Pro Multifunction Printer

Overview Products  Workflow solutions Support services Ink and media

- 4 2ol

<

HP DesignJet HD Pro MFP HP 5D Pro 44-in HP HD Pro 42-in
Stanner Scanner

(PDF, 0.3 MB, EN only)

Find areseller

Preview the prints

Cash In & Trade Up

Image gallery

$15,495.00*

“Estimated U.5. retail price. Actual price may vary.

Business solutions Support O\ b

m

Detailed document reproduction

Scan and copy your everyday documents and maps at high speeds
without fringing, using the HP Designlet SD Pro Multifunction Printer
and advanced CI5 technology. Simplify operation and boost workflow
productivity with dual rolls and smart switching.

B HP Designlet SD Pro Multifunction Printer data sheet

Order print samples from any HP DesignJet printer and see the quality firsthand

Get cash back on select HP DesignJet printers when you upgrade

Joel A. Vess

Buncombe County
Information Technology
Office: 828-250-6819
Cell:  828-545-4160
Fax: 828-250-6057







From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton
Subject: FW: retaining wall ordinance
Date: Thursday, May 21, 2015 12:27:00 PM

Let me know if we need to discuss anything on this.

From: M. David Elmore [mailto:david@elmore-associates.net]
Sent: Thursday, May 21, 2015 12:13 PM

To: Matt Stone

Subject: Fwd: retaining wall ordinance

Matt,

Below is a link to the ordinance. Refer to paragraph (d) on page 9.

M. David Elmore, PE

Elmore & Associates
Structural Engineering, PLLC

675 Summit Springs Drive
Flat Rock, NC 28731

(828) 551-8900
www.elmore-associates.net

Begin forwarded message:

From: Leigh DeForth <Leigh.Deforth@buncombecounty.org>
Date: May 20, 2015 at 10:51:58 EDT
To: "david@elmore-associates.net" <david@elmore-associates.net>

Subject: retaining wall ordinance

David,

Please see the ordinance here:
http://www.buncombecounty.org/common/planning/RetainingWallOrdinance.pdf
Thank you,

Leigh DeForth, AICP

Planner

Buncombe County Planning Department
46 Valley Street
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Asheville, NC 28801
(828) 250-4832

leigh.deforth@buncombecounty.org
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From: Matt Stone

To: Jon Creighton; Mandy Stone (Mandy.Stone@buncombecounty.org); Jim Holland
Subject: Front Desk
Date: Wednesday, May 25, 2016 12:46:00 PM

Just wanted to let you all know we completed the reconfiguration of the front office area yesterday,
and starting this morning well/septic permit applications will be received on the Permits &
Inspections side. Physical Facilities and IT had everything moved and back up and running by late
yesterday afternoon so we were able to take care of the customers without having to completely
shut down. There may be a few hiccups initially but | think with the staffing changes we made the
transition should go well.

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

mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=stonem

mailto:/O=BUNCOMBE COUNTY EXCHANGE/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=hollanj




From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone

Cc: Bob Haynes

Subject: Fwd: 13-08244PZ, 502 Sweeten Creek Rd, GE Aviation
Date: Monday, December 8, 2014 8:57:08 PM

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

FYIL.

Shannon

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Christopher Collins <CCollins@ashevillenc.gov>

Date: December 8, 2014 at 4:10:26 PM EST

To: Shannon Tuch <stuch(@ashevillenc.gov>

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

FYI, today | resulted the GR Final inspection as approved for the subject
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
Subject: Fwd: 5844 Buncombe Co range - concrete floor slab replacement
Date: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 7:26:10 PM
Attachments: image001.png
ATTO00001.htm
CCF03162016 0001.pdf
ATT00002.htm
FYI

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "John C. Shields" <jshields@ClarkNexsen.com>
Date: March 29, 2016 at 4:22:46 PM MST

To: "Mike Merrell (mmerrell@hickory-construction.com)" <mmerrell@hickory-

construction.com>

Cc: Christopher D'Angelo <CDangelo@hickory-construction.com>, David

Lancor <DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com>, Robert Cummings
<bcummings@clarknexsen.com>, "Marcus B. Whitaker"

<mwhitaker@ClarkNexsen.com>, "Matt S. Hickey"
<mhickey@ClarkNexsen.com>, Patrick Ward <pward@ClarkNexsen.com>, "Jon

Creighton (jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org)"
<jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: 5844 Buncombe Co range - concrete floor slab replacement

Mike:

As we discussed in our phone conversation this afternoon, Clark Nexsen and Buncombe
County have reviewed the second set of ground penetrating radar test results for the
range floor slab. The test results indicate that there are many areas in the slab that do
not meet the specified minimum thickness requirements. While it might be possible to
replace isolated areas that do not meet specification, the resulting slab would be an
unacceptable patchwork of new and old concrete, with a high risk of damage to the
remaining methane barrier. Accordingly, the Owner has directed that the existing
concrete slab be replaced in the following locations:

<!|--[if IsupportLists]-->e  <l--[endif]-->Range 100, from the toe of the steel bullet
trap to the east wall of the range behind the 50-yard firing line.

<|--[if IsupportLists]-->e  <l--[endif]-->In Mechanical Room 102, between doors
100E and 102B, across the full width of both doors.

Clark Nexsen and our methane barrier consultant are reviewing the procedures
described by S&H Waterproofing for maintaining the continuity of the methane barrier
and will send our comments (if any) to you this week. The letter is attached for
reference.
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213 South Jefferson Suite 1011




Roanoke, VA 24011




540.613.6692 Direct


540.982.0800 Office 


jshields@clarknexsen.com




www.clarknexsen.com
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The Shield of Quality

S & H Waterproofing and Construction, LLC

W
e o
/6?,, % 9 o\,‘r~
¢ 4

Waterproofing, AAC
Owner: Robert Sadler 2890 County Rd. 111
Cell: (770) 851-8620 Piedmont, AL 36272
Office: (256) 447-7950 Fax: (256) 447-7980

Date: March 16, 2016

Project: Buncombe County Public Safety Training Center — 12 — Lane Indoor Firearms Range
Location: 2900 Riverside Drive, Ashville, NC 28804

To whom it may concern;

It has been brought to my attention that the slab at the Buncombe County Firearms Range has to
be removed & repoured.

Due to the sensitive nature of the Geo Seal Vapor Barrier under the slab the area to be removed,
the vapor barrier will have to be replaced. Areas that may not have the slab removed will
require certain procedures to insure the integrity of the system remain intact. In the walk thru
doors & roll up doors the slab turns down to the footer and doesn’t get removed will need to be
chipped down to minus 6 inches & then ground down smooth so the Geo Seal can be attached
to the top of the concrete. In areas that have a cut slab to butt up to, it will need to be over cut
6” and only cut three quarters thru and broke the rest of the way with a sledge hammer and then
peeled off our membrane. It then can be tied onto to create the continuous barrier. All other
areas where the slab is completely removed, the tie in would take place at the original location
(Ex. Terminate at the perimeter wall etc....). By following these procedures, the Geo Seal
Vapor Barrier will continue to protect the firing range from contaminates.

Thanks,

Robert Sadler, Jr.
S & H Waterproofing and Construction, LLC
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Please provide a brief description of procedures that Hickory Construction will follow to
replace the slab, and also procedures for preventing dust contamination of existing
construction within the range (particularly mechanical and electrical equipment.

You asked how the replacement concrete slab should be tied in to the remaining slab
under the bullet trap. We will forward a response to this question separately.

Other items that we discussed:

<!I--[if IsupportLists]-->e  <l--[endif]-->Hickory’s March pay application: As you
know, 100% of the cost for the installation of the defective slab was previously
paid. To protect the Owner’s interests, Clark Nexsen will mark the March
schedule of values to indicate a deduction for the cost of the slab to be
replaced. The cost will be based on the project cost of the slab and methane
barrier, proportioned by the area to be replaced versus the total floor slab
area.

<!|--[if IsupportLists]-->e  <I--[endif]-->Regarding Hickory’s requests for time
extensions:

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->o <!--[endif]-->We will review the weather delay
request that Hickory submitted in January and make our
recommendation to the County regarding the time extension. My
apologies that this request has not been previously addressed.

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->o <!--[endif]-->Regarding Hickory’s request for a
time extension related to the change in range equipment
subcontractors, the County has declined to approve the request.
However, the County does not currently intend to enforce the contract
liquidated damages clause due to schedule delays.

We very much appreciate Hickory Construction’s professionalism and commitment to
correcting the concrete slab problem. Don’t’ hesitate to call if you need any
information from us.

John Shields aia, ccs

Senior Architect | Associate

CLARKNEXSEN






From: Jon Creighton

To: Matt Stone
Subject: Fwd: 5844 Buncombe Co. Range
Date: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 11:59:09 AM

I will do it anyway but aren't required end to have them?
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Greg Isreal (Paul G.)" <Greg.Isreal@buncombecounty.org>

Date: March 24, 2015 at 10:24:34 AM EDT

To: Barry Burdick <BBurdick@ClarkNexsen.com>

Cc: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>, "John C. Shields"
<jshields@ClarkNexsen.com>, "Marcus B. Whitaker"

<mwhitaker@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Re: 5844 Buncombe Co. Range

I will let Jon make that call but we typically do use a 3rd party inspector on
concrete and steel. I encourage the use of special inspections.

On Mar 24, 2015, at 10:14 AM, Barry Burdick <BBurdick@ClarkNexsen.com>
wrote:

Jon or Greg:

Given the size, height and Occupancy of the new Firing Range, we are not
required by NC Building Code to have special inspections during
construction. Usually this impacts excavation and structural components
of the building, and in our case could add up to amounts between $20-
30,000.

Are there any County-mandated requirements for Special Inspections?

Barry Burdick AiA, PMP, LEED AP BD+C

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

Subject: Fwd: 5844 Buncombe County - floor slab replacement - HCC Reply 3/15/2016
Date: Tuesday, March 15, 2016 3:41:50 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Mike Merrell <MMerrell@hickory-construction.com>
Date: March 15, 2016 at 9:49:23 AM EDT

To: "John C. Shields" <jshields@ClarkNexsen.com>

Cec: "Jon Creighton (jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org)"
<jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org>, "Marcus B. Whitaker"
<mwhitaker@ClarkNexsen.com>, "Matt S. Hickey"

<mhickey@ClarkNexsen.com>, Robert Cummings
<bcummings(@clarknexsen.com>, Patrick Ward <pward@ClarkNexsen.com>,

"Bill Stafford (Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org)"

<Bill.Stafford@buncombecounty.org>, "Greg Isreal
(greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org)" <greg.isreal@buncombecounty.org>, "Eric
Rogers (Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org)"
<Eric.Rogers@buncombecounty.org>, Christopher D'Angelo

<CDangelo@hickory-construction.com>, Chuck Moss <CMoss@hickory-
construction.com>, Aaron Beam <ABeam(@hickory-construction.com>, Mark

Baucom <MBaucom@hickory-construction.com>, "solutionsbyepro@aol.com"

<solutionsbyepro@aol.com>, "chad.h@cardinalconcretecorp.com"
<chad.h@cardinalconcretecorp.com>, "Mike Leslie (mleslie@dhgriffin.com)"

<mleslie@dhgriffin.com>
Subject: RE: 5844 Buncombe County - floor slab replacement - HCC Reply

3/15/2016

John,

Thanks for your response to the GPR testing report that was provided to you for review
on 2/29/2016.

I have outlined the following corrective items that have been scheduled to date for the
existing concrete slab replacement for the BC Firearms Range Project #5844.

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->e  <I--[endif]-->Additional GPR slab testing for the balance
of the Range 100, Trap 109 floor slab areas and the Mech. Rm. 102 floor slab
area between the two (2) overhead coiling doors is scheduled for the coming
Friday 3/18/2016.
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<l--[if IsupportLists]-->e¢  <I--[endif]-->Core drilling of the existing GPR floor slab
tested areas to confirm that the actual thickness of the in place concrete floor
slabs, starting with the areas that are shown within the blue colors to see if the
indicated testing report does indeed match the actual removed concrete slab
core sample. If for some reason that we find that the actual floor slab thickness
is greater than the floor slab thickness that were shown in the GPR test report
we will proceed to core drill other floor slab areas within the current tested
green areas to see if these areas also have an actual floor slab thickness that is
greater than the floor slab thickness that were also shown on the current GPR
test report. If we conclude that the overall existing floor slab areas thicknesses
are greater that were shown on the original GPR test report, then we would
request a meet to see if they are any existing floor slab areas that could remain
in place and that would meet the design requirements for vehicle traffic. Also if
we find that the upcoming core drill floor samples match the current GPR
testing report findings that we will plan to procced with the existing floor slab
removal within the Range 100 and the Bullet Trap Maintenance 109 areas as
stated in your below e-mail.

<l--[if IsupportLists]-->e¢  <I--[endif]-->After all of the new GPR testing is
completed and reviewed for the balance of the Range 100, the Bullet Trap
Maintenance 109 areas and the Mechanical 102 between doors 100E and
102B, we will provide an updated construction schedule that will show the
impact of the methane barrier and concrete floor slab replacements.

<!|--[if IsupportLists]-->e  <l--[endif]-->We have contacted the original methane
barrier installer to put together a written description of measures to be taken
to maintain the continuity of the existing methane barrier at locations where
the replacement slab will butt into the remaining existing concrete slabs.

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->e¢  <I--[endif]-->We have contacted a demo subcontractor
for the removal of the existing concrete floor slab areas and the door opening
areas.

<l--[if IsupportLists]-->e¢  <I--[endif]-->We have contracted the original concrete
floor slab finisher about the required subgrade fine grading, under slab wash
stone replacement and the 6” concrete floor slab replacement.

As soon as we have all of the above items completed we will confirm our plans for the
concrete floor slab replacement items with a revised project schedule attached for
your review.

Again please let me apologize to everyone for this inconvenient, at no time was it the
intend of HCC to provide less that the 6” designed concrete floor slab thickness for this
project.





If you have any additional questions, please feel free to give me a call at 828-310-2100.

Thanks,
Mike Merrell
Hickory Construction Co.

From: John C. Shields [mailto:jshields@ClarkNexsen.com]
Sent: Monday, March 14, 2016 8:45 PM

To: Mike Merrell

Cc: Jon Creighton (jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org); Marcus B. Whitaker; Matt S.
Hickey; Robert Cummings; Patrick Ward

Subject: 5844 Buncombe County - floor slab replacement
Mike:

Clark Nexsen has reviewed the GPR test results provided by S&ME dated February 29,
2016. The results indicate that the tested area of the slab-on-grade has significant
portions that are less than 6 inches thick. The predominant color (per the color
gradient provided in the results report) displayed on the “Concrete Slab Thickness Plot”
ranges between light green and dark green, which corresponds to 4 to 5 inches of
concrete thickness. Visually, this ‘green’ portion of the slab is approximately 85% of
the area tested. The majority of the green area shown appears as a medium to dark
green, which corresponds to a thickness of 4 to 4 % inches.

About half of the 15% remaining tested slab area appears dark yellow on the “Concrete
Slab Thickness Plot”, which corresponds to concrete thickness between 5 and 5 %
inches. The balance of the remaining tested area is shown as medium blue to light
blue, which corresponds to 3 % to 4 inches of concrete thickness.

S&ME has previously stated that GPR results are within % inch accuracy. Respecting
the tolerances and limitations of the equipment and the testing method, the majority
of the tested area could be, most favorably, 5 to 5 % inches thick, or less favorably, 4
inches thick.

ACI 117-10 Specification for Tolerances for Concrete Construction and Materials states
that the measured thickness of any individual sample of slabs-on-ground shall deviate
not more than 3/4” from specified cross-sectional dimension, and the average of all
samples shall deviate not more than 3/8 inch from the specified cross-sectional
dimension. Thus a single sample (such as a single slab core) of a slab-on-ground
specified to be 6 inches may measure to be, at most 6-3/4 inches, and at least 5-1/4
inches thick. The average of multiple samples may measure to be, at most 6-3/8
inches, and at least 5-5/8 inches thick.

The test report indicates that the thickness measurements have a tolerance of plus-or-
minus % inch. Even if one assumes that the tolerance error is to the high side (in other
words, that a given slab area is actually up to % inch thicker than indicated in the test
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report), the GPR test results indicate that the majority of the tested portion of the slab
does not meet the specified thickness requirements. We believe that it’s reasonable
to assume that the untested area of the floor slab is also deficient. We have discussed
these results with Buncombe County, and after reviewing various options, the County is
directing that the concrete floor slab in Range 100, in Bullet Trap Maintenance 109,
and the slab under the bullet trap itself shall be replaced.

Prior to beginning the replacement of the floor slab, please provide the following:
e A project schedule incorporating the slab replacement.

e A written description of measures to be taken to maintain the continuity of the
methane barrier at locations where the replacement slab will butt into the
remaining existing concrete slabs.

Because the floor slab in Mechanical 102 between doors 100E and 102B carries vehicle
traffic, the County desires that the floor slab between these doors also be tested with
ground penetrating radar to verify the slab thickness.

Please let us know if you have any questions.
Thanks,

John Shields ala, ccs
Senior Architect | Associate

'
==

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

Cc: Josh O"Conner

Subject: Fwd: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to 294 Martin Branch Rd
Date: Friday, October 31, 2014 9:48:03 PM

Can you look at this one? Josh will look about the wall but can you ask the septic guys look

also?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Ellen M. Frost" <Ellen.Frost@buncombecounty.org>
Date: October 31, 2014 at 9:16:22 PM GMT-3

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>, Joshua OConner
<Joshua.OConner(@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Fwd: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to 294 Martin
Branch Rd

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

Subject: Building/permit concerns for property adjacent to 294
Martin Branch Rd

Mrs. Frost,

Per our conversation this afternoon, | am sending this email to you to
express concerns regarding new construction for a double wide trailer
being installed on a lot adjacent to my property. My property address is
294 Martin Branch Rd, Leicester, NC 28748. | am not sure what the issued
address for the adjacent property will be, but it is directly in front of my
property on Martin Branch Rd. The building permit number for the new
dwelling is 2014-02038.
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One concern is that they have possibly encroached onto my property
during the site excavating process, and | have a surveyor coming out to
officially determine whether my property has been damaged at the first of
next week. There has been a nearly vertical bank cut at the property line
in question, which to my understanding in Buncombe County, requires
either a 2:1 slope or an engineered retaining wall installed to prevent
erosion issues. At best, this bankis a 1:1 slope, but more likely 0.5:1
slope. The double wide trailer has been installed with only 9 feet from
the back door of the new dwelling to the top of the bank, so it is not likely
feasible for them to be able to install the retaining wall or to come back in
and repair the slope (where they are planning to install an 8x15’ deck as
well). There is no ditch at this time to divert water runoff from the hill
and bank, nor the dwelling itself. There is a huge concern for erosion as
there is a large sloping hill down to where the bank has been cut, and no
question that there will be erosion issues that will ultimately undermine
my property (which is a livestock pasture containing horses), due to the
way the bank has been cut. There has been no silt fence or any other
apparent attempts to prevent erosion during this process as well.

Another concern is that the property in question has been previously
been turned down on inspection for well and septic, though somehow it
has passed inspection now. As | understand in Buncombe County, a septic
system cannot be installed on greater than a 2-4% slope, which would
only leave the driveway area for installation on the steep property, which
I also understand to be against code. The septic has not been installed as
of yet. They had initially installed a well that was at least 10" from my
property line, but then unbeknownst to me, had to move the well and
now it is at best 2’-3’ from my line. There is no question that they did cut
into my property line where they had cut out for the well as the surveyor
mark is there in the corner, and they cut the dirt away 10-12” onto my
property (though as best as | can tell, the well appears to be on their

property).

| will also try to get some pictures to send you, but | wanted to at least get
this email to you to begin the process of investigation.

Thank you so very much for your assistance in this matter!
Sincerely,

Christina Law, DVM
NCDA&CS, Veterinary Division
(919)218-2529





the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to
third parties.






From:
To:

Jon Creighton
Matt Stone; Bob Haynes

Subject: Fwd: Buncombe County"s votes on upcoming model Energy Code

Date:

Thursday, September 8, 2016 11:02:17 AM

Attachments: EECC-logo-Fact-Sheet-GMVR-registration Aug-2016 FINAL.pdf

ATT00001.htm

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Joan Walker <joan@mountaintrue.org>

Date: September 8, 2016 at 11:00:23 AM EDT

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Buncombe County's votes on upcoming model Energy Code

Hi Jon,

If you have a chance, please check out the below information about the upcoming
vote on the Model Building Energy Code and the important role Buncombe
County can play in keeping the current energy saving code from getting rolled
back. This year for the first time jurisdictions can vote online, making it much
easier to have a say. This is an issue near and dear to my heart as I helped get the
current codes adopted and I hope Buncombe County can cast their vote!

If you'd like more information or assistance please contact Bridget Herring, who's
information is at the bottom of the email.

Thanks!

Joan
sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk

YOU can play a critical role in setting national energy policy!

Act now to secure your jurisdiction’s maximum voting rights to improve America’s
Model Energy Code this November!

The Energy Efficiency Codes Coalition (EECC) is working with local governments
nationwide to alert you and your jurisdiction to an opportunity to vote for more
efficient buildings in this fall’s 2018 International Energy Conservation Code (IECC)
update. The IECC is the basis for the energy code in over 40 states including North
Carolina.
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EECC

Energy Efficient Codes Coalition

Fact Sheet
How to Register and Validate Governmental Member Voting Representatives
With the International Code Council
Deadline: September 19, 2016

Where to Begin. Your jurisdiction or unit of government is most likely a Governmental Member of the ICC
if you are involved with fire safety, life safety, codes, building construction, permitting or planning. Each
Governmental Member appoints a Primary Representative to handle membership relations with the ICC,
including management of voting credentials.

You need to locate your Primary Representative to begin validating your full roster of Governmental Member
Voting Representatives, or GMVRs. That individual is usually in the fire safety or building departments. It’s
also possible for a jurisdiction to have more than one Member. For example, a county fire safety unit may
have a separate membership from the county building inspection unit. Your Primary Representative should
know.

If you have difficulty identifying your Primary Representative, the ICC Member Services staff are available to
help at members@iccsafe.org or at 888-422-7233, x33804.

The ICC bylaws allocate the number of Governmental Member Voting Representatives by population as
follows:

Population Voting
Representatives
0 to 50,000 4
50,001 to 150,000 8
Over 150,000 12

Your Primary Representative can tell you how many GMVRs are listed on your roster and their voting
credential status. It will be Current if the GMVR was properly validated by the Primary Representative to be
on the roster and to have voting privileges. It will be Not Current if the Primary Representative has not taken
this action.

Nationwide, only eight percent (8%) of ICC GMVRs have current voting credentials. In addition, many ICC
Members do not submit full rosters with all the GMVRs to which they are entitled, resulting in a shortfall of
votes.
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For effective participation in the ICC code development process, work with your Primary Representative
to validate a full roster of GMVRs with current voting credentials and do the following:

e Log into your ICC account and locate your jurisdiction’s Member record in the ICC’s Organizational
Member directory

e Review and record the following information in the Member record:

v’ Verify the Primary Representative.

v The full number of GMVRs available for that Member according to the population criteria in
the bylaws (i.e. 4, 8 or 12)

v The actual number of GMVRs listed

v' The difference, if any, between the full number of GMVRs and the actual number listed (i.e.,
voter shortfall).

v' The voting credential status of each GMVR on the roster (i.e., current or not current).

e |[f there is a voter shortfall, identify qualified individuals to become voters, and include them in the
roster of GMVRs. According to ICC bylaws, GMVRs “shall be employees or officials of the
Governmental Member or departments of the Governmental Member, provided that each of the
designated voting representatives shall be an employee or a public official actively engaged either full
or part time, in the administration, formulation, implementation or enforcement of laws, ordinances,
rules or regulations relating to the public health, safety and welfare.” This broad eligibility provides
considerable flexibility in adding to the roster.

e If any voters are listed as not current, encourage the Primary Representative to validate his or her
organization’s entire list of GMVRs by the September 19t deadline. Refer to this FAQ for additional
information about the voter validation process.

e Request that the Primary Representative confirm with the DVRPC once he or she has validated the
organization’s list of voters.

Refer to this FAQ for additional information
about the voter validation process.

For more information, including webinar
recordings, presentations, voting guides, and
deadlines, visit
http://energyefficientcodes.com/power/.

Act now to secure your voting rights to update America’s Model Energy Code!
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The IECC—America’s Model Building Energy Code—is updated every three years in a
year-long process that culminates with electronic voting by Governmental Member
Voting Representatives (GMVRs) of the International Code Council (ICC). GMVRs are
appointed by local governments like yours and are usually code officials, building
inspectors, fire marshals, sustainability/policy staff, and other qualified individuals.
Each Governmental Member can cast 4, 8, or 12 votes, based on population; who
are the designated GMVRs in your jurisdiction?

November’s electronic ICC ballot will contain over two dozen proposals that will
rollback or trade away recent landmark efficiency gains, and there are precious few
proposals that boost efficiency. If rollbacks prevail, the 2018 IECC will be the first in
history to be weaker than the code it updates, jeopardizing support from DOE and from
efficiency experts who agree that steady progress is key to meeting long-term
sustainability goals. We’re urging concerned local governments to help us defeat the
rollbacks.

Concerned local governments and their Councils of Governments can do their part
to strengthen the IECC by:

1. Registering to vote and securing voting credentials as an ICC Governmental
Member Voting Representative by September 19 *

2. Testifying and casting important procedural “hand votes” in-person at ICC’s Public
Comment Hearings in Kansas City (October 19-25). These important votes set the
agenda for November’s on-line voting. Travel scholarships will be available.

3. Casting your on-line ballot with cdpACCESS for code measures that improve
efficiency and prevent rollbacks) during the on-line voting period, November 8-21.
These votes determine the new IECC.

*For your convenience, we have attached a Fact Sheet on How to Register and
Validate GMVRs by September 19. \We will also be offering a free webinar on Monday,
September 12 to provide the same information and answer any questions you might
have. Click here to register for the webinar!

For more information or to ask any questions please contact Bridget Herring at:

Bridget@mathisconsulting.com or at (513) 967-6919.
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Joan M. Walker
MountainTrue, Campaigns Director

828-258-8737 ext. 205 (office)

828-575-6268 (cell)

Follow us on Facebook + Twitter and support our work, become a member today!

MountainTrue’s board, volunteers and professional staff focus on a core set of issues across 23 counties of Western North
Carolina: sensible land use, restoring public forests, protecting water quality and promoting clean energy — all of which have a
high impact on the environmental health and long-term prosperity of our region. MountainTrue is the home of the French Broad
Riverkeeper, the primary protector and defender of the French Broad River watershed.

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

Subject: Fwd: Capital Center and Mills Gap Road
Date: Monday, February 9, 2015 10:53:39 AM
Attachments: image001.qif

Can you have someone check on this?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Craig Mariani <cmariani(@tessierassociates.com>
Date: February 9, 2015 at 9:48:31 AM EST

To: "Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org"

<Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Capital Center and Mills Gap Road

Hi, Jon.

Thanks again for taking the time to meet with us at the Capital Center regarding the
new parking deck and County building. | know that was really helpful for everyone in
our building, and it was appreciated.

| also manage a property off of Mills Gap Road, and there has been some concern
regarding a structure located at 144 Mills Gap Road that looks like it may collapse down
the hill and onto Mills Gap. | checked the County’s website, and your department
seemed the best suited for this type of concern, but if there is someone else, | should
direct this to, please let me know.

Thanks, Jon.

Craig Mariani

Tessier Associates

82 Patton Avenue, Suite 700
Asheville, NC 28801
p—828.254.9842 x 265
c—828.545.5622
f—828.255.8569

MLS

Please keep me in mind for your real estate needs!
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From: Jon Creighton

To: Josh O"Conner; Chip Gingles; Matt Stone
Subject: Fwd: Dept Heads

Date: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 8:23:53 PM

Can you answer her question?

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Mandy Stone <Mandy.Stone@buncombecounty.org>
Date: November 21, 2017 at 8:17:51 PM EST

To: Jon Creighton <Jon.Creighton(@buncombecounty.org>, Jim Holland
<Jim.Holland@buncombecounty.org>, Tim Flora
<tim.flora@buncombecounty.org>, David Brigman
<David.Brigman@buncombecounty.org>, Drew Reisinger
<Drew.Reisinger@buncombecounty.org>

Cec: "Christa L. Lance" <Christa.l.ance@buncombecounty.org>, "Michael C.
Frue" <Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Fwd: Dept Heads

Hi

Please see the request below. Frue’s opinion is if these department heads carry
County vs personal cell phones the number is public. Can you confirm if the cell
phones are personal or public for yourselves or the department heads listed and if
so the number so we can respond ?

Register of Deeds
Tax

Purchasing
Permits

Solid Waste

Air Quality
Septic Wells-EH
Public Health
Parks and Rec

CHRISTA can put the list together. She will have email addresses. If you prefer to
respond directly to Mr Payne please let me know so we are responsive.

Here is Frue’s opinion:
As to the county-owned phones those numbers are public record.

Some employees own their phones and get a reimbursement [at they used
to]. Private numbers are not automatically public but but to the extent we
store those numbers to call the employee they are public too.



mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=813740331FB045AA81CCD6759EE7CA8A-JON CREIGHT

mailto:josh.oconner@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e810db3087f94ce5a3e11f9b53857d42-Chip Gingle

mailto:Matt.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Mandy.Stone@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Jim.Holland@buncombecounty.org

mailto:tim.flora@buncombecounty.org

mailto:David.Brigman@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Drew.Reisinger@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Christa.Lance@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org



Thanks

Mandy

Mandy Stone, MSW

County Manager

Buncombe County Government
Sent from my iPhone

Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North
Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

Begin forwarded message:

From: JohnWandaPayne <johnwandapayne@yahoo.com>
Date: November 21, 2017 at 3:55:36 PM EST

To: <mandy.stone@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Dept Heads

| need the cell phone numbers, E-mail address for the following depts
heads, parks and rec, permits and inspections, planning, register of
deeds, public health, purchasing, tax, wnc air, solid waste, and the dept
that does septic systems and well permits. thanks John Payne
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From: Jon.Creighton@buncombecounty.org

To: Josh O"Conner; Chip Gingles; Matt Stone
Subject: Fwd: Dept Heads

Date: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 8:23:52 PM

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

Date: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 8:23:55 PM

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
Date: Friday, October 13, 2017 7:30:31 PM

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
Date: Friday, October 13, 2017 7:30:30 PM

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

mailto:jon.creighton@buncombecounty.org

mailto:acole@ashevillenc.gov

mailto:smerten@ashevillenc.gov



